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AVEVA creates industrial
software that inspires people
to shape a sustainable future.

We work with our customers and
harness the power of our ecosystem
to deliver solutions and expertise to
optimise engineering, operations
and performance.

From water and energy to food ,
and infrastructure, our solutions // )
transform opportunity into '

business value. We use collaborative
innovation to empower people [
and industries to thrive. X ‘

OF st 0

“We committed ourselves to being a leader in industrial

software for a sustainable future, working with our , {
a- : employees, customers, shareholders and our wider *
E '_ ; communities. We aspire to a world where economic growth \C
supports environmental sustainability with better living

\ N
_ standards for all. Our purpose, values and strategy enable us B
Online Annual Report " 7
To view our interactive Online Annual Report, and to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders. /
to domnloa: szctions of, -ct)r the fultl)r.etp?rt, please Craig Hayman ) 24
scan the Q above or visit our website: Chlef Executive Ofﬁcer ‘I
https://investors.aveva.com/annualreport.html
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Strategic Report

This is part one of our Annual Report
and Accounts. Part two consists of
the Governance Report and Financial
Statements, and details our corporate
governance, remuneration, and
financial performance.
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Highlights

HOW we
nerformed

AVEVA delivered good financial results
achieving revenue and profitability growth
while continuing to drive a business model

transition to subscription.

Financial

Revenue

£8355.8m

Up 8.8% (FY19: £766.6m)
B
5] ]

Recurring revenue?

62.27

Up 840 bps (FY19: 53.8%)
I -
I
I

42.4
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Diluted EPS

43513

Up 106% (Fv19: 20.

— &3
o] 20.90)
s] e

Profit before tax

£92.0m

Up 97.0% (FY19: £46.7m)

o]  JED
] ) “6)
EEIR 34.5)

Net cash

£114.6m

Down 10.3% (FY19: £127.8m)

Adjusted® diluted EPS

108.15p

Up 24.9% (FY19: 86.60p)

] N
EE 86.60
el ] .42

Adjusted! EBIT

£216.8m

Up 23.3% (FY19: £175.9m)

DR
pedl ] 175.9
_ 108.0}

Adjusted! EBIT margin

26.0%

Up 310 bps (FY19: 22.9%)

1 Adjusted figures are calculated before amortisation

of intangible assets (excluding other software),
share-based payments, gain/loss on fair value of

forward foreign exchange contracts and exceptional

items. Where relevant this also includes the tox
effect of these odjustments.

2 Recurring revenue is defined as subscription plus
maintenance revenue.



Operational

Customer events

AVEVA World Summit
Sihgapore, September 2019

T ey ¢

! ¥. ¢ N r
Over 600 delegates attended the two-day
Summit, with insights from 63 industry
leaders including Shell, ENI, Schneider
Electric and Nestlé.

AVEVA World Conference
Florida, November 2019

More than 1,400 delegates joined us for
130 expert sessions that spanned eight
industry verticals.

Acquisitions
Acquisition of AssetPlus
April 2019

We acquired AssetPlus software from
MaxGrip, integrating predictive and
prescriptive analytics into our asset
performance management, boosting our
artificial intelligence capabilities.
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Product launches

We launched AVEVA™ Discrete
Lean Management

InFebruary we launched aur Nisrreta
Lean Management product suite at ARC
Forumin Florida, USA. The system s
designed specifically for the needs of the
discrete manufacturing sector.

Launch of cloud-enabled
multi-experience capabilities

-

In 2020, we launched enhanced multi-
experience capabilities across our
software, improving collaboration

by ensuring teams had a consistent
experience whether they were working in
the field, in the office or at hame.

AV=VAPLIF=

Limitless Possibilities, Integrity Always,
Flexibility Together, Exccllence Every Day

Number of culture workshops
held in the year

84

To embed our new cuiture, we have been
holding small group workshops throughout
the world. For more information, see page 32.

Employee engagement rate

827

In February and March we surveyed all
employees across a range of topics. Toread
more, see paye 33.

AV=VA
ACTION FOR

GCOD

Over one-third of employees used
their paid community day to give
back

1,536 days

For more information, see pages 36.

Money and time donated for
charitable causes in the year

£523,000

A combination of local and national causes,
support for employee community days, and
eimpluyes imdtched funaing.
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Employees, customers,
investors and our wider
communities: our stakeholders
are critical to the continued
success of AVEVA.

Stakeholder Engagement
More on pages 20-21
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Chairman’s Statement

A year of
strong
progress

AVEVA delivered good results in
the financial year ended March
2020, while driving operational
improvements to underpin
long-term value creation.

Overview

It is now two years since the combination
of heritage AVEVA and the Schneider
Electric industrial software business
created a global leader in industrial
software. During that time, the Group
has made substantial progress,
integrating its unmatched set of
solutions to help our customers on
their digitalisation journeys and in so
doing, playing a key role in driving the
digitalisation of the industrial world.

During the financial year, the benefits of
the combination and integration started
to yield results, despite the unprecedented
events surrounding Covid-19 and the
disruption to energy markets towards the
end of the year. AVEVA adapted swiftly to
the new operating environment, with the
business demonstrating resilience, and
our employees and management team
showing commitment and flexibility.

As such, the Group delivered a strong
finish to a successful year, growing total
revenue 8.8%, which together with
improved operating margins, drove an
adjusted diluted EPS increase of 24.9%.

"This was achieved while strengthening

AVEVA's prospects through investing
in Research & Development, investing
in our people and substantially
increasing subscription revenue and
Cloud sales to drive long-term value.

The Board proposes to maintain the final
dividend at 29.0 pence. This decision
results from our confidence in the
resilience of AVEVA's business, with its
strong balance sheet position and ongoing
cash generation, balanced with prudence
regarding the global macroeconomic crisis.

Board developments

We have a strong and diversified Board of
Directors with a majority of independent
Non-Executive Directors. On 30 April 2020
Emmanuel Babeau resigned as a Non-
Executive Director, Vice Chairman of the
Board and member of the Remuneration
Committee. This followed the
announcement by Schneider Electric that
he would be leaving the company. | would
like to thank Emmanuel for his support
and contribution to AVEVA and the Board
and wish him the very best for the future.



DocuSign Envelope ID: B5B44106-3AA8-487D-AC98-58291CCB39D2

29.0p

Final dividend
No change (FY19: 29.0p)

Emmanuel has been replaced by Olivier
Blum as a Non-Executive Director and

member of the Remuneration Committee.

Olivier is Chief Strategy & Sustainability
Officer at Schneider Electric and comes
with great experience, having spent 27
years with Schneider in France, China,
India and Hong Kong, in products and
sales. More recently he was Chief Human
Resources Officer for five years. The
Board is delighted to welcome Olivier.
His broad international expertise in
strategy and HR issues will strengthen
and enhance the Board and Committee’s
range of skills and expertise.

Peter Herweck assumed the role

of Vice Chairman effective 30 April
2020. My thanks also to Peter for his
support in assuming this role.

Summary

The Board would like to acknowledge
the role of the executive management
in the successful integration of the two
businesses that now make up AVEVA.
Like all integrations following a merger,
this was complex and has resulted in
cultural change that has positioned
AVEVA well for a successful future. The
Board would also like to sincerely thank
all our employees for their support, hard
work and dedication on this journey,
exhibited again more recently during
the current Covid-19 crisis. Finally, we
acknowledge and thank our customers,
shareholders and other stakeholders
for their continued support and look
forward to a successful future together.

Philip Aiken AM
Chairman
9 june 2020

DocuSigned by:

Tha Qi 1venr

801F53793998423...
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Our values and culture

Our values are:

» Limitless Possibilities
+ Integrity Always

« Flexibility Together

» Excellence Every Day

Covid-19

No business is escaping the effects of
Covid-19. The health, safety and well-
being of our customers, employees,
partners and communities is of the
highest importance to us and we are
proud to be working together as part
of the global response to the Covid-19
pandemic. We transitioned over 95%
of the team to remote working early

in the pandemic, and colleagues

have embraced the opportunities and
challenges this has brought. Sharing
individual stories and celebrating
successes shows how our people put
the AVEVA LIFE values into action,
bringing our teams closer despite
social distancing and remote working.
An early highlight was our first virtual
sales conference, AVEVA IGNITE
Digital, which enjoyed a record 1,000+
delegates over four days.

Our shared AVEVA LIFE
values and culture are
hugely important to
everyone at AVEVA and
embody who we are
and how we behave.

This year we have invested
in culture training
workshops all around

the world, with over a
thousand employees
participating so far.

We also launched an
engagement survey

to all staff which
received a tremendous
level of response.

=

To read more, see our Social Wellbeing
section on pages 32-33.
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Chief Executive’'s Review

Accelerate
Innovation:
transform your
digital future

Our business is now
substantially diversified across
four business units, three major
geographies, and end-markets
including energy, infrastructure
and food & beverage.

Summary

AVEVA delivered good financial results
achieving revenue growth of 8.8% and
adjusted EBIT growth of 23.3%, while
continuing to drive a business model
transition to subscription. Recurring
revenue increased as a proportion of
total revenue to 62.2% (FY19: 53.8%).
This transition offers increased flexibility
to customers, while generating long-
term value for shareholders.

The Group's operating margin benefited
from an improvement in gross margin,
due to a better sales mix and increased

operational efficiency, operational
leverage and underlying cost savings.
At the same time, investment in areas
including Sales & Marketing and
Research & Development was increased
to help generate future growth.

Covid-19

AVEVA achieved a good close to its
financial year, despite the challenges
related to Covid-19. The safety of AVEVA's
employees is paramount and the business
has adapted well to remote working.

AVEVA's software drives efficiency

gains for the industries it serves. As

such, digitalisation is key in dealing with
the challenges that these industries are
facing, for example helping drive efficiency
in difficult operating environments and
enabling unmanned operations. The Group
has been accelerating its cloud roll-out,
while increasing investment in cloud
development, to provide flexibility for
customers in how they consume software.

“The merger of AVEVA with the Schneider Electric industrial
software business in March 2018 was one of the largest
business combinations that has occurred in the UK for many
years. Our focus on integration and operational excellence
has been a success, yielding a unique, best-in-class and
highly competitive global technology company listed
on the London Stock Exchange”

Craig Hayman
Chief Executive Officer



Despite this, the overall level of
macroeconomic disruption has had some
impact on customer confidence and in
certain sectors it has caused supply
chain disruption, making the overall
business environment more challenging.

Restrictions on mobility are resulting

in services being performed remotely
where possible and we expect to see
the ongoing and planned reduction in
perpetual licences increase. This is likely
to lead to subscription revenues, which
have continued to grow, comprising

a greater proportion of the total.

Against a more challenging revenue
growth backdrop, AVEVA is taking
actions which are expected to result in

a reduction in costs of approximately
£50-60 million versus the Group's pre-
Covid-19 plans for FY21. At this point,
AVEVA does not intend to make staff
reductions in response to the economic
environment, furlough any staff, or make
use of government support programmes.
Savings will be generated from
reductions in discretionary spend, travel
costs and lower costs from switching
key events from physical to virtual.
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Customer case study

Olam International

Industry

o

Food & Beverage

Driving operational
excellence and
sustainability

Olam selected AVEVA's
Manufacturing Execution
System software to deliver
value in quality, asset
productivity, cost efficiency
and ensure the sustainability
of its global industrial
footprint.

Performance

Operations Engincering

9

The initial implementation in a greenfield
edible nuts production facility in Vietnam
highlighted AVEVA's fast depioyment, high
level of adoption by operational teams

and drove improvements in quality and
productivity across the portfolio.

Taoufik Arif, VP Digital Manufacturing &
Innovation, said, “Our new digital factory
enables our plant teams to achieve good
operational results in a short time, and
empowers Lheir decisions with real-
time insights. AVEVA™ Manufacturing
Execution System is a key enabler of

our Smart factory design, allowing us

to drive operational excellence and

build manufacturing contextual data

for Al analytics use, towards further
augmented competitiveness.”

Benefits include:

e Higher product quality consistency
and end-to-end traceability, leading
to high customer satisfaction;

*  Real-time visibility on production
line overall equipment effectiveness
supported by root cause analysis,
helps us make decisions at the right
time and higher asset productivity;

e Improved tracking of materials
and energy usage (consumed
and produced) throughout the
manufacturing process, ensuring
better cost efficiency and
sustainability;

e  Full data flow automation and
paperless factory, leading to better
labour productivity and focus on high
value-added activities; and

e  Al-analytics readiness with
contextual manufacturing data
availability, for higher overall
operational efficiency.
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Chief Executive’'s Review continued

Trading and markets

The industries that AVEVA serves are
making increasing use of technology
to reduce both capital and operating
costs in the context of competitive
pressures to increase efficiency,
output, flexibility and improve overall
sustainability. This is being enabled
by ongoing technological megatrends
that are driving the digitalisation

of the industrial world, notably the
industrial internet of things, Cloud, data
visualisation and artificial intelligence.

This is driving growth in demand

for industrial software. AVEVA is
optimally placed to help its customers
digitalise, due to its end-to-end product
portfolio, which runs from simulation
through design and construction and
into operations. In addition, AVEVA

has well-established market-leading
positions serving the process, marine,
batch and hybrid industries.

AVEVA achieved growth across all
its geographical reporting segments
and Business Units during the year.

End markets

AVEVA primarily serves process, batch,
hybrid and marine industries. These
industries provide staple requirements
for basic consumption, such as

Energy, Food, and Transport. As such,
they have some level of resilience to
the macroeconomic downturn.

AVEVA's largest end market is Oil & Gas

at around 40% of revenue, with around
10% of revenue exposed to greenfield
capex in the sector. The Group has become
more diversified since the combination
with the Schneider Electric industrial
software business. Packaged Goods (such
as Food & Beverage and Pharma), Power,
Marine, Chemicals & Petrochemicals,

and Metals & Mining each accounted

for 5-10% of Group revenue. Other
markets include Water & Wastewater,
Infrastructure and Discrete Manufacturing.

Within Oil & Gas the Group's business

is diversified across the capital and
operational expenditure phases of the
asset life cycle, with AVEVA supplying
customers in the upstream, midstream
and downstream markets. AVEVA's supply
chain planning software is particularly
well placed to help customers adjust

to the current market conditions.

The ongoing structural growth drivers
in each of our end markets are strong.

In Oil & Gas, overall end market conditions
were stable for most of the year, with
steady capital and operating expenditure
across the upstream, midstream and
downstream segments. The Group won
contracts with both owner-operators
such as BP and Engineering Procurement
and Construction (EPC) customers, such
as Worley. There was however a sharp
reduction in oil consumption associated
with the Covid-19 crisis towards the end of
the financial year. This has led to several
oil companies announcing reductions

in capital expenditure, particularly for
upstream projects, which will have a
knock-on impact on the business of

some of AVEVA's EPC customers. Most
of these EPC customers have signed
multi-year subscription contracts in the
past two years with a minimum level of
spend, which will provide some insulation
for AVEVA. Tough market conditions

also offer opportunities to drive further
efficiencies through digitalisation,
particularly in operations, where
AVEVA's software can offer solutions

to supply chain planning challenges.

In Marine, AVEVA delivered a good
performance, driven by product cycle
upgrades and a large multi-year
subscription contract win with Hyundai
Heavy Industries in Asia Pacific.

The Group's other end markets are
largely non-cyclical and are primarily
driven by structural growth as industries
make increasing use of technology to

“AVEVA delivered growth across
all geographies and saw good
execution from both direct and
indirect sales channels, the
latter of which represented
approximately one-third
of total revenue.”

Craig Hayman
Chief Executive Officer



drive efficiency. During the year, we
saw customer wins in the consumer
packaged goods market with Procter

& Gamble and Colgate Palmolive, the
semi-conductor market with Micron and
the food and beverage space with the
coffee division of Olam International,

a leading food and agribusiness.

AVEVA has a strategy to grow in new
markets, such as the infrastructure market
around cities, water & wastewater utilities,
power utilities, facility and campus
managers, transportation operators

and datacentres. There have been

several new customers, particularly in
smart cities, with the Unified Operations
Centre and water & wastewater.

AVEVA recently launched its Unified
Operations Centre for Datacentres in
collaboration with Schneider Electric,

to provide a homogenous view of
engineering, operations, and performance
across a heterogeneous, legacy installed
base. Datacentre providers will benefit
from this partnership by connecting
platforms and data sets that previously
existed in disparate systems. They

will also be able to scale regardiess of
the number of sites or global location.
Datacentre staff will be empowered to
make faster, more informed decisions and
optimise asset and operational efficiency
throughout the datacentre life cycle.

As aresult, datacentre providers can
deliver a globally consistent experience
to address the expanding digital
infrastructure needs of their clients.

Sales channel and geographical
performance

AVEVA delivered growth across all
geographies and saw good execution from
both direct and indirect sales channels, the
latter of which represented approximately
one-third of total revenue, including sales
made through Schneider Electric and
leveraging its end-to-end EcoStruxure
architecture. The recent combined launch
of a Datacentre product, which will be
taken to Schneider's top global accounts,
highlights the value of this relationship.
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Performance from the direct sales
channel was strong, benefiting from
investment and revised sales incentives.

The indirect sales channel performed
well, achieving growth across all
regions. AVEVA invested in and
simplified its partner network, including
enabling Schneider Electric to process
sales leads through this channel.

Growth was assisted by the sale of
additional AVEVA products, particularly
AVEVA™ Asset Performance Management
(APM), as channel sales moved beyond

its historical focus on Monitoring &
Control. Towards the end of the year,
AVEVA introduced the AVEVA Select
programme, which provides our

partners with the opportunity to become
distributors of the full AVEVA portfolio.

As part of the partner network
simplification, AVEVA divested
distributors in Italy, Germany and
Scandinavia. This had an immaterial
impact on the financial results.

EMEA: Overall revenue increased by 4.1%
driven by strong growth in Russia and
CIS in the Oil & Gas, power and industrial
markets, supported by collaboration with
Schneider Electric. The other regions

in EMEA produced flat to mid-single

digit growth, reflecting the economic
environment and subdued North Sea

oil activity. There were a number of key
deals in the food and beverage, power,
water and marine markets as well as
expansion with existing EPC customers.

Americas: Overal! revenue increased by
2.3% and grew in both in North America
and Latin America, with Brazil performing
very well due to both expansion deals
and new wins. The reduction in Services
revenue remained higher in the Americas
than other regions as AVEVA continued
to reduce the Services element of its
pipeline Monitoring & Control business.

11
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Chief Executive's Review continued

Asia Pacific: Overall revenue increased
by 26.7% driven by good performance
across the whole region. In particular,
Australia and India were strong. China
was on track for an outstanding year
before the impact of Covid-19 hit the
fourth quarter. Despite that, China still
delivered double digit growth for the year.

Business Unit performance
AVEVA has four Business Units:
Engineering, Monitoring & Control,
Asset Performance Management
and Planning & Operations.

The Group is driving recurring revenue
increases in all these divisions. In FY20,
over 80% of Engineering’s revenue
was recurring, compared to around
45-50% for the other Business Units.

Engineering consists of design and
simulation software and contributed

43% of total revenue. The Business Unit
achieved approximately 25% growth

in Subscription licences, helped by the
benefit from multi-year contracts signed
in the year. Overall revenue growth was
approximately 7% on a constant currency

basis, driven by growth in design software.

Monitoring & Control represented 31%
of total revenue. The Business Unit
achieved approximately 150% growth
in Subscription licences following the
introduction of AVEVA™ Flex. Overalil
revenue growth was approximately 3%
on a constant currency basis, with solid
growth in the core Wonderware business
being partly offset by significantly lower
services associated with the pipeline
SCADA business due to a focus on
higher margin revenues and the disposai
of distribution businesses. Growth

was particularly good in consumer
packaged goods and life sciences.

Asset Performance Management
represented 14% of the Group's total
revenue. The Business Unit achieved
approximately 250% growth in
Subscription licences. Overall revenue
growth was approximately 12% on a

constant currency basis, led by strong
growth in AVEVA™ Predictive Analytics.
AVEVA's APM offering is strongly
differentiated. It addresses the broadest
dimensions of APM using design and
engineering information, real-time

. and historical operational data, and

maintenance execution workflows,
together with model-based machine
learning for predictive asset analytics.
Key wins in the year included Suncor.

Planning & Operations represented 12%
of the Group's total revenue. The Business
Unit achieved approximately 70% growth
in Subscription licences. Overall revenue
growth was 13% on a constant currency
basis with particularly good growth

from Planning & Scheduling and Asset
Optimisation. During the year, Discrete
Lean Manufacturing software was
launched to support digital transformation
in the discrete manufacturing market.
The new offering improves operational
efficiency through the digitalisation of
lean work management for both manual
and automated production lines. The
software solution is used in Schneider
Electric’'s manufacturing plants and has
been successfully deployed in more than
70 smart factories globally. This resulted
in circa 10% productivity increases due to
downtime mitigation and 70% improved
response times due to automated
escalation of production issues.

Cloud

AVEVA's Cloud products are designed
to be flexible, scalable and available
everywhere and are offered in each of
AVEVA'’s Business Units. The Group
achieved growth of some 200% in
Cloud orders with significant new
order wins, such as Veolia Water

and continued expansion from
existing customers as they increased
consumption, by for example rolling
solutions out across their asset bases.

AVEVA's Cloud platform, AVEVA™
Connect, was operationally strong,
achieving 99.95% uptime during the year.

Progress against our medium-term
targets

In September 2018, AVEVA outlined
medium-term targets around revenue
growth, increasing recurring revenue

as a proportion of overall revenue and
adjusted EBIT margin progression. AVEVA
made excellent progress against these
targets during the year, achieving its
recurring revenue target ahead of plan.

Medium-term revenue growth

The Group aims to grow medium-term
revenue on a constant currency basis
at least in line with the blended growth
rate of the industrial software market.

This revenue growth target reflects
AVEVA expecting to grow its underlying
software business in excess of market
growth rates, driven by a combination
of the strength of the Group's market
positions, sales execution, revenue
synergies and additional value levers,
including pricing and more sophisticated
management of discounting.

As previously indicated, this above-
market growth is expected to be partly
offset in terms of reported revenue

by the impact of a phased transition
towards greater subscription revenue,
together with potentially lower

growth rates in services revenue.

Progress report: AVEVA delivered
revenue growth of 7.4% on an organic
constant currency basis, which

was consistent with the target.

AVEVA made substantial investments
in sales and marketing to drive

future growth, including further
strengthening of the marketing team
and expansion of the sales force.

In addition to this, further governance
and sales incentive changes

were put in place to manage
discounting and price increases.



£8353.8m

Revenue
Up 8.8% (FY19: £766.6m)

The global economic disruption relating
to Covid-19 is expected to impact

the growth rate of the industrial
software market in the short term.

Medium-term adjusted EBIT margin
The Group aims to increase adjusted EBIT
margins to 30%. This margin improvement
is expected to be driven by a combination
of revenue growth, previously announced
cost savings, cost control and a focus

on high margin revenue growth through
pricing and revenue mix optimisation.

Progress report: AVEVA's adjusted EBIT
margin increased to 26.0% (FY19: 22.9%
on a statutory basis, 23.8% before the
impact of a reverse acquisition accounting
adjustment). This improvement was
driven by a positive sales mix, which
benefited gross margin, revenue growth
driving operating leverage and underlying
cost savings. AVEVA expects to make
continued progress towards the medium-
term adjusted EBIT margin target of

30%, although progress during the
current financial year will be impacted

by the macroeconomic disruption.

Medium-term recurring revenue
AVEVA's target was to grow the
proportion of recurring revenue to total
revenue to over 60% in the medium
term. Recurring revenue is defined as
subscriptions revenue plus maintenance
revenue. This will be driven by growing
software as part of the revenue mix and
by increasing the mix of subscription
revenue as a proportion of new
software revenue in a financial year.

The transition to greater levels of
recurring revenue is expected to increase
long-term free cash flow generation.
Subscription offers customers benefits
including greater flexibility, lower up-
front costs and simplicity in pricing.
These benefits are reflected in higher
customer lifetime value of a subscription
model, versus a perpetual licence model.
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£216.8m

Adjusted EBIT
Up 23.3% (FY19: £175.9m)

Progress report: AVEVA met its target
early, with recurring revenue reaching
62.2% of total revenue (FY19: 53.8%).
This was helped by the modification

of sales incentive structures to
encourage recurring revenue growth
with a focus on driving subscription
revenue versus perpetual licences,
and the introduction of AVEVA Flex.

The Group has seen very strong demand
for cloud-based solutions with both an
increase in the volume of significant
order wins and substantial expansions
from existing cloud customers.

Growing recurring revenue and
Cloud remains a key focus and
AVEVA expects to increase both
during the current finical year.

Outlook

AVEVA's business is expected to be
resilient in the context of the challenging
global mucroeconomic environment.
Many of our customers are accelerating
their adoption of digital technology in
the new environment with a particular
focus on Cloud which supports remote
working and fast start-up. AVEVA's
products are key to driving efficiency in
our customers operations and AVEVA
has high levels of recurring revenue.

The Group will continue to drive its
business model transition to subscription,
increasing recurring revenue as a
proportion of overall revenue and
accelerating Cloud adoption. This

will offer increased flexibility to
customers, while generating long-

term value for shareholders.

As expected in AVEVA's April 2020
trading update, notwithstanding
AVEVA's resilience, we are seeing some
impact from the disruption caused by
the global downturn and we expect
this to continue, particularly in the first
six months of the financial year.

62.2%

Recurring revenue

Up 840 bps (FY19: 53.8%)

In the context of this challenging growth
environment, AVEVA is managing its
cost base appropriately, while protecting
the longer-term growth prospects of

the Group. This includes protecting
investments in strategic areas such as
Cloud and Al, whiist significantly reducing
costs to support operating margin and
cash generation. This combination of
actions will support profitability in the
short term, while underpinning AVEVA's
ability to drive longer-term growth

as the trends towards digitalisation

of the industrial world continue.

Craig Hayman
Chief Executive Officer
9 June 2020
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Global Megatrends

Inspiring people to
shape a sustainable

future

We pay close attention to the trends shaping the sectors in
which our customers operate. With the effects of the Covid-19
pandemic transforming our world, below are some of the most
powerful market developments we have identified as affecting
the industries we serve — and how our software is helping

companies respond to them.

Megatrends

The impact of digitalisation

@ How this can help sustainability

Global
and local

Many companies operate across borders
with complex supply chains that connect
diverse teams. The Covid-18 crisis

; disrupted many global supply chains,

i causing consumers and businesses to

i shift to locally-sourced skills and raw
materials. Industrial software solutions
have played an essential role in enabling
companies to respond quickly to change,
and ensure resilience of vital goods

and services.

The continued expansion of the Industrial
Internet of Things (lluT) is transforming

how companies operate. Businesses use

our industrial software to unify their data
and combine it with analytics, helping

their teams collaborate better with shared
information, and using artificial intelligence
{Al) to optimise their processes. Those teams
need consistent systems and processes

to collaborate - and digital tools provide
common procedures, training, and delivery
platforms to help teams work together better.

Changing
consumer
needs

With the shift to digital manufacturing

of mass-produced consumer goods, new
capabilities such as mass personalisation
are possible, enabled by smart
manufacturing execution systems (MES).
At the same time, MES helps customers
respond to both the ongoing fluctuations
in consumer spending patterns and
sudden, dramatic shifts such as seen
during the Covid-19 pandemic.

Industrial MES systems help decision-makers
control multiple elements of the production
process in real-time, enabling agile
responses to fluctuating market needs.

This allows disruption to be managed
effectively without loss of pace, product
quality, or profitability. The early phases

of the Covid-19 crisis presented a major
challenge for supply chains, testing the
resilience of people, process, and technology
to execute their digital business models.

Urbanisation
it

With most of the world's population
living and working in urban areas, cities
are becoming more congested and
struggle to keep up with population
growth and resource monagement.
City planners and operational teams
require next-generation technology to
enable them to manage city systems
and pian for smart growth.

Many nations are developing ‘smart’

cities, integrating infrastructure and utilities
through multipie layers of technology and
improving quality of life for citizens.

Using software and a network of lloT
sensors, systems can collate and interpret
operational performance using analytics
to optimise performance and provide
unprecedented situational awareness
and response.

This can streamline the delivery of public
amenities, boost security, and increase
efficient use of utilities.

From providing insight on how to
streamline operations to optimising global
supply and demand flows, digital solutions
are enabling new, more efficient ways

of working.

Our software helps companies reduce
energy consumption, minimise waste, and
use raw materials more efficiently. With
live, accurate data, our customers gain

a complete view of supply and demand
which enables them to respond to market
changes with agility. This proves vital in
times of market disruption, uncertainty,
or industry shock.

Unifying data across the supply chain can
help companies develop a more clear and
accurate picture of supply and demand.

This enables them to make more accurate
purchases and reduce wastage as well
as to streamline production, increase
efficiency, and optimise profitability.

In addition to supporting a company’s
viability, this also reduces its energy
consumption and environmental footprint
- requirements ever more important

in today’s world.

Urban centres consume 80% of the world’s
energy. Cities account for over 70% of
global greenhouse emissions. Smart cities
run cleaner, use fewer resources, and
connect public networks, enabling them

to operate more efficiently.

Higher-density living, alongside intelligent
planning and efficient measurement
systems, creates a virtuous circle, enabling
more efficient use of resources to support
a larger number of people, helping urban
populations to live more sustainably.
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Opportunities this presents for our customers

AVEVA success stories

Mass production can bring economies of scale. But global supply
chains are complex, often supported by diverse teams in different
countries. Conversely, companies with local networks succeed in
globalised markets by tailoring offerings to meet local needs.

Industrial software empowers these companies to take advantage
of the scale ond reach of global networks, while retaining access to
local skills or raw materials, giving manufacturers agility to optimise
their value chains to meet changing market dynamics.

The Covid-19 pandemic has changed consumer behaviour. Short-
term spikes in buying created an immediate shock to grocery supply
chains, resulting in shortages in many developed nations, and long-
term supply disruption across the developing world.

MES-enabled production and supply chains were able to move
swiftly in response, shifting sources of supply and proving the value
of digital business models to enable manufacturing resilience and
agile decision-making.

Smart cities can be expensive to develop, and infrastructure
investment is often needed to realise truly digital public services,
transportation management, and efficient utilities. Yet, cities that do
not adapt offer lower overall quality of life. Digital tools transform
not only consumption of utilities but offer potential to reduce
everything from crime to water leakage.

By 2030, the world is projected to have 43 megacities, each with
more than 10 million inhabitants, and an additional 1 billion people
will live in urban areas. Digitalisation and smart city development
will become critical priorities for city managers in order to deliver
quality of life for their citizens over the coming decades.

Creating a global

smart factory

" programme:

Schneider

Electric’'s Batam

Facility
(20

4

O

Meeting
consumer

. demand,
sustainably:
New Belgium
Brewery

o

Building a
smart city:
Nava Raipur
Development
Authority

it

Conceived and designed using
AVEVA's technology, the Batam
smart factory in Indonesia used
digital tools to cut equipment
downtime by 44% and increase
on-time delivery by 40%.

Recognised as a Fourth Industrial
Revolution Lighthouse by the
World Economic Forum, the factory
is now a template for other smart
installations across Schneider
Electric’s global portfolio of 100
manufacturing sites.

L_ How we make it happen
More on pages 26-27

New Belgium Brewery produces over
600,000 barrels of beer each year, making
it the third largest craft brewery in the US.
The management team's firm commitment
to supporting the environment and

local communities translates into navel
operations such as using microbes to clean
all wastewater used in beer production.

This process produces biogas, which is
then used in a micro power unit to generate
15% of the electricity used in the plant,
reducing emissions through digital tools
and supporting the company’s commitment
to sustainability.

The Indian state of Chhattisgarh partnered
with AVEVA to develop smart city
infrastructure and a unified operations centre
forits greenfield capital, Nava Raipur.

AVEVA delivered an integrated command
and control system, connecting data and
information from multiple city systems
for real-time operational awareness

and response.

The system is a model for quality of life and
sustainable, smart growth - and a beacon
for India’s ‘100 Smart Cities’ programme.

L How we make it happen
More on pages 28-29
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Technology Megatrends

T h I Industries’ most valuable assets are their people and their data.
e C n O O g y Leaders acknowledge a responsibility to protect employees,
customers and investors, driving sustainability for their investors,

C O n n e Cti n g W O r ke r S employees and communities in which they operate.
Leaders’ top three concerns are to capture, unify and analyse vast

a n d u n Ifyl n g d ata ’ pools of data, to better identify growth opportunities and grow
profit, and to better manage safety and risk. Leadership teams
are looking to technology to solve these challenges and enable

them to drive forward their sustainability agenda.

Megatrends Importance @ How this can help sustainability
CIOUd Cloud enables companies to combine Cloud provides the data and analytic
data from multiple sources, improving breadth needed to make better decisions.
transparency, accessibility and visibility. This enables companies to refine business
Teams can securely share operational models and drive efficiency. This may
information with colleagues and suppliers be through enabling secure remote
Cloud enables greater transparency. worldwide. Everyone sees the same data in worl_<ing. reducing ernployee'trt':v'el,
e o " context so smart collaboration and remote cutting energy usage, or optimising value
flexibility, agility, and scalability ) . - p .

. R operations management are easier. Teams chains and supplies of raw materials.
across value chalns by usmg.the full have the information required to do their Cloud supports ongoing business viability
breodth of the internet to dellvgr jobs more effectively. and best practices; by allowing more
computln_g resources. Informotlon can efficient decision-making, it contributes
be C°n5°|'d°ted. from multiple sources With data available anywhere, anytime, on to the long-term sustainability agenda
and presented, in context, on any any device, companies can better manage of many industrial operators.
connected device. the cost of ownership of industrial assets.

Connected teams are turning to software Data visualisation supports better
that allows them to visualise data to reveal decision-making which can reduce
efficiencies and potential failures before they emissions, increase operational visibility,
occur, using powerful Al-infused analytics and promote enerqy efficiency across live
that enhance decision moking. Combined industrial operations.
Manufacturers collect broad, accurate, with mum'e.’(perience copab_ilities that R . .
live data through digital manufacturing ensure consistent user experience across By promoting {ru'fPrmafuon shar!ng b.etw.een
- on-premise, field, and remote locations, teams and facilities, big data visualisation
sy§tems; they now need the ",b",'ty to data visualisation can transform operational improves performance ocross teams
qU'Ckly_ una'lyse.tha't data for insight. decision making for the better. and businesses by providing a common
Data visualisation is the means for foundation to pinpoint issues and share
operational teams to explore and The ability to visualise data in a 1D, 2D and best practices.
understand performance to optimise 3D environment can also improve training
their processes, and makes it easier and safety performance, by enabling workers
to spot patterns and understand to test and learn high-risk processes in a
opportunities as they happen. virtual environment, before setting footin a

hazardous live plant.

ArtlflCIHl Al accelerates the ability of businesses to Al can take millions of data points,

. . understand things. Cloud has helped reduce continuously monitor systems, and make

| ntelllge nce hardware costs making it easier to bring rapid changes to processes to ensure a
Al to different fields. Companies can now plant is operating at peak efficiency at ali
effectively utilise Al across their business to times, reducing emissions and wastoge.

accelerate performance improvements.
Computer systems can use data on P P €

assets’ past performance, combined with
live plant data and machine Ieurnm.g workers are empowered with information
models, to ex’trcpolote fut.ure cpd r'Sk', not previously available, to make better

: Applying Al-infused metrics to industrial decisions and optimise performance.

i settings is transforming operations and

risk management across industries.

With Al doing the analytical ‘heavy lifting’,
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How customers are utilising this technology AVEVA success stories
AVEVA Connect is our cloud-based software platform. It enables L tt Office furniture manufacturer Leggett &
customers to leverage our product base in the cloud, and add e g g e Platt adopted AVEVA Insight in the cloud
analytics that span the software stack. As data is integrated, to keep their smart factories working
users gain intelligence that allows business optimisation. More & P I a tt during the Covid-19 shutdown. Leggett's
comprehensive data, together with cloud analytics, can transform team leader at their factory in Missouri,
the capabilities of the human workforce, enabling management USA said, “Our time to implement a real-
of more complex tasks. Cloud and Al work together to underpin ; time manufacturing solution has gone
better decisions. \ from weeks to only hours. This allows us
the flexibility to provide more actionable
AVEVA has one of the broadest industrial software portfolios ' information about our process and assets to
in the market, and with the technical and commercial flexibility of decision makers in our business. It is a good
Cloud and our AVEVA Flex subscription programme we are helping fit for our future automation needs.”
customers to respond to changing market conditions quicker
than ever. . i
............ U 4
[ e e e - - s | g WA ———

We have improved procedures, operator rounds, and digital best ; A I'IZO n a Arizona Public Services developed o
practices to address changing workforce dynamics. This includes . programme to share knowledge among
advancing our application of Extended Reality (XR} in the areas of { H a dispersed team of 6,000. Cloud-
training, field operations, maintenance and enhanced visualisation. } P U b | | C based training enabled learning of

~= = i XRencompasses Augmented Reality, Virtual Reality and Mixed_ . shared processes on demand, improving
Reality, and is delivered using wearables. T ’ ¥ S ervices consistency across every plantin ..

the portfolio.
Our recent partnership with Axonify will provide adaptive

microlearning powered by Al within the AVEVA Unified Learning
framework, available in the Cloud. /

days of offsite travel were
saved in one year

000

1 NN

. ———— — — —_— —
AVEVA Al helps customers improve processes, proactively ' D U ke Duke Energy achieved an estimated
detect and solve problems, and provides guidance for risk-based $35 million cost saving from early warning
decisions. This can result in significant cost savings and improved detection of a damaoged steam turbine blade.
competitiveness. Our capabilities introduce new avenues of E n e rgy
innovation for our customers and partners. ] AVEVA Predictive Analytics identified

a vibration anomaly, enabling further
inspection of the turbine blade and
the proactive addressing of the issue
before failure.

|

We are developing new programmes that include:
o Al-powered asset identification and search;

e prescriptive actions;

» advanced scheduling Al; and

« use of visual analytics.

J—1
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| Our Business Model

Working with stakeholders

Who we are
and what
we do

AVEVA's vision is to be the
global leader in industrial
software.

We create software that enables people
to engineer and operate complex assets,
maximising performance for oil rigs to
cruise ships, power stations to bottling
plants safely, efficiently, cost-effectively
and in a sustainable manner. Qur markets
include energy, power generation, marine,
food and beverage, heavy industry, mining
metals and minerals, infrastructure and
consumer packaged goods. Our broad
portfolio of complementary software
solutions spans the entire operational

life cycle of many of the world's

major industries.

We invest in Research & Development
and acquire strategic technologies that
enhance our portfolio. We are developing
innovative and advanced technologies
such as Al within our software, to

bring increasing benefit and value

to our customers.

£120m

FY20 R&D spend

before amortisation of intangible assets

£2om

FY20 spend on Cloud and Al

How we
operate

We employ highly skilled and diverse,
globalteams, meaning we are always
local to our customers and speak their
language. We work closely with our
customers to understand their needs,
and combine the skills and expertise

of our employees with the extended
footprint and knowledge base of our
network of partners, system integrators
and distributors to deliver compelling
solutions across the engineering,
operation and maintenance life cycles of
industrial assets throughout the world.

From how we understand and work

with our customers, partners and
communities, to how we interact internally
with one another as employees, our AVEVA
LIFE values underpin all we do.

>4,600

employees

>5,000

partners

Working closely with our stakeholders
More on pages 20-21

AV=VAQLIF=

Forour Culture and Values
See page 32

Our
competitive
advantages

® Anend-to-end, integrated digital
value chain, that enables visibility
into design, construction, planning,
operations, process and production
control

® (Qurcontinual investment into
innovative Research & Development,
with over £100 million invested annually

® Qurintegrated software portfolio
may be tailored to the specific
circumstances, challenges and
objectives of each industry we serve

® Qursoftware unifies disparate
data with leading-edge analytics
to enable customers to understand
their asset performance clearly,
identify improvements quickly and
increase efficiency

® QOursoftwareis hardware and sensor
agnostic; it canbe installed alongside
acustomer’s existing technology °
with no need for an expensive
retrofit programme

@ Using digital twins, mixed reality, Al
and machine learning, our software
technology can predict challenges
before they occur, minimising
downtime and reducing risk

® Our global partner network is one of
the world’s largest, and significantly
extends our reach: our software is
helping customers in 100,000 sites
across 130 countries

The breadth and depth

of our portfolioc combined
with our analytical and Al
capabilities are uniquein

the market. Together, these
capabilities mean we can
offer our customers broader,
deeperinsight.
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to shape the future

How we
generate
value

We create economic value primarily by
customers subscribing to our software
solutions. Most of this is through our
direct sales channel, with around
one-third generated through our global
network of partners and distributors.

In addition, we provide support for
industrial companies that are building
their digitalisation strategies. Our
experts provide application support and
professional services around software
implementations, to empower our
customers to achieve maximum value
from our technology. We also offer
training courses for our customers.

We have 137 patents to protect our
intellectual property and add to this
number every year. These patents help
to secure our future revenue streams.

Revenue mix

Subscription 38%
Maintenance 24%

Perpetuals 22%

Services 16%

N

16

New patents awarded in the year

For more on partner network
= Seeexchange.aveva.com

Our
commercial
strategy

To achieve our vision we work with our
customers to deliver best-in-class
software solutions, which grows our
profits and cash generation. This allows us
to invest continually in new technologies,
fuelling our development of best-in-class
software, completing the cycle.

Key to this strategy in the medium term
is the transition to a subscription-led
business. This revenue model wilt bring
greater value to AVEVA over the long
term by building sustainable, recurring
revenue streams. These are more
stable to manage, and easier to grow.
The subscription model benefits our
customers too. It adds flexibility, gives
greater insight into how our software is
used, and enables customers to derive
maximum benefit. Subscriptions also
give the aqgility needed to respond to
market fluctuations.

We continue to deliver more software
via the Cloud, which leads to enhanced
features, more rapid deployment and
greater mobility for our customers.

Creating
best-in-class
software

Growing
long-term
cash flow

investingin
next-generation
technologies

Chief Executive’s Review
More on pages 8-13

Strategic Framework
More on pages 22-23

Who we
create
value for

Our key stakeholders are

5 AR

our employees

-~

our partners

an
AR

our customers

N

our investors

000

NN
and the communities in which
we operate.

We listen to and work with
our stakeholders to evolve
our business, supporting the
continuing digital evolution
of the industries we serve.

Find out more about stakeholder
engagement, and AVEVA's
commitment to sustainable growth
See pages 20-21
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Stakeholder Engagement

How they benefit

Our stakeholders are
customers, partners,
employees, investors and our
wider communities, and we
take their feedback seriously.
We consult each group
regularly to ensure that we are
satisfying their needs and
working towards our shared
goals, inaccordance with our
AVEVA LIFE values.

The Board regularly reviews its
engagement with all key stakeholders to
ensure there are appropriate mechanisms
in place to understand their views and
take them into account in all discussions
and decision making. The various
initiatives undertaken by the Group all
happen with the Board's full support and
stakeholder feedback is a regular feature
of the Board meeting agenda.

Customers and partners

We are proud to work with some of

the most innovative companies on

the planet, partnering with them to

help craft and realise their digital
transformation vision. To achieve this,
we work with our trusted network

of over 5,000 partners, from system
integrators and distributors to our major
strategic partners like Microsoft and
Schneider Electric.

We continuously engage with and listen to
our customers, and we are excited to work

in partnership with many of them to develop
new technologies that advance the capabilities
of industry as a whole. On pages 30-31 you
can read more about how we are working

with Suncor to deliver their Digital 4.0 vision,
and how we helped the city of Nava Raipur in
India become a lighthouse for Prime Minister
Narendra Modi's 100 Smart Cities programme.
These are just two examples of how we are
enabling customers to unify their data and
analytics to work more efficiently and leverage
the power of Al and the Cloud to increase
productivity, reduce waste and emissions,

and cut downtime.

Qur partners are a true extension of our
team. Through them, we can drive innovation
deeper throughout the global marketplace,
ensuring we deliver value for money for more
companies. Our partner ecosystem is key to
our long-term success,

[an)

N

AR

Employees

Our people are our most valuable asset.
They are dedicated to creating, selling
and supporting our software, and
ensuring our operations run smoothly
behind the scenes. Our long-term
success depends on their commitment,
and how they live our values every day.
We are delighted to invest in our teams,
from apprenticeships to development
programmes for the next generation

of our leaders. We believe that each
individual is critical to our success.

We engage with employees at all levels, from
the live-streamed ‘Meet and Greet' events
from the Board and Executive Leadership
Team (ELT), to management appraisals and
all-employee engagement surveys. The Board
initiated an all-employee engagement survey,
which we launched in March along with an
engagement tool to be able to provide real-
time feedback. The survey had an excellent
response rate with an engagement score in
the mid-range for the technology sector.

Ultimately, feedback from our people help to
shape how we run our business and we are
introducing more programmes in the coming
year that employees have been asking for, such
os an employee recognition platform and a new
benefits platform.

>16,000

Customers

>100

Countries

>5,000

Partners

L For more information
See pages 26-31

>4,600

" Employees

>20

Apprentices

>80%

Response rate from
engagement survey

l_ For more information
See pages 33-34
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Wider communities

We have environmental responsibilities
to the world in which we live, and
societal responsibilities to the
communities where we live, work

and operate. ’

Environmentally, within our own offices, we
have removed single-use plastics, are switching
to green energy suppliers and token steps

to reduce air travel, Our software also helps

our customers reduce emissions and wastage,
by allowing for greater remote working and
better preventative maintenance schedules.

We subscribe to the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) and the Board

are working hard towards formalising our
sustainability strategy in this context. We
have initiated market research and positioning
to identify our current position with respect

to sustainability.

Societally, we are committed to full compliance
with all statutory obligations and full disclosure
to relevant tax authorities.

Finally, but by no means least, the first full
year of our programme of giving back to the
communities in which we operate, Action
for Good, has been a resounding success,
with over 1,500 people participating, more
than 50 separate activities organised,

and £272k donated to worthwhile causes
in local communities.

Investors and requlators

We have an ongoing dialogue with
existing and potential new investors.
Over the last year we had over 500
meetings and calls with investors based
in the UK, Europe, North America,

Asia and Australia.

We strictly adhere to market regulations and
consult our advisors as required to ensure that
we are compliant with them.

Our aim is to discuss AVEVA with investors
with a high degree of availability and
openness. The Head of Investor Relations is

.value through leading the digitalisation

always available to speak at short notice and
the CEO and CFO also place high importance
on investor communications.

We explain AVEVA's customer proposition,
competitive positioning and financiol strategy
to investors. Our investor base is supportive
of AVEVA's strategy to create long-term

of industry and transition to a recurring
revenue business model.

We value feedback from investors and
frequently ask for it. Sustainability is
becoming an area of increasing focus for
the investor community and we aim to give
greater disclosure around the work that we
do in this area on an ongoing basis.

The Chair of the Remuneration Committee
consulted with our leading investors to help
shape our new Remuneration Policy ahead
of the 2020 AGM.

1,536

| Action for Good days

| £523k |

! Of time and cash donated through
] our Action for Good programme

+
1

1 £39.3m

Total corporate taxes paid

@ For more information
See pages 35-37

Adjusted diluted EPS CAGR
over a 5-year period

29.0p -

Final dividend

8.8%

Revenue growth

i

—

g S S

i
i
)
{ @ For more information

! See our Governance Report, part 2

Focus on: Covid-19 response

The Covid-19 pandemic has presented
unique challenges for all stakeholders.
The Board and ELT have ensured that all
stakeholder groups have been engaged
with and supported throughout this time
of crisis.

Customers and partners: To help ensure
business continuity and support the
rapid deployment of remote teams, we
are offering complimentary access to our
relevant Cloud offers.

Employees: With the transition to remote
working, we have introduced a variety

of flexible working arrangements and
virtual tools to support our teams, and are
pleased to have avoided furloughs and
reductions in headcount. We have rolled
out an employee assistance programme as
part of taking care of employee wellbeing
during the Covid-19 lockdown.

Wider communities: We committed
£150,000 to be spent on local community
responses to the pandemic, on medical
and food supplies in the areas where the
need is greatest. We are being led by our
employees and the areas in which they live
and work.

Investors: We are working closely with our
investors, ensuring they understand how
we are responding to the pandemic and
ensuring the long-term prospects of the
Group are protected.
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Strategic Framework

Delivering sustainable
growthinlong-term

free cash flow

AVEVA creates industrial software that inspires people

to shape the future. We believe industry advancement
should enhance the human experience. Our solutions deliver
business value by transforming the engineering, operations
and performance of industries. We work with our unique
ecosystem of partners from distributors to system integrators
and strategic alliance partners, to deliver sustainable growth
for customers in more than 100 countries worldwide. The
power of our network, combined with our software's unique
capabilities, drives long-term value for our business and our
investors.

Our strategic priorities

Progress during the year

i Creating best-in—clas:}
lindustrial software

that inspires people
to shape a more |
sustainable future

. ——

v
i
)
i
i

long-term free |
| cash flow !

L L i

flnvesting in
next-generation
software to sustain
long-term growth

[ .

Lo o el

Our transformational progress continued this year with over 140 new software solutions
launched across our portfolio. These new solutions increase process, production and workforce
efficiency, reduce operating costs, and empower customers to achieve their sustainability
targets. Together with our customers and partners, we showcased these solutions and

the value delivered at many of our AVEVA World Summit and AVEVA World Conference

global events.

We demonstrated advanced integrated engineering, simulation, and plant design software,
created to optimise the entire life cycle of an asset. We improved production planning,
scheduling and operations to enable a more efficient and cost-effective value chain. Our
capabilities in asset maintenance, performance, and reliability were accelerated through new
predictive and prescriptive analytics. We also improved visibility across customers’ day-to-day
operations with enhanced real-time visualisation, connectivity and control.

We continued to focus on achieving our medium-term targets to drive AVEVA's longer-term
cash flows, by:

« growing constant currency revenue at least in line with the industrial software market;

s increasing recurring revenue as a proportion of total revenue; and

* growing our adjusted EBIT margin towards 30%.

Our revenue growth target is based on a view that we have a responsibility to ensure that
AVEVA performs at least as well as its peers.

Our recurring revenue reached 62% of total revenue, as a result of accelerating our progress
through new subscription programmes. We intend to continue this momentum by growing
softwore revenue faster than services revenue, and prioritising the growth of subscription
revenue in our software mix throughout the year.

L You can read more about our progress
towards our medium-term targetsin our
Chief Executive’s Review on pages 8-13

Significant progress was made during the year as a result of our technology investments
of over £120m, improving our portfolio and empowering our customers and partners to meet
the changing needs of the market.

L_ Formore on this, please see the
Chief Executive’s Review on pages 8-13

In addition to new releases and ongoing product integration programs, we continue to
track technological megatrends and selectively apply them across the portfolio, enabling
the digitalisation of the industrial world. Key areas for AVEVA include Cloud and the lloT,
visualisation, and applied Al.

L For definitions of and our focus on these
Technology Megatrends on pages 16-17
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Link to KPIs

Principal risks

Link to remuneration

Objectives for the year ahead

Creating best-in-class software
generates business value for our
customers. This enables AVEVA
to win more market share and
deliver revenue growth.

We include total revenue growth
as a KPL.

Continued development of best-
in-class software and solutions is
tied to many of our principal risks,
from cybersecurity to acquiring
and retaining strong talent.

Revenue growth drives
profitability. Both of these
measures represent key elements
of the short-term incentive plans
for management.

L Principal Risks
More on pages 40-47

L Remuneration Report
More on pages 80-108

We will continue to increase the
integration between our products
and expand our capabilities in
adjacent areas.

This will ensure we can help
our customers navigate their
digitalisation journeys in a safe
and sustainable way.

Additional financial KPIs include
recurring revenue as a proportion
of total revenue, adjusted EBIT
margin, and cash conversion

{a measure of how much adjusted
EBIT is converted into operating
cash flow).

The move to a subscription-
based licence model may fail to
create the improved recurring
revenue ond cash flow generation
expected or may cause a short-
term detrimental effect on
revenue and earnings.

To grow long-term free cash

flow, AVEVA has a more tolerant
appetite towards risks associated
with subscription licensing. To
mitigate, we will in some cases
continue to offer perpetual licences.

Revenue and margin growth
drive growth in adjusted EBIT
and adjusted Earnings Per
Share (EPS).

Increasing recurring revenue
drives Total Shareholder Return
(TSR), despite the short-term
impact that it can have on total
revenue and earnings. This is
because it increases the net
present value of the business, by

increasing longer term cash flows.

Adjusted EBIT is o key metric for
short-term incentive plans and
both EPS growth and TSR form
a key part of long-term incentive
plan (LTIP) management
remuneration.

We wiil continue to focus on
winning new business, as well
as effective cost control.

This will increase both revenue
and margin, helping achieve our
medium-term targets.

Our software is increasingly
delivered via the Cloud. This
means customers can deploy it
more rapidly and access data
from the field, the office or at
home.

We track the number of new
Cloud customers as a KPI.

We have recagnised the risks
associated with investing in our
Cloud product initiatives and our
Digital Transformation Agenda.

We have put in place dedicated
teams and are working closely
with customers and external
parties to understand the
challenges and requirements.

Reinvesting in technologies that
will sustain long-term growth
will, over time, also drive EPS
growth and in relation to that,
TSR growth.

Both EPS growth and TSR form
a key part of long-term incentive
plan (LTIP) management
remuneration.

We will continue our investment
in R&D.

This will ensure we remain at
the forefront of cutting-edge
technologies such as Al, and
further develop our Cloud
capabilities.
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Key Performance Indicators

How we measure

our progress

We track and report both financial and non-
financial KPIs to measure progress against

our strategy. These KPIs help to highlight
AVEVA's short-term performance, progress
towards longer-term goals and progress against

Corporate and Social Responsibility (CSR)
objectives, which we see as being important in
the context of the long-term sustainability of
AVEVA's business.

l_ Strategic Framework: pages 22-23

CSR: pages 32-38

Financial

AVEVA has three key medium-term
targets that are designed to drive
longer-term cash flows. These are to
grow constant currency revenue at

least in line with the industrial software
market; to increase recurring revenue as a
percentage of total revenue; and to grow
our adjusted EBIT margin to 30%. These
are discussed in more detail on page 22.

In addition to progress against these
targets, we track growth of adjusted
diluted EPS, which we see as being the
most accurate measure of total earnings
growth for shareholders, and conversion
of adjusted diluted EPS into cash, to track
AVEVA's sustainable cash generation.

1 Revenuein FY18 was during the year of the merger
and subsequently did not represent a full year's
revenue from both businesses combined.

Total revenue growth?

8.8 7

(FY19: 57.6%)

]- 8.9)
L D
[l n/aJ

Adjusted EBIT margin

26.0%

(FY19: 22.9%)

s WX
B R

AVEVA's revenue growth performance
was positive in the context of our medium-
term targets during the year. This was

due to strong sales execution, an ongoing
trend towards digitalisation of industry
and stable conditions in AVEVA's end
markets on a sector basis.

Recurring revenue as a
proportion of total revenue

62.2%

(FY19: 53.8%)

o R
L D
. 24

The proportion of total revenue considered
as recurring increased 840 bps versus

the prior year. This improvement was
driven by growth in subscription revenues
as AVEVA moves away from selling
perpetual licences.

Adjusted EBIT margin increased 310 bps
versus the prior year. This improvement
was driven by revenue growth, combined
with cost control, leading to operational
leverage.

Growth in adjusted
diluted EPS

24.9%

(FY19: 21.3%)

Adjusted diluted EPS grew over 20% to
108.15 pence. This growth was primarily
driven by the increase in adjusted EBIT.
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Cash conversion

74.476

(FY19: 96.1%)

DR

This is a measure of how much of adjusted EBIT
is converted to operating cash flow before tax.
We target conversion of 100%, but the result
was impacted by exceptional items paid relating
to restructuring and the integration of the
heritage AVEVA and SES businesses, as well the
impact of timing of revenue recognition on multi-
year subscription contracts.

Strategic Report | Governance Report | Financial Statements

Non-financial

We use collaborative innovation
to empower people and industries,
enabling the planet to thrive. Our
non-financial KPIs are designed to
capture AVEVA's innovation and
empowerment of our people.

AVEVA Action for Good
charity days used

1,030

(FY19: 44)
2]

AVEVA Action for Good is a Group-wide
initiative designed to harness the limitless
possibilities of our people within our
communities and involvement in social
wellbeing activities. We have pledged the
equivalent of 1% of our net profits each
year through paid time off and charitable
donations. Read more on pages 36-37.

AV=VA

ACTION FOR

GCOD

AV=VALLIF=

L AVEVA's Culture and Values
Read more on page 32

25

Women as percent
of all new hires

317
O
(FY19: 33%)
([  Em

] D

e i

- L

AVEVA is committed to supporting and
encouraging women in all areas of the
business, from new graduates in STEM
(Science, Technology, Engineering &
Maths) careers, to senior mancgement
roles. Women are 25% of the current
workforce, and we have a goal to increase
this every year. 2018 data is unavailable.

New Cloud customers

33

(FY19: 37)

S
'{j_ e L 98;
o @ v

T T g

S S |

Cloud represents a key area of innovation.
During the year we won 38 new Cloud
customers.
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,“t";]W we make Schneider Electric

I ad en . .

C PP d delivers its Smart
Schneider Electric Factory vision at scale

Theme

L ] L]
o in Batam, Indonesia
q
D Business challenge Solutions provided
. _ Schneider Electric in Batam needed AVEVA Asset Performance Management
Sma rt — T a digital platform to unify the factory’s and AVEVA™ Manufacturing Operations
. operational data in order to identify Management Solution help to optimise

ManUfaCtU rlng and adjust for anomalies within its performance, reduce costs, and improve

manufacturing processes. customer delivery.

AVEVA™ Enterprise Asset Management
unifies asset performance data enabling
teams to optimise performance and
pinpoint opportunities to increase

asset utilisation.

AVEVA Discrete Lean Management
ensures efficient operation of the discrete
manufacturing process and rapid
response to production issues.

AVEVA™ |nsight provides performance
data, KPIs and visualisations that are
shared throughout the operating teams
via the Cloud to continuously improve
productivity.

- 1‘“‘;‘;“-.*-’—.} . -,
Customer benefit Future plans
. Batam’s Maintenance 4.0 implementation By enabling quicker responses and faster
’ has enabled the team to reduce machine decision making, operational efficiency
downtime by 44% over one year. Specific has improved and the team can make
process gains include: more agile decisions. Transparent, trusted,
and shared data has improved
« Digital performance management collaboration throughout the team,
tools - 12% increase in operational reducing informal communication and
efficiency, 5% increase employee increasing productivity. The success
engagement of this Smart Factory is now being
 40% decrease in scrap costs for some replicated across Schneider Electric’s
critical machines global supply chain.

« Integrated supply chain — 70% increase
in supplier service rate

s 40% improvement in on-time delivery

* The Batam Smart Factory is recognised
by the World Economic Forum as an
Advanced Fourth Industrial Revolution
(4IR) Lighthouse and by the Ministry of

Operations Engineering Industry of the Republic of Indonesia

as the first ‘National Lighthouse’ that st

showcases the real implementation of .-~ T "/ =

Industry 4.0 in'manufactlrihg.

Performance
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"Working with AVEVA we increased our efficiency
in real-time performance tracking, working ‘from
shop floor to top floor’, using digital escalation
and introducing the capacity to stop the line
if quality issues arose. This almost halved our
machine downtime and boosted collaboration

across the global team.” /

Anthony Loy
Smart Supply Chain Programme Director,
Global Supply Chain, Schneider Electric
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How we make
it happen

Nava Raipur, smart capital

of Chhattisgarh, India, 9
becomes a beacon for |

| Narendra Modi’s 100 s

il

Customer case study

Nava Raipur

Theme

Smart Cities programme

, Urban
Resilience

The digital opportunity

The Nava Raipur Development Authority
worked with us to develop a first-of-its-
kind Integrated Command and Control
Centre (ICCC) using our Unified Operations
Centre solution. The ICCC unifies all data
on city operations, critical incident
management, events, transportation and
collaboration tools across the different
municipalities. The shared hub enables
the authority to increase operational
efficiency, boosting the city’s liveability
index ranking and improving services

for and communication with the

local community.

s S Sy
r/,:@i 113424 u,@@@ ~
e e e A0
°15
90,0500

% N
' 7 Customer benefit

% The municipal authority worked with

us to design a system that would
ensure smooth delivery of civic services
from water and electricity supply to
wastewater management, law and order,
transportation and traffic management,
and other civic services. The ICCC has
helped teams to collaborate better,
building trust between disciplines
and enabling the municipal leaders
to proactively manage the city’s
infrastructure using real-time
data and insight.

/%

il 7/

el

Performance

Solutions provided
Real-time system visibility and control
of city services with swifter incident N
response using AVEVA Unified
Operations Centre.

e Asset Performance Management
software cut infrastructure downtime
and boosted overall efficiency, using o ——
AVEVA Enterprise Asset Management.

* Aquis software enables the water
operation team to maintain water
pressure throughout the city
distribution network, reducing
energy consumption and leakage.

Ires

Future plans

As Nava Raipur grows, new smart
systems will be integrated into the ICCC. 4
The city has been lauded by Prime Minister

Narendra Modi as a role model for India —~
and a live reference for other municipal
corporations, several of whom are

already working with AVEVA to

achieve their vision. /
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i ;;_@;g theAE ;
infraStructure systems across the city. This enables us to match
4 “supply and demand with greater accuracy, and respond to
. emergencies as they arise, cutting response times by an average of
E 60%. During the recent Covid-19 lockdowns, the ICCC, together with

th;smart city portal and app, made it easier for municipal

IMAANINNEKKG
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How we make
it happen

Customer case study

Suncor

Theme

{

(

(
T
Operational
Efficiency

Performance

Operations

Engineering

Suncor leverages
predictive analyti
optimise process and

e

improve asset reliability

Business challenge

Suncor, Canada’s leading integrated
energy company, turned to AVEVA and our
predictive analytics to support their
proactive asset performance management
goals. This includes using the analytics for
advance early warning detection and
equipment monitoring systems across
North American operations to improve
asset reliability and reduce overall
maintenance costs.

Customer benefit

Our predictive analytics platform is
helping Suncor proactively manage risk
and maintenance operations costs across
its assets. Our software provides overall
equipment reliability data and information
on individual asset performance. This
improves operational resilience and
reduces maintenance costs. Benefits
realised from the initial enterprise-wide
deployment exceeded the implementation
cost within the first year.

4

Solutions provided

AVEVA Predictive Analytics and AVEVA™
Process Optimisation use Al-infused
process simulation and machine learning
to drive an early warning detection for
Suncor's critical and cogeneration assets.

AVEVA's Asset Performance Management
helps Suncor gain better insights into
assets' health, share information and
empowers leaders to make informed and _;
timely decisions to improve performance.

Future plans

Suncor has used the dato and onalytics
from our software to build greater
decision-making flexibility, improve asset
performance and generate additional
business value from existing equipment.
With unified data, the team identified
immediate efficiency gains and improved
collaboration, leading to meaningful
productivity improvements.
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Corporate and Social Responsibility

Our values

Our AVEVA LIFE values underpin
everything we stand for and do
at AVEVA. Established in 2018,
our AVEVA LIFE values are our
collective DNA and continue to
help us align all of our activities
to our shared corporate ethos
and aspirations.

Whether we are matching new talent to
our organisation, collaborating on new
projects or defining future ambitions,
our AVEVA LIFE values provide us with
a consistent cultural benchmark and
blueprint for all that we do.

With our values in place, we moved

to formalise an internal framework to
ensure the alignment of our business
practices and processes and the
behaviours that define AVEVA's work
environment. We surveyed employees
and engaged in discussions to gain
perspectives and ideas on living the
AVEVA LIFE values across the company.
Our senior leadership team collaborated
on inputs and together defined a new
in-house standard. Our Business Conduct
Guidelines were introduced in 2019.
These help us unite our employees
under a common ethical code, ensuring
we continue to advocate and embrace
our AVEVA LIFE values in all we do.

“Our shared AVEVA LIFE values are not just a powerful
statement of who we are. They also have profound
implications for how we conduct business. Our sights are set
on true long-term results. We strive for sustainable
prosperity; it matters that we obtainresults in the right way,
benefiting all our stakeholders. We must consider not just
getting results but journeying along the right path to get
those results.”

Craig Hayman
Chief Executive Officer

To articulate our values and target culture,
in 2019 we formulated an in-house cultural
workshop model and commenced the
roll-out of these to our teams around the
world. Using the Spencer Stuart Culture
Alignment Framework, the workshops
focused on animating the foundations

of our AVEVA LIFE values while offering
insights into employees' individual style
profiles and contextualising the value

of diverse psychological and cultural
approaches. To date, 1,234 of our
employees have actively participated in
84 cultural workshops held in a variety of
regional locations. With Covid-19 putting
an end to hosting face-to-face events, we
have transitioned to virtual workshops to
ensure all of our people will continue to
have the opportunity to participate.

Covid-19

In response to Covid-19, we dedicated
our intranet landing page to an internal
hub where people were able to post
public messages. What started out as
a way to keep our people connected
has turned into a vibrant social tool,
where people are sharing thousands of
photos, stories, messages of support
and tips around homeworking life,
recipes, mental health, and inspirational
ideas for how we can help others in our
communities during this difficult time.

Itis an incredible embodiment of all
of our values to see our colleagues
respond to this crisis with such
positivity and imagination.

AV=VADLIF=

Limitless
Possibilities
We understand the

limitless potential of true
innovation, we are creative

and curious, constantly
challenging ourselves to
help our customers create
abetter world.

IntEghitsy

Flexibility
Together

pWeldoltielrightlthing By working flexibly and
feadinglbyleXampleX0urg collaboratively across
respectifodevenyone] our diverse internal and
lwelconnectwitnlistvhy] external teams, we foster
e relirustedltolhelploty close connections and
[customernsiworklsmanters ensure we achieve our
landiwhylwelworklandlact goals together.

Excellence
Every Day

Our people are amazing.

Smart, pragmatic, humble,

and always welcome

a challenge. We're
incredibly proud of what
we deliver and help our
customers achieve.




Putting our people first

At AVEVA, employees are the
foundation of our long-term
viability and success.

Our people helped to devise and
animate our new set of corporate
values which underpin our
renewed culture, following our
successful merger with the
Schneider Electric Software
business. In the 18 months since
the merger, we developed and
hosted global culture workshops,
empowering our teams to
appreciate their role in AVEVA's
new culture and help shape our
future aspirations.

We have continued to introduce a number
of new policies throughout the year
focused on clarifying and enhancing our
position on topics such as parental leave,
flexible working and social wellbeing

paid leave.

We introduced new Business Conduct
Guidelines in 2019, outlining our agreed
conduct standards that epitomise our
AVEVA LIFE values, and promoting

a collaborative, respectful, safe and
equable working environment that

is sustainable for all. In addition to
employee conduct, the Guidelines
address key policy areas including
human rights, anti-bribery and corruption,
environmental considerations, sexual
harassment and digital / cybersecurity
awareness. Released across a variety
of employee channels, the Guidelines
are supported through a number of
dedicated training activities including

a video introduction from our CEO.

Employee engagement

We are committed to enhancing our
engagement with employees at all levels
to ensure we continue to communicate
information on emerging developments,
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-mployees

innovations and future growth

ambitions of our business. From monthly
management meetings to hosted ‘Meet
and Greet' employee events synchronised
with relevant Leadership and Board
Meetings around the world, interactive
Q&A sessions with the Executive
Leadership and our ongoing CEO monthly
podcasts, we recognise the importance
of using a variety of communication
platforms and activities to maximise
employee engagement.

Our intranet site, OneSpace, continues

to be an extremely popular employee
communication, interaction and
engagement platform with over a dozen
various topic sites and our current
dedicated Covid-19 employee wellbeing
hub amassing hundreds of employee posts
during the first six weeks of the pandemic.

Recognition and Reward

Employee recognition and reward
continues to be of utmost importance to us
and our people. In April, we introduced out
our new employee benefits platform in the
UK, and hope to be rolling this out globally
over the coming months. We will also be
introducing a recognition platform, which
empowers managers to acknowledge the
great work their teams do with messages
of support, thanks and small gifts. Later
this year, subject to AGM approval, we
plan to roll out an all-employee share
scheme, which will allow our people to
share in the success of AVEVA.

In FY20, we harmonised the bonus
schemes between the heritage AVEVA
and heritage SES employees. This required
significant collaboration and consuitation
to develop and assign consistent job levels
and bonus ranges, with all employees now
aligned on a single bonus scheme offering
fair and equitable reward for performance
across the organisation.

We issued an engagement survey to all
4,700 employees during March 2020.

It achieved a response rate of 82%

and constructive feedback. The results
and other employee inputs continue to
help shape our leadership’s decision-
making and internal practices, acting
as a benchmark for ongoing continuous
improvement in future years.

Talent development

We are committed to attracting

and nurturing new talent, as well as
supporting and developing our people
and enhancing the skills of future leaders
within our organisation.

By encouraging hands-on experience
and idea sharing, we nurture a culture of
collaboration, continuous learning and
improvement. From structured academic
and graduate programs to professionalt,
technical and leadership training and
career paths, we are passionate about
supporting the development and success
of our people to help them expand their
horizons and realise their full potential.

S AR

1.4

Engagement score (mid-range for
technology sector)

>30,000

Individual comments received from
the employee engagement survey
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Corporate and Social Responsibility continued

Diversity & Inclusion

AVEVA recognises the
importance of embracing
Diversity and Inclusion (D&)
as being essential to our
continued innovation,
prosperity and success.

We have a framework in place to help us
make AVEVA a great place to work and
ensure our employees all fee| uniquely

and equally valued. An inclusive culture

is vital in helping our people feel a sense
of belonging and respect, and motivated
and encouraged to bring their full selves to
work every day.

Some examples of why D&l is important to

AVEVA include:

— Our people and their passion are what
make us leaders in industrial software
and AVEVA and great place to work

— Attracting the best possible talent is
our unwavering ambition and widening
the potential candidate pool for greater
diversity can only help us achieve this

- We have seen first hand how an
inclusive culture positively impacts our
organisation and helps us empower
our people to feel inspired to contribute
their utmost.

Below are some of the ways that show
our continued commitment to encouraging
and promoting D&I.

Recruitment

We seek, recruit and promote on
candidates’ potential rather than prior
experience, and are committed to
remaving biases from the hiring process
by ensuring our teams remain skilled
and abreast of our equitable recruitment
framework and industry best practices.

We continue to build, foster and promote
a diverse, inclusive and fair workplace
that provides equal opportunities to all
regardless of gender, sexual orientation,
race or disability.

Programme sponsorship

We remain focused on Science, Technology,

Engineering and Maths {STEM) industry
opportunities and have continued our
involvement in the Women in Science and
Engineering (WISE) initiative sharing our

best practices with other industry peers
and association members.

In ensuring that women have the same
opportunities as their male counterparts
to progress in their chosen careers, we
have also partnered with the Girls in Tech
initiative as well as the Society of Women
Engineers, sending a number of our
female employees to attend their

annual conference.

Gender

We have a comprehensive approach

to gender diversity with an externally-
reported KP| to help us formally measure
our progress in filling 30% of technical
roles with women.

In recognising that one of the most
effective ways to address our gender pay
inequity is to hire and progress women in
senior and technical positions, our gender
pay gap has reduced from 26% to 21%
since 2017.

Additionally, to help encourage more
females to return to work after maternity
leave, we offer flexible working and part-
time working arrangements, and provide
due career growth and an attractive
maternity policy.

international Women'’s Day
Celebrating International Women's Day is
nothing new to AVEVA, and our activities
this year saw a complex round-the-clock
timetable of over 20 live-streamed events,
with action starting in Sydney, and ending
in California, with events comprising group
activities, presentations, guest speakers
both internal and external to AVEVA, and
panel interviews with senior management.

Group gender diversity

Board(9) Executive Leadership
© Male Team(8)
O Female Male ©

Female ©

Strategic Leadership AVEVA(4,665)
Team (20) Male O
O Male Female ©
© Female

Many offices held an event to mark the
occasion and Board members Jennifer
and Paula attended group sessions in our
Lake Forest office. In total we had over
100 “selfies” shared on social media by
colleagues celebrating #EachForEqual.
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Wider communities

AVEVA Social Wellbeing

Our corporate social
responsibility framework is set
out in our ‘Social Wellbeing’
statement. It encompasses
everything that we do to serve,
support and nurture the
wellbeing and sustainability of
the communities in which we
work and live.

We aspire to a world where economic
growth supports environmental
sustainability, with better living standards
for the communities where we and our
customers operate. Through our software,
we enable industries to achieve more
efficiency and drive towards higher
productivity. Over time, we work with
customers to help them achieve a more
sustainable future.

Our social wellbeing framework is based
on the UN's Sustainable Development
Goals. Of the 17 goals, we have identified
four areas of alignment for AVEVA, with
value creation and positive outcomes for
society and the environment.

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

Build resilient infrastructure,

promote inclusive and sustainable
industrialisation and foster innovation:
We build leading solutions across the
asset and operations life cycles that
turn opportunity into business value,
evolving the industries that power

our world. Increasing efficiency and
output, while decreasing waste.

ﬂ AFFORDABLE AND
CLEAN ENERGY

Ensure access to affordable,
reliable, sustainable and modern
energy for all: AVEVA supplies
software to increase design and
operational efficiency of power
generation and distribution. We
supply traditional power generators
such as EDF, plus wind farms, solar
and hydroelectric operators.

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

Ensure availability and sustainable
management of water and sanitation
for ali: AVEVA supplies software to

the water and wastewater industries.

For example, Anglian Water saves
over 10 million litres a day in losses
using AVEVA technology.

Make cities and human
settlements inclusive, safe, resilient
and sustainable: AVEVA Unified
Operations Centre helps enhance
the lives of residents, workability
of businesses and sustainability of
the environment, e.g. in managing
water and power supplies.

“AVEVA is committed to being a leader in industrial software
for a sustainable future, working with our employees,
our customers, our partners and the wider communities
where we do business.”

Lisa Johnston
Chief Marketing Officer and Chief Sustainability Officer
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Corporate and Social Responsibility continued

Wider communities

Other activities

At AVEVA, we strive to financially support
a variety of global issues and crises.
Specific financial support this year has
been provided to the Australian bushfire
relief efforts and the World Health
Organisation for Covid-19 assistance.

Our people have taken part in countless
charitable fund-raising activities, from
ultra-marathons to cake sales. AVEVA
operates a fund-matching programme

to make all money raised in this way go
further. This year, help included aiding
victims of Taal Volcano in the Philippines,
assembling dozens of handheld solar
lanterns for children in Malawi and
collecting and wrapping hundreds of
presents for children in need, to donate
to non-profit organisations that provide
relief after natural disasters. There were
also numerous activities in aid of homeless
shelters, and cancer, heart disease and
other medical research foundations.

We also partner with several universities
globally, sponsoring PhD research
programmes in fields that overlap

with our technology, such as Al and
Machine Learning.

Covid-19

As part of our response to the global
pandemic, AVEVA offered significant
financial aid to support charities in

our local communities, including an
initiative to help live-stream classroom
learning from schools and providing
food and medical supplies to those in
need. Our people continue to share
their experiences and stories of how
they have been able to help others,
inspiring other colleagues to consider
how they too can respond and help more
vulnerable and affected communities.

In addition to complimentary software
offers that promote business
continuity and help our customers

to rapidly deploy remote teams, we
also offered free student licences as
part of our Academic programme.

AV=VA 8 3 O/O

ACTION FOR

G%D of target days reached

Our AVEVA Board and ELT also elected to
donate 10% of their salary for a six-month
period from April 2020, to communities
directly impacted by the pandemic.

Action for Good and Pledge 1%
AVEVA subscribes to the Pledge 1%
movement, committing to donate the
equivalent of 1% of our net profits
after tax to support employee-led
programmes, initiatives and causes
in the non-profit sector.

Our AVEVA Action for Good programme

is inspired by the UN's SDGs. It was
launched in 2018 with one simple aim: to
give colleagues time to get involved with

a worthwhile activity. We do so by giving
colleagues one day of paid leave per year
to take part in such activities, individually
or collectively, in one of three categories:
serving our local communities, helping

the environment, or improving health and
wellbeing. In addition to the paid leave, we
have also contributed financially, funding
many charitable activities this year,
ranging from the local to the international.

Our target for the year was to have 40% of
our people using a day of paid leave. We
achieved 34% uptake, with the Covid-19
pandemic impacting some local activities
in recent months.

The response from our colleagues

in asking for their involvement with
activities in their communities, the
environment and supporting the welibeing
of others has been inspirational with
employees collectively using 1,536

days of paid leave, and combined

with £272k in financial contributions
equates to a total of £5623k, equivalent
to 0.75% of our net profits after tax.
This shortfall of our 1% pledge by £175k
will be added to next year's target.

Action for Good days
Pl WED

=] “l
Action for Good donations, £
s ]

sok]

Below are just a few examples of how
colleagues have made a huge difference
in their local communities around the
world. We have countless inspiring stories
just like them, with our Action for Good
dedicated intranet hub abuzz with stories
and photos of employees’ experiences and
activities. Opposite is a photo collage of a
small selection of our people highlighting
the range 'of activities they participated in
throughout the year.

Christmas in Colombia

One of the most inspiring stories follows
the efforts of one of our Colombian
employees who has relocated to the
UK. She set out to do a sponsored run
to raise money for an orphanage in an
area of Colombia ravaged by natural
disasters. Fundraising started small,
but as word spread, colleagues from all
over the world pitched in. determined

to contribute to the cause. Colleagues
based in Colombia then used the money
raised to buy gifts, which they then
personally delivered in time for Christmas.

India tree planting

In July 2019, 300 people from our
Hyderabad office in India spent a day
planting over 1,500 saplings in the local
community. This activity was chosen to
combat the problem of poor air quality, an
issue faced by many Indian cities due to
increased traffic and industrial activity.

Prosthetic hand building

Almost 50 of our colleagues gathered in
Brisbane to support the Helping Hands
programme, an initiative set up to provide
prosthetic hands to amputee landmine
victims throughout the developing world.
Access to prosthetics is both limited

and expensive, however the charity has
devised a prosthetic limb which is easy to
fit and distribute throughout the world.

000

>50 =

charities supported
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Corporate and Social Responsibility continued

We are committed through our
sustainability vision to powering
industries by empowering people. We
seek to continually reduce the
negative impact of our operations on
the environment, both from our own
and from our customers’ activities.
Through our technology, we help
companies worldwide to boost
energy efficiency, minimise noxious
emissions and use valuable natural
resources as effectively as possible.
In 2020, we reduced our scope 2 and
3 emissions, even while incorporating
Schneider Electric software data
which was not previously within our
reporting. We strive continually to
improve how we capture and record
our emissions data.

Tonnes of CO,e

-nvironment

Our vision is to:

e Seek to continually improve the
environmental and sustainability
performance of our operations;

o Develop collaborative relationships
with suppliers, vendors and other
interested parties at a local, regional
and global level to facilitate knowledge
exchange;

o Devise oninternal environmental
standard to enable ongoing
performance measurement;

¢ Reduce the consumption of energy and
reliance on fossil fuels, adopting, where
possible, renewable energy sources;

* Minimise and actively manage waste
aiming to send zero waste to landfill;

o Purchase sustainable goods and
services where practicable;

e Reduce water consumption;

¢ Encourage colleagues to commute
to work by sustainable modes of
transport;

¢ Implement procedures for sustainable
construction, refurbishment and
maintenance of buildings;

e Foster a collaborative culture to
maximise the expertise and abilities of
colleagues;

e Provide appropriate sustainability
training for colleagues and encourage
them to apply sustainability practices
at work, home and in the wider
community; and

o Comply with relevant regulations and
in-country legislative requirements.

Initiatives and actions

This year, Craig Hayman outlined his
pledge to drive AVEVA's sustainability
agenda. To support this vision, our
CMO, Lisa Johnston was appointed
Chief Sustainability Officer for AVEVA
at the turn of the new financial year,
with a mission to define and build our
sustainability agenda.

e This year we reduced the amount
of business air travel by instigating
restrictions on non-essential travel,
and further upgrading our video
conferencing capabilities and virtual
tools.

e Following the Covid-19 pandemic,
AVEVA quickly pivoted to work
remotely. No international travel was
permitted from late February onwards
and we anticipate that all our teams
will continue to work using digital
tools and virtual platforms for much
of the calendar year. We expect our
new ways of working remotely to
permanently reduce our travel pattern
even once borders reopen fully.

Our FY19 emissions data has been
restated to include flight emission

data from SES entities, which was not
available for the previous year's reporting.
The reason for the decrease is due to
restrictions on air travel both prior to and
post Covid-19.

Our intensity measurement has fallen
primarily because our revenue has
increased 9% whilst overall emissions
have fallen 2%.

"2020 2019

Emissions from: UK and offshore Other UKand offshore Qther
‘Scope 1 - Combustion of fuel from direct operation of facilities 295 1,898 221 1,008
Scope 2 - Electricity, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 773 8,491 943 7,076
Scope 3 ~ Mainly business air travel 2,467 17,262 2,826 19,867
Total 3,535 27,651 3,990 27,951
Intensity measurement

—Tonnes CO,e/E£m revenue 47.75 36.39 67.54 39.50
lEnergy consu._"l__ tig_’) _/,.’Hwhl - i e —— i it R BT, miniin i’y wes———— IR st o]
j’Eﬁ?ng used to'calculate CO,e - 2,273 17,251 2,177 14,442

1 1mWhis 1,000 kWh. Methodology was to take all directly incurred emissions {scope 1) and those purchased for own use (scope 2) and convert into mWh using published

conversion tables.
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Non-Financial Information Statement

To consolidate our reporting requirements under sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of non-financial
reporting, the table below summarises our policies and indicates where additional information can be found.

Focus area Policies and guidelines Enabling Further reading

Environmental Enwronmentol Sustmncbmty Minimisation of the Group s enwronmentcl Our environmental impact: i
. Statement impact, particularly conservation of energy puge 38 -
} and waste reduction. I
Employees ! AVEVA LIFE values A shared culture and set of values. Our values: page 32 l
-t T l AVEVA 'Speak Up’ Policy Awareness on how tot Sdpeok U% to rmssﬁ .. AVFVA Spenk Up Portal: __ ,,.J ‘
,. concerns over suspected wrongdoing’ sw.aveva.com/legal/speak-up
{ Dignity at Work Policy A healthy working environment free from . ) )
i bullying and harassment. Diversity & Inclusion: i
age 34
! Business Conduct Guidelines  Ethical business conduct. pas |
| Dealing Code Policy Compliance by Directors and certain Our commitment Lo ' 1
) employees with insider dealing regulations. employees: page 33
Disclosure Policy Disclosure of accurate, relevant, timely l
information, fairly and non- selectlvely to the !
AV W . - o morket i .
- i Equal Opportunities Policy Provision of equal opportumtnes across all 1
} aspects of employment. {
i Health & Safety Statement Acknowledgement of the Group’s health and [
: safety obligations to employees and others.
- om — — — — - —__ - - ot
i -} Procurement Policy | ‘Know Your Supplier’ duediligence, ensuring i
| suppliers meet our conduct guidelines. ) 1
X | Share Dealing Policy Compliance by all employees with applicable ‘
] laws regarding securities dealing. [
; Travel Policy Traveller safety, security and wellbeing. i}
Social and i Pledge 1% . Pledging of 1% of our profit after tax to Our commitment to wider i
community support employee-led programmes, initiatives ~ communities and AVEVA ‘
i and causes. Action for Good: page 36
Human rights % Anti-Slavery and Human Compliance with modern slavery regulations. Our Modern Slavery
¢ Trafficking Policy Statement: www.aveva.com/
Data Protection Policy Compliance with the European Union's About/Slavery_and_.

- . _Trafficking_
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR). :::Teon?en;(/] ficking
Trust centre:

sw.aveva.com/trust

ISP Ay Y

‘

Anti-bribery Anti-Bribery and Anti- Compliance with applicable anti-bribery and ;
and anti- Corruption anti-corruption laws.

. . . .
t;orruptnon ~ Corporate Gifts and Ethical offering and acceptance of corporate

{ Hospitality gifts and hospitality. ’

- : Group Export Palicy Compliance with worIdW|de export control |

= ) and sanction laws. . " :

Related Party Transaction Identification and reporting of related party ‘

Policy transactions in compliance with the Listing :

' Rules. |

Non-financial key performance lndlcutors

Understanding the key metrics in measuring Page 25
our non-financial performance. }

Management of principal risks Understanding the key risks we face. Page 40 |
and uncertainties
Business model Understanding how we create value for our Page 18

RN PIFEESY I

stakeholders. }
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Management of Principal
Risks and Uncertainties

Risk
Ma

nagement

approach

Whilst the Board of Directors
has overall responsibility fui rish
management, the Executive
Leadership Team actively
monitor and manage risks

as acore part of operational
management. The ELT's
approach to risk management
continued to evolve and improve
during FY20 and a new
Executive Risk Committee
(ERC)was established.

‘Developing our
framework -

Executive Risk

Committee

During September 2019, an
internal progress review of our
risk management framework
was undertaken. Because of
this review, a decision was
made to establish an Executive
Risk Committee. Good risk
management progress had

been made with demonstrable

value, hence introducing an
ERC with formal terms of
reference would:

e Further increase formal Executive
agenda time and focus for corporate
risk management

e Progress demonstration of due process
to the Audit Committee and improve
ability to explain risk status clearly to
the Board

e Mature risk processes further towards
FTSE 100 best practices

¢ Optimise the individuals involved and
focus discussions

* Allow strategic risks to continue to be
reviewed within the SLT forum

The ERC met for the first time in January
2020, is chaired by the Chief Executive
Officer, includes all ELT members, the
Chief Information Officer, the Head of
Global Services, the Head of Strategy,
the SVP Portfolio Management,

the VP Customer Support and the

Head of Internal Audit & Risk.

The main risk responsibilities of the

ERC are to monitor the management

and mitigation activities of principal

and key Group risks and to ensure the
effectiveness of business unit and
functional risk management. The ERC will
meet not less than four times per year.



In the year to March 2020, two dedicated
risk management sessions were held
with the Board which included reviews
of principal risks, emerging risks and

risk appetites. Two dedicated risk
management sessions were held with
the SLT and one with the ERC. Alongside
general reviews of risk status, dedicated
updates were provided on cybersecurity,
Brexit and regulatory compliance.

Each business unit and functional
leadership team remain responsible for
ensuring that their key business unit
and functional risks are captured and
are being effectively mitigated within
business-as-usual processes.

.

Facilitators
Group Kisk Function

Functional ond
Business Unit
Chaompions

Risk appetite

Each principal risk has a risk appetite
formally set by the Board. To
demonstrate a balance of both value
protection and value enhancement,
appetites towards principal risks are
spread across a range of categories
from 'Risk Tolerant’ to ‘Risk Averse’.
These appetites then set a necessary
tone from the Board throughout the
Company for all enterprise category
related risks. For example, the Board-set

Chaired by the CFO, the Committee comprises the FLT, plus stundimg ottendunis (C1O, Head
of Strateyy, Henrt of Servicns. SYP Portfolio Lanugement. VE Custamer Suppost)

DocuSign Envelope ID: B5B44106-3AA8-487D-AC98-59291CCB39D2

Strategic Report | Governance Report | Financial Statements

Risk management will be given a
necessary level of priority at business unit
and functional levels to meet ERC and
Board risk management requirements.

The Audit Committee continues to focus on
ensuring that refreshed risk management
processes are being successfully embedded.

The below diagram represents the AVEVA
2020 updated risk governance structure.

The Board
Ultimate accountability and oversight for business risk,
risk appetite and controls
Audit Committee

Responsible for reviewing

the efiectiveness of the
Group's risk management

systems and processes

Executive Risk Committee

Accountability for the implemed ion of risk management

Develop the Group risk register and niitigation plans

Challenge functionol and Business Unit risk registers and mitigation plans

Strategic
Leadership Team
{SLT)

The SLT. chaired by the CEO,

provides oversi
corporate strot
and Business Unit risks and
3\ reports on status of these

YA

risks to the ERC

Strategy and

Function N "
s Business Units

Each Functionol and Business Unit leadership team is responsible for ensuring
that their key risks are coptured and are being effectively mitigated within
business-as-usual processes. Risk manogement is a standing agenda item for
leadership team meetings. Risk will be given o necessary level of priority in

order to meet ERC requirements.

> Report

appetite towards cybersecurity or Cloud
initiatives dictates how these areas ure
managed opeérationdlly. The munuyement
ot each principdi risk against Its uppelile
Is medsiired and reported usliny key tisk
indicators. In addition to theé principal
risks, many other corporate risks now
have defined risk appetites and this

is increasing as the risk management
programmeé éxtends Into the busliess.

41
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Principal Risks

Management
continually assess

and monitor risks

Fourteen risks are considered
by the Board to be the principal
risks to AVEVA over the next
12-18 month period.

Management continue to use the
following four risk category headings
when identifying these risks.

1. Strategic Internal - Risks identified as
threats to the strategic goals of AVEVA
and which influence internal decision-
making

2. External - Risks which could
materialise externally and impact
AVEVA such as competitors, the
regulatory environment, key customer
markets and cybersecurity

Key changes in the year

Integration and Synergies This is no longer considered by the
Board to be a principal risk for the Group. It has been two years
. since the merger of the heritage AVEVA and SES businesses.
Synergy targets have been met and many key integration
activities successfully completed. Residual and more specific
risks remain in relation to integration however these are
captured and managed as functional or programme risks and

not principal risks.

Sustainability This has been determined by the Executive Risk
Committee to be a new principal risk for AVEVA. Increased
focus on sustainability — environment, societal, economic —
and AVEVA's response to it could either deter or encourage
" employees/talent (existing & potential), investors, customers
and other key slukehulders from or towdirds AVEVA,

In response, the Chief Executive Officer has stated that “AVEVA
is committed to being a leader in industrial software for a
sustainable future, working with our employees, our customers,
our partiners und Lhe wider cummunities wheré we do business.
" Industrial technology has a key role to play in realising a

» sustainable future. AVEVA will continue to support the evolution
of the marketplace, helping our industrial customers achieve
‘their sustainability objectives and ensuring sustainability in our

-

own operations”.

3. Operational — Risks that could
materially disrupt the day-to-day
operations of AVEVA

4. Disruptive - Risks that threaten
AVEVA's value offering such as
alternative business models or viable
new technologies

Emerging Risks

The Board and the Executive Risk
Committee recognise the value of
identifying emerging risks and longer-term
threats to the AVEVA business model,

and held dedicated sessions in the year

to March 2020, with further sessions
planned throughout 2020 for both of these
forums. Emerging risks will continue to be
discussed and closely monitored alongside
principal risks as regular agenda items.

Whilst risks associated with Brexit
continue to be discussed and are captured
within risk management processes,
Brexit itself is not considered to be a
principal risk for AVEVA at this time.

As a technology business, many major
threats to businesses associated with
Brexit such as labour mobility, supply
chain friction, and customs tariffs do not
apply. However, other threats such as
macroeconomic, legal, tax changes and
regulation do and therefore Brexit risk is
being monitored and managed internally.

Covid-19 - The pandemic has become a significant global
issue towards the very end of AVEVA's FY20 reporting period
and continues to be into FY21 and beyond. The magnitude

of the issue and its far-reaching impacts combined with high
levels of uncertainty in the world make clear risk management
judgements difficult. The Executive Risk Committee has met
early in April 2020 to review and update the principal risks and
uncertainties position of AVEVA and articulate it in the most
effective way. Key outcomes can be summarised as follows:

e Two new principal risks have been added to the pre-existing

Systems (Suitabi
~provided.

set of twelve principal risks. These are explained in more
detail in the following pages and are titled Global Economic
Disruption and Declined GDP's and Extended Period of
Remote Working {Operational Resilience).

e Six of the twelve pre-existing principal risks have increased
becdiisé ot the pandemic, some significantly. These are:
Talent Acquisition & Retention, Cloud Initiatives, Competitors,
Dependency on Cyclical Markets, Cyber Attack; and Internal

lity & Continuity). Again, further detail is

e The Executive Risk Committee and the Board will now
implement the management of these new and increased
risks into enterprise risk management processes and
continue to monitor them closely as the world responds

and adapts to the outcomes of the pandemic.
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Principal risks presented below have been graded for likelihood and impact on a gross
basis (i.e. without accounting for existing mitigation) and are not presented in any
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S Ref  Risk
priority order.
Risks 1 Talent acquisition and retention
4 . Strategi 2 Move to subscription model
rategic
9' 3 Cloud (strategy and SaaS security)
@ Fxternal 4 Digital transformation
. Operational agenda strategy
. Disruptive 5 Sustainability
6 Competitors
7 Regulatory compliance
'S 8 AVEVA products implicated in
@ industrial accidents or customer
o cyberattack
g 9 Cyberattack (corporate systems})
10 Dependency on cyclical markets
11 Global economic disruption and
declined GDPs
12 Iinternal systems (suitability
and continuity)
13 Extended period of
remote working
; 14 Disruptive technologies
Probability >
‘_‘:tratcgic‘s T Niak level Risk change from 2019

. Low
Medium
High

@ Creating industrial software that inspires
people to shape the future

@ Growing AVEVA's long-term free cash flow

®

V Risk included in Viability Statement working

Re-investing in technologies that will sustain
long-term growth

&> No change
V' Risk decreased

4} Risk increased .

f} New

Strategic Internal Risks

Risk Description

Strategy

Mitigation and viability

AVEVA is heavily reliant on the people it
employs and if we are unable to attract or
retain the niche skills and experience we
need to drive the business forward, creating
innovation and growth, this could materially
impact the success of our business.

Talent acquisition and
retention

"Gross Probability:
Gross Impact:

Change in risk level: 4}

The technology sector is competitive when
seeking talent and the AVEVA brand must
remain attractive, particularly to niche
skills such as developers, technical sales,
services, consultants and leadership.

Ownership: Chief Human
Resources Officer
Cotegorisation: Industry General Impacts from the Covid-19 pandemic have
increased this risk. There are now further
challenges involved in protecting, retaining
and acquiring talent during an extended
period of disruption and where continued
remote working and social distancing

is required.

Mitigating activities include in-house talent
acquisition expertise, partnerships with
universities, an employee referral programme
and communicating our culture.

®
®

AVEVA endeavours to ensure that employees
are motivated in their work and there are regular
appraisals, with staff encouraged to develop
their skills. Annually there is a Group-wide
salary review that rewards strong performance
and ensures salaries remain competitive.
Commission and bonus schemes help to

ensure the success of AVEVA and individual
achievement is appropriately rewarded.

Throughout the initial period of Covid-19
disruption, leadership have continuolly
supported and communicated with employees,
enabling them and providing the tools to

work from home as effectively as possible
whilst staying connected with colleagues

and customers. Effective processes such as
interviews via video conferencing are being
used to support and fulfil recruitment needs. HR
and the ELT are continually reviewing the best
approaches to employee and talent support.
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Principal Risks continued

Strategic Internal Risks continued

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Strategy
and viability

Move to subscription model

Gross Probability:
Gross Impact:

Change in risk level: c}>

Ownership: Head of Corporate
Strategy

Categorisation: Industry General

AVEVA's strategic move towards a
subscription-based licence model is
designed to offer customers improved
flexibility when addressing their software
needs. It could however fail to create the
improved recurring revenue and cash
flow generation expected for AVEVA if
customers do not utilise the subscription
offering as anticipated.

Whilst AVEVA is ambitious to gain the benefits
of more widely adopting subscription-based
licensing and to provide the benefits of this
model to its customers, the expansion of the
offering remains within the Monitoring & Control
business unit of AVEVA currently. This continues
to allow AVEVA to both manage the risk and
refine the model.

AVEVA will continue to offer traditional licensing
models throughout as further mitigation.

A transition strategy is in place and continues to
be closely monitored.

®

®
Vv

Cloud (strategy and SaaS
.security)

Gross Probability:

Gross Impact: @

Change inrisk level: 4}
Ownership: Chief Cloud Officer

Categorisation: Industry General

AVEVA is committed to providing market
leading value-adding, reliable and secure
cloud services to its customers and is
therefore investing in this initiative. This
investment requires careful management
otherwise AVEVA risks not realising
anticipated returns in addition to
reputational damage.

This risk has increased from the prior year
for two main reasons.

1) Due to increased demand and
corresponding security requirements
surrounding cloud products and the
criticality for AVEVA to meet these demands.

2) Due to global disruption caused by the
Covid-19 pandemic ond the increased
necessity of remote working, AVEVA is
accelerating its shift to digital ond cloud
services which, in turn, increases risk
around consistent and quality provision
of Cloud services to customers (including

security threats).

AVEVA has recently announced the appointment

of a Chief Cloud Officer responsible for driving
the Cloud portfolio and go-to-market strategy.
This appointment has been made principally to
address the rapid shift in consumption patterns
in industrial software and position AVEVA both
during the period of global disruption and in a
‘new normal’ environment.

<O

Digital transformation
agenda strategy

Gross Probability:
" Gross Impact:

«Change in risk level: C>

_Ownership: Head of Corporate
,Strategy

‘Categorisation: Industry General

AVEVA's strategy to capitalise on the
opportunities of digital transformation could
ultimately fail or not provide the expected
levels of return, leading to increased

costs, reputational domage or lost

market positions.

There is no change in this risk level

for AVEVA reflecting the continuing
digitalisation of industry trend and the
importance of AVEVA in being strategically
aligned with it.

Alongside careful management of the right
Digital Transformation strategy, AVEVA further
mitigates this risk by having in place a dedicated
Sales and Consulting team, targeted marketing
campaigns, continued portfolio rationalisation
and use case prioritisation.

®
©,
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External Risks
Strategy
Risk Description Mitigation and viability

§Sustainubility

! .
iGross Probability:
1Gross Impact:

i
?Chunge in risk level: {}

}Ownership: Chief Marketing
) Officer and Chief Sustainability
Officer

Categorisation: Industry General
& Company Specific

o —— —

! Increased international focus on

{ Sustainability — Environment, Societal,

{ Economic — and AVEVA's response to it
could deter employees/talent (existing and

{ potential), investors, customers and other

: key stakeholders from AVEVA leading to:

- loss of existing customers and/or failure
to acquire new customers;

‘ - reputational impact including loss of
investment; and

— failure to attract and/or retain
knowledge and talent in the business
(niche dependency skills).

b h - ——— b .

The AVEVA Sustainability pledge includes many
key mitigating steps which the Company is
executing including:

- commitments to minimising carbon
emissions via increasing the use of recycling
opportunities, removal of single use plastic,
and the use of valuable natural resources;

- continually improving tracking of AVEVA's
emissions data;

- AVEVA Action for Good;

- donation of 1% of AVEVA profit after tax
towards initiatives; and

- serving industries that are of environmental
importance, e.g. water, and the ability to
increase efficiency across a range
of industries.

®

@
Vv

Competitors
gGross Probability:
% Gross Impact:

: Change in risk level: @

{Ownership: Head of Corporate
.Strategy

" Categorisation: Industry General

=

1[ AVEVA operates in highly competitive

| markets. Other technology companies

| could acquire, merge or move into AVEVA's
i market space to compete with AVEVA's

" offering creating a material threat, or

| existing competitors could respond quicker
! to market demands and trends resulting in
* reduced market share and missed growth

' opportunities for AVEVA.

: The risk is increased where there is more
wuncertainty in the marketplace caused

| by the Covid-19 pandemic. It may be that

, competitor strategies change or that there
f are consolidations in the industry which

_{ could impact AVEVA.

AVEVA carefully monitors customer
requirements, trends and other suppliers
operating within our chosen markets. We
invest in innovation and strive to offer superior
products to meet these market trends.

Other areas of specific mitigation include
leveraging our relationship with Schneider
Electric, attractive proposals for additional
complementary products for existing customers
and flexibility to meet changing market demands
and competitive forces.

Further, AVEVA has recently announced
the appointment of a Chief Cloud Officer as ]
previously referred to in the Cloud principal risk.

©E

ERegqutory compliance
{Gross Probability: . .

i Gross Impact:

;Change in risk level: §>
!

1Ownership: Finance Director
]
1 & Company Secretary

?Cutegorisation: Industry General

' AVEVA is required to comply with both

, international and local laws in each of the
{ jurisdictions in which it operates. If one or

- more AVEVA employees or persons acting
| on AVEVA's beholf commit, or are alleged

, to have committed, a violation of law, as

! a result, AVEVA could face substantial

- investigative, defence and/or remediation

! costs, and be exposed to severe financial

! penalties and reputational damage.

! Specific regulatory risk areas this applies

{ to are trade compliance, data protection

t and privacy (including GDPR, anti-trust,

! anti-bribery and corruption (including

. corporate gifts and hospitality), child

+ and forced labour and people trafficking,

! failure to prevent facilitation of tax evasion

' (CCO), anti-money laundering, failures

! in Know Your Customer (KYC) and Know

" Your Supplier (KYS) (including indirect
sales partners}, related party transactions,
whistleblowing procedures, market abuse

, regulations and corporate governance.

i There is no change in the threat level for

+ this principal risk from the prior year.

C At e A ———— i o

Local management are supported by local

professional advisers and further oversight
is maintained from the corporate legal and
finance functions.

In addition, AVEVA uses compliance policies
and guidance materials, communications &
training platforms for its employees and
external partners.

As a further step dedicated Compliance resource
is being added to enhance management and
monitoring of this principal risk — this includes
both people and systems.

| S

®O

{
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Principal Risks continued

External Risks continued

Risk Description

Mitigation

Strategy
and viability

I Our software products are complex and
new products or enhancements may contain
undetected errors, failures, performance
problems or defects which may impact our
strong reputation with our customers or
create financial implications.

AVEVA products implicated
in industrial accidents or
customer cyberattack

Gross Probability: ’
Gross Impact:

{ This is no change in the threat level for this
i
jChange in risk level: C}>

‘ principal risk from the prior year which

{ continues to reflect the portfolio of products
i in the AVEVA range, their functionality

i and increasing threats in the external

j Categorisation: Industry General  cyber-environment.
Pp—— )

Ownership: Head of R&D

AVEVA products are extensively tested prior

to commercial launch. In addition, AVEVA

has a robust Security Development Lifecycle

as a key component of our overall software
development process and has created formal
and collaborative relationships with third-party
security researchers and security organisations
to proactively ensure our software is as safe and
secure as is reasonable.

3

@
®

i Threats within the global cyber-
environment continue to grow. AVEVA

Gross Probability: ; depends on its IT systems and should we

! . be specifically targeted by a cyberattack or

jGross Impact: @ ' l be impacted by a general global cyber-

I L. ; incident, this could potentially lead to

X Change inrisk level: 6 | suspension of some operations, regulatory
breaches and fines, reputational damage,

+ loss of customer and employee information

} and loss of customer confidence.

Cyberattack

Ownership: Chief Information
Officer

This principal risk is increased from the
previous year due to increased cyberthreats
associated with remote working because of
the Covid-19 pandemic.

Categorisation: Industry Generol

S

AVEVA has a low tolerance to this risk and
utilises multiple layers of cybersecurity threat
defences including access control, encryption,
firewalls, etc. Additionally, regular external
penetration testing is conducted across criticol
corporate and online services.

Further steps have been taken to increase
security measures whilst AVEVA's workforce
operates remotely. These will permanently
remain in place.

<00

S

' AVEVA's revenue is materially derived from
customers operating in markets which are
mainly cyclical in nature such os Oil & Gas
and Marine. As and when those markets
reach downturn stages, our customers have
less funding ovailable for capital projects,
including the purchase of AVEVA's software
! products. Significant end market downturns
could materially impact AVEVA's revenues
I’ and profits.

Dependency on
icyclical markets

Gross Probability:
Gross Impact: @
Change in risk level: {}

Ownership: Head of Strategy

! The risk is considered to have increased

since the prior year. Global disruption

caused by the Covid-19 pandemic has led

{ to significant volatility in oil markets and
subsequently within AVEVA's customer
base. A longer period of volatility increases

{ risk of revenue impacts to AVEVA.

Categorisation: Company t
Specific !

—_ —— e a2

R

AVEVA products deliver Capex certainty and Opex
reduction and thus deliver meaningful efficiency

in downturn environments. An extensive global
presence also provides some mitigation from over-
reliance on key geographic markets.

Over half of AVEVA's revenue is derived from
customers operating in non-cyclical markets
such as Food & Beverages and Utilities. A

new strategic approach and rationalisation _
programme was launched during the year for the
Food & Beverages and Infrastructure markets
and there is continued leveraging of Schneider
Electric relationships into non-cyclical markets.

AVEVA's strategic move towards a subscription
based licensing model also further mitigates this
risk as it can offer customers greater flexibility
over their expenditure. Three of AVEVA's business
units are more Opex than Capex focused.

; Because of the global Covid-19 pandemic,

. AVEVA must now operate in an environment
where there is economic disruption and

y declined GDPs. This could have many

timpacts including significantly decreased -

demand for our products and services from

our customers, unexpected disruptions

1 in the industries that we serve or limited

! access to funding should it be necessary.

Global economic disruption
and declined GDPs

Gross Probability:

Gross Impact: @

Change in risk level: i}
Ownership: Deputy CEO & CFO

Categorisation: Industry General 2

]

AVEVA has entered the period of global economic
disruption in a strong cash and financial position.
Further mitigations which have already been
announced by executive leadership include
employee pay and recruitment freezes, plus cuts
to discretionary spending. Leadership continue

to review AVEVA's position and are prepared

to take further mitigating steps as and when
considered necessary.

Further, as mentioned above, AVEVA products
deliver Capex certainty and Opex reduction and
thus deliver meaningful efficiency in downturn
environments. AVEVA intends to orientate
completely around supporting its valued
customers and deliver this meaningful efficiency.

i
}

R
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Risk

Description

Mitigation

Strategy
and viability

Internal systems (suitability
and continuity)

Gross Probability:
Gross Impact:

Change in risk level: 4}

Ownership: Chief information
Officer

Categorisation: Company
Specific

AVEVA depends on its many IT systems
for day-to-day operations and to meet
its customers' expectations. If they fail to
operate effectively and efficiently then
this could result in reputational damage,
negative employee engagement or poor
customer experiences.

As in the prior year, this remains a high
gross risk for AVEVA, reflecting both range
of legacy IT systems in the AVEVA IT estate
and the ongoing significant programmes
that are in place to consolidate, improve,
create competitive advantage and maintain
business-as-usual processes. These
programmes could become more complex
or delayed because of continued global

disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic.

AVEVA has appointed an experienced Chief
Information Officer and additional people
resources to lead and drive the various IT
initiatives, including a new Enterprise Resource
Planning {ERP) implementation project designed
to provide and support industry best practice
processes. This includes respective governance
frameworks and support from expert external
advisors and integration specialists.

®
®

Extended period of remote
working

Gross Probability:
Gross Impact:

Change in risk level: ﬁ
Ownership: Deputy CEO & CFO
Categorisation: Company

Specific

Disruptive Risks

Because of the Covid-19 pandemic, there
could be an extended period during which
AVEVA must successfully operate remotely.
This includes employees continuing to work
at home and being unable to physically visit
our customers.

If AVEVA fails to operationally adapt to an
efficient and effective distance business
model, which includes continuing to provide
the value our customers demand and giving
our people the support they need, this could
impact AVEVA's results and reputation.

AVEVA have announced its dedication to
shifting to a digital business model and
operating successfully in a ‘new world".

In addition to providing the necessary tools to
enable our employees to be effective remotely,
innovative ways of working are being introduced
and refined. For example, the ability for our
Global Services team to operate remotely and
run customer integration projects has already
been successfully demonstrated. Innovation will
continue to allow long-term and sustainable
remote and digital working models.

Risk

Description

Mitigation

Strategy
and viability

Disruptive technologies

Gross Probability:
Gross Impact:

Change in risk level: G>
Ownership: Head of R&D

Categorisation: Industry General

New and unforeseen technology, software
or business models which threaten AVEVA's
value offering could be developed and
become significantly commercially viable
resulting in material impacts to AVEVA's
profits and prospects.

This is no change in the threat level for this
principal risk from the prior year reflecting
the increased potential threats from
disruptive forces which seek to capitalise on
digitisation of industry trends.

AVEVA largely mitigates this threat through its
own leading innovation initiatives and remaining
at the forefront of technological advances.

This a core strategic strength of AVEVA. In
addition, AVEVA continually scans the disruptive
technology environment to ensure it is well
informed and placed to respond to any

material threats.

®
®
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Viability Statement

The Group assesses its prospects
primarily through its three-year
strategic planning cycle and annual
budgeting process.

The strategic planning process

is led by the Executive Directors
(Directors), with responsibility for
business functions and the regions
delegated to the appropriate senior
management. The Board reviews the
business plans and annual budget
eachyear to determine whether the
plans continue to be appropriate in
the light of market conditions and
industry changes.

In line with the Group's strategic
planning cycle, the Directors have
assessed the Group's prospects and
viability over a three-year period,
significantly longer than the outlook
of the Going Concern statement of 12
months. The Directors determine
three years to be an appropriate time
horizon, aligned to both the period
covered by the Group’s business
planning cycle, as well as the length
over which the long-term incentive
plan performance is measured.
Whilst the Directors have no reason
to believe that the Group would not be
viable over a longer period, a shorter
timeframe provides greater certainty
and reliability over the forecasts and
stress-testing used to assess the
Group’s viability.

The Directors considered the principal
risks in severe and plausible scenarios and
assessed the potential impact of differing
scenarios. A consistent approach to the
scenarios used within the going concern
assessment have been applied across

the three-year Viability Statement period.
Please see details of the specific scenarios
in the going concern statement below and
in the basis of preparation note (note 2a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the various scenario
stress-testing showed that despite
significant drops in gross revenue,
the Group is projected to remain
viable over the three year period.

The Group has £114.6 million of cash
and cash equivalents at 31 March 2020
and access to a £100 million revolving
credit facility (RCF). Consequently,

the Directors did not consider this
combination of scenarios to present a
threat to the liquidity of the Group, nor
to any financial covenant compliance.

The Directors have identified a number of

factors which support their assessment:

— AVEVA operates in diverse industries
including Food & Beverages and
Infrastructure;

— AVEVA products deliver capital
expenditure certainty and operating
expenditure reduction, and thus deliver
meaningful efficiency in downturn
environments;

— An extensive global presence provides
mitigation from over-reliance on key
geographic markets;

— AVEVA has strong cost control
mechanisms; and

— There is considerable headroom
available in both cash balances and the
revolving credit facility.

Based on this assessment, the Directors
have considered the Group's current
position and principal risks, and have a
reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over
the three-year period to 31 March 2023.

In making this statement, the Directors

have also made the following assumptions:

- there will be increased diversification
and strength of product offering into
non-cyclical markets;

- there will be strong leverage for
increased opportunities via the
Schneider Electric relationship;

— AVEVA has a strong reputation, an
established customer base and an
established portfolio of products; and

— AVEVA would be able to recover
relatively well from any IT system
issues or cyber-incidents and would
have the necessary skills and
experience available to assist.
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Going Concern Statement

The Consolidated financial statements
of AVEVA Group pic and all its
subsidiaries (the Group) have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS,

as adopted by the European Union,
and with the Companies Act 2006.

In adopting the going concern basis
for preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have considered the
business activities and the Group’s
principal risks and uncertainties in

the context of the current operating
environment. This includes possible
impacts of the global Covid-19
pandemic on the Group and reviews
of liquidity and covenant forecasts.

The Group's business planning

cycle has taken account of potential
impacts of Covid-19 to create a base
case going concern model, reflecting
the current business disruption,
deterioration in economic conditions
and the resulting impact on customers
and ability to operate effectively
during a period of remote working.

The Directors have considered sensitivities
in respect of potential downside

scenarios over and above the Covid-19
base case going concern model and

the mitigating actions available in
concluding that the Group is able to
continue in operation for a period of at
least twelve months from the date of
approving the financial statements.

The sensitivities are designed to model
potential downside scenarios relating to
Covid-19, whereby the Group experiences:
— Aperiod of depressed economic activity
across the entire going concern period,
with resulting reduction in revenues as
a result of reduced conversion of the
revenue pipeline, lower new customer
demand and impacts on pricing;

£114.6m

Net cash

— Business disruption including the
impact of stay-at-home orders on the
ability to operate efficiently as well as
the ability to deliver project services
work remotely; and

— Delays in the working capital cycle,
including the impact of customer
failures, credit defaults and delays
in customers making contractual
payments.

The specific scenarios modelled are:

Scenario 1 stresses the base going
concern model further with materialisation
of principal risks linked to continued
pandemic disruption. Scenarios 2-4 also
use the Covid-19 adjusted business plans
as a base model, upon which further
materialisation of a combination of various
of the principal risks identified on pages
42 to 47 are considered. Each scenario
assumes delays in the working capital
cycle, including the impact of customer
failures, credit defaults and delays in
customers making contractual payments,
as well as the following other assumptions:

Scenario 1: Given the current risk

environment in relation to the global

Covid-19 pandemic, this scenario

incorporates the impact of the following

three principal risks reducing base

model revenue by circa 9% across

the three-year forecast period:

— (10) Dependency on cyclical markets;

- (11) Global economic disruption and
declined GDPs; and

— {13) Extended period of remote working
{operational resilience).

Scenario 2: A ‘severe but plausible’
scenario which models materialisation
of all the following principal risks
being applied to the Covid-19 adjusted
financial forecasts, reducing base

£100.0m

Undrawn borrowings available

model revenues by circa 15-20% across
the three-year forecast period:

— (2) Move to subscription model;

- (3) Cloud; and

~ (5) Sustainability.

Scenario 3: A ‘severe but plausible’
scenario which models materialisation
of all the following principal risks being
applied to the already Covid-19 adjusted
financial forecasts, which also reduces
base model revenues by circa 15-20%
across the three-year forecast period:

~ (2) Move to subscription model;

- (3) Cloud; and

- (9) Cyberattack.

Scenario 4: A further scenario was
created to model circumstances required
to breach AVEVA's credit facilities. This
scenario assumes severe cash collection
delays and does not include any mitigating
actions that the Group would take. It

is overall considered very unlikely.

Under the base case scenario, there is no
expected requirement to draw down on
the RCF across the going concern period.
Under the four downside scenarios, the
Group would utilise the RCF, but within
the current liquidity levels available.

Throughout all the four downside
scenarios, the Group continues to have
liquidity headroom on existing facilities
and against the RCF financial covenants
during the period under assessment.
Should a more extreme downside scenario
occur, additional mitigating actions

could be taken such as the cancellation

or deferral of dividend payments and
reductions in other discretionary operating
costs. The financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2020 have
therefore been prepared under the

going concern basis of accounting.
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Finance Review

ontinued good
progress against
all key targets

Overview

Revenue was £833.8 million, which was Organic constant currency revenue
up 8.8% versus the previous year (FY19: grew 7.4%, adjusted for a currency
£766.6 million on a statutory basis). translation benefit of £7.6 million in

Adjusted EBIT

grew by 23.3% to £216.8 FY20, and the effects of the deferred

million (FY19: £175.9 million), primarily due  revenue haircut, disposal of Wonderware
to revenue growth, higher gross margin Italy, Germany and Scandinavia

and operational leverage. For the same and the acquisition of MaxGrip.

reasons, on a statutory basis, profit before

tax increased by 97% to £92.0 million.

FY20 FY19

Year ended 31 March Lm Lm Change
Revenue 8338 766.6 8.8%
Cost of sales (190.1) {191.3) (0.6)%
Gross profit 643.7 575.3 11.9%
Operating expenses {426.9) (399.4) 6.9%
Adjusted EBIT 216.8 175.9 23.3%
Net interest (3.0) {0.5) 500%
Adjusted profit before tax 213.8 175.4 21.9%
Tax charge (38.8) (35.4) 9.6%

1 Adjusted profit after tax 175.0 140.0 25.0% !
Profit befure lua 92.0 487  97.0%
Adjusted diluted EPS (pence) 108.15 86.60 24.9%
Gross margin 77.2% 75.0% 220 bps
Adjusted EBIT margin 26.0% 22.9% 310 bps
Tax charge 18.1% 20.2% (210)bps

“Revenue growth was driven by strong sales

execution in the context of stable end market

conditions for the majority of the year and an
ongoing trend towards digitalisation.”

James Kidd
Deputy CEO and CFO
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Growth in total revenue

Revenue overview

DocuSign Envelope 1D: B5B44106-3AA8-487D-AC98-59291CCB39D2

Strategic Report | Governance Report | Financial Statements 51

25.7%

Growth in recurring revenue

25.5%

Growth in adjusted EBIT

Revenue growth was driven by strong sales execution in the context of stable end market conditions for the majority of the year and

an ongoing trend towards digitalisation.

Revenue by type is set out below:

Organic '
constant
£m FY20 % of total FY19 % of total Change currency
Subscription 316.8 38.0% 218.2 28.4% 45.2% 43.2%
Maintenance 201.7 24.2% 194 .4 25.4% 3.8% (0.6)%
Total recurring revenue 518.5 62.2% 412.6 53.8% 25.7% 22.8%
Perpetual licences 179.3 21.5% 2116 27.6% {15.3)% (16.8)%
Services 136.0 16.3% 142.4 18.6% (4.5)% (5.0)%
{Total 833.8 100.0% 766.6 100.0% 8.8% 7.4% f

Business model transition

As previously highlighted, AVEVA is
driving a business model transition

with the strategy to increase levels

of recurring revenue. There are two
aspects to this switch: increasing
subscription revenue, and the
transformation of the services business.

Recurring revenue

Strong progress was made during the
year on our strategy to increase the level
of recurring revenue as a proportion of
total revenue with the medium-term
target of 60% surpassed. Overall recurring
revenue grew by 25.7% to £518.5 million
(FY19: £412.6 million) driven by very
strong growth in subscription resulting in
recurring revenue of 62.2% (FY19: 53.8%).

Subscriptions revenue, which includes
rental contracts, token contracts and
subscriptions, grew 45.2% to £316.8
million (FY19: £218.2 million). There
was consistent growth in subscriptions
across all regions. This reflected a
change in customer buying behaviour
from perpetual licences to subscription,
helped by the introduction of AVEVA
Flex, the increased number of multi-

year contracts and a switch from
maintenance contracts to subscription.
Furthermore, the new salesforce
incentives to promote subscription
over perpetual licences and services
contributed significantly to the growth.

The introduction of the AVEVA Flex
subscription offering for products in the
Monitoring & Control business unit was
successful with growth of over 150%,
with several large enterprise accounts,
particularly in North America and EMEA
opting for the new subscription offering.
Many of these contracts were closed
through the indirect channel. AVEVA Flex
is being enabled for the entire portfolio.

Across all three regions there were
customers on maintenance contracts
who successfully transitioned to higher
annual value subscription contracts.
This compressed our maintenance
revenue growth to 3.8%, equivalent to
£201.7 million (FY19: £194.4 million).

Perpetual licences

The corresponding impact from

the business model transition to
subscription was seen in perpetual
licences, which reduced 15.3% year-
on-year to £179.3 million (FY19:
£211.6 million) as more customer
orders moved to subscription.

Services

Services revenue reduced by 4.5% to
£136.0 million (FY19: £142.4 million).
Services are sold alongside the software
licence to ensure efficient deployment
and to generate value faster for
customers. This planned reduction was
driven by AVEVA's focus on increasing
the proportion of higher gross margin
software as part of its overall revenue mix
and the implementation of the change

in sales incentives at the beginning

of the financial year to drive this.

Adjusted EBIT and cost management
Together with cost control, the

revenue growth delivered an increase

in adjusted EBIT of 23.3% versus

the prior year. Adjusted EBIT margin
improved to 26.0% (FY19: 22.9%).
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Finance Review continued

+310 bps

Improved adjusted EBIT margin

Total adjusted costs were £617.0 million
(FY19: £530.7 million), an increase of 4.5%
over the previous year and 3.3% on a
constant currency basis. This was broadly
in line with AVEVA's target of inflationary
cost increases due to a reduction in

cost of sale and controlled operating

cost incregses despite incrementat
investment in sales, marketing and R&D.

On an underlying basis, AVEVA has been
implementing a cost synergies programme
through rationalisation of duplicated

£35m

Annualised cost savings

Target: £25m

functions, the implementation of common
systems, shared services for back office
functions, real estate consolidation and
enhanced R&D effectiveness. The Group
targeted annualised cost synergies as
part of the combination with SES and
by the end of the financial year achieved
annualised savings of circa £33 miilion
compared to the target of £25 million.
These savings have been re-invested

in capabilities to drive future revenue
growth, such as R&D and sales.

An analysis of total expenses is summarised below:

Cost of sales decreased by 0.6% to £130.1
million (FY19: £191.3 million} and the gross
margin improved to 77.2% (FY19: 75.0%).

To improve efficiency, the Services team
have focused on higher margin projects
together with initiatives to increase
standard, repeatable solutions, which
reduce the need for configuration and
customisation. We have also used more
offshore service delivery teams in Mexico,
Spain and India to deliver projects. As
part of the services transformation
programme, AVEVA has embarked on

Net

impairment

loss from

Selling and Admin. financial
£m Cost of sales R&D distribution expenses assets Otherincome Total
Statutory 190.7 184.6 240.1 127.7 7.6 (11.9) 738.8
Amortisation excl. other software - (63.5) (27.1) - - - (90.6)
Share-based payments - - - (12,0 - - (12.0)
Loss on FX contracts - - - (0.4) - - (0.4)
Exceptional items (0.6) (0.4) (3.9) (25.8) - 11.9 (18.8)
Adjusted costs 190.1 120.7 209.1 89.5 7.6 - 617.0
FY19 191.3 114.5 196.7 81.9 6.3 - 590.7
Change {0.6)% 5.4% 6.3% 9.3% 20.6% - 4.5%
“Lonstant curréncy (L)Y ERIL b.eYs .~ A 1%% '_ JU.o% 3.8%




a strategy to strengthen its network of
system integrators and provide them with
the capability and skills to successfully
implement AVEVA's products with a
number of projects started in the year.

Research & Development costs
were £120.7 million (FY19: £114.5
million) representing an increase
of 5.4% due to investment in
areas including Cloud and Al.

Selling and distribution expenses were
£2039.1 million (FY19: £196.7 million),

a 6.3% increase versus the prior year.
The increase represents investments
made during the year in sales and in
strengthening the marketing team

and in customer events to showcase
AVEVA's enlarged product portfolio.

Administrative expenses were £89.5
million (FY19: £81.9 million) an increase of
9.3%. This was due investment in support
functions, such as Human Resources, IT
and Finance as the transitional services
from Schneider Electric were exited and
replaced with in-house capabilities.

Net impairment loss from financial
assets represents the impairment

of accounts receivable and contract
assets during the year of £7.6 million
{FY19: £6.3 million). This included an
incremental provision amount for possible
increased risk resulting from Covid-19
related macroeconomic disruption.

Cost management in FY21

In the context of this challenging growth
environment, AVEVA is managing its cost
base appropriately, while continuing to
invest to support longer-term growth.

Cost of sales: Approximately 50%
of AVEVA's cost of sale relates to the
delivery of services. This is expected
to reduce during the current financial
year as Services revenue is further
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“Revenue grew 8.8% to £833.8 million whilst adjusted EBIT
grew 23.3% versus last year to £216.8 million.”

James Kidd
Deputy CEO & CFO

reduced. The largest part of the
remainder of cost of sale relates to the
cost of delivering support to customers
as part of the support or subscription
contracts. Other elements of cost of sale
include royalties and payments to third
parties, such as cloud hosting fees.

Operating costs: AVEVA is protecting
investments in strategic areas within
Research & Development such as Cloud
and Al, whilst significantly reducing
costs to support operating margins and
cash generation. Actions being taken
include pay and recruitment freezes
and a reduction in travel and event
costs. The annual bonus scheme is also
dependent on sales and profitability.
Overall, these actions are expected

to result in a reduction in costs of
approximately £50-60 million versus
AVEVA's pre-Covid-19 plans for FY21.

Normalised and exceptional items
The following normalised and
exceptional items have been excluded
in presenting the adjusted results:

Acquisition and integration activities
principally related to contractors working
on functional integration, consuitancy
costs paid to advisers for integration
support, investment in new systems and
deal-related executive retention costs.

Other income includes a £7.7 million gain
on sale of three distribution businesses
and £3.8 million received from Schneider
Electric in reimbursement for capital
expenditure incurred as part of the
migration from activities covered by
TSAs following the Combination.

Restructuring costs related to severance
payments for employees as part of the
continuing cost synergy programme
started in FY19, following completion

of the combination with SES.

Amortisation mainly relates to the
amortisation of the fair valued heritage
AVEVA intangible assets under
acquisition accounting, following

the combination with SES.

" Year ended 31 March

£m 2020 2019
Acquisition and integration activities 29.0 23.0
Restructuring costs 1.7 5.9
Other income (11.9) -
Total exceptional items 18.8 28.9 [
Amortisation {excl. other software) 90.6 88.1
Share-based payments 12.0 11.2
Loss on FX contracts 0.4 0.5

lTotaI normalised items 103.0 99.8 l
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Finance Review continued

Taxation

The statutory tax charge was £22.2 million
(FY19: £12.9 million). The effective rate
of tax of 24.1% is in line with the US
effective corporation tax rate of 24%.
This rate was affected by the cost of
increase in the rate of UK corporation tax
from 17% to 19% on the calculation of
deferred tax liabilities for intangible fixed
assets, but this cost was offset by the
benefit of tax incentives for intellectual
property in the current and prior periods.

The adjusted tax rate was 18.1%
(FY19: 20.2%), benefiting from tax
incentives for intellectual property
in the current and prior periods.

Earnings per share

Statutory diluted EPS was

43.13 pence (FY18: 20.90 pence).
Adjusted diluted EPS grew 24.9% to
108.15 pence (FY19: 86.60 pence).

Dividends

AVEVA's Board intends to maintain a final
dividend of 29.0 pence per share at a cost
of £46.8 million (FY19: 29.0 pence per
share at a cost of £46.8 million). Subject
to approval at AVEVA's AGM on 21 July
2020, the final dividend will be payable
on 11 August 2020 to shareholders

on the register as at 10 July 2020.

Balance sheet and cash flow

The Group continues to maintain a

strong balance sheet, with net cash and
treasury deposits of £114.6 million and no
debt. As at 31 March 2020 non-current
assets were £1,956.0 million (31 March
2019: £1,923.0 million) reflecting
goodwill and intangible assets that

arose from the combination with SES.

Trade and other receivables at 31 March
2020 were £242.2 million (31 March 2019:
£238.7 million). Contract assets increased
to £142.4 million from £100.5 million at

31 March 2019, largely due to the impact
of the multi-year contracts closed in the
period. Contract liabilities representing
deferred revenue were £177.0 million

{31 March 2019: £174.6 million).

Cash generated from operating
activities before tax was £161.4 million,
compared to £169.1 million in the
previous year, resulting in conversion of
adjusted EBIT to operating cash flow

of 74.4%. This reflects the impact of
multi-year contracts and particularly
those contracts where customers pay
in annual instalments, but revenue is
recognised earlier under IFRS 15, as well
as the impact of exceptional costs.

integration

The integration of the heritage
AVEVA business and SES is largely
complete and has been successfully
delivered in line with the plans.

The areas still being completed are

in real estate and IT. There are office
consolidations to complete in Sydney,
Beijing, and Tokyo together with

some smaller sites. The IT transitional
arrangements with Schneider Electric
which are still to be fuily exited, are in
two main areas: the transition of heritage
SES offices onto the new AVEVA IT
infrastructure, and the implementation of
the new ERP system which will replace
the legacy systems in both businesses.
These areas are progressing well and
are in execution phase for end-user
computing, applications, data, security,
connectivity, systems and hosting.
However, the Covid-19 pandemic has
disrupted activities with staff not being
able to physically visit offices and
alternative plans have been created and
are now in place. As a result, agreement
has been reached with Schneider Electric
to extend the transitional services
agreement in those areas to 1 March 2021.

The merger of the two businesses has
delivered value to our customers and
our shareholders. As such, we aim to
participate in further consolidation of
the industrial software industry, as and
when value-creating opportunities arise.

James Kidd
Deputy CEO and CFO
9 June 2020

DocuSigned by:

James kidd

3383B31529B648C...
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Section 172(1) Statement

Promoting
sustainable

SUCCESS

Section 172(1) statement

The Directors are aware of their duty
under section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006 to act in the way that they
consider, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the success of the
Group for the benefit of its members
as a whole.

They consider:

- the likely consequences of any
decision in the long term;

— theinterests of the Group's
employees;

- the need to foster the Group's
business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others;

- the impact of the Group's operations
on the community and the

. .. énvironment;

— the desirability of the company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct; and

— the need to act fairly as between
members of the Group.

Our stakeholders

To operate effectively it is important

to understand the impact upon the

stakeholders we interact with most. We

have identified our key stakeholders to be:

— our customers and partners;

— our employees;

— the wider communities in which we
operate; and

— ourinvestors.

The Board will sometimes engage directly
with certain stakeholders. However, most

engagement takes place at the operational

level. Where direct engagement is not

possible, the Directors receive reports from
senior managers on key areas on a regular

basis, for use in its decision-making.

Two of our Non-Executive Directors
were appointed by a major shareholder,
Schneider Electric. However, all Directors
understand their responsibility under the

Companies Act to act fairly in respect of all

members of the Group.

Find out about

Our stakeholders,
their importance,
interests, and how
we engage with them

Our employees

Our customers and
how we help them to
shape a sustainable
future

How we induct and
train Directors

How shareholders
were considered in
drafting the new
Remuneration Pollcy
in the year

pages 20-21

pages 32-33

pages 26-31

page 67

pages 80-81

This Strategic Report has been approved
- by the Board of Directors and is signed

on its behalf by:
Philip Aiken AM

Chairman
9 June 2020

DocuSigned by:

(G W WACALN-TN

901F53793998423...
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Glossary

AGM

Al

APM
AVEVA LIFE
CEO

CFO

clo

CIs

CMO

CO2e

CSR

D&l

Digital Twin

Discrete
Manufacturing

EBIT
ELT
EMEA
EPC

EPS
ERC
ERP
GDPR
ICCC

IFRSs

lloT

Annual General Meeting
Artificial Intelligence

Asset Performance Management
AVEVA's values

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Information Officer
Commonwealth of Independent States
Chief Marketing Officer

Carbon Dioxide Equivalent
Corporate Social Responsibility
Diversity and Inclusion

A digital replica of a physical asset
that can understand the asset’s state,
respond to changes, improve business
operations and add value

The manufacture of individually
distinct items

Earnings Before Interest and Tax
Executive Leadership Team
Europe, Middle East & Africa

Engineering, Procurement and
Construction

Earnings Per Share

Executive Risk Committee

Enterprise Resource Planning
General Data Protection Regulations

Integrated Command and Control
Centre

International Financial Reporting
Standards

Industrial Internet of Things

Industry 4.0

KPI
LTIP
MES

R&D
RCF
SaaS
SCADA

SDGs
SES

SLT
STEM

TCV
TSR
WISE

The name given to the fourth industrial
revolution; this includes cyber-physical
systems, the Internet of Things, cloud
computing and artificial intelligence

Key Performance Indicator
Long-Term Incentive Plan

Manufacturing Execution Systems.
Computerised systems used in
manufacturing to track and document
the transformation of raw materials
to finished goods

Research & Development
Revolving Credit Facility
Software as a Service

Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition. A control system
architecture comprising computers,
networked data communications and
graphical user interfaces for high-level
process supervisory management of
process plant or machinery

Sustainable Development Goals

Schneider Electric industrial software
business

Strategic Leadership Team

Science, Technology, Engineering
and Mathematics

Total Contract Value
Total Shareholder Return

Women in Science and Engineering
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Chairman’s Introduction to Governance

The Board’s aim is to create robust foundations
for sustainable future success, delivering value
for our employees and shareholders.

Philip Aiken AM
Chairman

“The world is changing and AVEVA is changing
and adapting with it. Never has it been more
important that the Board take long-term
decisions to protect and drive the future
creation of value for all its stakeholders.”

Highlights of the year
— Refining processes to support compliance
with the Code

— Completion of an external Board
evaluation

— Welcoming Olivier Blum to the Board
— Approval of an all-employee share scheme
— Introduction of a new Remuneration Policy

— Focus on Company culture and workforce
engagement

AVEVA is increasingly adopting
technology in a complex world that
is changing at an accelerating rate.
Whilst the Covid-19 pandemic is
causing economic uncertainty for all
businesses, we are an organisation
with a long-term vision and, as such,
we continuously develop and review
strategies to deliver real sustainable
value for all our stakeholders. This
will be of even greater importance in
an environment where the certainties
are shifting and the risks are great.

During the past year the Board met
many of our people working at different
levels throughout the Company. This
has informed our assessment of the
internal talent pool, allowed us to gauge
corporate culture and we gained a greater
depth of insight into the challenges and
opportunities affecting the Company

as a whole. These engagements leave
us in no doubt about the strength of
AVEVA and its ability to continue to
adapt to fast-changing conditions.

Aresilient Board to steer AVEVA
towards success

Our Board composition provides

clear leadership, strong governance
and effective decision-making to
achieve our strategic goals. It includes
international business leaders and
industry professionals and brings
together a wide range of backgrounds,
skills, experience and perspectives.

Its composition is in line with our
strategy of having a strong and robust
Board ensuring that it is equipped

to effectively address the changes,
opportunities and risks in our business.

In March 2020 we announced that
Emmanuel Babeau would step down as
Non-Executive Director, Vice Chairman

of the Board and member of the
Remuneration Committee, following

his resignation from Schneider Electric.

In accordance with the terms of the
Relationship Agreement, Schneider
Electric appointed Olivier Blum to the
Board. Olivier is a highly accomplished
executive and has in-depth knowledge
and experience gained from his various
strategic and operational roles within

HR and Strategy. His appointment has
already proven to be of great benefit to the
Board and the Remuneration Committee.
Peter Herweck took over as Vice Chairman



of the Board and | thank him for taking on
these additional responsibilities. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to reiterate our
thanks to Emmanuel for his commitment
and support during his tenure, in
particular, he was instrumental in bringing
about the combination of heritage AVEVA
and the Schneider Electric industrial
software business and has made a
significant contribution to the subsequent
successful integration programme.

Governance developments
Throughout the year the Board has

been mindful of the new 2018 Corporate
Governance Code (the Code) and the
FRC's Guidance on Board Effectiveness
and it continues to keep under review

implementation of best practice processes.

In this Report we describe how the Board
and its Committees worked on behalf

of all stakeholders, driving the culture
necessary for AVEVA to achieve its
strategic goals, and how we discharged
our statutory duties and oversight
functions. | hope this section of the report
will help you gain a better understanding
of the effectiveness of our Board and
how we apply the principles of the Code.

As a result of the Code, the Board's
corporate calendar has been updated and
we focused on refining our purpose and
values, embedding our preferred culture,
engaging with stakeholders and aligning
all these activities with our strategic
goals. We also continued to evolve

our corporate governance reporting to
respond to changing requirements in the
UK, driven not only by the Code but also
by other legislative requirements which
now apply to large UK companies. The
Board has been supported throughout
the year by its Committees which have
also taken on new responsibilities under
the Code. A summary of how each
Committee has approached these can be
found in the specific Committee reports.

A key consideration during the past year,
as part of our enhanced stakeholder
engagement activity, has been the
long-term social and economic benefits
that we bring to local communities. We
recognise that our long-term, sustainable
success depends upon attracting and
developing the best talent to manage
the ever-increasing complexity of

our business, and forming long-term
relationships with our customers and
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suppliers. In this regard, many of our
employees have enjoyed taking part in
our Action for Good activities by going
out into the communities in which we
operate to provide direct tangible help
to those individuals and organisations
in most need. For more information

on this and our impact on wider
communities, please see pages 36-37.

Board evaluation

During the year our Nomination
Committee oversaw an externally
facilitated review of the effectiveness

of the Board. Although under the

Code we were not required to have an
externally-facilitated evaluation this
year, the Board was eager to understand
the effectiveness of the Board post the
combination with the Schneider Electric
industrial software business and to
address any areas of development.

A full report on the outcomes of the
evaluation can be found on pages 70-71.

The past year has proven to the Board
the resilience of AVEVA, the dedication
and motivation of its Executive
Leadership Team (ELT), and the abilities
of its employees. On behalf of my

Board colleagues | would like to extend
my sincere thanks to all of them.

DocuSigned by:
Philip Aiken .
Chairman %M A" ‘Q\-Q/V\
9 June 2020 901F53793998423...

Statement of Compliance
We have prepared this Annual Report
with reference to the Code. The Board
considers that the Company has
complied with the provisions of the
Code with the following exceptions:

- The Nomination Committee’s
membership does not consist of
a majority of independent Non-
Executive Directors if the
independence of the Chairman
is excluded. In accordance with
the Relationship Agreement with
Schneider Electric, Peter Herweck
is the Schneider Electric-appointed
member of the Nomination
Committee. Peter is an experienced
executive and brings diversity in
thought and insight to the
Committee's activities. The Board
sees great benefit in having him
as a Committee member.

- Similarly, Olivier Blum, appointed
by Schneider Electric in accordance
with the Relationship Agreement,
is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Committee
therefore does not consist entirely of
independent Non-Executive Directors.
Given Olivier's senior executive
strategic and operational roles in HR
and remuneration, the Committee
values his insight and technical
expertise and his Committee
membership bolsters the
effectiveness of the Committee.

An explanation of how the Company has
complied with the Code is given on the
following pages:

Board Leadership, Purpose and Culture
- page 67

Division of Responsibilities
- pages 64-65

Composition, Succession and Evaluation
- pages 70-73 {(Nomination Committee
Report)

Audit, Risk and internal control
— pages 74-79 (Audit Committee Report}

Remuneration of Directors
- pages 80-108 (Remuneration
Committee Report)

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) is
responsible for the publication and periodic
review of the UK Corporate Governance Code.
This can be found on the FRC website:
www.frc.org.uk
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Corporate Governance
At a
Glance

Group

Structure
Chart Board
Provides strategic
leadership to
The Board's the Group

responsibility for
leading the Company
towards achievement of
its purpose continues to
be supported by a
robust governance
structure.

The Board has been supported throughout
the year by its Committees which have also
taken on new responsibilities under the Code.

A summary of how each Committee has
approached these can be found in the
specific Committee reports.

Executive

Leadership Team
Management Committee
chaired by CEO, setting

Monitors and oversees

risk management]
and control }

planning

Group strategy and
steering the operational
performance of
the Group

Remuneration

Committee}
Reviews Board and
senior management

) Read more on D Read more on
=/ pages 70-73 & pages74-79

Read more on
& pages 80-108
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Tenure, gender, independence
and attendance statistics

Board tenure Gender split
6+years 3 Female 2
N

\

Independence split

Independent

Non-Executive Directors &
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~—"
3-Syears 2 0-3years & Male 7 Executlve Directors 2
Non-Executive Chairman1
Directors 2
. Meeting attendance

Board Nomination Audit Remuneration
Director meetings Committee Committee Committee
Philip Aiken 7(7) 3(3)
Craig Hayman 7(7)
James Kidd 7(7)
Chris Humphrey 7(7) 3(3) 4(4)
Jennifer Allerton 7(7) 4(4) 6(6)
Ron Mobed 7(7) 3(3) 4(4) 6(6)
Paula Dowdy 7(7) 6(6)
Peter Herweck 7(7) 3(3)
Emmanuel Babeau! 7(7) 6(6)
Olivier Blum? 0(0) 0(0)

"1 Emmanuel Babeau resigned as Non-Executive Director and as member of the Remuneration Committee on 30 April 2020.
+ 2 Olivier Blum was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and also as member of the Remuneration Committee on 30 April 2020. He did not attend

any Board meetings for the year under review.
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Board of Directors’ Biographies

Strong and Effective Leadership

Philip Aiken
Chairman

Craig Hayman
Chief Executive Officer

James Kidd
Deputy CEO and CFO

Christopher Humphrey
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Tenure: 8 years and 1 month
Appointed: 1 May 2012
Nationality: Australian

Tenure: 2 years and 3 months
Appointed: 13 Feb 2018

Nationality: British
and American

Tenure: 9 years 5 months
Appointed: 1 Jan 2011
Nationality: British

Tenure: 3 years 11 months
Appointed: 1 Jul 2016
Nationality: British

ee

Skills and Experience

Phit has just under 50 years

of experience in industry and
commerce. From 1997 to 2006 he
was President of BHP Petroleum
and then Group President of
Energy of BHP Billiton. He has
been Managing Director of BOC/
CIG, Chief Executive of BTR Nylex,
Senior Advisor of Macquarie Bank
(Europe), Chairman of Robert
Walters plc, Senior Independent
Director of Kazakhmys plc and
Essar Energy plc and Director of
Essar Oil Limited. Other previous
roles include: Director of National
Grid plc from 2008 to 2015,
Director of Miclyn Express Offshore,
Chairman of the 2004 World
Energy Congress and serving on
the Boards of the Governor of
Guangdong International Council,
World Energy Council and Monash
Mt Eliza Business School.

Skills and Experience

Craig joined AVEVA as CEO in
February 2018, bringing more
than 30 years of technology
industry leadership and executive
management experience.
Previously he was Chief Operating
Officer at software company PTC
Inc, where he had responsibility for
sales, marketing and development.
He also served as President of

the PTC Solutions Group. Prior to
joining PTC, Craig was President
of eBay's enterprise business and
served more than 15 years in senior
leadership positions at IBM. At IBM
he created and grew IBM's SaaS
business and initiated and led 18
high-performing acquisitions.

Skills and Experience

James is a Chartered Accountant
and joined AVEVA in 2004, Prior
to his appointment to the Board,
James held several senior finance
roles within the Group ond was
Head of Finance from 2006 until
2011, when he was appointed
CFO. James was interim Chief
Executive from January 2017

to February 2018, leading the
merger with SES before being
appointed Deputy CEO and Chief
Financial Officer of the enlarged
Group. Prior to joining AVEVA,
James worked for Arthur Andersen
and Deloitte, serving technology
clients in both transactional

and audit engagements.

Skills and Experience

Chris is 0 qualified accountant

and has over 25 years' experience
managing engineering and
technology companies. From 2008
until 2015 he was Group Chief
Executive Officer of Anite plc, after
having joined Anite in 2003 as
Group Finance Director. Prior to this
he was Group Finance Director at
Critchley Group plc and held senior
positions in finance at Conoco

and Eurotherm International plc.

Chris has a BA {Hons) in Economics,
is a Chartered Management
Accountant, a Fellow of CIMA

and has an MBA from Cranfield
School of Management.

Current External Appointments
Chairman of Balfour Beatty plc

Non-Executive Director of Newcrest
Mining Limited

Chairman of Australia Day Foundation
Director of Gammon China Limited

Current External Appointments
None

Current External Appointments
None

Current External Appointments
Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee
of Vitec Group plc

Non-Executive Chairman of Eckoh plc

Non-Executive Director of SDL plc
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Committees:

@ Audit Committee

@ Nomination Committee
@ Remuneration Committee

O Chair
Jennifer Allerton Ron Mobed Paula Dowdy Peter Herweck Olivier Blum
Independent Independent Independent Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

and Vice Chairman

Tenure: 6 years 11 months
Appointed: 9 Jul 2013

Nationality: British
and Swiss

ee

Tenure: 3 years 3 months
Appointed: 1 Mar 2017
Nationality: British

Tenure: 1 year 4 months
Appointed: 1 Feb 2019

Nationality: American
and British

Tenure: 2 years 3 months
Appointed: 1 Mar 2018
Nationality: German

Tenure: 1 month
Appointed: 30 Apr 2020
Nationality: French

Skills and Experience
Jennifer has more than

40 years' experience in
technology working in
multinational companies
in the UK, the US, Brazil,
Asia and Switzerland and
speaks several languages.
Notably, she was a member
of the Pharma Executive
Committee and Chief
Information Officer of

F. Hoffmann-La Roche,
with responsibility for IT
strategy and operations for
the Pharma division and
all Group IT operations.
She has been a Non-
Executive Director of
Oxford Instruments

plc and Paysafe plc.

She has degrees in
Mathematics, Geosciences
and Physics and is an
Associate of the Chartered
Institute of Management
Accountants.

Skills and Experience
Ron has a broad range
of global experience in
electronic information
businesses across a
number of sectors and
regions. Most recently, he
was Chief Executive Officer
of the Elsevier business
of RELX pic and has also
held Executive positions
with Cengage Learning,
IHS and Schlumberger.

He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Directors and
of the Energy Institute.

He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Engineering

from Trinity College,
University of Cambridge
and a Master’s degree in
Petroleum Engineering from
Imperial College, University
of London. Ron was
previously a Non-Executive
Director of Argus Media
from 2009 until 2011.

Skills and Experience
Paula is the Senior Vice
President & General
Manager EMEA for Hlumina
Inc., the global leader in
DNA sequencing and array-
based technologies. Prior to
her appointment to lllumina
in 2016, Paula worked for
Cisco in a variety of senior
sales, services and strategy
roles, notably as Senior
Vice President for Cloud,
Software and Managed
Services. Paula also led the
integration of the analytics
and outomation software
acquisitions into the larger
Cisco salesforce and was

a Board observer for one

of Cisco's investments.

She holds an MBA from
Pepperdine University
and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University
of California, Berkeley.

Skills and Experience
Peter has been a member
of Schneider Electric's
Executive Committee
since 2016 and leads
their global Industrial
Automation Business.

He brings to the Board a
wealth of experience in
Automation, Digitisation
and Industrial Software.
Peter started his career at
Mitsubishi in Japon, later
joining Siemens where

he held several Executive
positions in Factory and
Process Automation along
with leading Corporate
Strategy as Chief Strategy
Officer. He has a global
and extensive Executive
ond senior manogement
background in Germany,
China, the US and Japan.

Peter holds an MBA from
Woake Forest University
School of Business and
Engineering degrees

from Metz University

and Saarland University.
Heis also a Harvard
Business School Advanced
Management Alumni.

Skills and Experience
Olivier began his career

at Schneider Electric (SE)

in 1993 in Sales, and has
subsequently held various
senior and Executive roles

in SE, including positions in
Chinag, India and Hong Kong.

Positions he has held in

SE include Secretary of

the Executive Committee,
Regional Head of Strategy
and Marketing Director
{China), Regional Managing
Director (India), Executive
Vice President of Retail
{Hong Kong) and, since 2014,
Chief Human Resources
Officer and member of the
Executive team.

Olivier became SE's Chief
Strategy and Sustainability
Officer on 1 April 2020 and
is in charge of developing
and deploying strategic,
sustainability and quality
initiatives, while steering
all Mergers & Acquisitions
and Divestment activities
globally. Olivier graduated
from Grenoble Ecole de
Management (GEM), France.

Current External
Appointments
Non-Executive Director of
Iron Mountain Inc

Non-Executive Director of
Sandvik AB
Non-Executive Director of
Barclays Bank Ireland plc

Current External
Appointments
Supervisory Board Member
of Fugro N.V.

Current External
Appointments
None

o
i“ ‘“w.
'u(cﬁ" ~“ DN

Current External
Appointments
Non-Executive Director of
the supervisory Board of
Rudolf GmbH

Current External
Appointments
None
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Division of Board Responsibilities

Our Board shares collective
responsibility for the long-term
sustainable success of the

Company but individual

members undertake additional
clearly-defined activities on

be found at www.aveva.com. The Board
also maintains a list of Matters Reserved
for the Board which can be consuited

at www.aveva.com/investors. When
necessary, the Board may delegate very
specific matters to ad hoc subcommittees
with a clearly defined remit and for a
limited period of time.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board,
its Committees, Chairman and CEO are
documented and regularly reviewed. The
Board is assisted by the Nomination,
Remuneration and Audit Committees.
Certain powers have been delegated to
these Committees and each Committee
has its own Terms of Reference which can

behalf of the Board.
Role Responsibilities
Chairman ' Phil's primary responsibility is to lead and direct the Board and to facilitate effective
Philip Aiken , communication between Board members and senior management. He creates focused agendas
X g 9
} | to guide deliberations and to ensure that sufficient time is spent on consideration of stakeholder
| interests in all decision-making. He creates a culture of openness to promote efficient drscussmn
' : challenge and debate in the boardroom.
El l
Chief Executive Officer Craig is responsible for proposing and implementing Company strategy, managing day-to-day

Craig Hayman

: operations and leading the Executive Leadership Team. He takes the lead in engaging with all our
 various stakeholders and providing regular feedback to the Boord not only on stakeholder views,
' but on all matters affecting the business.

 Senior Independent NED
Christopher Humphrey

¥
H
L

- Chris acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and acts as an intermediary for the other Directors
+ and shareholders. He is available to address shareholders’ concerns that have not been resolved
{ through the usual channels of communication. He also meets with Non-Executive Directors (without
f‘the Chairman present) on an annual basis to lead the review of the Chairman'’s performance.

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer
lJames Kidd

|
i

3 James works closely with Craig to help drive forward implementation of strategy. He assesses and
evaluates the financial performance of the organisation with regards to its long-term operational
gools forecasts and budgets. He ensures the integrity of financial information that is presented and

[ reported to the Board and the market, Furthermore, James is responsible for all treasury matters

; and the implementation and maintenance of robust accounting systems and internal controls.

Independent NEDs
Christopher Humphrey
Jennifer Allerton

Ron Mobed

Paula Dowdy

! With their diverse range of backgrounds, skills, knowledge and expertise, the independent NEDs
; provide constructive challenge during deliberations, offer strategic guidance to the Board and

; are proactive in providing their different perspectives. They take responsibility for monitoring

| the performance of Executive Directors and achievement of agreed objectives.

}

Non-independent NEDs
Peter Herweck
Qlivier Blum

 Peter and Olivier add unique and valuable insight and constructive challenge to Board

| proceedings. With appropriate management of conflicts, they can constructively scrutinise the
performonce of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives which adds an extra oner
‘ of challenge to that of the independent Non-Executive Directors.

Company Secretary & Finance
Director
David Ward

. David assists the Chairman with meeting preparation, induction of new Board members and
provides corporate governance guidance and advice to the Board. He further ensures good
E governance practices throughout the Company.




Independence and Commitment
The Nomination Committee and the
Board consider Jennifer Allerton,
Christopher Humphrey, Ron Mobed
and Paula Dowdy to be independent in
character and judgement and free from
conflicting business or other interests
that could interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement. In
accordance with the Code, the four
independent Non-Executive Directors
comprise half of the Board if the
Chairman is excluded. All Directors,
independent and non-independent,
act with integrity, lead by example and
promote the desired AVEVA culture.

Conflicts of interests are fully disclosed
by Board members upon appointment
and are reviewed on a regular

basis throughout the year. External
appointments of current Directors are
not undertaken without approval being
granted by the Board beforehand.

The Conflicts of Interest Register is
maintained by the Company Secretary
and sets out any actual or potential
conflict of interest situations which a
Director has disclosed to the Board in
line with their statutory duties. In order
to form a view surrounding Director
independence, consideration was
given to other appointments held by
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each Director as well as the relevant
outcomes of the annual individual
Director and Board evaluations.

All newly-appointed Non-Executive
Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out ciearly what

is expected of the individual in terms of
time commitment, Committee service and
responsibilities outside Board meetings. It
is understood and anticipated, however,
that the time required by Directors will
fluctuate depending on the demands

of the business and other events. This
has certainly been the case with the
outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic and
the Board's responsibility in steering
AVEVA through the current challenges.

Our Board members share a deep sense
of responsibility and, in practice, Board
members’ time commitment exceeds

the minimum requirements set out in
their letters of appointment, particularly
in the case of the Chairman of the

Board and the Chairs of Committees.
Furthermore, the Non-Executive Directors
regularly have meetings with Executive
management and incorporate visits to
our global office locations when travelling
in order to meet with local management
and gain first-hand information from
different levels of employees.

On an annual basis, the Nomination
Committee considers the time required
from each Non-Executive Director against
their total workload, their effectiveness
and the experience they bring to the
Board. The Committee believes that the
Directors continued to contribute the time,
as well as the focus, care and quality of
attention to fulfilling their duties to the
Company and its stakeholders during

the year and therefore recommended

that all Directors be re-elected and

Olivier Blum be elected at the AGM.

Conscious of the Code requirements

on tenure, the Committee is mindful

that the Chairman of the Board will

have completed just over eight years as
Chairman if re-elected at this year's AGM.
Following discussions with the Board,

the Company Secretary and our majority
shareholder, it has been decided that the
process for identifying a new Chairman
will actively begin after this year's AGM.
An external search consultant will be
engaged in due course and it is anticipated
that an independent Non-Executive
Director who is not a candidate for the
role will lead the process. The Chairman
has not and will not be involved in
deliberations of the Board on this matter.
Similarly, any current Directors that are
identified as possible candidates will also
not be involved in any Board deliberations.

The Directors believe that it is in the
interests of AVEVA's shareholders and
other stakeholders that the Board should
continue to benefit from the current
Chairman’s expertise, industry knowledge
and skills until such time that a suitably
qualified new Chairman is appointed.
Re-electing Phil Aiken as Chairman will
enable effective succession plans to be
implemented and allow a thorough and
successful handover to a new Chairman
to lead the Board and AVEVA.
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Areas of Focus for the Board

Since the merger with SES, the
Company's purpose has been to drive the
digitalisation of the industrial world and
we aim to create long-term sustainable
value for shareholders while contributing
meaningfully to wider society and

our stakeholder groups. Our business
model and strategic priorities can be
found in the Strategic Report on pages
18-19, and our work on stakeholder
engagement can be found on pages
20-21. Our purpose, strategic priorities,
values and culture are inextricably

linked and this linkage is continuously
evaluated to ensure alignment.

Much of our work over the year has been
focused on strategy including considering
potential growth options and future
partnerships. At the same time, the
Board has increased its engagement
with the workforce, customers and with
suppliers as part of a new programme
of stakeholder engagement. We

have also considered Group culture,
behaviour and values while maintaining
a disciplined oversight of the operational
performance of our core assets and
significant investment decisions.

During the year, the Board focused on

the matters summarised in the below
table. These areas of focus include ~
the monitoring of past performance

but also drive forward thinking.

Area of focus

IFincmce and risk management

!

3

f

i The CFO presents a comprehensive report at each Board meeting and discussions focus on the

| current financial position, budgets and forecasts. The Board also reviews investment opportunities,
capital allocation, the internal control framework and risk register, including specific consideration

: of Brexit, IT and cybersecurity issues.

] Strategy

1

i

1 The Board periodically reviews and approves its strategy for the next three years which underpins
{ the values and behaviours that help to shape the Group's culture and includes the consideration
f of AVEVA's principal risks and uncertainties.

Investor relations

+ Regular feedback is presented by the CEO following shareholder meetings, roadshows and
: results presentations.

i

Culture

% The Board worked with the Executive Leadership Team to set the tone and direction for the next stage
| of embedding the AVEVA LIFE values and building out the work from the culture workshops that have
i been and are currently being held with as many teams as possible throughout the business.

f Engagement with workforce

(

[ The Board has worked with the Executive Leadership Team to enhance its workforce engagement
1 mechanisms and our work in this regard is further detailed on pages 68-69.

Governance and reporting
regulations

! During the year, the Board reviewed the changes to the Code and new reporting regulations and

| established necessary processes to ensure that the Group meets the requirements of the Code. An

j annual review of the effectiveness of the Board collectively as well as its individual members was
undertaken. The evaluation was externally facilitated this year and details of the evaluation can

: be found on pages 70-72.

Cyberthreats

} The Board received regular updates regarding cyber-risks, IT breaches and regulatory compliance
| and also reviewed the Company's risk appetite.

i Finance ERP system

|

' The Board continues to monitor the remaining integration activity related to the integration of the
i Schneider Electric industrial software business. A key remaining project is the roll-out of a new

* Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system across all our legal entities, scheduled for completion
5 in 2021.
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Board Leadership, Purpose and Culture

The Board recognises the important

role it plays in modelling the values and
behaviours that it wishes to see embedded
across AVEVA and in promoting a

culture of openness, inclusion and
diversity. Following the in-depth work on
articulating and rolling out the AVEVA LIFE
values last year, this year the Board began
to review how we live those values in our
everyday activities. The Board recognises
that the correct tone needs to be set from
the top with the Directors leading by
example to ensure that good standards

of behaviour permeate throughout all
levels of the Company. The way we live
and breathe our culture can be seen by the
way in which our AVEVA LIFE values are
becoming increasingly embedded across
our business and how they underpin

our business model and strategy of
delivering long-term shareholder value.

Our culture is a key strength of our
business and we see the benefits of

this in our employee engagement and
retention. One way that the Board
monitors and assesses the culture of
the Group is by spending a considerable
amount of time meeting with employees
operating ot various levels of the
business. The Board, supported by

the Executive Leadership Team, sets
the Group's culture, and facilitates
embedding supporting policies, processes
and training throughout the Group.

Following assessment by the Board of
the Code requirements in relation to
workforce engagement, it was decided
to enhance and leverage the existing
mechanisms that are in place to engage
with our employees. We continuously
work to enhance these mechanisms and
the employee engagement survey that
was launched earlier this year is part of
the enhancement activity. The Board

is looking forward to receiving the final
results of the employee engagement
survey and taking forward any required
actions based on employee feedback.

During the year, we also rolled out our
Business Conduct Guidelines which
clearly sets out the standards expected

of Directors and employees. The Board
receives regular updates from the

Chief Human Resources Officer on the
alignment between the Group's culture
and values, and how these support its
strategy and performance. These updates
included a summary of the metrics used
to monitor culture. For a more detailed
discussion of initiatives related to our
culture and values, please refer to page 32,

The relative stability of the Board during
the past year has been a cornerstone of its
flexibility to continue operating effectively
in the current challenging environment.
AVEVA's Executive Leadership Team,

led by Craig Hayman as CEO, comprises
the Executive Directors and other

key Executives within the Group.

During the year under review, the
Board held seven scheduled meetings
and several unscheduled meetings.
Six of the scheduled meetings were
held in the UK and one was held in
Lake Forest, California where a large
number of our workforce is based.

The Board agenda has strong links to the
strategic objectives for the business and
is set via a collaborative process between
the Chair, the CEO and the Company
Secretary. This ensures adequate

time is allocated to allow for detailed
discussion where required. Internal and
external experts are regularly invited to
present at Board meetings on specific
topics in order to enhance the Board's
knowledge about the business but also
about external factors affecting it.

Board members are required to attend
all scheduled meetings and as many
unscheduled meetings as possible. In

the exceptional circumstances that
attendance is not possible, the Director
would be encouraged to submit feedback
on the Board papers to the Chairman so
that these can be shared with the wider
Board at the meeting. This situation did
not arise during the year under review,

Induction and Training

Upon joining the Board, all Directors
receive a formal induction to the

Group which is designed to enable
them to understand AVEVA's core
purpose and values, the key business
segments, products and the markets it
operates in so that they can be effective
Board members from the outset.

The induction programme for new
members is put together following
discussions between the Chairman

and Company Secretary. It takes into
consideration the individuals’ existing
knowledge and experience and aiso
includes details of any Committees

that the new member will join. The
programme includes training on Director
duties, AVEVA policies, meetings with -
management and external advisors, site
visits, briefings and reading material.

The various elements of the induction
programme are phased over a reasonable
period. The induction programme is
usually reviewed mid-way through the
programme and adjusted as necessary.

AVEVA encourages all Directors and
employees to attend internal or external
facilitated training sessions and briefings
which are of interest and those which will
help further enhance their knowledge.
Directors are able to receive training or
additional information on any specific
subject pertinent to their role as a Director
that they request or require. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and a procedure
is in place for them to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s
expense should this be required.

l_ For our full Section 172(1) Statement
please refer to the Strategic Report
See page 55
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Workforce Engagement

Following assessment by the Board of
the Code requirements in relation to
workforce engagement, it was decided
to enhance and leverage the existing
mechanisms that are in place to engage
with our employees. The Board's decision
was based on the size and structure of
the business, the international locations
of employees, local culture and current
channels of engagement. This was,
however, not a static assessment and
the Board continuously work with the
ELT to enhance these mechanisms.

Since the combination with SES,
workforce engagement has enjoyed
increased focus by the Board given the
inherent uncertainties brought about by
business combinations, the increased
global footprint of the business and

the significant increase in number of
employees. Workforce engagement is
especially important during the current
uncertainty brought about by Covid-19.
AVEVA's workforce looks to its Board and
ELT to provide guidance and assurance
during such times. The ELT, with support
from the Board, has followed a broad
all-employee engagement programme
using different communication channels
such as manager briefing calls, all-
employee calls, creation of a Covid-19
intranet hub and email communications.

The Board considers the current
workforce engagement mechanisms to
be effective and in compliance with the
Code. Further examples of the Board's
workforce engagement activity are
summarised on the page opposite.

Direct engagement

Direct engagement between the Board
and workforce provides the Board
with insight into AVEVA's culture and
opportunity to gauge perspectives at
different levels across the business.

It also provides a good opportunity

to meet with high potential talent

to inform succession planning.

Management regularly engages with

all employees through a range of formal
and informal channels, including via
emails from the Chief Executive Officer
and other ELT members, a CEO podcast,
townhalls, face-to-face gatherings and
online publications via our intranet which
encourages discussion and comment.

The Board calendar includes a minimum
of one formal meeting per yearina
non-UK office location. This year’s
meeting was held in Lake Forest,
California and the Board's activities
included a townhall, meetings with
various function representatives,

a sales presentation, a presentation on
succession planning within the wider
organisation and a technology review.

The Executive Directors travel extensively
to AVEVA office locations to keep in
touch with employees based across

the globe and to understand local
challenges and opportunities first-hand.
Feedback following such office visits

is provided to the Board and further
actions are undertaken if necessary.

During the year, the independent Non-
Executive Directors undertook a number of
individual site visits to our global locations
where they interacted with a wide range
of managers and employees across

many functions including Sales, Finance,
Marketing, R&D and HR, providing an
opportunity to exchange ideas on areas
relevant to the Board. Board members
proactively inform the Company Secretary
when they are travelling to locations
where AVEVA has offices so that

informal office visits can be arranged.
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Board member Location
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Activity

Office walkabout, APAC business update, meetings
with various officc functions and a customer visit

Phil Aiken .. Singapore
and Tokyo
Ron Mobed Cambridge

Product portfolio update link to AVEVA's strategy,
meetings with various functions which included an
update on the various channels AVEVA uses to engage

with employees

Peter Herweck Hyderabad

Overview of the India business, product

demonstrations, focus on R&D, update on AVEVA

Action for Good

Chris Humphrey Lake Forest

Lunch and roundtable discussion with local
senior leaders

Cambridge

Met with Group Finance leaders and discussed the

finance transformation and ERP project

Jennifer Allerton Lake Forest
and Paula Dowdy

Lunch and discussions about diversity and inclusion
within AVEVA, supporting International Women'’s

Day panel

Through its direct engagement activity,
the Board is able to deepen their
understanding of how the Company's
purpose, strategy and values are
embedded in particular sites and
countries. Conversely, employees are
also given the opportunity to get to
know the Board and provide direct
feedback on topics of importance to
them and their business or function.

Engagement through reporting
Employee engagement survey and

culture workshops

The March 2020 employee engagement
survey covered a broad range of subjects
including leadership, collaboration,
working conditions, personal development,
environmental issues and benefits and
rewards. The Board has reviewed the
results of the survey and is looking
forward to taking forward any required
actions based on employee feedback.
For further information on the employee
engagement survey please refer to

page 33.

Numerous culture workshops have been
held with employees in different countries
and with different function groups. The
Board is pleased to see AVEVA's LIFE
Values embedding throughout all layers of
the business and all employees embracing
our Business Conduct Guidelines.

Succession planning

During the year the Board was presented
with a review of succession planning
outcomes for senior managers which
highlighted the depth and divereity of
the talent pipeline The Rnard keepe
abreast of how high potential individuals
are developed and how diversity and
inclusion is incorporated in succession
planning at levels below Executive level.

Speak Up

The Board has approved a comprehensive
Speak Up policy which provides various
channels for reporting concerns and
encourages staff to report behaviours

or incidents in good faith. The Audit
Committee takes responsibility for

Speak Up procedures and is kept

updated when significant matters

are raised by employees.
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Nomination Committee Report

As we transform our business it is of vital
importance that our Board and Executive
Leadership Team have the right balance of
diversity, skills, experience and knowledge.

Highlights
of the year

— Appointment of Olivier Blum
to the Board

— Board evaluation completed

— Succession planning

We are pleased to present our report on

Philip Aiken AM the Nomination Committee's activities
Chairman of the Nomination for the past financial year focusing on the
Committee key highlights of the Committee’s work.

For a full overview of the Committee's

" . . responsibilities, please refer to its Terms of
Ensuring that our Board and Committee Reference at www.aveva.com/investors.

composition is effective, resilient and robust e o
. . vre . i A itt
now and in the future, is critical to supporting Ei;’;g"t:jnﬁfry;",:e; et

the long-term success of AVEVA.” ~ Oversight of Emmanuel Babeau's

retirement from the Board and his

succession by Olivier Blum. Both

Directors are nominated

Independence split representatives of the Company’s
majority shareholder, Schneider
Electric.

— Completion of an externally facilitated
Board evaluation, including the
selection of a new external party to
undertake this review.

- A thorough succession planning
discussion was undertaken which
covered Board and Executive
leadership positions.

Non-Independent 1

Chair1

Independent 2

Membership and attendance

Philip Aiken 3/3
Ron Mobed 3/3
Chris Humphrey 3/3
Peter Herweck 3/3

Attending by invitation

Finance Director and Company Secretary
Other members of the Board
Advisors

The Committee usually meets three times a year.
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Board evaluation

The Board is committed to regular,
independent assessments of its own
effectiveness and that of its Committees.
The Board engages an independent
external evaluation provider every
three years to evaluate performance

of the Board and its Committees and

to identify areas of challenges and
opportunities for improvement. The last
external evaluation was undertaken in
2018. Following consideration by the
Nomination Committee and the Board,
it was decided to bring forward the

The Board Evaluation process

Selection of external
provider

- The Committee supervised the process for the selection
of the external Board evaluation provider. The Chairman
and Company Secretary interviewed and considered
three independent shortlisted providers prior to selecting
Better Boards to undertake this year's evaluation.
' Using corporate information and briefing sessions with
the Chairman and Company Secretary, Better Boards
“tailored a methodology that was customised to AVEVA.
_Once the scope and methodology was agreed, Better
Boards attended a Board meeting to introduce the
evaluation team and explain their approach.

The evaluation was designed to a) assess how the Board
functions as a whole, and b) to provide individual Board
members with insights about themselves. This type of
evaluation provided a foundation upon which individuals
could increase their personal impact, which in turn

external evaluation and have it completed
a year earlier than general practice. The
Committee was of the view that the
post-combination Board and Committees
have embedded sufficiently and that an

Evaluation process

external evaluation would provide an
independent assessment of the post-
combination effectiveness of the Board.

Conclusions and actions
The Board evaluation process found that:

the Board has distinctive strengths:
dedication, commitment and ambition,
respect for each other, a collaborative
working style and good diversity of
experience. Such strengths can be built
on to create an upward trajectory in
performance; and

the Board has a strong collective
memory of a series of successes and
achievements, specifically the
combination between AVEVA and the
Schneider Electric industrial software
business is regarded as a great success
story considering the complexity of
bringing two organisations together. It
was also noted that the Board has risen
to the challenge and adapted fast to
FTSE 100 regulations.

could increase the overall effectiveness of the Board.
The evaluation process consisted of discussions with
each individual Director and the Company Secretary.
In addition to the individual discussions, Better Boards
developed a bespoke confidential questionnaire for

. Directors to complete. The effectiveness of each of
the Board Committees was taken into account in the
evaluation. All Board members (including those who did
not sit on all Committees) were asked for feedback on the
effectiveness of the Committees.

Conclusions

Initial findings and a draft of the evaluation report were
discussed with the Chairman and Company Secretary
prior to the finalised report being presented to the Board.
Individual feedback reports were also provided to each
Director and the Company Secretary. Confidential
individual feedback sessions were held between

Better Board and each Director and with the Company
Secretary in order to develop a personal action plan. .

Following constructive discussion of the
conclusions of the evaluation, the Board
has approved actions designed to address
any areas of potential improvement.
These actions will be monitored and
addressed on an ongoing basis.
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Nomination Committee Report continued

Qutcome

Status and measures taken

Time dedicated to strategy
discussions

The Board is planning to have a focused day spent on
AVEVA's long-term strategy later in the year. This will
be preceded by interviews between the Chairman
and each Director to understand what Directors
would want to achieve from such a day and to
enhance the effectiveness of discussions.

Increase time for NED-only
meetings

Going forward the agenda for all scheduled Board
meetings will include a NEDs-only session without
the Executive Directors and management present.

Enhance Board working
practices

Some opportunities for improving information flowing
to Directors were identified and these will be
actioned by the Company Secretary who
continuously reviews all processes to improve the
quality of Board papers and implementing best
practice processes for reporting to the Board.

Specifically, some Directors felt that the reporting from
Committees back to the Board could be enhanced.

It was also noted that the process for arranging NED
visits to Company offices could be improved.

Continued focus on Board and
ELT succession planning

Focus on succession planning across the Company has
increased substantially during the past year. The
Board and Nomination Committee will continue to
support ELT efforts in this regard. The search for a
new Chairman will start and both internal and
external candidates will be considered which will bring
fresh opportunities for the Nominations Committee to
formulate Board and ELT succession planning.

Increase emphasis on ESG

The Directors are considering the most effective
manner to increase the Board's focus on ESG issues.

Diversity and inclusion {D&l)

The Board, with the support of the
Committee, is committed to promoting
greater diversity not only at Board level,
but across the whole organisation,
particularly at senior levels. This
commitment has led to improved gender
diversity at all senior levels over the past
year with the current workforce 26%
female. AVEVA's vision is to have 30%

of roles filled by women by the end of
2020 and the Company is on track to
achieve this target. Nonetheless, a key
feature of our D&l initiatives, is that they
embrace all diversity, meaning that as an
organisation we focus on inclusivity rather
than specific gender or ethnicity activity.

_This focus is essential to our culture and

is ingrained in the AVEVA LIFE values.

The Committee recognises that the
participation of women in the technology
industry remains relatively lower than
that of men and that this will take time

to rectify. Our recruitment policies and
talent management programmes are
developed with this background in mind.
The Company is committed to hiring and
developing women in the STEM fields. The
ELT plays a day-to-day role in supporting
diversity and inclusion initiatives through
reviewing and maintaining AVEVA's D&l
framework and through their continued
work with WISE, Girls in Tech and our new
portner Society of Women Engineers.

The Committee’s work on D&l is closely
aligned to its succession planning activity
through the design and development

of innovative and effective talent
management processes to improve

the depth, quality and diversity of

talent. We discuss succession planning

in more detail on the next page.

The Committee and the Board

take due regard of the Hampton-
Alexander Review: FTSE Women
Leaders and the Parker Review into
the ethnic diversity of UK boards.

Whilst recognising and embracing the
benefits of having a diverse Board,
Board appointments will continue to

be merit-based, considering the needs
and strategies of the business rather
than specified quotas or targets. The
Board believes that setting targets for
the number of people from a particular
background or gender when considering
Board appointments is not the most
effective approach to ensuring optimum
Board composition. Furthermore, the
Committee's approach when considering
the recruitment of new Board members



involves the adoption of a formal and
transparent procedure with due regard

to the skills, knowledge and level of
experience required, as well as diversity
and soft skills. Nevertheless, it will
continue to keep the gender and ethnic
balance of the Board as a key factor when
considering future Board appointments.

For further information on the
Company's D&I framework and
initiatives, please refer to page 34.

Succession planning

As anticipated, succession planning
was central to the Committee’'s agenda
in 2019. The Committee oversees the
development of an inclusive and diverse
talent pipeline through a number of
Company-wide initiatives. Currently
these initiatives are targeted mainly
towards two groups of employees —
potential future members of the ELT
and a broader leadership talent pool.

Against this background, the ELT
implemented an extensive talent mapping
exercise taking into consideration AVEVA's
current needs, its growth aspirations

and its long-term strategies. The review
identified key employees who have the
potential to be critical to the success of the
Company and results were shared with
the Committee and the Board. Appropriate
steps were then taken to ensure that
effective plans are in place to develop

a mix of potential senior managers and
employees within the Group who could

fill key roles in the short, medium and
longer term. The review also took into
consideration the Group's objectives

on diversity and inclusion. Training and
leadership programmes for all employees
emphasises the Company’s commitment
to promoting and supporting in-house
talent. These programmes support the
Committee's responsibility of ensuring a
sufficient talent pipeline exists to meet the
ever-changing needs of the Company.

Talent mapping exercises will continue
to be performed annually and progress
on diversity and succession planning
initiatives are reviewed regularly by
the Committee and the Board.

In accordance with its responsibilities,
the Committee undertakes contingency
planning for unexpected Board changes
and unforeseen departures, medium-
term planning and long-term planning.
As part of this planning, the Committee
assess the skills and expertise required
on the Board and considers current and
future challenges facing the Company.
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Board and Committee composition
The Committee is committed to ensuring
that the Board and its Committees have
the right balance of skills, experience
and knowledge to help achieve its
strategic objectives and to guarantee
continued delivery of shareholder

value. In this regard, it continuously
reviews the composition of the Board
and its Committees and the Board skills
matrix. The framework within which the
composition of the Board, its Committees
and future Board appointments
continue to be assessed, is based on the
terms of the Relationship Agreement,
AVEVA's inclusion in the FTSE 100
Index and the specific functions which
NEDs would be required to fulfil on
Committees. Following consideration,
the Committee believes that, throughout
the year, the Board composition and
that of its Committees provided an
appropriate balance of skills, knowledge
and experience. The Committee will
continue to assess composition and
succession planning in view of both

the results of the Board evaluation

and the search for a new Chairman.

Annual review

As part of the externally-facilitated Board
and Committee evaluation, the Committee
assessed its own performance and
effectiveness. The Committee members
concluded that it operates effectively

and that the Committee has been
strengthened by the addition of Olivier
Blum. The annual performance evaluation
also provided an opportunity to review
the Committee’s Terms of Reference. The
Committee undertook a comprehensive
review and update of its Terms of
Reference following the introduction

of the 2018 Code during the previous
financial year. This year's review focused
on whether these updated Terms remain
fit for purpose and the outcome was that
no immediate changes are required.

Priwc.).rities .......
for FY27:

The Committee will prioritise the
following for the year ahead:

— Leading the search for a new
Chairman

— Continued focus on diversity and
inclusion in relation to Board
appointments and throughout
the organisation

— Continued focus on Board and
executive succession planning

— Continued development of a
strong talent pipeline

— Review of Board and Committee
composition to ensure effective
support of AVEVA's strategic
aims

Philip Aiken AM
Chairman
9 June 2020

DocuSigned by:

That A\ lonn

801F53793998423...
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Audit Committee Report

Our focus is the integrity of the Group’s financial
reporting, audit processes, key risk management
and internal controls

Christopher Humphrey
Audit Committee Chairman

Independence split

Independent 3

Membership and attendance

Chair

Christopher Humphrey 4/4
Committee members
Jennifer Allerton 4/4
Ron Mobed 4/4
Chairman

CEO

Deputy CEO and CFO

Finance Director and Company Secretary

Group General Counsel

Head of Internal Audit & Risk

Other senior members of the Group Finance team
External audit partner

The Committee usually meets four times a year.

The Audit Committee (the Committee)
is appointed by the Board. The
members are Christopher Humphrey
{Chairman), Jennifer Allerton and Ron
Mobed. All the Committee members are
regarded by the Board as independent
Non-Executive Directors. Committee
meetings are also regularly attended
by other Board members and relevant
senior management at the invitation

of the Chair, to provide company
insight, advice and reports to help the
Committee consider the Company's
approach to its primary responsibilities.
In addition, the external audit partner
is invited to attend all meetings.

Role of the Committee

The Committee is appointed by the
Board to monitor the financial integrity
of the Group. It confirms to the Board
that the financial statements within the
Annual Report are fair, balanced and
understandable and comply with all
applicable legislation and regulation. It
also reviews the Groups risk management
processes and internal controls;
including maintaining oversight of the
internal audit function. Further, the
Committee manages the relationship
with the external auditor, reviews the
scope and terms of its engagement,
and monitors its performance through
regular effectiveness reviews.

Committee membership and skills

| was appointed Chairman of the
Committee in November 2016. The Board
believes | have the necessary recent

and relevant financial experience as
required by the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code), as | am a Chartered
Management Accountant and a Fellow
of CIMA, and have previously held

the role of Chief Executive Officer and
previously Group Finance Director of
Anite plc, a UK-listed company, and

prior to that senior positions in finance

at Conoco, Eurotherm International plc



and Critchley Group plc. | am also Chair
of the Audit Committee of Vitec Group
plc and i have maintained an up-to-date
understanding of financial and corporate
governance best practice by attending
many training sessions and updates
presented by the major accounting firms.

The Board also considers that the
other members of the Committee
have a broad range of appropriate
skills and strong experiences covering
financial, commercial and operational

matters. Brief biographical details - -~

for all the members of the Committee
are included on pages 62-63.

The Committee provides effective
governance over external financial
reporting, risk management and internal
controls and reports its findings and
recommendations to the Board. in my
capacity as Chairman of the Committee,

| am pleased to report on the operations
of the Committee during the past year,
with emphasis on the specific matters we
have considered, including compliance
with the Code and associated Guidance
on Audit Committees. | confirm that we
have fully complied with the requirements
of the Code as issued in July 2018.

Audit Committee terms of reference
The role of the Committee is set out

in its terms of reference which are
available on the Company’s website at

. www.aveva.com. The Committee monitors
the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group and the Committee members
(as part of the full Board) review all
proposed regulatory announcements to
be made by the Group, with consideration
given to any significant financial reporting
judgements included or required.

The Committee considers the
effectiveness of financial reporting

and internal controls, compliance

with legal requirements, accounting
standards and the Listing, Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authority. We also review any
proposed change in accounting policies
and any recommendations from the
Group's auditor regarding improvements
to internal controls and the adequacy

of resources within the Group's finance
function. The Committee also assesses
the process that has been established
to ensure that the Annual Report is

fair, balanced and understandable,
reporting to the Board on their findings.
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Significant accounting issues
Significant accounting issues and
judgements are identified by the Group
finance function and via the external
audit process and are reviewed by the
Committee. Significant issues considered
by the Committee in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the

following table:

Significant issue How it was addressed

]Covid-19
)

I The Committee have carefully considered the various potential
impacts of Covid-19 on accounting judgements. This includes-
reviews of forecasts, asset impairments, share-based payments
vesting and impairment review. In addition, the Committee have
overseen the preparation of both Going Concern and Long-Term
Viability Statements, paying attention to modelling, scenarios,
liquidity positions and covenants.

Revenue
recognition

The external auditor presented their findings regarding key revenue
recognition testing and associated risks. The Committee reviewed and
concluded that revenue recognised in the year is materially correct.

Pensions

| The UK defined benefit pension scheme remains the most significant
1 to the Group and is an area of focus. The Committee satisfied itself

I that the valuation of the pension liabilities is within an acceptable

i range and that the assumptions have been updated to reflect market
[ conditions as at the year end. ’

Share-based
payments

'The Group recognised a share-based payment charge of £12 million’

> during the year ended 31 March 2020. Two key areas of judgement for
~management are the fair value of new options granted in the period
'and the vesting assumptions made on all open option grants. The

+ Committee reviewed and satisfied itself that the fair value of the LTIPs
; granted in the year is appropriate and in line with vesting assumptions.

Disposals - .

|
?
|
|
|
i
i
!
|
i

| During the year, management disposed of the three remaining - _ .

- entities which served as Wonderware distributors, with the
counterparties being other existing Wonderware distributors across
| Europe. The Committee has maintained oversight of these disposals

l and has concluded that the associated accounting is accurate.

Bonuses

} During the year, the harmonisation of bonus schemes has been

! completed for the majority of heritage AVEVA and heritage SES

| employees. The Committee has maintained oversight of external
auditor review and testing in this area to ensure it is comfortable with
l stated bonus provisions.

IFRS 16

b

[ This is the first period in which IFRS 16 is applicable for the Group.

; The Committee has focussed upon any changes made to

+ management's transition adjustments, the appropriate disclosure of

‘ the new policy and any new leases entered during the year. No issues
Farose from these procedures.

*Acquisition
laccounting
1

i

| The Committee has maintained oversight of the MaxGrip and

j ErrorSolver acquisitions during the year and satisfied itself that the
» acquisition accounting has been performed using opproprlute

! methodologies and is recorded correctly.
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Risk and internal controls

The principal risks that the Group faces

are set out on pages 40 to 47. On at least

an annual basis, the Committee considers
the Group risk register and related
management controls. Throughout the
process, the Board or the Committee:

- considers whether areas should be
looked at more closely through specific
control reviews;

- identifies areas where enhancement of
internal controls is required; and

— agrees action plans to deliver the
necessary or recommended
enhancements.

The Committee has developed a

framework to gain assurance over

the system of internal financial and

operational controls. This comprises:

— the annual Internal Audit Plan. The
Committee receives regular updates
from the internal audit function on the
outcomes of agreed reviews;

— the use of qualified third parties to
undertake specialist reviews in more
technical areas; and

- anannual assessment by the
Committee of the whole system of
internal financial and operational
controls.

There is a formal whistleblowing

policy which has been communicated

to employees. This policy provides
information on the process to follow if
any employee feels it is appropriate to
make a disclosure. The Committee is
satisfied that the process is effective and
reviews key issues which are reported.

In relation to Covid-19 disruption and
remote working requirements, the internal
control framework has been assessed for
continued suitability during lockdown and
is considered robust.

Key estimates and judgements

The Committee discusses with
management and the auditor the
approach that has been taken in assessing
all key estimates. These include revenue
recognition, provisions for impairment of
receivables, the valuation of retirement
benefit obligations and the identification
of acquired intangibles. Annually, the
Committee considers the going concern
principle upon which the financial
statements are prepared and the Group's
viability statement disclosures.

Internal audit

The Company established an in-house
internal audit function during 2018.
This has included the agreement and
successful execution of annual internal
audit plans, providing the Committee
with an independent view on the strength
of internal controls. Where some audit
reviews require specialist resource

or capacity then independent third
parties may be used. As a Committee,
we believe this resourcing model
provides the most effective approach.

External audit

The Committee acknowledges the
provisions contained in the Code in respect
of audit tendering, along with European
rules on mandatory audit rotation and
audit tendering. Ernst & Young (EY)

have been our auditor since the financial
year ended in March 2003 and cannot
therefore remain our auditor beyond 2023
(note that EY were retained following

an audit tender process in 2016).

Audit partners are rotated every five
years and the current audit partner,
Marcus Butler, will complete his fifth
year with the Group this year.

The Committee has considered its
approach to audit tendering with reference
to the mandatory rotation period, the
rotation of the current audit partner and
proposals from the current reviews into the
audit profession. In addition, EY are joint
auditors to Schneider Electric along with
Mazars. Schneider Electric are required to
rotate EY after the December 2021 year
end and the Committee has considered the
implications of this for the AVEVA audit.

The Committee has concluded that it
would be appropriate to commence a
competitive tender for the March 2023
year-end audit. The tender will commence
after the 2020 results are announced
and is expected to conclude before the
end of the year. The suggested timeline
will enable the Company to conclude the
tender in line with Schneider Electric's
timeline to ensure that any independence
threats relating to services provided by
the incoming auditor can be addressed.
It should also enabie the Committee to
take into account any proposals arising
from the current reviews of the auditing
profession. The timing remains subject

to the Committee's normal annual

review of auditor performance and
recommendation to shareholders.

The Company has complied with the
Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order.2014 issued

by the Competition and Markets
Authority. A plan to identify successor
firms to ensure that there is sufficient
time for an orderly transition and to
safeguard independence was considered
and agreed by the Committee.

A formal statement of independence is
received from the auditor each year. The
Board and the Committee are satisfied
that the independence and objectivity
of the auditor has been maintained.
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Audit Committee objectives for FY20
The Committee agreed several objectives at the start of the financial year.

77

Objectives

Activify in the year

Progress

Integration

' The combination of the AVEVA and Schneider

Electric Software businesses created a

much larger Group and onc with a different
financial risk profile. The Committee sought

to continuously understand the integration
process and specifically understand how this
would change financial processes and financial
reporting as well as any new financial risks
faced by the Group.

Finance transformation updates were presented
to the Committee in July and October 2019

with a further update provided to the Board in
September 2019.

Refresh Enterprise Risk
Management for the enlarged
Group

For risk management processes to provide the
required value, continued executive support
has been required with the Audit Committee
holding management to account on risk
management, challenging their involvement
and progress. This includes embedding
effective risk management into business units
and functions so that risk covers the entire
organisation. Good progress was made in 2018
and momentum was required to be maintained

in 2019 to be successful.

Further detail on the progress of this objective is
included on pages 40-41. Further progress has
been made with the Committee overseeing the
introduction of a new AVEVA risk governance
structure that involves the Board, the Executive
Leadership Team, business units and functions.
The Audit Committee continue to receive regular
updates on the progress of risk management
processes within AVEVA to enable the required
challenge to management.

Development of in-house internal
audit function

2018 saw the introduction of an in-house
internal audit function for the enlarged Group.
The Committee have been focused on directing
and supporting this function and ensuring that
it provides an adequate level of coverage and
assurance to meet the Committee’s needs.

The FY20 Internal Audit Plan was successfully
achieved and included balanced geographical
coverage of the Group's operations.

In 2019, the internal audit function;

— Continued to focus on the establishment
and testing of minimum internal control
requirements for the enlarged Group.

- Executed a risk-based focus to internal audit
allowing the Audit Committee to receive
outcomes and assurance levels from higher
risk areas of the business such as principal
risk areas, wenker contralled subhsidinries and
processes.

“IT strategy & processes

Throughout 2019 the Audit Committee were
committed to ensuring that the Group's IT
strategy, processes and systems are fit for
purpose for a group of AVEVA's size and
nperatinns This inclided a farns nn the FRP
implementation programme, understanding
the Group's cyber-risks and computer and
social media policies.

A transformation update was presented to the
Committee in July 2019, which included new ERP
system implementation progress. A cyber update
was provided at the same time and again to the
Roard in Qctober 2019,

Fixed price projects

The Committee requested a better
understanding of the control environment
in place to manage fixed-price long-term
services projects, including for bids and
project delivery, predominantly via
presentations from management and

through the work of Internal Audit.

In May 2019, a presentation to the Board was
provided by the Chief Operating Officer and this
included controls in place for project life cycles.
Further, an independent internal audit review

of this area was performed and reported to the
Committee during 2019.
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The Committee advises the Roard

on the auditor’s remuneration and
Jiveurven v nulure, veope und roculle
of the audit with the external auditor.

In compliance with legislation on non-
audit services provided by the external
auditor EY do not perform any non-
audit services work for the Company.

The effectiveness of the external audit
process is dependent on appropriate
audit risk identification and a robust
accecement of key ectimatec and
judgements at the start ot the audit cycle,
We challenge the auditor regarding

their tesl ol munugernent's ussuimplions
each audit cycle and request teedhack
fram management an their nssessment
vl uudilur effectiveness. Overull, buth
management and the Committee Gre
satisfied at the quality and effectiveness
of the external audit process.

The audit fees paid to EY for the
statutory audit were £1.0 million.
The Committee continues to keep
under review the cost effectiveness
and quality of the audit service.

The Committee meets quarterly with

the auditor without any members of

the Executive Leadership Team being
present. | also meet with the external
auditor from time to time away from the
Campany’s offices and alsa individually
with the Head of Internal Audit and Risk,
Chicf Financial Officer, Financce Director
and other genior finance team members.

Audit planning and main qudit issues
Atthe September 2019 meeting of the
Committee, the auditor presented their
audit plan for FY20, This included g
summary of the proposed audit scopes
for the year for each of the Group'’s
subsidiaries and a summary of what
the auditor considered to be the most
significant financial reporting risks
facing the Group together with the
audltor's proposed audlt approach

to these significant risk areas.

The following specific business was dealt with at each meeting during FY20:~

May 2019

am

Review of Committee objectives
Year-end reporting; including:

Review of draft accounts

Accounting judgements

Tax update

- Going Concern & Viability

- External auditor's reports

Internal Audit update

"Updule uii finunce bunsfunnutivn pruject
Private meeting hetween Chairman.and externnl auditar.

Septemher 2019

Internal Audit uprnte
.External auditor planning
Risk management governance update
Group accounting updates
Cyber update
Auditor rotation update

October 2019

Review of Committee objectives

Interim reporting; including:

- Accounting update report from management

— Taxupdate

— Treasury update .

— Interim report from external auditors

- Review of draft interim financial statements

Internal Audit update

Update on finance transformation project

Genceral management updates including data protection
and cybersecurity

Private meeting between Chairman and external auditor

March 2020

Review and approval of terms of reference
Review of Audit Committee objectives
External auditor year-end planning
Update on finance transformation project
Update on risk management

Internal Audit update including FY21 internal Audit Plan
Treasury update

Tox update

Cyber update

Covid-19 considerations

Update on auditor rotation

Results of AQRT review
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FRC reviews Committee activities in FY20
EY’s external audit of the Company | chaired four scheduled meetings 7
for the year ending March 2019 was of the Committee in FY20, working C O m m I t te e
subject to an FRC Audit Quality Review closely with management to ensure H H
during the year. The Committee have that the Committee is provided with O bJ e Ct | V e S fo r
been kept fully informed of the progress the comprehensive information 2 .
and conclusions of the review which and support that it requires. F Y 1 .
are that the audit work within scope
required limited improvements. EY have Agendas included annual reporting In March 2020, the Committee
L(:pt tr:.e Cortnr:ittcie fuc:Ic)j/ upd;age(:. w'ltthd reqdmrtehmenzs,hnsk osi:rancehpr:cesses g considered the objectives for the
e actions taken to address the limite and other ad-hoc matters which arose an :
n r
findings of the FRC. Should any further required robust review and challenge. year ahead and it was agreed the

X ; . i rioritised:
reviews occur, we will advise shareholders following would be prioritised

in the subsequent Annual Report. . . .
- Continued focus on integration

Assessing the content of the Annual : and transformation progress
Report — Focus on cybersecurity threats
The Board takes responsibility for — Audit firm rotation

determining that the whole Annual Report — Continued development of

is fair, balanced and understandable Interna! Audit with focus on risk-
and provides the necessary information based reviews

for shareholders. The Committee - Regular updates on tax

concentrates its review on the financial
statements only and the process which
underpins the Long-Term Viability
Statement. The Committee recommended
to the Board the adoption of the financial
statements as at 31 March 2020.

strategies
- Monitor risk environment in
relation to Covid-19 pandemic

Christopher Humphrey
Committee performance in the g”d't Czc’ongg"'ttee Chairman
annual evaluation June
The Committee's effectiveness was
assessed as part of the external DocuSigned by:
evaluation as further explained in the /J
Nomination Committee Report on ’

39BB569A281C4F4...

pages 70~73. The evaluation concluded
that it operates effectively and that no
immediate changes to its composition
are required. The Board, however, will
continue to review actions flowing from
the results of the evaluation and the
Committee will assess and implement any
actions that might be required. Further,
we set and measure our performance
against specific objectives every year.
These objectives are set annually and the
details of our objectives for FY20 and the
progress made is summarised below.




P —
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Remuneration Committee Report

As AVEVA continues its growth journey, the
Remuneration Committee wants to ensure that
our Remuneration Policy continues to support
our growth strategy, promoting the long-term
sustainability of what is now a larger scale, more
complex business. As such, we will be seeking
shareholder approval to refresh the Policy to
align with investor expectations whilst ensuring
we remain competitive in the global market.

s

- —— —

Jennifer Allerton
Remuneration
Committee Chair J

“l am proud to present the Directors’

Remuneration Report for the year ended March
2020 which has seen further significant '

transformational work undertaken by AVEVA to
continue its successful growth journey.”

Highlights
of the year

— New Remuneration Policy

— A single global bonus scheme

— A strong result for the year

RPN P P

- —— ————— ——— i T o (. 5 st o ol o s

Annual Statement
Letter from the Remuneration
Committee Chair 80

Remuneration at a Glance

A four-page summary of the details of the
new Remuneration Policy, the amounts
paid in FY20 and the proposals for

amounts to be paid in FY21 82
The Directors' Remuneration Policy (Part A)
Proposed remuneration policy changes 87
Remuneration outcomes in different

performance scenarios 94

The implementation Report (Part B)
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CEO single figure history 106
Relative importance of spend on pay 107
Remuneration and share interests of

Non-Executive Directors 108

ANNUAL STATEMENT

Dear Fellow Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the
year ended 31 March 2020 which we have prepared in compliance
with the revised 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

As a summary, this report is divided into four key sections:
— This Annual Statement .

- The ‘Remuneration at a Glance’ section

— The Directors’ Remuneration Policy (Part A)

— The Implementation Report (Part B)

Introduction

The year ending March 2020 was a year of substantial change
and continued growth for AVEVA. This year we committed
ourselves to being a leader in industrial software for a
sustainable future working with our employees, our customers
and our shareholders. We aspire to a world where economic
growth supports environmental sustainability with better living
standards for the communities where we and our customers
operate. Our purpose, values and strategy create long-term value
for customers, employees and shareholders.

The merger of AVEVA with SES in March 2018 was one of the
largest business combinations that has occurred in the UK for
many years. Management focus on integration and operational
excellence has been a success, yielding a unique, best-in-class
and highly competitive global technology company based in
Caombridge and listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Our current Remuneration Policy was approved by over 96% of
shareholders at the 2018 AGM when AVEVA was a member of
the FTSE 250 and with a market capitalisation of £4.1 billion.
We are presenting a new policy to shareholders at the 2020
AGM, one year earlier than required. This is due to the fact that
we are now a very different business, post-merger, in terms

of size, geographic coverage, complexity, scale and as a

FTSE 100 company.

The Remuneration Policy we are propasing continues to build

on the policy approved in 2018, supporting our growing global
software business. We are proactive in ensuring that we
understand the expectations of our investors and the policy being



proposed will ensure management reward
is well aligned with our shared objectives.
The proposed policy is also reflective of the
changes and broader scope of the new UK
Code. We have sought to incorporate both
investor expectations and market practice,
taking into consideration that we are now a
FTSE 100 company and have significantly
increased our market capitalisation over
recent years.

Board changes during the year

There were no changes in membership

of the Remuneration Committee during
the year. However, since the year end,
Emmanuel Babeau retired from the Board
effective 30 April 2020. We are very
pleased to weicome Olivier Blum, formerly
CHRO of Schneider Electric and now Chief
Strategy & Sustainability Officer, who will
bring a wealth of executive pay experience
to the Board.

Context for FY20 incentive outcomes
The Company has delivered another

very strong set of results against the
background of mixed macroeconomic
and market conditions. Positive top

line revenue growth of 8.8% coupled

with an increase in margin to 26% has
demonstrated the ongoing synergies
post-merger and as the Company shifts
towards more of a subscription model the
proportion of recurring revenue exceeded
the three year target of 60% delivering
an impressive 62% of recurring revenue
within the year.

For FY20 the annual bonus award was
based on financial and strategic measures.
As a result of a strong performance and
achievement of strategic measures,

the Executive Directors received

an outcome of 71% of maximum. In

line with policy, 40% of the bonus

earned is deferred into shares.

Over the three-year performance
period of the 2017 LTIP, AVEVA has
performed exceptionally well. We have
seen growth in our share price of circa
175% over this period combined with
EPS growth of more than 15% p.a.

and strong total revenue performance.
Accordingly, all three performance
metrics were outperformed for the
2017 LTIP, resulting in both Executive
Directors achieving 100% of maximum.

The Committee is satisfied that the annual
bonus and LTIP targets were sufficiently
stretching and that the resulting outcomes
are appropriate in light of AVEVA's
performance. The Committee, therefore,
decided not to apply any discretion to the
incentive outcomes.

We have included a double page
spread, clearly describing remuneration
arrangements and outturns in FY20 and
FY21 on pages 84-85.
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Shareholder engagement

We were naturally disappointed with the
result of our 2019 AGM, where we received
a vote of 79% for our Remuneration Report.
In light of this, we have actively engaged
with our shareholder base and have sought
to fully understand their views and the
rationale behind the voting outcome.

Ahead of the 2020 AGM, we have listened
to feedback and made changes where
appropriate to do so. We have expanded
the disclosure around our incentive
objectives, particularly the strategic
elements of both the annual bonus and
LTIP award. We have also sought to
address concerns raised around the legacy
use of retention arrangements which were
related to the successful completion of a
transformational merger that has driven
exceptional returns for shareholders.
Whilst this is a historic issue, we note
shareholders' strong views and for the
final tranche of the retention payment, we
have expanded disclosure in this report.

Regarding the proposed policy, we have
again been receptive to shareholders and
their feedback. For the incentive awards,
we are not implementing maximum
opportunities for either annual bonus or
LTIP, and for FY21 we will not increase LTIP
opportunity for either Executive Director.
We have also introduced a formal two year
post-employment shareholding guideline.

Policy review

The Committee undertook an extensive

review of our Remuneration Policy in FY20.

We are proposing a number of changes

to ensure we are both competitive in

the global markets where we operate

and aligned with investor expectations.

We have taken into account the current

Covid-19 crisis and the views of our

shareholders. An ‘At a Glance' summary

of the proposed changes to the policy are
set out on pages 82-83. Outlined below
are some of the key decisions regarding
implementation of the FY21 policy:

— Salary: for FY21, the Directors will not
receive a salary increase in line with the
wider workforce.

— Pension: the Directors remain aligned
to the wider workforce and receive a
pension contribution of 10% of salary.

— Bonus: maximum opportunity will be
increased from 125% to 200% for the
CEO and 175% for the CFO. However, for
FY21, the CEOQ is to receive a maximum
opportunity of 165% and the CFO 150%.
Deferral is to be increased from 40% to
50% of the award.

— LTIP: maximum opportunity will be
increased from 250% to 300% for the
CEO, and from 175% to 250% for the
CFO. However, for FY21, the increased
maximums will not be utilised and both
Executive Directors will remain on their
current maximum LTIP opportunities.

— In-employment shareholding
requirement: increased to market-leading
levels from 200% of annual salary to the
variable pay opportunity (415% for the
CEO and 325% for the CFO in FY21).

— Post-employment shareholding
requirement: a formal post-employment
shareholding guideline has been
introduced.

Other Committee activities during

FY20

We have continued to work hard

to transform from a remuneration

perspective both the heritage AVEVA

and Schneider Electric industrial software

businesses. Key deliverables this year

have included:

-~ harmonising nine variable bonus plans
globally into one uniform AVEVA global
bonus plan for approximately 4,000
employees;

- rolling out job levels to ensure
consistency and equality globally;

- designing and building a proposed new
Global Employee Share Scheme; and

- revising the Remuneration Report,
taking into account market data,
investor expectations and global
technology trends.

In addition to the transformational work
undertaken this year, we also appointed
new remuneration advisors and are

pleased to have partnered with Deloitte.

The Board has continued its internal
dialogue with employees during the

year which has again seen us meeting
business leaders and employees. In
January, we held our first meeting at our
newly-opened London offices in Cannon
Street and met many of the London-
based employees. The office provides a
useful central London hub for AVEVA. We
continue to value these direct face-to-face
discussions with employees. As with many
companies, we have adapted our working
style during the Covid-19 global lockdown
and in March conducted our first fully
virtual Remuneration Committee meeting.
As we globally assess the new ways of
working we will also be looking at how
virtual employee representation can be
incorporated into the Committee's ways
of working to provide greater internal
transparency and accountability.

In conclusion

| hope you find the contents of this

report clear and transparent and the
reasoning for our proposed revisions to the
Remuneration Policy sensible.

Jennifer Allerton
Remuneration Committee Chair
9 June 2020
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Remuneration

At a Glance

Proposed changes to the current policy

The table below summarises the key differences between the
proposed policy and the current policy. The proposed policy. will
be put to a binding shareholder vote at the 2020 AGM and is set

ot on pcges 8/ t0 b,

Existing policy

Proposed policy

Salaries are reviewed annually although
there is no automatic entitlement to
_~nninrranse,

.-- Bawe galary increacos aro normally in line-
with the wider UK workforce.

Base salary

On occasion we may need to recognise
an increase in scope, size or responsibility
of the role and/or developments in the
wider market.

i No change to current policy.

Uur market positioning on salaries remains competitive based upon our

No proposed changes to Executive Directors’ base salaries in FY21.

company size when compared with the FTSE 31-100 peer group.

In line with benefits provided for other
senior employees in the Group, Executive
Directors currently receive a mobility
allowance or company car, a fuel
allowance and an annual allowance
toward a range of benefits.

Benefits

>
=]
o
o
]
X
u

No change to current policy.

In line with best practice, pensions for
Executive Directors have been aligned to
the wider UK workforce for a number of
years with no additional benefits being
offered to Executive Directors.

Pensions

Both Executive Directors are members of
the AVEVA Group Personal Pension Plan
(a defined contribution scheme). Executive
Directors receive a cash in lieu allowance
equivalent to 10% of salary, reduced

for the effect of employers’ National
Insurance contributions.

No change to current policy.

The focus of our new policy is to address the variable and performance-reloted elements of the packages as discussed below. This
will ensure alignment to shareholders’ objectives. The proposed increase in incentive opportunities requires additional stretch in the
performance delivered so that more pay is delivered only for more performance. This is totally aligned with the philosophy of the
Company and with the changes we have made to the broader workforce.

Existing policy

Proposed policy

Annual Bonus opportunity : The maximum bonus opportunity is 125%
T " i of base salary.

Variable pay

The moximum bonus opportunity is proposed to increase from 125% of

i Current maximum awaord level is uncompetitive in the market against

salary for both Directors to 200% for the CEO and 175% for the CFO.

Reflects the fact that we are a very different business post the merger of
AVEVA with the Schneider Electric industrial software business in March!
2018, in terms of size, geographic coverage, complexity and scale.

the FTSE 31-100 and AVEVA's US peers.

In FY21, we propose an increase from 125% of salary for both Directors
to 165% for the CEO and 150% for the CFO.

The Committee acknowledges that increased quantum requires
additional stretch so that more pay is delivered only for the achievement
of more stretching performance targets.

40% of any bonus earned is deferred into
shares under the Deferred Share Scheme.

Annual Bonus deferral

The amount of bonus deferral is proposed to increase from 40% of any
bonus earned to 50% of any bonus earned.

Once the increased shareholding guidelines set out below are met the
bonus deterral will be relaxed to half the usual amount i.e. 25% of any
bonus to be deferred but will continue to be subjected to the existing
three year bonus deferrai holding period.
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Existing policy

Proposed policy

Long-term incentive
opportunity

Awards over shares worth no more than
250% of salary may be made each year
for the CEO and 175% for the CFO.

The maximum LTIP opportunity to increase from 250% of salary to
300% of salary for the CEO. For the CFO, the policy maximum will
increase from 175% to 250% of salary.

The overall incentive opportunity remains within market competitive
ranges for the UK but below the US market and below competitive
technology companies outside the UK.

We strongly believe that it is important to have the additional flexibility
in the Policy to ensure we can retain and recruit increasing numbers

of employees and leadership positions in niche technical skills areas,
which are highly competitive. Use of this additional headroom will not
be automatic.

This increased headroom will be balanced with the Policy changes
noted below (reduction in threshold vesting level and market leading
shareholding guidelines). Increased quantum will also require additional
stretch on performance to ensure we pay for more performance only.

There are no proposed increases in LTIP opportunity for FY21 for the
CEO or CFO. The maximum LTIP award will remain unchanged at 250%
of base salary far the GFN and 175% of salary for the CFO, Mo chonges
are proposed to the structure or performance measures.

Long-term incentive
threshold vesting

Where a sliding scale of targets is

used, attaining the threshold level of
performance for any measure will not
typically produce a vesting of more than
25% of the maximum.

In the event of an increase in LTIP quantum above 250% of salary for the
CEO and 175% of salary for the CFO the LTIP vesting at threshold would
be reduced from 25% of maximum to 20% of maximum.

Existing policy

Proposed policy

Shareholding
requirements

In-employment

i i

! Shareholding requirement of 200% of

salary for both Executive Directors.

The shareholding guidelines are being increased to market leading
levels. The level of shareholding required shall be the total of both
annual bonus and annual LTIP opportunity imuxima. The increased
shareholding requirements will apply to any newly issued deferred
bonus award and LTIPs granted in respect of FY21 and later years.

In FY21:

FAPTAS I_EL this will be 165% for annual bonus and 250% for LTIPs
giving a new increased shareholding requirement of 415% of salary.

For the CFO an annual bonus opportunity of 150% and 175% LTIP
opportunity equates to a new increased shareholding of 325% of salary.

Shareholding
requirements

Post-employment

No formal post-employment shareholding
policy in place.

A new two-year post-employment shareholding guideline is being
introduced, following feedback from major investors, which will apply
to shares acquired through awords granted under the new Policy. With
100% of the increased shareholding guidelines (or actual shareholding,
if lower) retained for the first-year post employment and 50% for the
second-year post employment.

Existing policy

Proposed policy

Malus and clawback

Strengthened provisions

The provisions apply to the annual bonus,
deferred bonus scheme and LTiPs.

We have formally enshrined within the Policy a strengthening of the
malus and clawback provisions and discretion to override formulaic
outturns on variable pay, in each case to take account of the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

For further details
see page 90

e
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Remuneration At a Glance continued

How we performed in FY20

Revenue growth

+8.8%

Recurring revenue

+840 bps
to £833.8m t062.2%

Adjusted EBIT

+23.3%

Remuneration of our Executive Birectorsin FY20
The tahle below summarises how Executive Directors were remunerated for FY20, alongside how the proposed policy will be

implemented for FY21.

to £216.8m

Adjusted diluted EPS

+24.9%
to 108.15p

Key elements

Annual bonus

Base salary

-Pensiong .-

Applies to How we paid our Executive Directors in FY20 Impiementation of our proposed policy for FY21
Craig Hayman £718k £718k
(0% salary increase)
James Kidd £513k £513k
{0% salary increase)
Rath EDs 10% of salary

Benefits

Craig Haymun

Mobility allowance, US and UK medical cover

Recurring revenue 30%
Group adjusted EBIT 40%
Strategic objectives 20%

o James Kidd Car allowance, fuel allowance and £600 of flexible benefits
o How we paid our Executive Directors in FY20 Implementation of our proposed policy for FY21
Performance period Both EDs FY20 Fy21
Opportu;\wir;upplied Craig Hayman 125% of salary 165% of salary
James Kidd 125% of salary 150% of salary
Criteria Both EDs Group revenue 10% Short-term financial measures 30%

Recurring revenue 25%
Group adjusted EBIT 25%
Strategic objectives 20%

Payable Craig Hayman £635k {71% ot maximum) nfa
o James Kidd £454k {(71% of maximum) n/a
2017 oward 2020 award

Performance period Both EDs 1 April 2017 - 31 March 2020 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2023
B Opportunity.applied Croiq Hayman 250% of salary 250% of salary
é . Pro-rated tor sérvice
g James Kidd 150% of salary 175% of salary
z ;Eme horizo__rl.‘" Raoth FDs 3-year performance period, followed by a 2-year holding period.
R=Criteiia- ==z --— | BothEDs FPS GEFAWTRA hive
&5 Relative TSR performance 25%
S - Strategic objectives 25%
- Craig Hayman | £581k (100% ot maximum) ' n/a

""""""""""""""" James Kidd £1.521K (100% of maximum) nia
FY19 FY20

CEO ratios

Using the
single figure table

Excluding effect of
buy-out awards

Using the
single figure table

Excluding effect of
buy-out awards

CEO pay compared
to UK employee pay

75th percentile

87:1 19:1

62:1 23:1

50th percentile

118:1 26:1

86:1 32:1

25th percentite

163:1 36:1

19:1 441

1 The CEO pay ratio has been calculated by comparing the single figure of remuneration of the CEO to the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile UK employees. Remuneration
includes salary, benefits, pension, bonuses and share awards. All amounts are on a full time equivalent basis.
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Craig Hayman James Kidd
% of salary % of salary

0% 25% 50% 78% 100% 125% 0% 239 50% 78% 100%  125%  150%  175%
jMaximum ' ) ' ' i jMaximun; ’ ' '
! 1 Wj
Outcome Outcome :
N I {

L B S ‘ n 1 1 " !

£0k £100k £200k £300k £400k £500k £600k £700k £800k £300k

B Revenue metrics M Adjusted profit O Personal objectives

Long-term Incentive Scheme

Craig Hayman .
% of salary

0% 50% 100% 150% 200%

£0k £100k £200k £300k £400k £500k £600k £700k £800k £900k

M Revenue metrics Il Adjusted profit B Personal objectives
lames Kidd

% of salary
0% 50% 100% 300%

150% 200% 250%

; .
Fair value at date of grant

i
Opportunity inclusive of share price appreciation

H
Outcome (100%)

I
g

i
2 L X L s : 2 n L

Fair value at date of grant

I
Opportunity inclusive of share price appreciation

]
]

! . L L L N L ) N

|
Outcome (100%)

£0k £200k £400k £600k £800k £1,000k £1200k £1.400k £1,600k

@esT BWTSR  EIRevenue

The 2017 LTIP awards granted to Craig Hayman were pro-rated in the
yoar.of hic joining AVEVA,

£0k £200k £400k £600k £800k £1,000k £1200k £1,400k £1,600k

BT  EISK CRevenue

85

Maximum total remuneration opportunity compared to actual remuneration received for the year ending 31 March 2020

Cl’(]ig Hoyman Upportunity I Minimum l On-torget] Maximum l '
Actual j (
Loy ooy o f i s T ;
JUIIIES Kidd Opportunity | Minimum | On-target I Maximum |
4 - T T T B
Actuol e |
£0.0m £10m £20m £3.0m £40m £5.0m £6.0m

B Fixed lBonus MLTIP [ One-off awards!

1 For Craig Hayman these relate to his buy-out awards {see page 100). For James Kidd these relate to his Performance and Retention Awards (see page 100).
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Our approach to setting pay

AVEVA operates in the ‘UK plc’ executive remuneration environment but needs to attract and retain talent from a technology sector
with a high US influence. Half of our leadership team are based outside of the UK and the majority of senior technology positions (R&D,
Business Unit, Portfolio heads) are based in the US. We need to recruit increasing numbers of employees and leadership positions in
niche technical skill areas, which are highly competitive.

The Remuneration Committee undertook a thorough benchmarking exercise in FY20 to support the revisions to the Remuneration
Policy. Based upon the market capitalisation of the Company we selected the FTSE 31-100 companies to provide an initial comparison
for remuneration. Specifically, the company also identified a UK and US peer group of technology and software companies to provide
further comparisons before deciding upon the proposed remuneration approach.

UK Comparison Peer Group US Comparison Peer Group

- Avast Software s.r.o. - Ansysinc

- Micro Focus International — Aspen Technology Inc

-~ Ocado Group plc ) — Autodesk Inc

~ The Sage Group plc — Cadence Design Systems Inc
- Smiths Group plc - Honeywell international Inc
~ Sophos Group plc - PTCinc

- Rockwell Automation Inc

Whilst market data provides a valuable insight into pay levels and structures, the Committee recognises that benchmarking should not
be the sole determinant when considering Executive Directors’ remuneration. In line with AVEVA's general approach to setting pay, the
Committee considered many factors alongside benchmarking when reviewing the proposed revisions to the Remuneration Policy.

How the new policy aligns with the UK Corporate Governance Code

Clarity — The Committee welcomes open dialogue with shareholders on any aspect of the Company's remuneration.
As part of the recent review of our Remuneration Policy during FY20 shareholders were consulted which
provided valuable insights into their views on the proposed changes.

—~ Akey principle of the Committee is to ensure consistency across the Company from the Executive
Directors down through the entire organisation. In FY20 we conducted an extensive bonus harmonisation
programme which consolidated nine bonus plans into one global bonus plan for all non-sales employees.
This change ensures all employees are measured and remunerated in the same way, on the same plan
using the same metrics in a clear and transparent manner.

Simplicity - Each component of our Remuneration Policy is clearly laid out and explained in a clear and simple manner.
- Across the Company we ensure our remuneration arrangements are simple by design, communicated
clearly and understood by all participants.
- Although the quantum will vary, the policies and practices of remuneration are consistently applied across
all levels of the Company.

Risk — When determining award outcomes the Committee assesses the performance of the Company and the
individual in order to ensure sound judgement and appropriate risk management are applied so that
excessive rewards do not take place, reputational risk is protected and behavioural risks are identified and
mitigated.

— The Remuneration Policy includes a two year holding period on LTIPs and the proposed changes increase
the level of risk management by increasing the annual bonus deferral, increasing the in-employment
shareholding guidelines and introducing post-employment shareholding guidelines.

— As afinal safeguard our robust malus and clawback provisions apply to both the annual bonus and the
long-term incentive programme.

Predictability - The Remuneration Policy clearly states the threshold, on-target and stretch levels of performance
opportunity required, with achievement being measured against pre-determined targets defined in
advance of the programme launch.

— Targets and measures are not altered or amended mid-programme to ensure performance achievement is
aligned to original goals and objectives at all times.

Proportionality - The annual bonus programme rewards achievement against annual operating growth targets of the
Company together with personal objectives for the individual whilst the long-term incentive plan rewards
long-term achievement of goals and the creation of shareholder value both of which are aligned to the
overall Company strategy.

— The Committee has the ability to apply discretion to reduce outcomes of both the annual bonus and long-
term incentive scheme if needed for both Company and individual performance.

Alignmentto culture -~ When reviewing the annual bonus programme performance, the Committee assesses performance
against a range of objectives including those related to AVEVA customers, AVEVA employees and the
Company culture, strategy and risk to ensure incentive outcomes are aligned to the values and purpose.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Part A: The Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Introduction

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy below sets out the information required by Part 4 of Schedule 8 to the Large and Medium-Sized

Companies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended) (the ‘Regulations’).

If approved by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on 21 July 2020, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy set out
below will replace the existing policy for which shareholder approval was obtained at the 2018 Annual General Meeting, and will
become binding immediately thereafter. The material differences between the existing and proposed new policy (which has also been
designed with due account taken of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018) are explained on pages 82-83. [t is currently intended
that the policy will remain valid until the 2023 Annual General Meeting.

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that: the Executive Directors are provided with appropriate incentives to align them
with the achievement of the Company's long-term strategy and the future creation of shareholder value; enhanced performance

is encouraged; and the Executive Directors are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their individual contributions to the
success of the Group. Excessive risk-taking is neither encouraged nor rewarded.

It also aims for a combination of fixed and variable payments, benefits and share-based awards that will achieve a balance in
incentives to deliver short and long-term goals. The Company's policy is that a substantial proportion of remuneration of Executive
Directors should be performance-related and should be delivered in shares to create alignment with shareholders’ interests.
Remuneration for Executive Directors is set in the context of the economic environment in which the Group operates, the outcome

of the wider pay review for all Group employees as well as the financial performance of the Group. When determining remuneration
arrangements, the Committee takes into consideration relevant external considerations as well as the remuneration for employees of

the Group generally.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

,Base salary

— Helps recruit and
retain employees

«— Reflects
experience and
role

Base salary is normally reviewed

annually with changes effective

from 1 April, although salaries

may be reviewed more frequently

or at different times of the year if

the Committee determines this is

appropriate.

The Committee determines base

salary taking into account factors

including. but not limited to:

- The individual's role, experience
and performance.

—- Salaries at other companies of
a similar size and complexity as

well as global technology peers.

- Remuneration of different
groups of employees within the
Company.

- Total organisational salary
budgets.

The Committee takes a phased

approach to new salaries where

appropriate.

Paid in cash.

- In determining salary
increases the Committee
generally considers the
factors outlined in the
‘operation’ column.

- Salary increases will
normally be in line with the
range of increases in the
broader workforce salary (in
percentage terms), although
higher increases can be made
in appropriate circumstances,
for example:

- anincrease in the
individual's scope of
responsibilities;

- in the case of Executive
Directors who are
positioned on a lower
initial salary while they
gain experience in the
role; or

— where the Committee
considers that salary is
behind appropriate market
positioning for a company
of AVEVA's size and
complexity.

- However, no salary increase
will be paid to an incumbent
to the extent that this
increases the salary beyond
£900,000.

None
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Part A: The Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link

to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures
Pensions
- Providesa - The CEO and CFO are members of - The maximum employer None
competitive a defined contribution scheme. contribution (which may
means of saving — Theintention is that new be provided as a pension
for retirement in appointments to the Board would contribution or cash
a way that is cost also participate in a defined alternative or a combination
effective to the contribution pension scheme or thereof) is 10% of base
Company receive an equivalent cash payment. -salary which is aligned with
- However, if appropriate the the employer contribution
Committee may determine that available to the wider
alternative arrangements for the workforce; this limit may
provision of retirement benefit be increased to reflect
may apply. When determining any increase in the level of
pension arrangements for new employer contribution for the
appointments the Board will wider workforce.
give regard to the cost of the If an alternative pension
arrangements, market practice and arrangement were
the pension arrangements received introduced as referred to in
by the wider workforce. the ‘Operation’ column, the
maximum opportunity would
not exceed the maximum
opportunity for members
of the wider workforce
who participate in such an
arrangement.
‘Benefits
- Help recruit and - The benefit policy is to provide an The cost of benefit provision  None

retain employees

- Providea
competitive range
of valued benefits

- Assist toward early
return to work in
the event of illness
or injury

appropriate level of benefit taking
into account market practice at
other companies of similar size and
complexity and the level of benefits
provided for other employees in the
Group.

In line with benefits provided for
other senior employees in the Group,
Executive Directors currently receive
a mobility allowance or company
car, a fuel allowance, dental and
medical cover, life assurance cover,
and an annual allowance toward a
range of benefits.

If an Executive Director was required
to re-locate to undertake their

role, the Committee may provide
additional benefits to reflect the
relevant circumstances {on a one-off
or ongoing basis).

Benefits are reviewed by the
Committee in the context of market
practice from time to time and the
Committee may introduce or remove
particular benefits if it is considered
appropriate to do so.

If the Company were to operate a
share plan in the future in which
participation was open to the wider
workforce, Executive Directors
would be entitled to participate in
the plan on the same terms as other
employees.

will depend on the cost to
the Company of providing
individual items and the
individual's circumstances.
However, the addition of
further benefits to those
already provided {excluding
relocation/recruitment-
related benefits and
participation in any other
share plan) will not result
in the aggregate benefit
provision for any Executive
Director increasing to over
£50,000.
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Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum opportunity

Performance measures

x ‘ :
" Annual Incentive Scheme

Incentivises and
rewards the
achievement

of targets and
objectives aligned
with AVEVA's
strategy

Deferred element
encourages long-
term shareholding,
helps retention
and discourages
excessive risk-
taking

The Committee determines an
individual's maximum incentive
opportunity taking into account

the responsibilities of the role and

market practice at comparable

companies.

Performance targets are set by the
Committee on an annual basis and
ordinarily disclosed retrospectively.
The Committee determines the level
of bonus paid taking into account
performance against targets, the
underlying performance of the
business and Executive Directors’
performance during the year.

A portion of any bonus earned is
deferred into shares for three years,
with the portion being:

25% of the bonus earned if

the Executive Director meets

or exceeds the applicable

shareholding requirement set out

below; or
50% of the bonus earned if the
Executive Director does not meet

the applicable Shareholding

Requirement set out below.

Deferred awards will normally vest
in three equal tranches, one in each

of the three years following the

year in which an award is granted.

The Committee has discretion to
determine an dlternative vesting

profile.
Deferred share awards can take the
form either of the Executive Director

being required to invest the after tax
amount of the relevant portion of the

bonus in shares, or the grant to the
Executive Director of a share award
in respect of such number of shares

as have a value equal to the relevant

portion of the bonus.

Deferred awards are subject to
malus and clawback provisions as
noted at the end of this table.
Dividends and any other income or
capital distribution can accrue on
deferred shares up until the point
at which the Executive Director is

entitled to acquire the shares.

The maximum bonus -
opportunity is 200% of base
salary in the case of the CEO
and 175% of base salary

in the case of any other
Executive Director.

However, for FY21, the
maximum bonus opportunity -
will be 165% of base salary

in the case of the CEO and

150% of base salary in the

case of the CFO.

The performance measures
applied may be financial or
non-financial and corporate,
divisional or individual

and in such proportions as
the Committee considers
appropriate.

Where a sliding scale of
targets is used, attaining the
threshold level of performance
for any measure will not
typically produce a payout
of more than 20% of the
maximum portion of overall
annual bonus attributable to
that measure, with a sliding
scale usually up to 50% for
on-target performance and
to full payout for maximum
performance. However, the
annual bonus plan remains
a discretionary arrangement
and the Committee retains

a standard power to apply
its judgement to adjust the
outcome of the annual bonus
plan for any performance
measure should it consider
that to be appropriate (e.g. if
the provisional bonus outturn
does not in the Committee's
view reflect overall
shareholder expectations).
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Part A: The Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link
to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance measures

,The AVEVA Group Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP)

‘— Establishes a — Awards vest based on performance - Awards over shares worthno - The Committee may set such
motivational and over a period of three years and are more than 300% of salary in performance conditions
performance- subject to a subsequent two-year the case of the CEO or 250% on awards as it considers
orientated holding period. of salary in the case of any appropriate, whether financial
structure to +— The holding period can take the other Executive Director may or non-financial and whether
incentivise form either of the Executive Director be made in respect of any corporate, divisional or
Directors to focus being required to retain the vested year. individual.
on the creation shares for the holding period (other - However, for FY21, the — Performance periods will be at
of shareholder than shares they may dispose of to maximum award will be least three years long.
value aligned with cover tax liabilities), or the Executive 250% of base salary in the — Where a sliding scale of
the longer-term Director not being able to acquire case of the CEO and 175% targets is used, attaining
strategy for the the vested shares until the end of of base salary in the case of the threshold level of
Group the holding period. the CFO. performance for any measure

- Awards under the LTIP may be will not typically produce a
granted in the form of conditional vesting of more than 25%
awards or nominal cost options. of the maximum portion of

— Dividends and any other income or overall award attributable
capital distribution can accrue on to that measure (or not more
shares up until the point at which than 20% in respect of any
the Executive Director is entitled to award granted in excess of
acquire the shares. the proposed awards for

- The Committee determines targets FY21), with a sliding scale
each year to ensure that targets to full payout for maximum
are stretching and represent performance.
value creation for shareholders — The Committee may in its
while remaining motivational for judgement adjust the vesting
management. outturn should it consider that

~ The Committee shall determine to be appropriate (e.g. if the
the extent to which the awards provisional vesting outturn
will vest based on performance does not in the Committee's
against targets and taking view reflect the underlying
into consideration the wider financial performance of the
performance of the Group. Group over the performance

- LTIP awards are subject to malus period).

' and clawback provisions as noted at
the end of this table.

Malus and clawback provisions

The annual bonus (including any deferred bonus award) and the LTIP are subject to malus and clawback provisions. These may be
applied in the event of:

— Material misstatement of audited Group results;

- Payments made based on erroneous or misleading data:;

- Calculation error;

- Fraud and/or gross misconduct;

— Group reputational damage and/or financial loss;

- Risk management failure resulting in serious harm to reputation or financial loss to the Group; and

— Corporate failure.

The provisions can be applied until the date that falls three years from payment in the case of the cash bonus, until the date that falls
three years after grant in the case of the deferred bonus, and until the date that falls two years after the end of the performance period
in the case of LTIP awards.

Shareholding Requirement

In-Service Shareholding Requirement

The Company has adopted an In-Service Shareholding Requirement pursuant to which a serving Executive Director must build up and
maintain a holding of AVEVA shares with a value (as determined by the Committee) at least equal to the aggregate of their variable
remuneration opportunity {being 415% of salary in the case of the CEO and 325% of salary in the case of the CFO in FY21). Shares
subject to deferred bonus arrangements, shares subject to LTIP awards which are in a holding period, and shares subject to other
share awards which are no longer subject to any performance condition (including any exercisable but unexercised deferred bonus
awards and LTIP awards) count towards the requirement, on a net of assumed tax basis where relevant. This is a change from FY19,
where only shares owned outright were counted towards the shareholding guidelines.
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There is no specified time period within which an Executive Director must achieve the Shareholding Requirement, but Executive
Directors will be required to retain half of the after-tax shares acquired pursuant to the LTIP and deferred bonus arrangements:
- inrespect of years up to and including FY20 until a holding of 200% of salary is achieved; and

- granted in respect of FY21 and later years until the higher Shareholding Requirement is achieved.

The Committee retains discretion to vary the In-Service Shareholding Requirement to take account of compassionate circumstances.

Post-employment Shareholding Requirement

The Company has adopted a post-employment Shareholding Requirement pursuant to which an Executive Director must retain for 12
months following cessation of employment such of their ‘relevant shares’ as have a value (as determined by the Committee) equal to
_the In-Service Shareholding Requirement most recently applicable to them, and for a further 12 months such of their ‘relevant shares’
as have a value {as determined by the Committee) equal to 50% of the In-Service Shareholding Requirement most recently applicable
to them.

Shares which the Executive Director has purchased or which they acquire pursuant to share plan awards granted before this Policy
came into effect are not “relevant shares” for these purposes. The Committee retains discretion to vary the In-Service Shareholding
Requirement to take account of compassionate circumstances.

Stating maximum amounts for the Remuneration Policy

The regulations and related investor guidance encourages companies to disclose a cap within which each element of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy will operate. Where maximum amounts for elements of remuneration have been set within the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, these will operate simply as caps and are not indicative of any aspiration.

Travel and hospitality

While the Committee does not consider it to form part of benefits in the normal usage of that term, it has been advised that corporate
hospitality, whether paid for by the Company or another, and business travel for Directors and in exceptional circumstances their
families may technically come within the applicable rules and so the Committee expressly reserves the right for the Committee to
authorise such activities within its agreed policies.

Committee discretion

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and payments for loss of office (including the exercise of
any discretions available to it in connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Policy set out
above where the terms of the payment were agreed (i) before the Policy came into effect, provided that the terms of the payment
were consistent with any applicable shareholder-approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy in force at the time they were agreed or
were otherwise approved by shareholders or (ii) at a time when the relevant individual was not a Director of the Company (or other
person to whom the Policy set out above applies) and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in consideration for the
individual becoming a Director of the Company. For these purposes ‘payments’ include the Committee satisfying awards of variable
remuneration and an award over shares is ‘agreed’ at the time the award is granted. For the avoidance of doubt, this discretion
includes the settlement of the ‘buy-out’ award granted to Craig Hayman in respect of his appointment.

The Committee may operate the LTIP, the annual bonus and the deferred bonus arrangements in accordance with their terms.

This includes:

— The selection of participants;

— The timing of grant of an award/bonus opportunity;

— The size of an award/bonus opportunity subject to the maximum limits set out in the policy table;

— The determination of performance against targets and resultant vesting/bonus payouts;

- Discretion required when dealing with a takeover, change of control or restructuring of the Group;

— Determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules of the plan and the appropriate treatment chosen;

- Adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g. rights issues, corporate restructuring events, distributions and special
dividends);

— The annual review of performance measures, weightings and targets from year to year; and

- The ability to settle awards in part or in whole in cash (or to grant awards as cash based ‘phantom’ awards), although the
Committee would only settle an Executive Director’'s award in cash {or grant an Executive Director a phantom award) in exceptional
circumstances, such as where there is a regulatory restriction on the grant of a share award.

In addition, while performance measures and targets used in the annual bonus plan and LTIP will generally remain unaltered, if events
occur which, in the Committee’s opinion, would make a different or amended target a fairer measure of performance, the Committee
can make such amendments to the targets as it considers appropriate.

Any use of these discretions would, where relevant, be explained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and may, where appropriate
and practicable, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Part A: The Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group

Throughout the Group, remuneration is determined based on substantially the same principles: that remuneration arrangements
should be appropriate for the role without paying more than is necessary and that pay should be structured to incentivise individuals
to deliver the objectives of their role. AVEVA employs over 4,600 employees in over 80 locations with roles ranging from administrators
to technical specialists and sales staff. The structure and level of reward therefore differs from role to role depending on skills,
experience, level of seniority and market practice for the role. AVEVA's sales employees participate in sales incentive plans that are
designed to encourage the growth objectives of the Group. More senior employees have annual bonus plans, with the Executive
Leadership Team receiving a portion of bonus in shares which is deferred for up to three years. Senior employees within the Company
participate in the LTIP and a Restricted Share Plan.

Selection of performance measures

The Committee’s guiding principle is that remuneration arrangements that operate throughout the Group should support the delivery
of our long-term business strategy and therefore the creation of shareholder value. Our key long-term strategic priority is to deliver
strong but sustainable revenue and profit growth to support the delivery of this strategic priority. The metrics used in our annual bonus
arrangements and LTIP are chosen with this in mind, with the payment of bonuses and the vesting of long-term incentives subject to
stretching targets established by the Committee at the beginning of each performance period. These targets are set taking account

of internal forecasts of performance over the performance period, the markets in which the Group operates, our long-term growth
ambitions and the expectations of the investment community on the Group's future potential performance.

Remuneration Policy for new hires

When determining the remuneration package for a newly appointed Executive Director, the Committee would seek to apply the

following principles:

- The package should be market competitive to facilitate the recruitment of an individual of sufficient calibre to lead the business.

At the same time, the Committee would intend to pay no more than it believes is necessary to secure the required talent.

— The structure of the ongoing remuneration package would normally include the components set out in the policy table for Executive
Directors. Circumstances in which other elements of remuneration may be awarded include:

- aninterim appointment being made to fill an Executive Director role on a short-term basis;

- if exceptional circumstances require that the Chairman or a Non-Executive Director takes on an executive function on a short-
term basis;

- if an Executive Director is recruited at a time in the year when it would be inappropriate to provide a bonus or LTIP award for that
year as there would not be sufficient time to assess performance; subject to the limit on variable remuneration set out below,
the quantum in respect of the months employed during the year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that reward is
provided on a fair and appropriate basis.

- Where an individual forfeits outstanding variable pay opportunities or contractual rights as a result of their appointment, the
Committee may offer compensatory payments or awards, in such form as the Committee considers appropriate taking into
account relevant factors, which may include the form of awards, expected value and vesting timeframe of forfeited opportunities.
When determining such ‘buy-outs’ the guiding principle would be that awards would generally be on a ‘like-for-like’ basis to those
forfeited unless not considered appropriate.

- To facilitate awards outlined above, in the event of recruitment, the Committee may grant awards to a new Executive Director
in accordance with Listing Rule 9.4.2. This provision permits the granting of awards to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the
recruitment of an Executive Director, without seeking prior shareholder approval.

- The maximum level of variable remuneration which may be awarded (excluding any ‘buy-out’ awards} is 500% of base salary in the
case of a CEO and 425% of base salary in the case of any other Executive Director.

- Where an Executive Director is required to relocate to take up their role the Committee may provide reasonable assistance with
relocation (either via one-off or on-going payments or benefits) taking into account the individual’s circumstances and prevailing
market practice.

— It aninternal candidate is promoted to the Board, legacy terms and conditions would normally be honoured, including pension
entitlements and any outstanding incentive awards.

Executive Director service contracts and policy on payment for loss of office
When determining leaving arrangements for an Executive Director the Committee takes into account any contractual agreements
including the provisions of any incentive arrangements, typical market practice and the performance and conduct of the individual.

The service contracts for current and non-current Executive Directors include the following terms:

Name Date of contract Date of oppointment Continuous service date

Current Executive Directors
Craig Hayman 19 February 2018 19 February 2018 18 Februoary 2018
James Kidd 17 February 2017 1 January 2017 5 January 2004

The service agreements are available to shareholders to view on request from the Company Secretary.
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Notice period

The CEQ's service contract can be terminated by the Company or the Executive Director on nine months' notice.
The CFO's service contract can be terminated by the Company or the Executive Director on nine months' notice.
The service agreements provide for a period of gardening leave. The Committee will determine the appropriate
notice period for any new Director taking into account the circumstances of the individual and market practice.
Any notice period will normally be no longer than 12 months.

Payment in lieu
of notice

In the event of termination of contract without notice, the Executive Director shall be entitled to a payment in
respect of salary for the period of notice. Such payment will normally be made in instalments and subject to
mitigation but the Committee shall have discretion to make a single payment if this is considered appropriate.

Annual bonus

The Executive Director may, at the discretion of the Committee, remain eligible to receive an annual bonus for the
financial year in which they ceased employment. Such Annual Bonus award will be determined by the Committee
taking into account the circumstances for leaving, time in employment and performance. Any such bonus will
ordinarily be paid at the same time and in the same way as for a continuing Executive Director. The Committee
retains discretion to pay the bonus early and not to apply deferral where it would otherwise apply, but would do so
only in compassionate circumstances.

Deferred bonus
arrangements

Death: In the event of a participant’s death unvested awards shall vest. Where awards are in the form of options
they may be exercised for a period of up to 12 months from death.

Good leavers (at the discretion of the Committee, leaving by reason of injury, disability, redundancy, the
Company for which the participant works leaving the Group or any other reasons determined by the
Committee): Awards shall continue in full and vest on the originally anticipated vesting dates. Alternatively, the
Committee may determine that awards should vest when the participant ceases employment. Awards in the form
of options may be exercised in accordance with the rules of the applicable scheme.

Leavers in other circumstances: Awards will normally lapse.

Long-Term
Incentive Plan

Good leavers (at the discretion of the Committee, leaving as a result of death, injury, disability, redundancy,

retirement, the Company for which the participant works leaving the Group or any other reason):

— Unvested awards shall ordinarily continue in existence for the remainder of the performance period, following
which they will vest subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions and, unless the Committee
determines otherwise, then reduced to reflect the period that elapsed from the start of the performance period
to the date of cessation as a proportion of the performance period. Any holding period will ordinarily continue
to apply. The Committee retains discretion to vest the award before the end of the originally anticipated
performance period, and to assess performance accordingly, and to waive the continuation of the holding
period or to shorten its application, but would do so only in compassionate circumstances.

— Vested awards which are subject to a holding period will ordinarily continue to be subject to the holding period,
although the Committee retains discretion to waive the continuation of the holding period or to shorten its
application but would do so only in compassionate circumstances.

- Leavers in other circumstances: Awards will normally lapse. Vested but unexercised options held by participants

who leave employment other than due to gross misconduct may be exercised for a period following cessation of
employment.

Other payments

An Executive Director who joined the Company before January 2008 and who is made redundant, may receive, in
addition to a payment in lieu of notice, any statutory redundancy payment and any other payment to which he is
entitled, a payment under the Company's enhanced redundancy policy. This policy applies to all employees who
joined the Company before January 2008. Under the policy, an eligible person will receive a payment calculated by
reference to their length of service and weekly pay (by reference to gross annual salary) as follows:

— 7 weeks' pay for service of up to 6 years; plus

- 1.5 weeks' pay for each completed year of service over 7 years up to 20 years; plus

— 2 weeks' pay for each completed year of service over 20 years.

Under the Company's enhanced redundancy policy, eligible participants, including Executive Directors, may also
receive a payment in lieu of a 90 day redundancy consultation period. In the event of termination of an Executive
Director's employment, a payment may be made in lieu of any accrued but untaken holiday. The Remuneration
Committee would be responsible for considering the circumstances of the early termination of an Executive
Director's contract and determining whether in exceptional circumstances there should be compensation
payments in excess of the Company's contractual obligations.

The Company has the power to enter into settlement agreements with Directors and to pay compensation to settle potential legal
claims. In addition, and consistent with market practice, in the event of the termination of an Executive Director, the Company may
make a contribution towards that individual's legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement. Any
such fees will be disclosed as part of the detail of termination arrangements. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not include an
explicit cap on the cost of termination payments.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Part A: The Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Change of control

In the event of a change of control or a voluntary winding-up of the Company and ultimately at the discretion of the Remuneration

Committee:

1. Unvested deferred bonus awards will normally vest in full at the time of change of control or winding-up.

2. Unvested awards granted under the 2014 LTIP rules will vest having regard to the extent to which performance conditions have
been met and unless the Committee determines otherwise, the proportion of the performance period that has elapsed at the date of
the change of control or winding-up.

Employee context

When setting Executive Directors’ pay, the Committee considers the remuneration arrangement of other senior managers and
employees in the Group more generally to ensure that Executive remuneration arrangements are appropriate in this context. AVEVA
undertakes an annual salary review in April each year and uses this opportunity to reward strong performance and ensure salaries
are in line with market rates. It manages this in a competitive environment particularly in the fast-growing economic areas. When
determining salary increases for Executive Directors the Committee considers the outcome of the wider pay review for the Group. The
Committee does not consult directly with employees regarding Executive Directors' remuneration. However, at regular intervals the
Company conducts a survey of the views of employees in respect of their experience of working at AVEVA including their own reward.

Dialogue with shareholders

The views of our shareholders on remuneration matters are important to the Committee and prior to making any material changes to
remuneration arrangements the Committee consults with major shareholders and their representative bodies to obtain their views.
The Company remains committed to engaging with shareholders in relation to remuneration issues. We consulted with shareholders
and discussed the proposed Policy before finalising it, and there was widespread general support for our proposals. We made changes
to the proposed Policy having regard to the feedback received, in particular in relation to our phased approach to increases in incentive
oppartunities, as further described on page 89.

External appointments

The Board believes that accepting Non-Executive appointments with other companies enhances the experience of Executive Directors
and therefore they are entitled to accept appointments outside of the Company provided that Board approval is sought prior to accepting
the appointment. Whether or not the Director concerned is permitted to retain their fees is considered on a case-by-case basis.

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios
The remuneration package at AVEVA is structured so that the package rewards performance over both the short and long term to
ensure that reward is aligned with shareholder value creation.

The table and charts below and opposite show hypothetical values of the remuneration package for the current Executive Directors
under four assumed performance scenarios.

In each scenario, fixed remuneration is the most recently known salary (£718,200 in the case of the CEO and £513,000 in the case of
the CFO), the value of benefits included in the single total figure of remuneration table for FY20, and a pension contribution based on
10% of the most recently known salary.

Other than in the “Maximum performance plus share price” scenario, no share price growth has been assumed. Potential benefits
under all employee share schemes and dividend or distribution equivalents have not been included for any scenario.

Awards as a % of salary

CEO CFO

Maximum performance plus share price Annual bonus scheme (full pay-out) 165% 150%
. LTIP {(maximum vesting plus assumed 50% share price growth) 375% 262.5%

Total 540%  412.5%

Maximum performance Annual bonus scheme (full pay-out) 165% 150%
LTIP {(maximum vesting) 250% 175%

. Total 415% 325%
*On-target performance Annual bonus scheme (50% pay-out) 82.5% 75%
LTIP {25% vesting) : 62.5% 43.75%

Total 145% 118.75%

Minimum performance Annual bonus scheme (nil pay-out) 0% 0%
LTIP {nil vesting) 0% 0%

Total 0% 0%
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James Kidd

2% 29%
Mox + 50% growth

2%

%] 4% 0%

Maximum Maximum
On-target On-target
Minimum Minimum
£0m £1m £2m £3m £4m £5m £0m £1m £2m £3m £4m £5m
Ml Fixed pay Il Annudl bonus BLTP DI LTIP + 50% share price growth M Fixed pay H Annual bonus |y DI LTIP + 5096 share price growth
Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors
Approach to setting fees Basis of fees Other items

- Fees for the Chairman and the Non-
Executive Directors are determined
taking account of the individual's
responsibilities, the expected time
commitment for the role and prevalent
market rates.

- The Board is responsible for setting
fees for the Non-Executive Directors
with the Remuneration Committee
being responsible for setting fees for
the Chairman.

— Fees are reviewed at appropriate
intervals, usually on an annual basis.

— Basic fees are subject to the aggregate -
limit set in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association. Any -
changes in this limit would be subject to
shareholder approval.

- Non-Executive Directors are paid a
basic fee for membership of the Board
with additional fees being paid to
Non-Executive Directors who hold
the position of Committee Chairman -
to take into account the additional
responsibilities and workload.
Additional fees may also be paid for
other Board responsibilities or roles if
this is considered appropriate.

~ Fees are normally paid in cash.

Non-Executive Directors do not receive
incentive pay or share awards.
Non-Executive Directors do not
currently receive any benefits or pension
arrangements. Benefits may be provided
in the future if, in the view of the Board
(or, in the case of the Chairman, the
Committee), this was considered
appropriate.

Travel and other reasonable expenses
(including fees incurred in obtaining
professional advice in the furtherance

of their duties) incurred in the course of
performing their duties are reimbursed
to Non-Executive Directors (including
any associated tax liability).

The Non-Executive Directors have appointment letters, the terms of which recognise that their appointments are subject to the

Company'’s Articles of Association and their services are at the direction of the shareholders.

The letters of appointment for Non-Executive Directors include the following terms:

Expiry/review date of Notice period

Name Date of appointment Date of contract current contract in months
Philip Aiken 1 May 2012 1 May 2018 30 April 2021 3
Jennifer Allerton 9 July 2013 1 july 2019 - 30 June 2022 3
Christopher Humphrey 8 July 2016 27 June 2019 26 June 2022 3
Ron Mobed 1 March 2017 1 March 2020 28 February 2023 3
Peter Herweck 1 March 2018 1 March 2018 28 February 2021 3
Paula Dowdy 1 February 2019 1 February 2019 31 January 2022 3
Olivier Blum 24 April 2020 30 April 2020 29 April 2023 3

All Non-Executive Directors submit themselves for re-election at each Annual General Meeting.

There are no predetermined special provisions for Non-Executive Directors with regard to compensation in the event of loss of office.
Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any payments in lieu of notice.

The letters of appointment are available for shareholders to view from the Company Secretary upon request.
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Part B: The Implementation Report

Jennifer Allerton
Remuneration
Committee Chair

i

Independence split

Non-Independent 1

Independent 3

Membership and attendance

Chair

Jennifer Allerton 6/6
Committee members

Ron Mobed 6/6
Paula Dowdy 6/6
Emmanuel Babeau! 6/6
Olivier Blum? 0/0

Attending by invitation

CEO
CFO
CHRO

The Committee usually meets six times a year.

1 Resigned 30 April 2020.
2 Appointed 30 April 2020.

The Remuneration Committee
membership, role and remit

The Remuneration Committee is
appointed by the Board. The current
members are Jennifer Allerton (Chair), Ron
Mobed, Paula Dowdy and Olivier Blum.
Emmanuel Babeau served during the year
and resigned on 30 April 2020. All the
Committee members except for Olivier are
regarded by the Board as independent
Non-Executive Directors. Jennifer has
been a member of the Remuneration
Committee since 2013 and became

Chair in July 2017. Committee meetings
are also regularly attended by the CEQ,
CFQO and Chief Human Resaurces Officer
(CHRO) at the invitation of the Chair, to
provide company insight and advice to
help the Committee consider appropriate
remuneration. No Committee member

or invited attendee is present during the
discussion of their own remuneration.

The role of the Committee is set out

in its Terms of Reference which are
available on the Company’s website

at www.aveva.com. The Committee's
primary responsibility is to develop and
determine the remuneration framework,
policy and pay levels for the Executive
Directors, the Chair and the Executive
Leadership Team in overall alignment with
the general workforce. The Committee
also has visibility of our employee
engagement activities and overall Human
Resource strategy which affects all
AVEVA employees.

The remuneration framework inciudes
establishing stretching performance-
related targets for rewards to support
AVEVA's long-term growth strategy in
alignment with the Company's purpose,
values and culture. This has been
achieved by:

— Determining the remuneration and
benefits of the Executive Directors,
including fixed pay, annual bonus, long-
term incentives and pensions

— Determining the remuneration for
Executive Leadership below Board level

— Reviewing the wider workforce
remuneration and related policies
and taking these into account when
setting the policy for Executive Director
remuneration

— Providing remuneration
recommendations to the Board based
upon AVEVA's remuneration framework

— Approving share awards
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The principles of our Remuneration Policy

A significant part of the total reward is related to share price performance and is paid in shares, a portion of which must be retained
until the minimum shareholding guidelines have been met. This ensures that our Executive Directors' interests are aligned with those of
other shareholders.

A considerable part of the total reward is determined by the Company's success over both the short and the long term. Failure to
achieve threshold levels of performance results in no payout for these elements. A key focus of the Committee is to ensure a suitable
level of stretched performance is determined in order to align with maximum levels of potential rewards.

Advice and auditors

In FY20 the Committee conducted a market review of our remuneration advisors and after assessing a number of firms we are pleased
to have partnered with Deloitte from 1 October 2019. Advice up until this date was provided by FIT Remuneration Consultants.
Deloitte’s role is to provide the Committee with independent advice on comparator information and general remuneration trends and,
most recently, to advise on the new Remuneration Policy which sharehalders will he asked to approve at the 2020 AGM including
engagement with shareholders. Fees are charged on a time spent basis and the fees paid during the year to Deloitte and FIT in relation
to the advice provided to the Committee were £60,710 and £18,060 respectively (FY19 fees to FIT: £39,685). In addition, Deloitte also
provide tax advisory, due diligence and other consultancy services to the company. The Committee are content that their advice is
objective and independent. Deloitte is a founding member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and adheres to its Code of Conduct
in relation to Executive remuneration consulting in the UK.

The auditors have reported on certain sections of Part B and stated whether, in their opinion, those parts have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those sections of Part B which have been subject to audit are clearly indicated.

Shareholder voting and engagement
The table below shows the results of the most recent votes on the Policy (July 2018) and Implementation Report (July 2019).

Votes for Percentage Votes against Percentage Votes withheld
Directors Remuneration Policy — 2018 AGM 140,852,022 96.31 5,402,475 3.69 2,247,992
Directors Remuneration Report — 2019 AGM 117,496,525 78.97 31,296,986 21.03 1,002,830

The Committee was disappointed with the vote against the Directors’ Remuneration Report (‘DRR’) in FY19 and undertook an

engagement exercise with shareholders to understand their views, for the Committee to listen and address their concerns, which

in turn provides an opportunity for actions to be taken in the formation of the FY20 revised DRR. The feedback provided from

shareholders detailed key concerns falling into two main categories:

~ Legacy use of retention arrangements, which were related to the successful completion of a transformational merger that has
driven exceptional returns for shareholders. This is now an historical item and the Committee is aware of investors’ strong views
in this area should similar circumstances arise again. Having said that, we have the larger final tranche of retention payments due
to vest this year. We acknowledge the need for increased transparency on the payout, but would like to highlight that the retention
payments were approved in advance by the shareholders as part of approving the merger in 2017, and also that they have been
successful in retaining key executives who have been instrumental in driving the growth of the business over the last two years.

- Disclosure and increased transparency. We are committed to providing more detail on the strategic objectives and Total
Shareholder Return comparators under both our short-term and long-term incentives. This will be evidenced by enhanced
disclosures in this year's FY20 DRR.

Implementation of policy for the year ended March 2020
Single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)
The following table sets out the single figure of total remuneration for Executive Directors for the current and previous financial years.

Taxable Annual One-off Non-toxable

Salary benefits* Pension? bonus LTIPs? awards* benefits? Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Craig Hayman FY20 718 14 62 635 581 3,408 9 5,427
Craig Hayman FY19 700 20 60 857 — 5,708 — 7,345
James Kidd FY20 513 20 44 454 1,521 1,038 — 3,590
James Kidd FY19 500 20 43 613 1,651 550 — 3,377
1 Craig Hoyman changed tox jurisdiction in the year and his benefits altered on 1 September. From this date he is in receipt of a { ble) mobility all 1ce of £10,000 per

annum and (non-taxable} US family medical cover. For more information please see page 98.

2 Seepage 98 for further information on pensions,

3 For FY20.the 2017 LTIP has been valued based on the number of options {Craig 16,621; James 43,550) multiplied by the closing share price at 31 March 2020 of 3,494p
and a vesting outcome of 100%, as referred to on poge 100. Of the estimated vested amount of £1,521k, 44% (£675k) relotes to a 100% performance achievement, 24%
{£364k) relotes to the return of value adjustment, and 32% {£482k} relates to share price appreciation over the performance period. The 2016 LTIP volue for FY19 has been
restoted from the year-end share price at 31 March 2019 of 3,226p to reflect the share price ot the date of vesting of 3,954p, and a vesting outcome of 89.9%. This increased
the single figure of total remuneration for James Kidd by £304k. Of the vested amount of £1,651k, 29% (£472k) relates to a 89.9% performance achievement, 15% (£255k)
relates to the return of value adjustment, and 56% (£924k) relates to share price appreciotion over the performance period. The Committee did not exercise any discretion
in relation to share price changes for the 2016 LTIP or the 2017 LTIP. The 2016 award is due to be released at the end of the two year holding period on 13 July 2021. Croig
Hayman's FY20 LTIPs were awarded in FY18, and pro-rated for his term of service in that year.

4  For Craig Hayman, these are the value of his buy-out awards. 97,537 options vested. and have been valued using the year end share price of 3,494p. For James Kidd, these
are the value of his performance and retention awards, calculated as £500k for the retention element and £538k for the performance element (see poge 101).
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Additional information on the amounts which make up the Single Total Figure of Remuneration

Base salary

As set out in the DRR last year, Craig Hayman joined AVEVA as CEO on 19 February 2018 with a salary of £700,000 and his salary
remained unchanged for FY19. James Kidd's salary was £500,000 for FY19. Salaries for Craig Hayman and James Kidd were increased
by 2.6% in line with the UK workforce average on 1 April for FY20.

Benefits

In FY20, Executive Directors were provided with a car and fuel allowance totalling £19,200, and a £600 annual allowance towards a
range of flexible benefits. In September 2019, the payroll for Craig Hayman was agreed to be split between the UK and the US. This
was created to better reflect the travel patterns and time spent in both jurisdictions. included in the change was the inclusion of a US
medical plan. Craig Hayman agreed to relinquish the UK car and fuel allowance in return for a new mobility allowance of £10,000 per
annum and US medical coverage for himself and US-based family totalling £15,500 per annum.

Pension

The Company's defined benefit scheme is not open to new members, and neither of the Executive Directors in the year are or have
ever been a member. Craig Hayman and James Kidd are members of the AVEVA Group Personal Pension Plan (a defined contribution
scheme). Both Directors receive a cash in lieu allowance equivalent to 10% of salary, reduced for the effect of employers’ National
Insurance contributions. During FY20, James Kidd received cash in lieu of contributions of £44,221 (FY19: £43,100), and Craig Hayman
received cash in lieu of contributions of £61,909 (FY19: £60,340).

How is pay linked to performance for the year ended 31 March 2020

Annual Incentive Scheme

For FY20, the maximum opportunity for Executive Directors under the annual incentive was 125% of base salary, requiring a stretch
level of performance for full payout.

The performance targets were based on:

(1) adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) targets, with a maximum weighting of 50% of salary;

(2) total revenue, with a maximum weighting of 12.5% of salary;

(3) recurring revenue, with a maximum weighting of 37.5% of salary; and

(4} key performance objectives, with a maximum of 25% of salary available. The key individual performance objectives are agreed with
the Remuneration Committee at the start of each financial year, although this element will be capped at a maximum achievement of
12.5% of salary should the Group adjusted EBIT target not be met.

In line with best practice, 50% of the maximum bonus is payable for delivering an on-target level of performance.
For FY20, 40% of any award made under the Annual Incentive Scheme, irrespective of the amount, is payable in deferred shares,
and is subject to a three-year vesting period, but with no further performance conditions. Deferred awards deliver the shares to

participants in three equal tranches, one in each of the three years following the year in which an award is granted.

Performance against the targets set and the total annual incentive earned based on performance for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set
out below. This includes both the cash element of the bonus and the portion deferred into shares under the deferred share scheme.

Thresholds (Min), Craig Hayman James Kidd
Budget (Mid) and % of Max
Metric Targets (Max) Actual achieved Max Actual Max Actual
Group revenue Min: £800.0m £833.8m 100% 12.5% 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
Mid: £821.5m
Max: £821.5m
Recurring revenue Min: 54.0% 62.2% 100% 37.5% 37.5% 37.5% 37.5%
proportion Mid: 56.0%
Max: 58.0%
Group adjusted EBIT Min: £200m £216.8m 26.9%! 50.0% 13.5% 50.0% 13.5%
Mid: £213.5m 26.0%
Max: 26% margin
Strategic objectives see opposite see opposite 100% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Totals as a % of salary 125.0% 88.5% 125.0% 88.5%
Bonus receivable £635,320 £453,800
Granted in cash (60%) £381,192 £272,280
Granted in shares {(40%) £254,128 £181,520

1 The 26% margin underpin must be maintained net of paying all bonuses.
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Further details on the key individual and strategic objectives and performance outcomes for both Directors are detailed below:

Craig Hayman

Objective ’ Evaluation

1. Establish a baseline for employee engagement and deliver increases across the Company, by:

a. Delivery of new employee engagement  All employee engagement survey implemented across 4,708 employees. Over 30,000
baseline. comments made by employees and over 5,000 interactions with line managers. Baseline
engagement score established.

b. Greater than 10x improvement in AVEVA - AVEVA Action for Good employee participation across 1,546 employees (34%) vs 44
Action for Good program employee employees (1%} in FY19. Represents one day of charitable work by each participating
participation (disclosed in annual report) employee together with AVEVA financial support aligned around UN SDGs.

c. Lead evolution of company culture with  Lead cultural transformation across the Group, establishing baseline and change
an increased focus on learning. management to drive increased focus on learning. Reinforced across facilitated culture
cafe workshops across the company by team and by location, eight in person meet and
greet sessions around the world, six videos/podcasts, two ELT live session, press
releases and customer wins.

2. Deliver a competitively compelling Cloud portfolio with customer verification and market traction plus establish a Cloud
‘heatmap’ and demonstrate clear momentum covering:

a. Product portfolio. Established a new Cloud business unit, and a new Cloud product portfolio launched:
_https://sw.aveva.com/cloud-computing.
b. Development operations capacity. Development operations capacity in place and publicly reported:
https://status.connect.aveva.com/.
c. New customer wins and substantial Three-fold increase in Cloud Total Contract Value (TCV), including 14 deals over
growth in orders. _£1 million. Cloud customer demonstrations were delivered at our new 30 Cannon Street,

r London custemcr centre.

James Kidd

Objective Evaluation

1. Value creation programme:

a. Ensure that the value creation projects The value creation programme is on plan and has generated revenue from the initiatives
are on track vs plan and deliver value as _in excess of the in-year target. These initiatives are aligned to the overall company
,  planned. ' strategy and included customer care, chunnel excellence, pricing, global services

. transformation and the company's transition to subscription.

"b. Communication to ELT, Board and These initiatives have been reported monthly to the ELT and Board as required. Progress
investors (as appropriate). against plan has been tracked by the integration organisation, working with the functional
leaders with updates and actions at the monthly steering committee meetings.

2. Establish M&A process. Includes process from target identification to assessment and execution including:

— Approvals process; In the first half following the appointment the Head of Strategy, the M&A process was
— Minimum criteria to assess candidates; updated to reflect the structure and operations of the enlarged AVEVA. This has been
- Stage gates; used during the course of the second half of the year to screen and select targets. There
- Business case template; is consistent reporting of the status of the pipeline to the Board and the ELT.

— Valuation methodology: and

- Diligence checklists. Business cases have been brought to the Board for various projects during the year.

3. Performance metrics for the business:

Develop metrics for the business which are  From an internal perspective, Annualised Recurring Revenue (ARR), TCV, and Annual
aligned with our strategic objectives which Contract Value have begun to be reported during the year and are included in the
measure progress against those objectives relevant monthly report pack. Analysis of the impact of multi-year contracts has also
and underlying performance. Help improve been included in the Board papers in October 2019 and March 2020, and factored into
ELT, Board and investors’ understanding the budget for FY21. ’

of the underlying past and future

performance, including subscription Net Retention Rate (NRR} is reported each month to the ELT as part of the Global
transition, Cloud, services, customer Customer Support review.

growth, and market share.
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Long-Term incentives vesting in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020

The LTIP awards granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2017 thot were capable of vesting based on performance over the
three-year period ended 31 March 2020 were subject to the following performance targets:

— delivery of diluted adjusted EPS growth performance targets {50% of maximum);

- relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) against the comparator group as detailed below (25% of maximum); and

- strategic objectives — Total Revenue Growth (25% of maximum).

A summary of the LTIP targets and actual performance is provided below:

Actual Vesting
LTIP performance element Weighting Threshold Maximum performance (% of maximum}
Diluted EPS (CAGR)* 50% 5% p.a. 15% p.o. 17.4% 100%
TSR vs peer group? 25% Median  Upper quartile Upper quartile 100%
Total revenue growth? 25% £735m £794m £834m 100%
Overall % vesting 100%

1 For LTIPs granted in 2017 and beyand, non-linear vesting applies: threshold (25% vesting), mid (80% vesting for 10% p.a. EPS growth) and moximum (100% vesting).

2 Straight-line vesting applies between threshold (25% vesting) and maximum {100% vesting). The TSR comparator group for these awards was the FTSE 250 {excluding
Investment Trusts, Financial Services and Real Estate sector companies).

3 Straight-line vesting applies between threshold {25% vesting) and maximum {100% vesting).

Buy-out awards for Craig Hayman

As disclosed in previous Annual Reports, in order to secure Craig Hayman as CEO the Company had to commit to compensate him

by way of a 'buy-out’ for the loss of significant outstanding equity awards on leaving PTC which had a maximum potential value of
over £9 million. The maximum value of the awards granted to Craig Hayman was £5.5 miillion, using the share price on his date of
appointment, and the structure of the awards was detailed in the FY19 Remuneration Report. The table below summarises the awards
vesting for FY20 as disclosed in the single figure table.

Performance Number of shares Value of award
Basis of award outturn vesting vesting!

Retention award:
Fair value equivalence with awards forgone in previous employment. n/a 66,238 £2,314,356
Subject to continued employment to 15 November 2019.

Performance award:

AVEVA Group plc's relative TSR performance is measured against the ‘modified’ Upper quartile 31,299 £1,093,587
FTSE 250 index as used for the 2017 LTIP grant. It is measured over the - performance:
performance period 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2019. 100% vesting

25% vesting for median performance increasing to 100% vesting for upper
quartile performance).

Overall vesting FY20 97,537 £3,407,943

1 Based on the year end share price of 3,494p.

The awards are subject to an additional requirement that Craig Hayman would normally be required to pay back any amounts vesting
(net of tax) if he resigns within 2.5 years of joining (or be dismissed for gross misconduct or under one of the summary termination
provisions in his service agreement within 3 years of joining).

Revaluing the awards using the year-end share price of 3,494p, the total value of the awards is estimated at £10.3 million, with
£3.4 million (FY19: £5.7 million) having vested in FY20. None of the vested awards were exercised in the year.

Performance and Retention Awards (PRAs) for jJames Kidd

As noted above, the value of the PRA awards included in the single figure for James Kidd relates to the final tranche of legacy retention
arrangements approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM. A one-off performance and retention award was put in place for James
Kidd relating to the successful completion of a transformational merger that has driven exceptional returns for shareholders. This is
now an historic item and the Committee is aware of its investors’ strong views in this area should similar circumstances arise again.

As previously disclosed, the gross initial grant value was £1.5 million. The award was divided into two equal parts: (i) the retention
award, subject to continued employment within AVEVA Group, as well as the satisfaction of a performance underpin; and (i} the
performance award, subject to the same conditions as the retention award and in addition, further subject to satisfaction of stretching
and challenging business and integration-related targets and objectives. Subject to the extent to which these performance targets
and objectives are satisfied, the portion of the performance award that shall vest will be between 75% and 125% of the initial value.

Note that the performance award was also subject to a performance underpin, and the Remuneration Committee could, at its
absolute discretion, reduce the amount payable if it determined that, in its opinion, the amounts payable did not reflect the underlying
performance of the Group or of James Kidd during the relevant vesting period.
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One-third of the total award vested and became payable from the first anniversary of the date of completion (i.e. 1 March 2019) and
the remaining two-thirds vested and became payable on the second anniversary (i.e. 1 March 2020).

We acknowledge the need for increased transparency on the payout and accordingly further details on the payout and performance
measures and achievements for the awards vesting on the second anniversary of completion (1 March 2020} are detailed below.

Performance measures

Performance evaluation over the period to 1 March 2020

Value vested

Retention award Performance underpin The Committee reviewed performance against the personal £500,000
{50%) - based on assessment KPIs outlined below and took into account the strong
of personal KPIs (see underlying performance of the Group and concluded the
below) and the underlying | retention award would vest in full.
~performance of the Group.
Performance award APM Revenue APM Revenue: targets: £172,000
(50%) (40% of the award) Base: £115m {i.e. £500,000 x
Stretch: £132.5m 40% x 86%)
Actual: £118.8m
Vesting level: Between base and target: 86%
Cost synergies Cumulative cost saving targets: £250,000

(40% of the award)

Base: £18.75m

Stretch: £31.25m

Actual: £32.9m

Vesting level: Above stretch: 125%

(i.e. £500,000 x
40% x 125%)

Personal KPIs
(20% of the award)

The progress against, and details of, the integration-related

metrics are as follows:

— Delivery of a clear and integrated technology strategy.
Implementation on track and costs in line with forecast
for entire project. Overall on-target performance,

— Communication of our strategic plan for the enlarged
Group, second highest performing stock in FTSE All
Share during 2019. Entered FTSE 100 in June 2013
and retained position between 60 and 70 in the Index.
Overall stretch performance.

— Real estate strategy plan. Executed successfully, FY20
costs below budget. Overall stretch performance.

Overall vesting level: Above stretch: 116%

£116,000

{i.e. £600,000 x
20% x 116%)

Overall value

£1,038,000

In the DRR last year, the revenue synergy targets and the cost synergy targets for the awards vesting on the first anniversary of
completion (1 March 2019) were regarded as commercially sensitive. Further details of these targets and performance evaluation are

set out below.

Revenue synergies,

valued (40% of the award)

Cost synergies

(40% of the award)

‘ Revenue synergy: targets:

Base: £3.75m
Stretch: £6.25m

«Actual: £10.2m

Vesting level: Above stretch: 125%

Cost saving targets:

Base: £5.625m

Stretch: £9.375m

Actual: £19.8m

Vesting level: Above stretch: 125%

50% of the net cash amounts paid under the awards are required to be invested into acquiring ordinary shares in AVEVA Group plc,
at market value, from the open market. These shares must be held for at least two years from the date of the share purchase, save for

circumstances which the Committee determines to be exceptional, or if the individual is classified as a ‘good leaver'.

The awards shall be subject to clawback, which shall be operable for a period of three years of the date of payment, if it is later
determined that there has been an overpayment as a result of a misstatement of the accounts, an error or reliance upon incorrect
information, assumptions or facts, or the individual's misconduct.
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Other information in relation to FY20
Scheme interests awarded in the year (audited)
The following tables set out details of the LTIP and deferred share awards made to the Executive Directors during FY20:

Executive Director Date of grant Basis of award Face value of awards?! Performance period

Craig Hayman 19 july 2019 250% of base salary £1,795,500 1 April 2019 -
James Kidd 19 July 2019 175% of base salary £897,750 31 March 2022

1 Todetermine the number of shares over which these awards were made, a share price was used of 3,980p for Creig Hayman and James Kidd's July 2019 grant, being the
overage share price of the five days prior to the owaord.

The structure of the LTIP granted during the year are as summarised below:

LTIP performance element Weighting Minimum performance Mid performance Maximum performance
EPS growth 50% 25% vesting for growth of 80% pays out for growth of 100% vesting for growth of
5% p.a. 10% p.a. 15% p.a.
Relative TSR performance 25% 25% vesting at median Linear vesting between min  100% vesting if in the upper
) performance (50th percentile} and max performance quartile (75th percentile)
Total revenue growth 25% 25% vesting at threshold Linear vesting between min  100% vesting at maximum

and max performance

For the 2018 LTIP awards, the relative TSR comparison group is a combination of the FTSE 350 Technology Sector and the S&P Mid
Cap 400 Software companies. This group has been chosen to provide alignment with technology companies and to better reflect the
global scale of the company. For the 2019 award, this resulted in a group of 25 companies, 16 of which are based in the UK, and 9 of
which in the USA. Of the TSR element, 25% of this element will vest at median, with 100% vesting at the upper quartile.

Name Country  Sector Subsector
Alfa Financial Software Holdings UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Avast UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Batm Advanced Communications UK Telecommunications Telecommunications Equipment
Computacenter ] "UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Fdm Group UK Technology Software & Computer Serv!ces
“Funding Circle Holdings UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Kainos Group UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Micro Focus Intl UK Technology Software & Computer Serv!ces
 Aptitude Software Group UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Nanoco Grou UK Technology Technology Hardware & Eq.mpment
p
NCC Group UK Technology Software & Computer Serv!ces
UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Sage Group UK Technology Software & Computer Services
-SbL UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Softcat UK Technology Software & Computer Services
Sophos Group UK Telecommunications Telecommunications Equipment
_Spirent Communications us Technology Software & Computer Services
ACl Worldwide us Technology Software & Computer Services
Blackbaud us Technology Software & Computer Services
CDK Global us Technology Software & Computer Services
Commvault Systems us Technology Software & Computer Services
,Fortinet us Technology Software & Computer Services
J2 Global us Technology Software & Computer Services
;Manhattan Associates us Technology Software & Computer Services
PTC uUs Technology Software & Computer Services
-Ultimate Software Group

Due to commercial sensitivity, the Committee does not believe it to be in shareholders’ interests to prospectively disclose details of
the revenue growth targets. However, they will be objectively measurable over a three-year period, significant outperformance will
be required to deliver full vesting, the targets will be disclosed retrospectively following vesting, and vesting will only occur if the
Committee is satisfied that the Company’s underlying financial performance warrants such payment.
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Deferred Share Awards
Face value
Executive Director Date of grant Basis of award of awards! Performance period

Craig Hayman 26 july 2019

£301,986 No performance period. Awards vest in equal tranches
Deferc;';egoer:ersrment of FY19 on the date of announcement in May 2020, May 2021
James Kidd 26 July 2019 9" Y £215,685 and May 2022

1 Thisis calculated as the amount of deferred annual bonus divided by year end share price {3,494 pence)

Remuneration policy implementation for the year ended 31 March 2021

As referred to in the statement from the Remuneration Committee's Chairman on page 80, in accordance with applicable legislation
we are seeking shareholder approval for a new Directors’ Remuneration Policy at the 2020 Annual General Meeting. We intend to
implement the 2020 policy as follows.

Base salary FY21
In line with the wider UK workforce, there are no proposed increases to the base salaries of either Craig Hayman or James Kidd for

FY21.

Base salory with effect from Croig Hayman Increase James Kidd Increase
1 April 2019 £718,200 £513,000

1 April 2020 £718,200 0.0% £513,000 0.0%

Our market positioning on salaries remains modest compared to the size of the Company we have become (in particular for our CEO).
We recognise that we may need to address this competitiveness in future cycles if our significant growth and strong performance
continues to be sustained. However, the focus of our new policy is to address the variable and performance-related elements of the
packages as discussed below. This will ensure alignment to shareholders’ objectives.

Benefits and pension FY21

As part of the harmonisation of both heritage AVEVA and Schneider Electric industrial software business employees in the UK,
employees have been offered a revised set of terms and conditions which contain key changes to their employee benefits. All UK
employees (including Executive Directors) received an invitation to update their terms and conditions. Part of the change included a
maximum 9% pension contribution being applied from 1 April 2020 with an increase in flexible benefits from £600 to £1,080 plus three
additional vacation days. Acceptance of the new terms and conditions is voluntary. Both Executive Directors have chosen to remain on
the existing terms and conditions and therefore there will be no changes to either the benefits structure or quantum for FY21.

In line with best practice, as we have aligned the terms and conditions of AVEVA and SES in the UK, the pension benefits for both
Executive Directors are now aligned to all other UK employees who remained on existing terms and conditions.

Annual incentive scheme FY21

Under the proposed changes to the Remuneration Policy there is a proposed change to the annual bonus quantum for FY21 from
125% of base salary for both Executive Directors to 165% of base salary for the CEO and 150% of base salary for the CFO. As
described in more detail on page 81, this reflects the fact that we are a very different business post the combination of AVEVA with
the Schneider Electric industrial software business in March 2018, in terms of size, geographic coverage, complexity and scale. The
Committee considers that this increase is essential to ensuring appropriate internal relativities across all levels and to maintaining our
market competitiveness against the FTSE 31-100 and AVEVA's US peers.

The level of deferred bonus is also being increased from 40% to 50%, although per the new Policy this will immediately fall to 25% for
both Directors as the shareholding guidelines are met. This means thot the increase in the cash value of the CEO's on-target annual
bonus for FY21 would be £175,000 (£350,000 at maximum) and the value of the deferred shares would fall by £31,000 (£62,000 at
maximum). For the CFO, the result of increasing the CFO opportunity to 150% of salary would be an increase in on-target cash bonus
for FY21 of £96,000 (£192,000 at maximum), and the value of the deferred shares would fall by £32,000 (£64,000 at maximum).
Alignment with shareholders’ interests is considered met given the significant shareholding held by both Directors.

The Committee also acknowledges that increased quantum requires additional stretch so that more pay is delivered only for the
achievement of more stretching performance targets taking into account our internal budgets, forecasts and external market
conditions. This will be borne out in the targets set and disclosed and is totally aligned with the philosophy of the Company and with
the changes we have made to the broader workforce annual bonus plans. For FY21, despite the uncertain economic backdrop the
proposed targets reflect absolute growth and improved business quality. The maximum bonus will only be earned for materially
improved year-on-year performance.
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The Committee has reviewed the performance measures for FY21 to ensure they are appropriately aligned with the Group’s strategic
plan for the coming year. It is proposed that performance for FY21 will be measured against the following performance measures.

Weight
Measure {% of maximum}
Short-term financial measures (including operating cash flow before tax) 30%
Adjusted EBIT 25%
Recurring revenue . 25%
Personal KPls ' 20%

For the short-term financial measures it is proposed that H1 and H2 half year targets will be set focused on priorities for those periods.
The H1 target will be based on operating cash flow before tax. As the position regarding Covid-19 develops further consideration

to the H2 target will be given to ensure that the measures and targets are appropriate in the context of all relevant factors. The key
individual performance objectives are agreed with the Remuneration Committee at the start of each financial year, although this
element will be capped at a maximum achievement of 12.5% of salary should the Group adjusted EBIT target not be met. At year end,
when we determine the performance outcomes for the year, we will be thoughtful in our assessment of results, balanced with the
shareholder and workforce experience.

The Board believes that, given the annual incentive scheme rewards the achievement of the company’s annual business plan, the
targets are market sensitive and therefore should not be disclosed in advance, but ordinarily disclosed retrospectively.

Long-term incentive plan FY21

There are no proposed increases in LTIP opportunity for FY21 for the CEO or CFO. The maximum LTIP award will remain unchanged at
250% of base salary for the CEO and 175% of salary for the CFO. No changes are proposed to the structure or performance measures
which will remain as set out on page 102 for the 2020 LTIP awards.

Shareholding guidelines

The shareholding guidelines are being increased to market leading levels to flexibly and directly include both annual bonus and LTIPs
and are proposed to increase from 200% of annual salary to 415% for the CEO (FY21 annual bonus opportunity of 165% plus 250%
LTIP opportunity) and from 200% of annual salary to 325% for the CFO (FY21 annual bonus opportunity of 150% plus 175% LTIP
opportunity). The increased shareholding requirements will apply to any deferred bonus awards and newly-issued LTIPs granted in
respect of FY21 and later years. Once these increased shareholding guidelines are met, as is the case with both Executive Directors,
the bonus deferral will be relaxed to half the usual amount i.e. 25%. The deferral will continue to be subject to the existing three-year
holding period.

A new two year post-employment shareholding guideline is being introduced, following feedback from investors, which will apply
to shares acquired through awards granted under the new Policy. With 100% of the increased shareholding guidelines (or actual
shareholding, if lower) retained for the first year post employment and 50% for the second year post employment.

Shareholding guidelines and interests in shares (audited)

Executive Director share ownership guidelines are set out in the Remuneration Policy on page 90. The interests of the Executive
Directors in office at 31 March 2020 in the share capital of the Company as a percentage of base salary were as follows. Shares are
valued for these purposes at the financial year-end price, which was 3,494p at 31 March 2020.

Share ownership Actual share ownership Shareholding for the purposes of
guidelineasa%  Have guidelines (as a % of base salary) meeting guidelines?
of base salary been met? FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19
Craig Hayman 200% Yes 845% 0% 173,791 -
James Kidd 200% Yes 523% 154% 76,847 23,809

1 Shares subject to deferred bonus arrangements, shares subject to LTIP awards which are in a holding period, and shares subject to other share awards which are no longer
subject to any performance condition {including any exercisable but unexercised deferred bonus awards and LTIP awards) count towards the requirement, on a net of assumed
tax bosis of 45% income tax and 2% national insurance. Methodology amended from FY18, which only counted shares owned outright towards the shareholding guidelines.

Interests in shares (audited)
The interests (both beneficial and their connected person) of the Executive Directors in office at the date of this report in the share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2020 were as follows:

Buy-out retention

Shares owned Shares owned  LTIP unvested and Deferred bonus awards unvested
outright at outright at subject to unvested and and subject to
31 March 31 March performance subject to holding continued Vested ond not
2020 2019 conditions period employment exercised Total interests
Craig Hayman - 110,293 9,414 22,433 296,061 438,201

James Kidd 47,056 23,809 54,936 12,660 - 43,550 158,202




DocuSign Envelope ID: B5B44106-3AA8-487D-AC98-59291CCB39D2

Strategic Report | Governance Report | Financial Statements 105

Outstanding scheme interests (audited)

As at Normal Lapsed/ Gain on
1 April grants Exercised forfeited Asat Exercise exercise
2018 during Dividend during the during the 31 March price of share
Number? the year equivalent year year 2020 {p) options
Craig Hayman
LTIP 80,413 45,113 971 - - 126,497 3.556 n/a
Deferred shares 767 8,618 29 - - 9,414 nil n/a
Buy-out awards? 300,990 - 1,300 - - 302,290 nil n/a
James Kidd
LTIP 121,762 22,556 848 (41,982) (4.698) 98,486 3.556 n/a
Deferred shares 10,080 6,155 84 (3,659)° - 12,660 nil 147,019°

1 Opening balances adjusted to reflect dividend equivalents granted in February 2019.
2 During the year, 97,537 shares vested.
3 Market value at exercise date was 4,018p.

Summary of LTIP targets for all LTIPs in issue

Existing AVEVA LTIPs
The following table sets out a summary of the performance targets attached to outstanding long-term incentive awards.

Performance measures are based on diluted adjusted EPS compound annual growth over a three-year period. 25% vests for diluted
adjusted EPS growth of threshold, and 100% vests for diluted adjusted EPS growth of the maximum. For LTIs issued in 2016, linear
interpolation applied between these points. For LTls issued in 2017 and beyond, non-linear vesting applies, as outlined in the table below.

Proportion of vesting
2017 LTIP 2016 LTIP

Adjusted EPS growth targets p.a. and beyond  and previous
Threshold 25% 25%
Midpoint 80% 62.5%
Maximum 100% 100%

Options Diluted Diluted Diluted Diluted

granted to adjusted adjusted adjusted adjusted

Executive Period of performance  EPS! growth  EPS' growth  EPS!yruwth  EPS growth

Date of award Directors measurement threshold midpoint maximum achieved Achievement

Target partially met;

13 July 2016 86,712 FYi7-FY19 5% 10% 15% 13.7% g9 39 of award vested
8 September 2017 43,550

(James Kidd) _ 9 o 0 9 9
6 March 2018 16,621 FY18 -FY20 5% 10% 15% 17.4% 100% of award vested

(Craig Hayman)

Performance period

- 9 9 [
28 September 2018 95,454 FY19-FY21 5% 10% 15% not yet completed

Performance period

- () [s) 0,
31 July 2019 67.669 FY20 -Fy22 5% 10% 15% not yet completed

1 The definition of and figures used for adjusted diluted EPS are provided in note 13 in the notes to the consolidated financiol stotements.

Dilution

The number of shares which may be allocated on exercise of any options granted under any of the Company's share option schemes
(including employee schemes) shall not, when aggregated with the number of shares which have been allocated in the previous ten
years under these schemes, exceed 5% of the ordinary share capital of the Company in issue immediately prior to that date.

Payments made to past Directors (audited)
Richard Longdon exercised vested shares granted in a previous period, which vested as per the scheme rules in the outgoing
Remuneration Policy.

Consistent with the PRA calculation on page 96 for the CFO James Kidd, David Ward received the final element of the 2019 PRA
award in FY20 - o £283,333 retention award and o £300,333 performance award totolling £583,666. David Ward continues to be
employed with the Group and was rewarded in line with the terms and conditions of his employment.

No other payments were made during FY20.
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Part B: The Implementation Report continued

Payments for loss of office (audited)
No payments were made for loss of office during FY20.

Total shareholder return vs. techMARK All-Share Index 2010-2020

The graph below shows performance, measured by total shareholder return, compared with the performance of the techMARK All-
Share Index. Total shareholder return is the share price plus dividends reinvested compared against the techMARK All-Share Index,
rebased to the start of the period. The Directors consider this index to be an appropriate choice as it includes AVEVA Group plc.

Total shareholder return (GBP) ® AVEVA Group, rebased

1100 ® FTSE Techmark, rebased
900
700
500
300

100

0 . N " " s " L " " ’

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

CEO single figure ten-year history
The table below shows the ten year history of the CEO single figure of total remuneration:

£000 Fy11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
Richard Longdon (to 31 December 2016) 695 1,003 963 1,163 517 561 395 - - -
James Kidd (1 january 2017 to 18 February
2018) - - - - - - 127 949 - -
Craig Hayman (19 February 2018 onwards) - - - - - - - 137 7,346 5,427
CEO single figure of total remuneration 695 1,003 963 1,163 517 561 522 1,086 7346 5,427
_Annual incentive pay-out (% of maximum) 100% 68% 94% 50% 8% 8% 18% 91% 98% 71%
LTIP pay-out (% of maximum) 0% 100% 33% 94% 0% 0% 0% 0% nfal  100%

1 Therelevant payout for LTIPs vesting in FY19 was 90%. but Craig Hayman had no LTIPs that vested in the year.

Change in remuneration of the Director undertaking the role of CEO (audited)

The table below illustrates the percentage change in salary, benefits and annual incentive for the Group CEO and two selected sub-
sets of employees (including only those employees who were employed at the start of FY19 through to the end of FY20). The UK and
US employee base have been chosen because the Group offices of heritage AVEVA and SES are headquartered in these countries
respectively, and together employ approximately one-third of its workforce. Typical salary inflation in some other AVEVA locations is
materially higher than the UK and US, which would distort the comparison.

UK & USA
% change (FY19 to FY20) CEO ELT employees
Base salary ‘ 3% 4% 3%
Benefits 17%! 0% 0%
Annual bonus (28)% (28)% (33)%

1 From 1 September 2019, the payroll for Craig Hayman was agreed to be split between the UK and the US. This was created to better reflect the travel patterns and time
spentin both jurisdictions. Included in the change was the inclusion of a US medical plan. Craig Hayman cgreed to relinquish the (taxable) UK cor and fuel allowance worth
£19,800 in return for a new (taxable) mobility allowance of £10,000 per annum and {non-taxable} US medical coverage for himself and US-based family totalling £15,500
per annum, For more information please see page 98.



DocusSign Envelope ID: B5B44106-3AA8-487D-AC98-59291CCB39D2

Strategic Report | Governance Report | Financial Statements 107

Relative importance of spend on pay :

The chart below illustrates the year-on-year change in total remuneration for all employees in the Group compared to total revenue,
adjusted EBIT and distributions to sharehaolders. The Committee determined total revenue and adjusted EBIT were appropriate
measures for this chart as they are the primary measures for the annual incentive scheme.

Relative importance of spend on pay (GBP millions) ® 2018/19

Emol ® 2019/20
meloyee | R
stq?f costs 396.3

I T .o | %

Tota I T
revenue 766.6
I - | o9

adusted | I
T e

Dividends
paid 46.8
I | oo

CEO pay ratio

The table below discloses the ratio of the Chief Executive Officer's pay for FY20. The CEO total remuneration is his FY20 total single
figure as disclosed on page 84. The calculation uses total remuneration on a consistent basis for the 25th {lower), 50th (median} and
75th (upper) percentiles against the UK employee total remuneration {(calculated on a full-time equivalent basis). The 25th, 50th and
75th UK employees were selected from the UK employee population as at 31 March 2020. The employees identified were subsequently
reviewed and deemed to be a true reflection of the UK workforce. The total pay, benefits and salary of each employee who is the best
equivalent of the 25th, 50th, and 75th ranked employee is as follows:

25th 50th 75th

percentile percentile percentile

Year Method pay ratio pay ratio pay ratio

Total pay and benefits FY20 Option A 119:1 85:1 62:1
As above, excluding buy-out awards 44:1 321 23:1
Salary only 18:1 131 10:1

Movements in ratio from FY19 are mainly due to the vesting of the buy-out awards granted to the CEO on joining as well as the
inclusion and performance of the LTIPs which are offered to senior executives within the business. As performance fluctuates
between years the level of performance-linked remuneration becomes a larger factor in the movements of the ratio and impacts
those employees with higher proportions of performance-linked pay. The employment model and proportion of ‘employed’ versus
‘contracted’ has remained consistent and is not a significant factor in the ratio movement.

We chose Option A as it is felt this is the most accurate, consistent and robust method to identify the 25th, 50th and 75th ranked UK
employee. In line with this Option, the ratios are calculated using single figure valuation methodology. The company applied the same
Option A calculation as FY19.

The total remuneration in respect of FY20 for the employees identified at 25th, 50th and 75th is £45k, £64k, and £87k, respectively.
The base salary in respect of FY20 for the employees identified at 25th, 50th and 75th is £40k, £56k, and £72k, respectively.

The Committee has reviewed the FY20 pay ratios and is satisfied that the overall picture is consistent with the remuneration policies of

the Group's UK employees.

- Salaries are set annually using a range of factors including role scope, experience, market benchmarks, impact of role (including the
Executive Directors).

— Benefit entitlement and level of benefit depending upon role and level of seniority is consistently applied.

- Participation in the annual bonus scheme and level of opportunity varies by level of seniority with all participants measured against
the same strategically-aligned financial metrics together with personal KPI achievement.

— None of the comparator employees participated in the 2019 long-term incentive scheme. Executive Directors and senior executives
receive a greater proportion of performance related variable pay plus share-based awards reflecting their greater influence over
performance outcomes. '

Whilst the CEO is based in the UK, AVEVA is a global company with the UK representing less than 15% of the entire workforce.

Outside appointments

The Board believes that accepting Non-Executive appointments with other companies enhances the experience of Executive Directors
and therefore they are entitled to accept appointments outside of the Company provided that Board approval is sought prior to
accepting the appointment. Whether or not the Director concerned is permitted to retain their fees is considered on a case-by-case
basis. Neither Craig Hayman nor James Kidd held any outside appointments during the year.
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Non-Executive Directors

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)

As noted in the Policy Report, the fees for the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors are determined taking account of the
individuals' responsibilities, time devoted to the role and prevalent market rates.

The table below shows a single figure of remuneration for each of our Non-Executive Directors.

FY20 FY19
fees fees

£ £

Philip Aiken (Chairman) 277,000 270,000
Jennifer Allerton 73,750 71,500
Christopher Humphrey 85,550 83,000
Ron Mobed 61,500 60,000
Paula Dowdy? 61,500 10,000
Emmanuel Babeau? - -
Peter Herweck? - -
Olivier Blum? - n/a

1 Poula Dowdy was appointed on 1 February 2019. FY19 fees were pro-rated for period of service.
2 Emmanuel Bobeau, Peter Herweck and Olivier Blum have waived their fees for their first three-year term.

Implementation of Remuneration Policy for NEDs in FY21

NEDs do not participate in any of the Company's incentive arrangements nor do they receive any benefits. Their fees are reviewed

at appropriately regular intervals, usually annually, against those for companies of a similar scale and complexity to AVEVA. The
Chairman'’s fees are set by the Committee and the Chief Executive; those for the NEDs are set by the Board as a whole. For FY21, it has
been decided not to increase the fees of the Chairman or NEDs at this point but we reserve the right to review them later in the year,
once the impact of Covid-19 is clearer. The table below shows the annual fees payable for each of the NED roles held in the year.

FY21 FY20

fees . fees

Role £ £

Chairman 277,000 277,000

Basic Non-Executive Director fee 61,500 61,500

Vice Chairman 40,000 40,000

Committee Chairman fee (Audit and Remuneration) 12,250 12,250

Senior Independent Director 11,800 11,800

NEDs’ interests in shares {audited)

The table shows the interests in AVEVA ordinary shares of Non-Executive Directors and their connected persons.

Shares Shares

owned owned

outright at outright at

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

Philip Aiken {Chairman) 2,337 2,337

Jennifer Allerton 6,000 10,300

Christopher Humphrey 4,000 4,000

Ron Mobed 3,000 3,000

Paula Dowdy - -

Olivier Blum - -

~ Peter Herweck 2,500 -

There have been no changes to Directors' holdings between the year-end date and the publication of this report.
This Remuneration Committee report has been approved by the Board of Directors and is signed on its behalf by:
Jennifer Allerton

Remuneration Committee Chair

9 June 2020

DocuSigned by:

5460964C9CE54E3...
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Other Statutory Information

Results and dividends

The Directors’ Report for the year ended

31 March 2020 comprises pages 1 to

113 of this report, together with the

other sections of the Annual Report

incorporated by reference to page
numbers referred to below. As permitted
by legislation, some of the matters
required to be included in the Directors’

Report have instead been included in the

Strategic Report, as the Board considers

them to be of strategic importance.

Specifically, these are:

- operations during the year and future
business developments (throughout the
Strategic Report); and

- risk management and internal control
on pages 40 to 47.

The Group made a profit for the year after
taxation of £69.8 million (FY19: £33.8
million). Revenue was £833.8 million
(FY19: £766.6 million) and comprised
software licences, software maintenance
and services.

The Directors recommend the payment
of a final dividend of 29.0 pence per
ordinary share (FY19: 29.0 pence). If
approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend will be
paid on 11 August 2020 to shareholders
on the register at close of business on

10 July 2020.

Business review and future
developments

A review of the Group's operations during
the year and its plans for the future is
given in the Chairman’s Statement,

the Chief Executive's Review and the
Finance Review.

The financial KPIs used by AVEVA to
measure its own performance at the
Group level include total revenue, recurring
revenue, adjusted EBIT margin, adjusted
diluted earnings per share and cash
conversion. The figures for the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out on pages 22 to
23, together with figures for the previous
year, and a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group
is included on pages 40 to 47.

Research & Development

The Group continues an active programme
of Research & Development which covers
the updating of, and extension to, the
Group's range of products.

Intellectual property

The Group owns intellectual property both
in its software tools and the products
derived from them. The Directors consider
such properties to be of significant value
to the business and have a comprehensive
programme to protect it.

Financial instruments

The Group's financial risk management
objectives and policies are discussed

in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and their interests

Directors’ share and share option holdings
are disclosed in the Remuneration
Committee Report on pages 104 and 105.

No Director had a material interest

in any contract of significance, other
than a service contract or contract for
services, with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries at any time during the year.

Conflicts of interest

Throughout the year the Company had
effective procedures in place to deal
with conflict situations and these have
been operated effectively. During the
year no conflicts arose which would
require the Board to exercise’its
authority or discretion.

Share capital

Details of the issued share capital can

be found in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements. The rights attaching
to the Company's shares are set outin its
Articles of Association.

Subject to any restrictions referred to in
the next section, members may attend any
general meeting of the Company.

There are no restrictions on the transfer

of ordinary shares in the Company other
than: certain restrictions which may from
time to time be imposed by laws and
regulations (for example, insider trading
laws}; and pursuant to the Market Abuse
Regulation and the Company'’s own rules.
whereby Directors and certain employees
of the Company require the approval of the
Company to deal in the ordinary shares
and pursuant to the Articles of Association
where there is default in supplying the
Company with information concerning
interests in the Company’s shares. There
are no special control rights in relation to
the Company'’s shares.

Voting rights

Subject to any restrictions below, on a
show of hands every member who is
present in person or by proxy at a general
meeting has one vote on each resolution
and, on a poll, every member who is
present in person or by proxy has one vote
on each resolution for every share of which
he/she is the registered member. A proxy
will have one vote for and one vote against
a resolution on a show of hands in certain
circumstances specified in the Articies of
Association. The Notice of Annual General
Meeting specifies deadlines for exercising
voting rights.

A resolution put to the vote of a general
meeting is decided on a show of hands,
unless before or on the declaration of

the result of the show of hands, a poll

Is demanded by the Chairman of the
meeting. The Articles of the Company also
allow members, in certain circumstances,
to demand that a resolution is decided by
a poll.

A member may vote personally or by proxy
at a general meeting. Any form of proxy
must be delivered to the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed
for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in

the appointment proposes to vote (for this
purpose, the Directors may specify that no
account shall be taken of any part of a day
that is not a working day). A corporation
which is a member of the Company may
authorise such persons as it thinks fit to
act as its representatives at any general
meeting of the Company.
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No member shall be entitled to attend
or vote, either personally or by proxy,
at a general meeting in respect of any
share if any call or other sum presently
payable to the Company in respect

of such share remains unpaid or in
certain other circumstances specified
in the Articles of Association where
there is default in supplying the
Company with information concerning
interests in the Company's shares.

Dividends, distributions and
liquidation

Members can declare final dividends by
passing an ordinary resolution but the
amount of the dividends cannot exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. The
Board can pay interim dividends provided
the distributable profits of the Company
justify such payment. The Board may, if
authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the members, offer any member the right
to elect to receive new shares, which will
be credited as fully paid, instead of their
cash dividend. Any dividend which has not
been claimed for 12 years after it became
due for payment will be forfeited and will
then revert to the Company. Members may
share in surplus assets on a liquidation.

If the Company is wound up, the
liquidator can, with the sanction of the
members by special resolution and any
other sanction required by law, divide
among the members all or any part of
the assets of the Company and he/she
can value any assets and determine

how the divisions shall be carried out

as between the members or different
classes of members. The liquidator can
also transfer the whole or any part of the
assets to trustees upon any trusts for
the benefit of the members. No members
can be compelled to accept any asset
which would give them any liability.

There are no agreements between
holders of securities that are known to the
Company which may result in restrictions
on the transfer of securities or on voting
rights, save as described below in relation
to the Employee Benefit Trust.

Change of control

All of the Company's share-based plans
and long-term incentive schemes contain
provisions relating to change of control.
Outstanding awards and options normally
vest and become exercisable or payable
on or following a change of control

arising as a result of an offer or the court
sanctioning a compromise or arrangement
under the Companies Act 2006, subject

to the satisfaction of any relevant
performance conditions at that time.

The £100 million revolving credit facility
with Barclays Bank plc as agent dated

5 September 2017 states that upon any
person or group of persons acting in
concert gaining control, and following

a negotiation period if no agreement

is reached, a lender may cancel its
commitment and declare all outstanding
loans immediately due and payable. The
Relationship Agreement referred to below
will terminate {amongst other events)
upon listing of the Company's shares
being cancelled.

There are no other significant agreements
to which the Company is a party that take
effect, alter or terminate upon a change
of control of the Company following a
takeover bid.

There are no agreements between the
Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs because
of a takeover bid.

Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Company may be
made in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 by way of
special resolution.

Powers of the Directors

The business of the Company is managed
by the Directors, who may exercise

all powers of the Company, subject to

the Company’s Articles of Association,
relevant statutory law and to any direction
that may be given by the Company in
general meeting by special resolution.
Subject to the Companies Act 2006,
shares may be issued by Board resolution.
At the Company's last Annual General
Meeting, powers were granted to the
Directors (subject to limits set out in the
resolutions) to issue and to buy back its
own shares; similar powers are proposed
to be granted at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. The buy-back authority
was limited to 10% of the Company'’s
issued share capital. No shares have been
bought back under this authority.

Substantial shareholdings
Interests in the ordinary share capital
of the Company are set out in the table
below.

The Company had been notified, in
accordance with Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rule 5, of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of
the Company:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 30 April 2020

Percentage Percentoge
Name of holder Number held % Number held %
Schneider Electric SE 97,169,655 60.2 97,169,655 60.2
Aberdeen Standard Investments 7,126,338 4.4 7360274 4.6
Artisan Partners 5,444,669 3.4 5,498,960 34
BlackRock 5,064,014 3.1 5,064,014 31




In the period from 1 May 2020 to the date
of this report, we have received no further
notifications of any changes to holdings in
accordance with the DTR 5.

Appointment of Directors

The Articles of Association limit the
number of Directors to not less than

two and not more than ten save where
members decide otherwise. Members may
appoint Directors by ordinary resolution
and may remove any Director (subject

to the giving of special notice) and, if
desired, replace such removed Director by
ordinary resolution. New Directors may be
appointed by the Board but are subject to
election by members at the first Annual
General Meeting after their appointment.
A Director may be removed from office if
requested by all other Directors.

The Company'’s Articles of Association
require that at each AGM there shall retire
from office (and be subject to re-election
by members) any Director who shall have
been a Director at each of the preceding
two Annual General Meetings and who
was not appointed or re-appointed then
or subsequently. However, in accordance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code,
the Company requires all Directors who
held office at 31 March 2020 to stand for
re-election.

Listing Rules disclosures

For the purpose of LR9.8.4C R, the only

applicable information required to be

disclosed in accordance with LRS.8.4 R

can be found in:

— the section below titled ‘Employee
Benefit Trust’ (in respect of shareholder
waiver of dividends and future
dividends);

— the section below titled ‘Majority
Shareholder and the Relationship
Agreement’ (in respect of a statement
by the Board in respect of the
Relationship Agreement with the
controlling shareholder); and

— the Remuneration Committee Report in
relation to Craig Hayman (in respect of
details of long-term incentive schemes
as required by the Listing Rules).
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held
on 21 July 2020 at AVEVA, 30 Cannon
Street, London EC4M 6AH. The Notice of
the Annual General Meeting is being sent
to shareholders along with this Annual
Report, which contains details of the
resolutions proposed.

Employee Benefit Trust

The AVEVA Group Employee Benefit
Trust 2008 was established in 2008 to
facilitate satisfying the transfer of shares
to employees within the Group on exercise
of vested options under the various share
option and deferred bonus share plans
of the Company. The Trust holds a total
of 421,054 ordinary shares in AVEVA
Group plc representing 0.26% (FY19:
350,270 shares representing 0.22%) of
the issued share capital at the date of
this report. Under the terms of the Trust
deed governing the Trust, the trustees
are required {unless the Company directs
otherwise) to waive all dividends and
abstain from voting in respect of ordinary
shares in AVEVA Group plc held by the
Trust except where beneficial ownership
of any such ordinary shares was passed
to a beneficiary of the Trust. In the same
way as other employees, the Executive
Directors of the Company are potential
beneficiaries under the Trust.

Majority shareholder and the
Relationship Agreement

The Company entered into a relationship
agreement with Schneider Electric SE, its
majority shareholder, on 1 March 2018
(the ‘Relationship Agreement’).

The Relationship Agreement will
remain in force until (i) AVEVA ceases
to be listed or (ii) the Schneider Electric
Group ceases to be a shareholder or
(iii} if earlier, by agreement between
Schneider Electric and AVEVA (subject
always to the Listing Rules).

The Relationship Agreement contains
provisions relating to the ongoing
relationship between AVEVA and
Schneider Electric, including:

— Schneider Electric may appoint up
to two Non-Executive Directors
(depending on the level of its
shareholding};

— after a period of two years from
completion of the combination, for so
long as Schneider Electric has the right
to appoint at least one Non-Executive
Director, it will have the right (but not
the obligation) to appoint such Non-
Executive Director as the Chairman;

- so long as Schneider Electric is entitled
to appoint at least one Non-Executive
Director, each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee
will comprise a total of three members,
one of whom will be the {or a) Non-
Executive Director appointed by
Schneider Electric and the other two
members will be independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

— for the period of five years from
completion of the combination and
provided Schneider Electric holds
more than 50% of the voting rights in
AVEVA, AVEVA shall give Schneider
Electric reasonable notice of certain
specified transactions.

The Relationship Agreement also provides
that, (i) for so long as Schneider Electric
remains a ‘controlling shareholder’

of AVEVA within the meaning of

LR6.1.2AR; or (ii) the Schneider Electric

Group holds 25% or more of the voting

rights or economic interest in AVEVA,

it agrees to undertake, and procure

that its Associates (os defined in the

Listing Rules) undertake, that:

{a) all transactions, agreements and
arrangements between the Schneider
Electric Group and any member of the
enlarged AVEVA Group are conducted
at arms’ length basis and on normat
commercial terms;

{b) neither Schneider Electric nor any of its
Associates will propose or procure the
proposal of a shareholder resolution
which is intended or appears to be
intended to circumvent the proper
application of the Listing Rules;

{c) neither Schneider Electric nor any of
its Associates will take any action that
would have the effect of preventing
AVEVA from complying with its
obligations under the Listing Rules
or the terms of the Relationship
Agreement; and

(d) it will abstain and will cause its
Associates to abstain from voting on
any resolution to approve a ‘related
party transaction’ {as defined in the
Listing Rules) involving Schneider
Electric or any of its Associates as the
related party.
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There is no restriction on disposals of
shares in AVEVA by Schneider Electric.
For two years following completion of

the combination, without the approval of

the majority of the independent Non-

Executive Directors, Schneider Electric

will not: :

{(a) announce or make a general offer under
the Takeover Code for the remaining
shares in the Company;

(b) vote in favour of a delisting of the
Company; or

(c) increase the aggregate shareholding
of Schneider Electric and its Associates
above its percentage shareholding
immediately after completion.

For 18 months after the end of the two-
year period, the restrictions outlined
above regarding making an offer for

the Company or acquiring further

shares in the Company shall continue

to apply save that Schneider Electric

and its Associates will be permitted,

without any need for independent

Non-Executive Director approval:

{a) to announce or make a general offer
under the Takeover Code for the
remaining shares in the Company
(subject to certain requirements as to
the offer price and to recommendation
by a majority of the independent Non-
Executive Directors); and

(b) otherwise to acquire additional
shares in the Company in the market
or otherwise, up to an aggregate
shareholding below 75% of AVEVA's
issued share capital.

After this further 18-month period,
Schneider Electric will be under no
restrictions as to further acquisitions of
shares or making offers. Further details of
the Relationship Agreement are set out in
the Prospectus published on 5 September
2017, Part Xll, paragraph 3.7.

AVEVA has and, in so far as it is aware,
Schneider Electric and its Associates
have complied with the independence
provisions in the Relationship Agreement
during the period under review.

Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to
applications for employment from disabled
persons where the candidate’s particular
aptitudes and abilities are consistent with
adequately meeting the requirements of
the job. Opportunities are available to
disabled employees for training, career
development and promotion.

Where existing employees become
disabled, it is the Group's policy to
provide continuing employment wherever
practicable in the same or an alternative
position and to provide appropriate
training to achieve this aim as well as
reasonable adjustments to the workplace
and other support mechanisms.

Employee involvement

The Group places considerable value on
the involvement of its employees and
has continued to keep them informed of
matters affecting them as employees
and on the various factors affecting

the performance of the Group. This is
achieved through formal and informal
meetings, employee newsletters, the
Group intranet and presentations

from senior management. There is an
employee representative committee
which meets on a regular basis to discuss
a wide range of matters affecting

their current and future interests. All
employees are entitled to receive an
annual discretionary award related to the
overall profitability of the Group subject
to the performance of the individual
and the Group. The Group conducts
employee-wide surveys from time to
time to gauge the success or otherwise
of its policies and uses this information
to improve matters as appropriate.

Directors’ indemnity

The Company has granted an indemnity
to its Directors against liability in respect
of proceedings brought by third parties,
subject to the conditions set out in the
Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying
third-party indemnity provision remains
in force as at the date of approving the
Directors' report.

Greenhouse gas emissions reporting
The Company is required to state the
annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent from activities
for which the Group is responsible,
including the combustion of fuel, the
operation of any facility, and resulting
from the purchase of electricity, heat,
steam or cooling. Details of our emissions
are set out on page 38 of the Strategic
Report and form part of the Directors’
Report disclosures.

Auditor

A resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young
LLP as auditor for the ensuing year will
be put to the members at the Annual
General Meeting.

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities in relation to the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

The Directors are required to prepare
consolidated financial statements
for each financial year in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards ({IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union. The Directors have
elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law
including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure
Framework’). Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the
undertakings included in the consolidation
as a whole as at the end of the financial
year and the profit or loss of the
undertakings included in the consolidation
as a whole, so far as concerns members
of the Company, for the financial year. In
preparing those consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to:
— select and apply accounting policies in
accordance with IAS 8;
- present information, including
accounting policies, in a manner that



provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information; and
- provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

In preparing the parent company financial

statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

- state whether applicable UK
Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records which are
sufficient to disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article

4 of the IAS Regulation. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who were members of

the Board at the time of approving the

Directors' Report are listed on pages 62-

63. Each of these Directors confirms that:

- so far as he/she is aware, there is no
relevant audit information (as defined
by section 418 of the Companies Act
2006) of which the Company's auditor
is unaware; and

— he/she has taken all the steps he/she
ought to have taken as a Director in
order to make himself/herself aware of
any such relevant audit information and
to establish that the Company’s auditor
is aware of that information.
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Fair and balanced reporting
Having taken advice from the Audit
Committee, the Board considers

the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced
and understandable and that it
provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Responsibility statement pursuant
to FCA's Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4 (DTR 4)

Each Director of the Company (whose

names and functions appear on pages

62-63) confirms that (solely for the

purpose of DTR 4) to the best of his or her

knowledge:

- the financial statements in this
document, prepared in accordance
with English UK law and applicable
accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the
Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a
whole; and

— the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of
the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as
a whole, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face.

This Directors’ Report has been approved
by the Board of Directors and is signed on
its behalf by:

David Ward
Finance Director and Company Secretary
9 June 2020

DocuSigned by:
David Waerd

04E622CD2BFD45C...
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of AVEVA Group plc

Opinion

In our opinion:

— AVEVA Group plc's Group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the ‘financial statements’) give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group's profit for the
year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

— the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’; and

— the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements of AVEVA Group plic which comprise:

Group Parent company
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020 Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
Consolidated income statement for the year then ended Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the yearthenended  Related notes 1 to 9 to the financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 32 to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {(UK) (ISAs (UK}} and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report below. We are independent of the Group and parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

We have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to

report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

- the disclosures in the annual report set out on pages 40-49 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

- the Directors' confirmation set out on pages 40-49 in the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
emerging and principal risks facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity;

- the Directors’ statement set out on page 40-49 in the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any material uncertainties to the entity’s ability
to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements;

- whether the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule
9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

- the Directors’ explanation set out on page 40-49 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity,
over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters - Impact of Covid-19
- Revenue recognition

- We performed an audit of the complete financial information of four (2019: four) components and audit
Audit scope procedures on specific balances for a further twelve {2019: ten) components.
- The components where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for 91% of adjusted Profit
before tax, 75% of Revenue and 84% of Total assets.

Materiality — Overall Group materiality of £5.5 million which represents 5% of adjusted Profit before tax.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key observations
communicated to

Risk Our response to the risk the Audit Committee
Impact of Covid-19 We have confirmed our understanding and walked through the process followed by We reported to the
: management to prepare the revised forecasts. We assessed the reasonableness of all key Audit Committee that,

Refer to Financial Review {pages
50-54); Refer to the Audit
Committee Report {pages 74-79);
Accounting policies; and note 2a
of the Consolidated financial
statements (pages 128-129)

Going concern

Note 2a in the financial
statements outlines the
uncertainties arising from the
recent Covid-19 outbreak and
their impact on the Group's
ability to continue as a going
concern.

Given the unprecedented impact
of Covid-19 on all businesses and
the macro-economic
environment, accurate
forecasting of prospective .
financial information and the
development of credible future
scenarios is challenging and may
have a wide range of potential
impacts on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Management have revised their
forecasts to reflect the impact of
Covid-19, which serves as the
-base case for the going concern

sassessment. Further severe but
plausible scenarios have been
run based on the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the
Group and their potential impact
on revenue, profitability and
cashflows. The results of this
analysis has been compared to
the available liquidity and
financial covenant compliance,
during the going concern period.
Based upon this assessment
management consider the going
concern assumption remains
appropriate.

Other areas

Given the significance of
Covid-19 on the economy,
management’s impact
assessment was expanded to
consider other accounting
implications. Note 2 of the
financial statements includes
significant accounting estimates
relating to the impairment of
assets and provision for
impairment of financial assets,
where the level of estimation
uncertainty has increased as o
result of the Covid-19 pandemic.
There is a risk that given the
current challenges in
establishing accurate forecasts,
as a result of Covid-19, asset
impairments are not identified
and recorded in a timely manner.

assumptions, namely revenue performance per revenue stream, adjusted EBIT margin and
working capital collection. This has been performed by:

- checking the arithmetical accuracy of management'’s model;

- assessing the historical forecasting accuracy of the group by comparing actual revenue
and adjusted EBIT to forecast for the previous five accounting periods;

- comparing the revenue forecasts to the revenue backlog and revenue pipeline against the
forecast and previous conversion rates;

- assessing the feasibility of cost reductions assumed within the model, including the timing
and quantum, by comparing them to operational actions taken by management;

- reconciling the working capital assumptions with the risk assumed within the expected
credit loss colculotion; ond

— checked for consistency of the forecasts with other areas of the audit including impairment
assessment.

Compared the reduction in revenues assumed in the most severe scenario presented by
management, to the revenue declines demonstrated during recent ecanomic crises. We have
also compared the forecast result to reports from analysts and expected revenue trends to
industry forecasts for industrial software including the impact of Covid-19;

Confirmed the availability of the RCF by comparing to the underlying agreement and reperformed
management's forecast covenant ratio compliance calculations to check for breaches of each
covenant ratio throughout the going concern period under each scenario presented by
manogement;

Compared current trading performance to management's Covid-19 forecast by obtaining the
latest available management accounts and latest available weekly Group cash report to
identify any issues with current trading and cashflows;

Recalculated the results of the sensitivity testing performed by management to determine the

. impact of reasonably possibly fluctuations in key assumptions on the Group's available

liquidity and covenant compliance;

Performed reverse stress testing to establish the level of change in revenue and adjusted EBIT
margin necessary to cause a liquidity or financial covenant breach and considered the
likelihood of such a change;

Considered the further mitigating actions available to the Group, such as not paying the
interim dividend, and further cost mitigations, and the feasibility of management being able to
execute such mitigating actions, when considering the likelihood of the reverse stress testing
scenario; and

Reviewed the appropriateness of management's going concern disclosure in describing the
risks associated with its ability to continue to operate os a going concern for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of our Auditor's Report.

Other areas

We read management’s paper outlining the potential accounting implications of the Covid-19
impact and assessed the completeness of areas identified using our understanding of the
business and broader industry knowledge, prior year audit conclusions and results-to-dote.

We audited management’s impairment of assets analysis, confirming that the forecasts were
consistent with those audited as part of the going concern assessment. We performed
additional sensitivity testing using the sensitivity analysis performed in the going concern
assessment, when determining whether a reasonably passible change could give rise to an
impairment adjustment.

We compared the forward looking information used by management to calculate the risk
matrix overlay, in their provision for impairment of financial assets, to changes in economic
data since the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The remainder of our planned audit procedures prior to the outbreak of Covid-19, were
executed as intended in these areas.

based on the testing
performed, we
believed that the
going concern
assumption adopted
in the 2020 financial
statements remains
appropriate based
upon management's
Covid-19 base case
forecast.

We confirmed that
management’s
disclosure
appropriately
describes the risks
associated with
AVEVA's ability to
continue to operate
as a going concern.

Other areas

We agree that the
key other areas of
accounting impact of
Covid-19 have been
appropriately
disclosed in the
financial statements
and accounting
entries recorded
accordingly.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

To the Members of AVEVA Group plc

Key observations
communicated to

Risk Our response to the risk . the Audit Committee

"Risk of inappropriate revenue We performed walkthroughs of significant classes of revenue transactions to understand Based on our
recognition - £833.8 million significant processes, including the central group revenue approval process, ond to identify procedures

.{2018: £766.6 million}) and assess the design effectiveness of key management controls over data input and IT. performed both at

group and by
component audit
We have performed licence revenue transaction testing at a local and group level to ensure that teams, we conclude

Refer to the Audit Committee A summary of our key procedures performed are:
Report (pages 74-79);
Accounting policies (pages

164-168); and note 2b of the revenue has been recorded in accordance with the Group's revenue recognition policy and IFRS  that revenue
Consolidated Financial 15 and has been appropriately recorded in the current year income statement or deferred on the recognised in the
Statements (page 129-130) balance sheet as appropriate. This was achieved by testing a sample of contracts and: year, and revenue
I . . deferred as at 31
In particular, the risks are: - agreeing licence revenues to signed contracts or software licence agreements; March 2020, is
- Inappropriate application of  ~ agreeing the revenue to subsequent payment as evidence of collectability; materially correct.
the group revenue — checking evidence such as licence keys to support that software has been delivered to
recognition policy and IFRS customers prior to revenue recognition;

15 ‘Revenue’ for licence
revenue recognition, could
result in, for example,
revenue being recorded when

- reviewing contract terms to establish whether all performance obligations have been
identified and for any conditions that would impact the timing of revenue recognition and
in turn the completeness of contract liabilities;

performance obligations - ensuring appropriate allocation of the fair value and recognition of revenue for other

have not been satisfied, deliverables included within the contract; and

incorrect deferral of revenue . . .

for support and maintenance We selegted a sample gf reve'nuejournals and assessed the appropriateness of thg journal

her obligations: and by checking to supporting evidence such as revenue contracts and ensuring compliance
and other obligations; an 4 ; o ]
. . with the Group's revenue recognition policy and IFRS 15. The sample selected was based

- Inopprc_)pnu.te Ilcenge revenue on risk based criteria including but not limited to manual journal entries, those close to

recognition in refation to cut period end ond postings that appeared inconsistent with roles and responsibilities.

off, as revenue may not have . . . .

been recognised in the We have performed an independent assessment using our industry knowledge to establish

correct accounting period, whether the fair value rate of the support.ond n‘gointenance is sti!l applicable and that any

including the risk of possible non-standard contracts have an appropriate fair value rate applied.

manipulation of project To validate our understanding of contractual terms with customers and to identify any

margins by management contractual issues or any ongoing contractual abligations, we made enquiries of management

through estimates to outside the finance function, including the sales team and legal counsel to ensure that

completg on Percentose of appropriate obligations and commitments had been recorded in the financial statements.
Completion (POC) projects, L . _— .
particularly where progress We have performed a test of detail including reviewing the terms and conditions of the

*  asof year-end is greater than contract and recalculating the amount of revenue to be recognised in comparison to amounts
10% and less than 90% billed, for a sample of contract liability and contract asset revenue items to ensure itis in
complete. accordance with the revenue recognition principles.

We have performed analytical review by revenue stream and geography in comparison to the
prior year to assess unexpected trends and patterns that could be indicative of incorrect
revenue recognition.

We have performed cut-off testing for a sample of revenue items booked either side of year
end by agreeing to supporting documentation to ensure that licence revenue was only
recognised for software in the period where the contract was signed by both AVEVA and the
customer prior to year-end and the software has been made available prior to the year end.

For projects accounted for under ‘Percentage of Completion’ {PoC), we evaluated judgements
made by management regarding the expected costs to complete and the timing and
recognition of variation orders. We also tested the cut-off of project costs. This testing
focussed on:

- Low margin/loss making projects, including ensuring losses are appropriately recognised;

- Risk reserves included in the project accounting, including enquiring of the operational
status of the project to establish whether an additional reserve is required/existing risk
reserves should be released;

- Change requests issued by the customer and the impact on the project accounting;

- The estimated costs to complete, including changes during the life of the project and
historical forecast accuracy; and

- The status of billings, achievement of milestones and the recoverability of contract assets/
shipped not billed balances.

Where detailed procedures were performed by component teams, the primary team exercised
oversight of the testing and performed additional testing of contracts over £1.8 million or
containing non-standard terms.

For related party transactions between AVEVA and the Schneider Electric business, we
obtained evidence that the performance obligations had been fulfilled and that they form part
of the related party disclosures.

We performed full and specific scope audit procedures over this risk area in 13 locations,
which covered 75% of the risk amount,
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for
each entity within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We take into
account size, risk profile, the organisation of the group and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the business environment
and other factors such as recent Internal audit results when assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative
coverage of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 100 reporting components of the Group, we selected 16
components covering entities within the Group in the following countries: UK, US, Canada, Germany, France, Korea, China, India,
Japan, Netherlands and Malaysia, which represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 16 components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financial information of four components ('full scope
components') which were selected based on their size or risk characteristics. For the remaining 12 components (‘specific scope
components’), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the potential for the
greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile.

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 91% (2019: 86%) of the Group's adjusted Profit before
tax, 75% (2019: 70%) of the Group's Revenue and 84% (2019: 84%) of the Group's Total assets. For the current year, the full scope
components contributed 67% (2019: 71%) of the Group's adjusted Profit before tax, 48% (2019: 48%) of the Group's Revenue and
79% (2019: 78%) of the Group's Total assets. The specific scope components contributed 24% (2019: 15%) of the Group's adjusted
Profit before tax, 27% (2019: 22%) of the Group's Revenue and 5% (2019: 6%) of the Group’s Total assets. The audit scope of these
components may not have included testing of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to the coverage of
significant tested for the Group.

Of the remaining 84 components that together represent 9% of the Group's adjusted Profit before tax, none are individually greater
than 1% of the Group's adjusted Profit before tax. For these components, we performed other procedures, including analytical review,
testing of consolidation journals, intercompany elimination and foreign currency translation recalculation to respond to any potential
risks of material misstatement to the Group financial statements.

Changes from the prior year

For the current year we have designated the components in Netherlands, Malaysia, and Japan as specific scope compared to review
scope in the comparative period, as part of our rotational audit scoping strategy. We have designated Australia as review scope
compared to specific scope in the comparative period, as part of this rotational audit scoping strategy.

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY global network firms operating
under our instruction. Of the four full scope components, audit procedures were performed on two of these directly by the primary
audit team. For the 12 specific scope components, where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the
appropriate level of involvement to enable us to determine that sufficient audit evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion
on the Group as a whole.

The Group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits that has been designed to ensure that the Senior Statutory
Auditor or senior members of the audit team visits at least two (2019: two) of the components each year. During the current year's
audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the primary audit team to the component teams in the US and Netherlands (2019: US, Canada,
China and Germany). These visits involved where appropriate, discussing the audit approach with the component team and any
issues arising from their work, meeting with local and regional management, and reviewing key audit working papers on risk areas.
One planned visit to the US was cancelled due to the travel restrictions associated with Covid-19, however the primary audit team,
including the Senior Statutory Auditor, had already performed one visit during the year and were able to perform the planned
procedures remotely, including remote review of working papers and attendance at key meetings. The primary team interacted
regularly with the component teams where appropriate during various stages of the audit, reviewed key working papers and were
responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process. In addition, the Senior Statutory Auditor attended each of the component
closing meetings via video conference. In concluding on the appropriateness of the level of involvement with component teams during
the Covid-19 pandemic, the Senior Statutory Auditor has also considered the consistency of key team members at component team
locations, the results of rotational site visits performed in recent years and the quality of key audit working paper reviews performed
remotely in the current year. This, together with the procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion
on the Group financial statements.

Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the
audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

To the Members of AVEVA Group pic

We determined materiality for the Group to be £5.5 million {2019: £3.8 million), which is 5% {2019: 5%) of adjusted Profit before tax
We believe that adjusted Profit before tax provides us with the most relevant measure of the underlying financial performance of
the Group, as it removes the impact of one-off transactions. For both years, we have used Profit before tax adjusted for exceptional
items as reported in note 7, however have not made adjustment for recurring items, such as amortisation of intangibles, share-based
payments and gain/loss on forward exchange contracts.

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £29 million (2019: £26.7 million), which is 2% (2019: 2%) of total assets.
We believe that total assets is the most relevant measure, given the primary activity of the Parent Company is to hold investments
in subsidiaries.

Starting - Profit before tax - £92.0m
basis

-E tional i -£188
Adjustments xceptional items (note 7) — £18.8m

— Totals £110.8m
Materiality — Materiality of £5.5m (5% of materaility basis)

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality and updated for the final profit shown above.

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our judgement was
that performance materiality was 75% (2019: 75%) of our planning materiality, namely £4.1 million (2019: £2.9 million). We have set
performance materiality at this percentage to ensure that the total uncorrected and undetected audit differences in all accounts did
not exceed our materiality.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each component is based
on the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that
component. In the current year, the range of performance materiality allocated to components was £0.8 miilion to £2.2 million
(2019: £0.5 million to £1.6 million).

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.3 million
(2019: £0.2million), which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of
other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 1-113, including the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we

are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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in this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other

information and to report as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those items meet

the following conditions:

- Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 113 - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the annual
report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit; or

- Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 74-79 — the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

— Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 59 - the parts of the Directors’
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- theinformation given in the strategic report and the Directors Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and those reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements;

- theinformation about internal control and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share
capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA Rules), is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements; and

- information about the company's corporate governance code and practices and about its administrative, management and
supervisory bodies and their committees complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the FCA Rules.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of

the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in:

— the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report; or

- the information about internal control and risk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about share
capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you

if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

- a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the company.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on pages 112-113, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group and parent company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report continued

To the Members of AVEVA Group plc

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to froud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement due to
fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses; and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified
during the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with
governance of the entity and management.

Our approach was as follows:

- We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that the
most significant frameworks are those which are directly relevant to the specific assertions in the financial statements (IFRS, FRS
101, the Companies Act 2006 and UK Corporate Governance Code) and the relevant tax compliance regulations in the jurisdictions
in which the group operates. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and regulations which may have an
effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements being the Listing Rules of the UK Listing
Authority, and those laws and regulations relating to occupational health and safety and data protection.

- We understood how AVEVA Group plc is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of management and legal counsel,
oversight of those charged with governance {i.e. considering the potential for override of controls or other inappropriate influence
over the financial reporting process, such as efforts by management to manage earnings in order to influence the perceptions
of analysts as to the entity's performance and profitability), the culture of honesty and ethical behaviour and whether a strong
emphasis is placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud to take place, and fraud deterrence, which could
persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the likelihood of detection and punishment.

— We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by
meeting with management from various parts of the business to understand where it considered there was susceptibility to fraud.
We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by management to manage earnings or influence the
perceptions of analysts. We considered the programs and controls that the group has established to address risks identified, or that
otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how senior management monitors those programs and controls. Where the risk was
considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address each identified fraud risk. These procedures included testing
manual journals and review of accounting estimates and judgements and were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements were free from fraud or error.

- Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our
procedures involved management enquiries, review of legal correspondences, journal entry testing, and full and specific scope
management. Our audit procedures were communicated to and performed by our component teams.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters we are required to address
We were appointed by the company on 25 September 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2020 and
subsequent financial periods.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments is 18 years, covering the years ending
31 March 2003 to 31 March 2020.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting the audit.

The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

é’mﬁ’éﬂ %UA/L- LLF

Marcus Butler (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor

London

9 June 2020

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the AVEVA Group plc website is the responsibility of the Directors: the work carried out by the auditors does not invalve consideration of
these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the finoncial statements since they were initially presented
on the website.

2. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m £m
Revenue 3,4 833.8 766.6

Cost of sales

(190.7) (193.2)

Gross profit

Operating expenses

Research & Development costs
Selling and administrative expenses

643.1 573.4

(184.6)  (178.0)
5 (367.8)  (341.9)

Net impairment loss on financial assets (7.6) (6.3)
Other income 7 119 -
Total operating expenses (548.1) (526.2)
Profit from operations 6 95.0. 47.2
Finance revenue 8 0.3 0.2
Finance expense 9 (3.3) (0.7)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 92.0 46.7
Income tax expense 11 (22.2) (12.9)
iProﬁt for the Yeor attributable to equity holders of the parent ' 69.8 33.8 !
Profit from operations 95.0 47.2
Amortisation of intangibles {excluding other software} 16 90.6 88.1
Share-based payments 28 12.0 11.2
Loss on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 04 05
Exceptional items 7 18.8 28.9
Adjusted EBIT 216.8 175.9

Earnings per share (pence)
- basic
- diluted

13 43.35 20.97
13 43.13 20.90

All activities relate to continuing activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated income statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019

Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 69.8 33.8
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange gain arising on translation of foreign operations 4.2 8.4
Total of items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 4.2 8.4
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 27 6.2 (0.5)
Deferred tax effect 11(q) (1.2) (0.4)
Total of items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 5.0 (0.9)
{Totul com‘prehensive income for the year, net of tax ' 79.0 413 l

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m £m

Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 1,295.7 1,285.3
Other intangible assets 16 514.8 599.5
Property, plant and equipment 17 276 17.1
Right-of-use assets 24 795 -
Deferred tax assets 26 19.1 11.8
Trade and other receivables 19 4.4 2.2
Retirement benefit surplus 27 14.9 7.1

1,956.0 1,923.0

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 19 242.2 238.7
Contract assets 3 142.4 100.5
Treasury deposits ) 20 0.1 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents 20 114.5 127.2
Current tax assets 20.2 10.8
519.4 477.8
Total assets ~ 2,475.4  2,400.8
Equity
Issued share capital 29(a) 5.7 5.7
Share premium 574.5 574.5
Other reserves 29(b) 1,180.3 1,178.8
Retained earnings ] 181.2 165.5
Total equity 1,941.7 1,924.5
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 149.4 156.8
Contract liabilities 3 177.0 174.6
- Lease liabilities 24 16.6 -
Financial liabilities 23 0.4 0.1
Provisions 0.1 1.9
Current tax liabilities 5.5 12.8

R - = - ’ 349.0 © 346.2

Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities ) 24 53.3 -
Deferred tax liabilities 26 119.9 111.3
Other liabilities 0.7 3.1
Provisions - 2.6
Retirement benefit obligations 27 10.8 13.1

184.7 130.1
fl'otol equity and liabilities 2,475.4 2,400.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated balance sheet.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 9 June 2020. They were signed on its

behalf by:
Craig Hayman James Kidd Company number

Chief Executive Officer Deputy CEO and CFO 2937296
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

31 March 2020

Other reserves

Cumulative Capital Capitol Reverse
Share Share Merger i ibuti dempti quisiti Treasury | Total other Retained Total
capital premium reserve  adjustments reserve reserve reserve shares reserves earnings equity
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2018 57 5745 | 6156 9.9 - 1017 4525 (0.3)]11,179.4 195.1 1954.7
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - = 338 338
Other comprehensive
income - - - 8.4 - - - - 8.4 (0.9) 7.5
Total comprehensive
income - - - 8.4 - - - - 8.4 329 41.3
Share-based payments 28 - - - - - - - - - 11.2 11.2
Tax arising on share
options - - - - - - - - - 1.3 1.3
Investment in own shares 29 - - - - - - - (9.3) (9.3) - (9.3)
Capital contribution - - - - 0.1 - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Transactions with
Schneider Electric - - - - - - - - - (8.8) (8.8)
Cost of employee benefit
trust shares issued to
employees 29 - - - - - - - 0.2 0.2 (0.2} -
Equity dividends 12 - - - - - - - - - (66.0) (66.0)
At 31 March 2019 57 5745 | 6156 18.3 0.1 1017 452.5 (9.4)1,178.8 1655 19245
Profit for the year - - - SR R - - .= 698 69.8
Other comprehensive
income - - - 4.2 - - - - 4.2 5.0 9.2
Total comprehensive
income - - - 4.2 - - - - 4.2 74.8 79.0
Share-based payments 28 - - - - - - - - 12.0 12.0
Tox arising on share
options - - - - - - - - - 1.0 1.0
Investment in own shares 29 - - - - - - - (3.1) (3.1) - (3.1)
Cost of employee benefit
trust shares issued to
employees 29 - - - - - -
Equity dividends 12 - - - - -
Bt 31:March 2020, . weweBZ. . 5745 | 6186,... 22.5. .01 1017 45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. Details of other
reserves are contained in note 29.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 69.8 33.8
Income tax expense 11({a) 22.2 12.9
Net finance expense 8,9 3.0 0.5
Amortisation of intangible assets 16 91.7 88.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 17,24 244 5.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 0.7 0.1
Gain on disposal of pension scheme 27 (0.4) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 7 {7.7) -
Share-based payments 28 12.0 11.2
Difference between pension contributions paid and amounts charged to operating profit 27 (1.2) 0.1
Research & Development expenditure tax credit : {2.3) (2.0)
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables (12.2) (18.6)
Contract assets (43.8) (32.8)
Trade and other payables {5.8) 36.1
Contract liabilities 10.7 331
Changes to fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 0.3 0.5
Cash generated from operating activities before tax 161.4 169.1
Income taxes paid (39.3) (32.4)
Net cash generated from operating activities 122.1 136.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (18.5) (7.4)
Purchase of intangible assets 16 {0.6) {0.2)
Payment on disposal of pension scheme (2.0) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 14 (25.1) -
Consideration paid on completion of business combination 30 - (19.4)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, net of cash 14 5.5 -
Sale/(purchase) of treasury deposits 0.5 (0.4)
Interest received 8 0.3 0.2
Net cash flows used in investing activities (39.9) (27.2)
Cash flows from financing activities .
Interest paid 9 (3.3) (0.7)
Purchase of own shares 29(b) (3.1) (9.3)
Repayment of borrowings 22 - (10.0)
Payment of principal element of lease liability 24 (15.5) -
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent 12 {71.7) (66.0)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (93.6) (86.0)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {11.4) 23.5
Net foreign exchange difference (1.3) (1.9)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 20 127.2 105.6
:Clos'ing cash and cash equivalents 20 1145 127.2 l

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Consolidated cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Corporate information

AVEVA Group plcis a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of the registered office
is given on page 172. AVEVA Group plc’s shares are publicly traded on the Official List of the London Stock Exchange. The parent
Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc are included on pages 159 to 163.

2 Key accounting policies
Explained below are the key accounting policies of the AVEVA Group plc and all its subsidiaries {‘the Group’). The full Statement of
Group accounting policies is included on pages 164 to 168.

a) Basis of preparation
The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the European Union,
and with the Companies Act 2006.

The accounting policies which follow set out those policies applied in preparing the financial statements, which have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Group applies for the first time IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC interpretation

23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'. Details of the impact of adoption of these standards are set out in note 32. The Consolidated
financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling {£) and all values are rounded to the nearest £0.1 million except when otherwise stated.

In accordance with IFRS 3, the consolidated financial information has been prepared as a reverse acquisition of the AVEVA Group by the
Schneider Electric industrial software business (‘the Combination'), which occurred on 1 March 2018.

In adopting the going concern basis for preparing the financial statements, the Directors have considered the business activities and
the Group's principal risks and uncertainties in the context of the current operating environment. This includes possible impacts of the
global Covid-19 pandemic on the Group and reviews of liquidity and covenant forecasts.

The Group’s business planning cycle has taken account of potential impacts of Covid-19 to create a base case going concern model,
reflecting the current business disruption, deterioration in economic conditions and the resulting impact on customers and ability to
operate effectively during a period of remote working.

The Directors have considered sensitivities in respect of potential downside scenarios over and above the Covid-19 base case going
concern model and the mitigating actions available in concluding that the Group is able to continue in operation for a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approving the financial statements.

The sensitivities are designed to model potential downside scenarios relating to Covid-19, whereby the Group experiences:

~ A period of depressed economic activity across the entire going concern period, with resulting reduction in revenues as a result of
reduced conversion of the revenue pipeline, lower new customer demand and impacts on pricing;

- Business disruption including the impact of stay-at-home orders on the ability to operate efficiently as well as the ability to deliver
project services and work remotely; and

- Delays in the working capital cycle, including the impact of customer failures, credit defaults and delays in customers making
contractual payments.

The specific scenarios modelled are as follows:

Scenario 1 stresses the base going concern model further with materialisation of principal risks linked to continued pandemic
disruption.

Scenarios 2-4 also use the Covid-19 adjusted business plans as a base model, upon which further materialisation of a combination
of various of the principal risks identified on pages 42 to 47 are considered. Each scenario assumes delays in the working capital
cycle, including the impact of customer failures, credit defaults and delays in customers making contractual payments, as well as the
following other assumptions:

Scenario 1: Given the current risk environment in relation to the global Covid-19 pandemic, this Scenario incorporates the impact
of the following three principal risks as outlined on pages 46 to 47, reducing base model revenue by circa 9% across the three-year
forecast period.

(10) Dependency on cyclical markets;
(11) Global economic disruption and declined GDPs; and
(13) Extended period of remote working.

Scenario 2: A ‘severe but plausible’ scenario which models materialisation of all the following principal risks as outlined on pages 44 to
45, being applied to the Covid-19 adjusted financial forecasts, reducing base model revenues by circa 15-20% across the three-year
forecast period.

(2) Move to subscription model;
(3) Cloud; and
(5) Sustainability.
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Scenario 3: A ‘severe but plausible’ scenario which models materialisation of all the following principal risks as outlined on paged 44
to 46, being applied to the already Covid-19 adjusted financial forecasts, which also reduces base model revenues by circa 15-20%
across the three-year forecast period.

(2) —Move to subscription model;
(3) — Cloud; and
{9) — Cyberattack.

Scenario 4: A further scenario was created to model circumstances required to breach AVEVA's credit facilities. This scenario assumes
severe cash collection delays and does not include any mitigating actions that the Group would take. It is overall considered very unlikely.

Under the base case scenario, there is no expected requirement to drawdown on the Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF’) across the going
concern period. Under the four downside scenarios, the Group would utilise the RCF, however within the current liquidity
levels available.

Throughout all the four downside scenarios, the Group continues to have liquidity headroom on existing facilities and against the

RCF financial covenants during the period under assessment. Should a more extreme downside scenario occur, additional mitigating
actions could be taken such as the cancellation or deferral of dividend payments and reductions in other discretionary operating costs.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 have therefore been prepared under the going concern basis of accounting.

b) Revenue

The Group generates its revenue principally through the supply of:
— subscription;

- maintenance;

— perpetual licences; and

- services.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of the promised software and/or services to customers. The Group enters into contracts
which can include combinations of software licences, support and maintenance fees and other professional services, each of which

is capable of being distinct and usually accounted for as separate performance obligations. Where there are multiple performance
obligations, revenue is measured at the value of the expected consideration received in exchange for the services, allocated by the
relative stand-alone selling prices of each of the performance obligations.

Subscription
The Group offers a number of non-cancellable, fixed-term subscription licensing models of between one month and five years and
include on-premise software rentals, cloud hosted software and Software as a Service {('SaaS’).

Rentals consist of two separate components: a software licence; and support and maintenance, which are two distinct performance
obligations. The software licence is a right to use licence which is recognised at a point in time when the contract is agreed and the
software is made available to the customer. The support and maintenance element is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
rental period.

Saa$ subscriptions are agreements with customers to provide the right to access software. The software, maintenance and support,
and hosting elements are not distinct performance obligations, and represent a combined service provided to the customer. Revenue is
recognised as the service is provided to the customer on a straight-line basis over the subscription period.

Perpetual licences

Customers are charged an initial or perpetual licence fee for on-premise or hosted software which is usually limited by a set number
of users or seats. Initial and perpetual licences provide the customer with the right to use the software and are distinct from other
services. Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the contract is agreed and the software is made available to the customer.

Maintenance

Revenue classified as maintenance includes annual fees as well as separate support and maintenance contracts. For both, revenue
is recognised over time on a straight-line basis over the period-of the contract, which is typically 12 months. Customers that have
purchased an initial licence pay obligatory annual fees each year. Annual fees consist of the continuing right to use, and support and
maintenance, which includes core product upgrades and enhancements, and remote support services. Users must continue to pay
annual fees in order to maintain the right to use the software. Customers that have purchased a perpetual licence have the option to
pay for support and maintenance.

Services
Services consist primarily of consultancy, implementation services and training. Revenue from these services is recognised as the
services are performed by reference to the costs incurred as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the service project.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2 Key accounting policies continued

If an arrangement includes both licence and service elements,.an assessment is made as to whether the licence element is distinct in
the context of the contract, based on whether the services provided significantly modifies or customises the base product. Where it is
concluded that a licence is distinct, the licence element is recognised as a separate performance obligation. In all other cases, revenue
from both licence and service elements is recognised when control is deemed to have passed to the customer.

c} Adoption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial application of 1 April 2019. In
accordance with this approach, prior year balances have not been restated and are presented as historically disclosed under IAS 17.
Set out below are the new accounting policies of the Group:

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date that the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to
impairment review.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group also recognises lease liabilities. They are measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less,
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. The Group has adopted the practical expedient to view certain arrangements containing
both lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset. The carrying
amount of right-of-use assets are also remeasured to reflect this change in lease liabilities.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of

12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered of low value (i.e. below £5,000). Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

The effect on the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 was to reduce profit after tax by £1.2 million. The full impact on
the amounts recognised in the primary statements as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16 are summarised in note 32.

d)} Non-GAAP measures

The Group presents the non-GAAP performance measure ‘adjusted earnings before interest and tax (‘EBIT’)’ on the face of the
Consolidated income statement. Adjusted EBIT is not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with the adjusted
EBIT measures of other companies.

The business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis using adjusted results. To arrive at adjusted results, certain
adjustments are made for normalised and exceptional items that are individually significant and which could, if included, distort the
understanding of the performance for the year and the comparability between periods.

Normalised items
These are recurring items which management considers to have a distorting effect on the underlying results of the Group.

These items relate to:

- amortisation of intangible assets (excluding other software);
— share-based payment charges; and

- fair value adjustments on financial derivatives.
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Other types of recurring items may arise, however no others were identified in either the current or prior year. Recurring items are
adjusted each year irrespective of materiality to ensure consistent treatment.

Management consider these items to be distorting as they do not reflect the underlying performance of the Group.

Exceptional items

These are items which are non-recurring and are identified by virtue of either their size or their nature. These items can include, but
are not restricted to, the costs of significant restructuring exercises, fees associated with business combinations and costs incurred in
integrating acquired companies. Exceptional items are discussed further in note 7.

Management consider these items to be distorting by nature, as they are significant non-recurring-items that are inherently not
reflective of the future or underlying performance of the Group.

e) Significant accounting judgements

Allocation of goodwill

The unallocated carrying value of the goodwill arising from the reverse acquisition of the AVEVA business by the Schneider Electric
industrial software business was allocated to the appropriate cash generating units (‘CGUs') during the prior financial year. The two
businesses were largely integrated on a regional basis shortly after the completion of the merger, and judgement was applied in

the conclusion that Asia Pacific, EMEA and Americas are the smallest identifiable groups of assets that generate cash inflows thot
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. The allocation was performed by applying the
respective proportions of the cumulative return based on the value in use model of aggregated discounted cash flows, The Group
applied significant judgement in forecasting future cash flows for the value in use model. The resulits of this allocation are set outin
note 15.

f) Significant accounting estimates

Revenue recognition

The assessments and estimates used by the Group for revenue recognition could have a significant impact on the amount and timing
of revenue recognised.

Revenue from sales of software licences when these are combined with the delivery of significant implementation or customisation
services is recognised in line with the delivery of the services to the customer. This policy involves the assessment of which customer
projects include significant customisation or implementation and also an assessment of the stage of completion of such projects.

The fair value estimate of the element of a customer rental fee attributable to the continuing right to use, and to customer support and
maintenance, is reviewed periodically. Management used judgement in calculating this estimate by using a combination of historical
data, cost to the business of providing services, and annual fees as a proportion of initials. On average, the element attributable to
customer support and maintenance as a proportion of the initial software delivery is 17-18%.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to CGUs expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies and represents the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and generates cash flows, which are independent of other
CGUs. The recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or when events or
changes in circumstance indicate that it might be impaired. The carrying values of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying
value may be impaired. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the
assets or CGUs are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement in the selling and administrative expenses line item. Further details about the assumptions used
and sensitivity analysis performed in the impairment review are set out in note 15.

Provision for impairment of financial assets
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for ali trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. Loss allowances are calculated using historical account payment profiles and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced and adjusted for forward looking factors specific to the debtor and the economic environment. In assessing the impact
of the forward looking information available, management have considered the risk factors most likely to impact customers in light
of the Covid-19 pandemic. Trade receivables were grouped based on industry and type of customer, and a further overlay applied to
the risk matrix.
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2 Key accounting policies continued

Provisions for the impairment of receivables have also been made on a customer-specific basis. The determination of the appropriate
level of provision involves an estimate of the potential risk of default or non-payment by the Group's customers. In making this
assessment, management considers a number of factors, including:

- the financial strength of the customers;

— the level of default that the Group has suffered in the past;

- the age of the receivable outstanding; and

~ the Group's trading experience with that customer.

Contract assets have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets. Therefore, the significant estimates made relating to the provision for impairment of trade receivables are also .
applicable to impairment of contract assets.

The provision for impairment of trade receivables at 31 March 2020 was £7.6 million {(2019: £7.2 million) and contract assets
£5.4 million (2019: £0.4 million). Details of the provision for impairment of receivables are contained in note 19.

Intangible assets

IFRS 3 requires the identification of acquired intangible assets as part of a business combination. The methods used to value such
intangible assets require the use of estimates including forecast performance and customer attrition rates. Future results are impacted by
the amortisation periods adopted and changes to the estimated useful lives would result in different effects on the income statement.

Retirement benefits

The determination of the Group's surplus, obligations and expense for defined benefit pensions is dependent on the selection, by
the Board of Directors, of assumptions used by the pension scheme actuary in calculating these amounts. The assumptions applied,
together with sensitivity analysis, are described in note 27 and include, amongst others, the discount rate, the inflation rate, rates of
increase in salaries and mortality rates. While the Directors consider that the assumptions are appropriate, significant differences in
the actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the reported amount of the Group's future pension
surplus and obligations, actuarial gains and losses included in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income in future years
and the future staff costs. In mitigation of significant changes in assumptions affecting the Group’s future pension obligations, the
pension scheme operates a liability-driven investment strategy, which means as inflation and interest rates change, the value of

the asset portfolio will rise and fall, offsetting the impact on the net position. The carrying amount of retirement benefit surplus at
31 March 2020, net of obligations, was £4.1 million (2019: obligations net of surplus of £6.0 million).

3 Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
Services
transferred Services
ata pointin  transferred
time over time Total
Year ended 31 March 2020 £m £m £m
Subscription 228.7 88.1 316.8
Maintenance - 201.7 201.7
Perpetual licences 179.3 - 179.3
Services - 136.0 136.0
| 4080 4258 8338
Services
transferred Services
at g paintin transferred
time over time Total
Year ended 31 March 2019 £m £m £m
Subscription 145.7 725 218.2
Maintenance - 194.4 194.4
Perpetual licences 2116 - 2116
Services - 142.4 142.4
' 3573 409.3 766.6
Contract balances are as below:
2020 2019 2018
' £m £m £m
Trade receivables (non-current) 2.0 - -
Trade receivables (current) 181.2 174.9 146.9
Contract assets 142.4 100.5 67.6
Contract liabilities 177.0 174.6 141.7

Contract assets have increased year-on-year predominantly due to the recognition of a number of multi-year subscription licences,
resulting in the cumulative revenue recognised for these contracts to be greater than the cumulative amounts invoiced. Contract assets
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are stated net of a provision of £6.4 million {2019: £0.4 million). The provision has increased year-on-year due to forward looking
considerations in light of Covid-19.

Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020 includes £157.1 million (2019: £127.6 million) which was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year. Revenue of £3.1 million recognised in the year ended 31 March 2020 related to performance obligations
satisfied in previous years (2019: £nil}.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March is

as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
Within one year 323.8 248.0
More than one year 178.0 164.6

4 Segment information

The Executive Leadership Team (ELT) monitors and appraises the business based on the performance of three geographic regions:
Asia Pacific; Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA); and Americas. These three regions are the basis of the Group’s primary operating
segments reported in the financial statements. Performance is evaluated based on regional contribution using the same accounting
policies as adopted for the Group's financial statements. There is no inter-segment revenue. Corporate costs include centralised

functions such as Executive Management, Information Management, Finance and Legal. Balance sheet information is not included in
the information provided to the ELT.

Year ended 31 March 2020
Asia Pacific EMEA Americas Corporate Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Subscription 95.6 140.0 81.2 ’ - 316.8
Maintenance 47.9 67.9 85.9 - 201.7
Perpetual licences 52.1 69.6 57.6 - 179.3
Services 31.9 49.6 54.5 - 136.0
Regional revenue total 227.5 3271 279.2 - 833.8
Cost of sales (27.3) {34.6) (49.9) (78.3) (190.1)
Selling and administrative expenses (44.7) {72.5) (69.4) (112.0) (298.6)
Net impairment loss on financial assets (0.8) (2.7) (4.1) - (7.6)
Regional contribution 154.7 217.3 155.8 (190.3) 3375
Research & Development costs (120.7)
Adjusted EBIT i 216.8
Exceptional items, other normalised adjustments! and net interest (124.8)
Profit before tax 92.0
1 Normalised adjustments include amortisation of intangible assets {excluding other software), share-based payments and movements on fair value of forward
exchange contracts.
Year ended 31 March 2019
Asia Pacific EMEA Americos Corporate Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Subscription 49.4 107.2 61.6 - 218.2
Maintenance . 45.0 71.7 77.7 - 194.4
Perpetual licences 57.3 86.6 67.7 - 211.6
Services 27.8 48.8 65.8 - 142.4
Regional revenue total 179.5 314.3 272.8 - 766.6
Cost of sales (28.8) (42.6) (66.2) (53.7) (191.3)
Selling and administrative expenses (36.6) {65.9) (60.9) (115.2) (278.6)
Net impairment loss on financial assets (4.0) {1.6) (0.7) - (6.3)
Regional contribution 110.1 204.2 145.0 (168.9) 290.4
Research & Development costs {114.5)
Adjusted EBIT 175.9
Exceptional items, other normalised adjustments! and net interest (129.2)
Profit before tax 46.7

1 Normalised adjustments include amortisation of intangible assets {excluding other software), share-based payments and movements on fair value of forward
exchange contracts.
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4 Segment information continued

Other segmental disclosures

The Company's country of domicile is the UK. Revenue attributed to the UK and all foreign countries amounted to £37.8 million
and £796.0 million (2019: £31.5 million and £735.1 million) respectively. The USA accounted for 25.0% of the Group's revenue
(2019: 26.8%). No other individual country accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue (2019: none). Revenue is
allocated to countries on the basis of the location of the customer. No single external customer accounted for 10% or more of
the Group's total revenue (2019: none).

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and retirement benefits) held in the UK and all foreign countries amounted

to £1,702.2 million and £219.8 million (2019: £1,755.3 million and £148.8 million) respectively. There are material non-current
assets (excluding deferred tax assets) located in the USA amounting to £128.9 million (2019: £113.7 million). There are no material
non-current assets located in any other individual country outside of the UK {2019: none).

5 Selling and administrative expenses
An analysis of selling and administrative expenses is set out below:

2020 2019

£m £m

Selling and distribution expenses 240.1 2356
Administrative expenses 127.7 106.3

s _ e T TTT3e18 3419

— A

6 Profit from operations
Profit from operations is stated after charging:

2020 2019
£m £m
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17.1 -
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment 7.3 5.4
Amortisation of intangible assets:
—included in Research & Development costs 63.5 61.8
—included in selling and distribution expenses 27.1 26.3
- included in administrative expenses 1.1 0.7
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease payments under 1AS 17 - 16.7
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.7 0.1
Net foreign exchange losses 1.3 05

During the year the Group (including its subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Group's auditor at costs as detailed below:

2020 2019
£m £m
Fees payable to the Group auditor for the audit of parent Company and Consolidated financial statements 1.0 0.9
Fees payable to the Group auditor and its associates for other services:
- the audit of the Group’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.7 0.6
| 17 15
7 Exceptional items
2020 2019
£m £m
Acquisition and integration activities 29.0 23.0
Restructuring costs , 1.7 . 5.9
Other income (11.9) -
L 18.8 28.9 |

Acquisition and integration costs incurred related principally to consultancy fees paid to advisers and the costs of additional
temporary resources required for the integration of heritage AVEVA and the Schneider Electric industrial software business (‘SES’).
Key integration activities included work undertaken to exit the Transitional Service Agreements (‘'TSA') provided by Schneider Electric;
costs incurred in the initial design and build phases of a new harmonised global ERP system for the enlarged Group; and assistance
from consultants to the Group in running programmes designed to deliver revenue and cost synergies from the Combination.
Projections relating to the TSA exits and global ERP system continue into the financial year ending 31 March 2021.

Restructuring costs related to severance payments in a number of global office locations. The costs incurred for the year ended
31 March 2020 are a continuation of the project started in the prior year, following the Combination, which is now completed.
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Other income includes a £7.7 million gain on sale of three wholly owned distributor businesses. Wonderware Italy was disposed of

on 30 April 2019, Wonderware Scandinavia on 1 January 2020, and Schneider Electric Software Germany GmbH on 31 january 2020.
Total consideration of £12.4 million was recognised, with £1.4 million of net assets disposed. Goodwill of £3.1 million was allocated to
the three entities disposed of on sale. The gain on sale was recognised net of selling costs of £0.2 million.

Also included in other income is £3.8 million received from Schneider Electric in reimbursement for capital expenditure incurred as part
of the Company’s migration from activities covered by TSAs following the Combination.

The total cash net outflow during the year as a result of exceptional items was £23.3 million (2019: £18.9 million).

Exceptional items were included in the Consolidated income statement as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Cost of sales 0.6 1.9
Research & Development costs 0.4 1.7
Selling and distribution expenses 3.9 12.6
Administrative expenses 25.8 12.7
Other income {11.9) -
| 18.8 28.9
8 Finance revenue
2020 2019
£m £m
Bank interest receivable and other interest earned 0.3 0.2
9 Finance expense
2020 2019
£m £m
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities 0.2 0.2
Bank interest payable and similar charges 0.6 0.5
Interest on lease liabilities 25 -
3.3 0.7
10 Staff costs
Staff costs relating to employees (including Executive Directors) are shown below: .
* 2020 2019
£m £m
Woages and salaries 350.9 339.5
Social security costs 28.7 28.1
Pension costs 19.2 17.5
Share-based payments 12.0 11.2

| 4108 3963

The average number of persons (including Executive Directors) employed by the Group was as follows:

2020 2019
Number Number
Project delivery and customer support 1,678 1,780
Research, development and product support 1,336 1,329
Sales and marketing 1,018 1,001
Administration 523 481
4,555 4,591
Directors' remuneration
The Directors of AVEVA Group plc received remuneration as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
Directors’ remuneration 9.0 10.4
Aggregate gains on the exercise of share options 0.2 -
| 9.2 10.4 |
2020 2019
Number Number

Number of Directors accruing benefits under defined contributions 2 2
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11 Income tax expense
a) Tax on profit
The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Tax charged in Consolidated income statement
Current tax
UK corporation tax 11.1 5.8
Foreign tax 26.3 29.8
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (9.6) (0.5)
! 27.8 35.1 |
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (note 26) {9.9) (22.0)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 4.3 {0.2)
{5.6) (22.2)
Total income tax expense reported in Consolidated income statément ™" - e 222 129 |
2020 2019
£m £m
Tax relating to items charged directly to Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Deferred tax on actuarial remeasurements on retirement benefits 1.2 0.4

Tix charge reported:in Concolidated ctatement of comprehsnsivaincome .. '~ .o 5

. [ W

sl 1 AR

o el

b) Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The differences between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of US (2019: US)

corporation tax to the profit before tax are as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Tax on Group profit before tax at standard US (2019: US) corporation tax rate of 24% (2019: 24%) 221 11.2
Effects of:
— expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2.0 1.9
— Research & Development incentives (5.8) (4.1}
- UK rate change impact on deferred tax 8.9 -
- irrecoverable withholding tax 1.2 0.7
- movement on unprovided deferred tax balances {1.1) 1.4
- differing tax rates 0.2 25
- adjustments in respect of prior years (5.3) (0.7)
b!ncome tax expense reported in Consolidated income statement 22.2 129 [

The Group’s effective tax rate for the year was: 24.1% (2019: 27.6%). The Group's effective tax rate for the year before exceptional
items was 24.2% (2019: 22.9%j). The Group's effective tax rate before exceptional and other normalised adjustments was 18.1%

(2019: 20.2%).

12 Dividends paid and proposed on equity shares

The following dividends were declared, paid and proposed in relation to the legal entity AVEVA Group plc:

2020 2019
£m £m

Declared and paid during the year

Interim 2019/20 dividend paid of 15.5 pence {2018/19: 14.0 pence) per ordinary share 25.0 225

Final 2018/19 dividend paid of 29.0 pence {2017/18: 27.0 pence) per ordinary share 46.7 435

i 717 66.0 |

Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

Final proposed dividend 2019/20 of 29.0 pence (2018/19: 29.0 pence) per ordinary share 46.8 46.8 |

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 21 July 2020 and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements. If approved at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on

11 August 2020 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 10 July 2020.
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13 Earnings per share

2020 2019
Pence Pence
Earnings per share for the year:

"~ basic 43.35 20.97
— diluted 43.13 20.90
Adjusted earnings per share for the year:

- basic 108.70 86.91
—diluted 108.15 86.60
2020 2019

Number Number

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 161,046,059 161,081,559
Effect of dilution: employee share options 826,621 589,978
;\Neighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 161,872,680 161,671,537

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the
year of £69.8 million (2019: £33.8 million). Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of AVEVA Group plc ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year as described above, plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the potentially dilutive share options into ordinary shares. Details of the
terms and conditions of share options are provided in note 28.

Details of the calculation of adjusted earnings per share are set out below:

2020 2019

£m £m

Profit after tax for the year 69.8 33.8
Intangible amortisation (excluding software) 90.6 88.1
Share-based payments 12.0 11.2
Loss on fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 0.4 0.5
Exceptional items 18.8 28.9
Tax effect on exceptional items (4.6) (4.4)
Tax effect on other normalised adjustments {excluding net finance expense} (12.0) (18.1)
Adjusted profit after tax 175.0 140.0

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

The adjustment made to profit after tax in calculating adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the
tax effects of the items adjusted. The Directors believe that adjusted earnings per share is more representative of the underlying
performance of the business.

14 Business combinations

Acquisition of AssetPlus

On 17 April 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of AssetPlus. This represented the software assets of MaxGrip,

a pioneer in optimising asset performance with Reliability Centred Maintenance ('RCM’} solutions. This acquisition enhances the
Group's Asset Performance Management (‘APM’) offering by providing a templated approach to asset strategy optimisation and
RCM software for risk-based maintenance. Additionally, MaxGrip's rich library of asset fault codes and remediations strengthens the
Group’s predictive asset analytics capabilities and accelerates the deployment of artificial intelligence for prescriptive maintenance.

AssetPlus revenues are predominantly subscription fees, recognised in the EMEA operating segment.
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14 Business combinations continued
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of AssetPlus as at the date of acquisition were:

Carrying

value at Fair value
acquisition adjustment Fair value
£m £m £m
Intangible assets 2.4 115 13.9
Trade receivables 14 - 1.4
Contract assets 0.2 - 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents (0.6) - (0.6)
Trade and other payables (0.9) - (0.9)
Contract liabilities (0.6) 0.3 (0.3)
Deferred tax : - (3.4) (3.4)
Net assets acquired 1.9 8.4 10.3
Goodwill : 11.3
Total consideration 21.6

The goodwill recognised is primarily attributed to the expected synergies and other benefits from combining the assets and activities
of AssetPlus with those of the Group.

The consideration of £21.6 million was settled in cash. The associated transaction costs of £0.3 million were expensed and are
included in Selling and administrative expenses.

Revenue and contributed net profit before tax from the date of acquisition are immaterial to the Group. If the acquisition had taken
place at the beginning of the year, revenue and contributed net profit before tax would also be immaterial.

Acquisition of ErrorSolver assets

in January 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of the trade and assets of MESEnter Co. Ltd. The acquisition included the
software and IP pertaining to ErrorSolver, a production accounting and hydrocarbon loss management tool developed by MESEnter
Co. Ltd. The total consideration of £2.9 million was settled in cash, and allocated to intangibles in full, as there were no other
separately identifiable assets nor goodwill.

Disposal of Wonderware distributor businesses
During the year, the Group disposed of three wholly owned distributor businesses, recognising a gain on sale of £7.7 million. Further
details are included in note 7.

15 Goodwill
2020 2019
. £m £m
At 1 April 1,285.3 1,2835
Acquisitions? 11.3 -
Disposals! ’ (3.1) -
Exchange adjustment 2.2 18
At 31 March 12057 12853 |

H

1 Acquisitions and disposals have been allocated to the EMEA CGU.

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible asset impairment review
The following table shows the allocation of the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets {(purchosed brands) at

the end of the year by CGU.

Goodwill Purchased brands

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m £m £m £m
Asia Pacific 2834 282.9 16.0 16.0
EMEA 624.2 615.1 347 347
Americas 388.1 387.3 25.3 253
| 1,2957  1,285.3 76.0 76.0

The Group tests goodwill and purchased brands annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. In 2019/20 the goodwill impairment testing was carried out on a VIU basis using the most recently approved
management budgets for the year ending 31 March 2021 together with the most recent three-year business plan extrapolated to a
duration of five years in total by applying medium-term growth rates to year three forecasts.
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Projected cash flows beyond five years have been assumed at the long-term growth rate for that region and these have been used to
formulate a terminal value for the discounted cash flow calculation in perpetuity.

Key assumptions

The key assumptions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate to:
- discount rates;

— long-term growth rates; and

— operating margins.

Discount rates: The cash flow projections have been discounted using the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of capital adjusted
for the country and market risk.

Long-term growth rates: Long-term growth rates used are assumed to be equal to the long-term growth rate in the gross domestic
product of the region in which the CGU operates.

Operating margin: Operating margins are based upon past results. These are increased over the forecast period for planned
improvements in gross margin, driven by a changing sales mix towards more profitable product streams. In addition, cost
management strategies are assumed to be implemented that limit operating expense increases to on or around inflation.

Covid-19

The full impact of Covid-19 on the Group's future cash flows and the global economy is still uncertain. In response, management
budgets and three-year business plans were revised. Future revenue growth was reduced by over 50% and improvements in operating
margins decreased. This revision assumes a significant, ongoing economic impact from the pandemic, and that this impact is spread
proportional to revenue in the year ending 31 March 2020 across all CGUs. The cash flows used in the VIU model represent the Group's
best estimate using the information available as at 31 March 2020.

Medium and long-term growth rates are obtained from the OECD, an independent intergovernmental economic organisation. These
growth rates had not been revised for the potential impact of Covid-19 as at 31 March 2020. No evidence was identified to support a
longer term, sustained decline in GDP growth. It was concluded these growth rates still represented the best estimate of medium and
long-term economic performance, based on the information available.

The key assumptions used in the VIU model were as follows:

Discount rate Long-term growth rate Average operating margin
2020 2019 Break-even! ' 2020 2019 Break-event 2020 2019 Breok-event!
Asia Pacific 15.4% 16.3% 21.4% 1.9% 1.7% (10.3%) 31.0% 32.6% 21.7%
EMEA 12.6% 12.9% 15.9% 1.9% 1.9% (3.6%) 30.3% 35.2% 23.4%
Americas 11.7% 13.1% 14.5% 1.9% 1.9% (2.5%) 25.6% 24.0% 20.2%

1 The break-even rate is the rate at which headroom within the CGU is reduced to nil, if all other assumptions remain unchanged. This is included for illustrative purposes, and
does not reflect a reasonably foreseeable change in assumptions.

Summary of results
During the year all goodwill and purchased brands were tested for impairment, with no impairment charge resulting.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

The Group has considered the impact of changes in future cash flows and key assumptions on the base case VIU model, to create a
sensitised VIU model. In response to a potentially more severe impact from Covid-19 than presented in the base case, future revenue
and operating margins were significantly reduced. This represents a ‘worst case’ scenario, and is based upon Scenario 1 as presented
in the Group's going concern statement in note 2a. The considerations in creating this scenario included:

— severe business disruption as a result of stay-at-home orders being in place almost globally for 12-18 months;

- the global economy suffering a major recession; and

— oil prices remaining depressed for the next financial year.

In addition, long-term growth rates were decreased to model a potential long-term impact upon GDP growth.
It was concluded that even the sensitised VIU model does not result in an impairment.

The headroom (i.e. the excess of the value of discounted future cash flows over the carrying amount of the CGU) under both the base
case and worst case scenario is below:

2020 2019
Base case!  Sensitised? Base case? Sensitised?
Asia Pacific 44% 17% 57% 43%
EMEA 31% 6% 56% 40%
Americas 28% 3% 23% 11%

1 The excess of the recoverable amount over the carrying amount of the CGU before applying sensitivities,
2 Headroom after adjusting future cash flows and key assumptions to create a sensitised ‘worst case’ VIU model.
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16 Intangible assets

Purchosed Purchased Capitalised
Developed Customer brand and Other software  Favourable  Research &
technology relationships trademarks software rights lease Development Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2018 140.5 234.2 102.3 6.7 323.6 14.9 47.5 869.7
Additions - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Disposals - (0.3) - - (0.3) - (11.4) (12.0)
Exchange adjustment 10.6 6.2 2.0 0.1 1.1 - 1.8 21.8
At 31 March 2019 151.1 240.1 104.3 7.0 3244 149 379 879.7
Reclassification to right-of-use asset! - - - - - (14.9) - (14.9)
At 1 April 2019 151.1 240.1 104.3 7.0 3244 - 379 864.8
Additions - - - 0.6 - - - 0.6
Acquisition of business 16.2 0.6 - - - - - 16.8
Disposals - - - (0.5) (0.2) - - {0.7)
Transfer? 308.9 - - - - - -
Exchange adjustment 8.2 47 15 0.3 - (0.1) 15.4
At 31 March 2020 e . . 4844 7 24541098 74 - 37878969
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2018 73.8 47.4 14.0 44 12.3 0.1 389 190.9
Charge for the year 18.7 225 33 0.7 395 0.5 3.6 88.8
Disposals - (0.3) - - (0.3) - (11.4) (12.0)
Exchange adjustment 5.7 3.8 11 0.1 0.3 - 15 125
At 31 March 2019 98.2 73.4 184 5.2 51.8 0.6 326 280.2
Reclassification to right-of-use asset® = - - - - {0.6) - {0.6)
At 1 April 2019 98.2 73.4 18.4 5.2 51.8 - 326 279.6
Charge for the year 59.7 235 3.6 1.1 1.6 - 2.2 91.7
Disposals - - - (0.5) (0.2) - - (0.7)
Transfer? 41.9 - - (41.9) - - -
Exchange adjustment 5.7 35 0.2 1.0 - - 11.5
?\t 31March2020 .. .. __._ .. 2055 . ...1004 231 6.0 _ 123 -.....348 382.1 I
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 66.7 186.8 88.3 23 311.3 14.8 8.6 678.8
At 31 March 2019 52.9 166.7 85.9 1.8 2726 14.3 53 5995
At 1 April 2019 52.9 166.7 85.9 1.8 2726 - 5.3 585.2
/at 31 March 2020 278.9 145.0 82.7 1.4 3.8 - 3.0 514.8

€

1 The Group adopted the modified retrospective approach on the transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2019. Under this methodology opening balances as at 1 April 2019 are
adjusted to reflect IFRS 16, whilst prior year numbers are not restated and are as historically presented under JAS 17. Consequently, the favourable lease asset has been
added to the value of its respective right-of-use asset at the transition date.

2 During the year assets with a cost of £308.9 million, accumulated amortisation of £41.9 million and net book value of £267.0 million were transferred from purchased
software rights to developed technology, which is considered to better represent the nature of the assets.

For the purposes of the adjusted earnings per share calculation {note 13), intangible asset amortisation excludes the charge relating to
other software of £1.1 million (2019: £0.7 million).
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17 Property, plant and equipment

Long Fixtures,
leasehold fittings and
buildings and Computer office Mator
improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2018 8.0 17.2 7.6 0.9 337
Additions 1.6 4.9 0.6 0.3 7.4
Disposals - (1.1) (0.2) (0.1) (1.4)
Exchange adjustment 0.2 0.7 0.4 - 13
At 31 March 2019 9.8 217 8.4 11 41.0
Additions 6.5 6.8 5.2 - 18.5
Disposals {1.0) (2.6) (1.6) (0.7) {5.9)
Exchange adjustment - 0.3 0.3 (0.1) 0.5
§At 31 March 2020 15.3 26.2 12.3 0.3 54.1
Depreciation
At 1 April 2018 35 109 4.3 0.2 18.9
Charge for the year 1.0 3.2 0.9 0.3 5.4
Disposals . - (1.0} (0.2) (0.1) (1.3)
Exchange adjustment 0.1 05 0.3 - 0.9
At 31 March 2019 4.6 13.6 5.3 0.4 23.9
Charge for the year 1.6 4.4 1.0 03 73
Disposals . (1.0) (2.3) (1.5) (0.4) (5.2)
Exchange adjustment 0.1 0.2 0.2 - 0.5
At31March 2020 e, T T U837 159 5.0 0.3 26.5 |
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 4.5 6.3 3.3 0.7 148
At 31 March 2019 5.2 8.1 3.1 0.7 17.1
fAt 31 March 2020 10.0 10.3 7.3 - 27.6

18 Investments ’ : .
The Group consists of a parent company, AVEVA Group plc, incorporated in the UK, and a number of subsidiaries held directly or

" indirectly by AVEVA Group plc, which operate and are incorporated around the world, each contributing to the Group's profits, assets
and cash flows.

The Group's percentage of equity capital and voting rights is 100%.
The results of all subsidiaries have been consolidated in these financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the Group held the following principal investments. The addresses of all subsidiaries, principal or dormant, are
provided on pages 169 to 171.

Country of Country of

incorporation : incorporation

or registration or registration
AVEVA Financing Limited United Kingdom Schneider Electric Software Italia S.p.A Italy
AVEVA Solutions Limited United Kingdom AVEVA KK Japan
Schneider Electric Software GB Limited United Kingdom Schneider Electric Software Japan Inc Japan
Schneider Electric Software Argentina S.A. Argentina AVEVA Korea Limited Korea
AVEVA Pty Ltd Australia Schneider Electric Software Korea Ltd Korea
AVEVA Software Australia Holdings Pty Ltd  Australia AVEVA Sendirian Berhad Malaoysia
Schneider Electric Software Australia Pty Ltd Australia AVEVA Asia Pacific Sendirian Berhad Malaysia
AVEVA do Brasil Informdtica Ltda. Brazil Schneider Electric Software Mexico SA de CV Mexico
Schneider Electric Software Brasil Ltda. Brazil Asset+ Solutions BV Netherlands
Schneider Electric Software Canada inc. Canada Schneider Electric Software Holdings Netherlands  Netherlands

BV

Schneider Electric Software Chile SpA Chile Schneider Electric Software Netherlands BV Netherlands
AVEVA (Shanghai) Consultancy Co. Limited  Chino AVEVA AS Norway
AVEVA Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Limited China AVEVA Limited Liability Company Russia
Telvent Control System (China) Co. Limited China Schneider Electric Software RU Russia

Schneider Electric Software Colombia S.A.S. Colombia AVEVA Pte Limited Singapore
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18 Investments continued

Country of
incorporation
or registration

Country of
incorporation
or registration

AVEVA Denmark A/S Denmark Schneider Electric Software Holdings Singapore
Singapore PTE Ltd
AVEVA SA France Schneider Electric Software Spain S.L. Spain
Schneider Electric Software France SAS France AVEVA AB Sweden
AVEVA GmbH Germany Schneider Electric Software (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand
AVEVA East Asia Limited Hong Kong Schneider Electric Software Middle East FZE United Arab
Emirates
AVEVA Solutions India LLP India AVEVA Inc. United States
of America
AVEVA Information Technology India India AVEVA Software, LLC United States
Private Limited of America
Schneider Electric Software India India
Private Limited
19 Trade and other receivables
2020 2019
£m £m
Current
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables 181.2 1749
Amounts owed from related parties (note 30) 284 35.5
Prepayments and other receivables 32.6 28.3
o T—— T ISRl 2422 2387 |

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of between 30 and 90 days. The Directors consider that the

carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

2020 2019

£m £m
Non-current
Trade and other receivables 4.4 2.2
oo o S oz TSR X 2.2
As at 31 March 2020, the provision for impairment of receivables was £7.6 million {2019: £7.2 million} and an analysis of the
movements during the year was as follows:

£m

At 1 April 2018 1.8
Charge for the year 6.3
Utilised (0.7)
Exchange adjustment (0.2)
At 31 March 2019 7.2
Charge for the year 29
Utilised (2.2)
Disposals (0.3)
las at 31 March 2020 7.6 |
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As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade receivables and amounts owed from related parties (net of provision for impairment) was

as follows:
Past due not impoired
Neither past Eightto More than
due nor Less than  Four to eight twelve twelve
Total impaired  four months months months months
£m £m £m £m £m £m
2020 .
Trade receivables 181.2 1211 3.0 4.6 -
Amounts owed from related parties 28.4 18.1 1.5 0.4
! lllll s LI iy g AN, T S T o [ N ORI R0 o Mo R 0. - X VA
2019 :
Trade receivables 174.9 122.4 45.6 5.1 1.8 -
Amounts owed from related parties 35.5 29.0 45 0.5. 15 -
210.4 151.4 50.1 5.6 3.3 -
Further disclosures relating to the credit quality of trade receivables are included in note 25.
20 Cash and cash equivalents
2020 2019
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand : 112.8 126.5
Short-term deposits 1.7 0.7
Net cash and cash equivalents per cash flow 1145 127.2
Treasury deposits . 0.1 0.6
| : 114.6 127.8 |

Treasury deposits represent bank deposits with an original maturity of over three months and are held with a fixed rate of interest.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective fixed short-term deposit rates.

Further disclosures relating to credit quality of cash and cash equivalents and treasury deposits are included in note 25.

21 Trade and other payables

. ‘2020 2019
£m £m

Current
Trade payables 20.1 20.3
Amounts owed to related parties {note 30) 7.6 10.5
Social security, employee taxes and sales taxes 18.5 22.6
Accruals 99.1 100.5
Other payables 4.1 2.9
149.4 156.8

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of between 30 and 60 days. Social security, employee
taxes and sales taxes are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms of between 19 and 30 days. The Directors consider
that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.
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22 Loans and borrowings

As at 31 March 2020 the Group had access to £100.0 million under a revolving credit facility (2019: £100.0 million), of which none was
drawn down (2019: none).

The revolving credit facility permits 15 loans to be outstanding at any one time. Interest on drawings is calculated at LIBOR plus a
margin, initially 0.5%, rising only if net leverage position deteriorates considerably. Additionally, a quarterly commitment fee is charged
on the undrawn facility at 35% of the margin. The three-year revolving credit facility was entered into in March 2018. During the
second half of the year, the option to extend on the same terms was exercised. The facility expires on 1 March 2023.

23 Financial liabilities

2020 2019
£m £m

Current

Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 0.4 0.1

24 Leases

a) Background

As at 31 March 2020, the Group was entered into lease contracts as a lessee for various properties, vehicles, and items of office
equipment for use in its operations. The Group does not operate as a lessor. For details of occountmg policies refer to note 2c, and note
32 for the transitional impact of the change from 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 to IFRS 16.

b) Right-of-use assets
Set out below are the carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the movements during the period:

Long

leasehold Office Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
£m £m £m £m
As at 1 April 2019 73.2 0.2 27 76.1
Additions . 18.6 0.2 2.4 21.2
Remeasurement! (0.3) - (0.2) (0.5)
Depreciation expense (15.4) (0.1) (1.6) (17.1)
Exchange adjustment 0.4 - - 0.4
Disposal of subsidiary (0.1) - (0.5) {0.6)

As ot March 2020, =

I T R il B+ L e AL Ty T L

i

1 Lease liabilities are remeasured when a change to future contractual cash flows is identified. Remeasurements were made in the year based upon changes in indexation
and rates on variable lease payments, and changes in the lease term. The carrying value of the corresponding right-of-use asset is also remeasured to reflect this change
in lease liabilities.

¢) Lease liabilities
Set out below for the Group's lease liabilities are the carrying amounts and movements during the period:

Long
teasehold Office Motor
buildings equipment vehicles . Total
£m £m £m £m
As at 1 April 2019 62.0 0.2 27 64.9
Additions 186 0.2 2.4 21.2
Remeasurement!? (0.3) - (0.2) (0.5)
Accretion of interest 2.4 - 0.1 2.5
Payments (16.2) (0.1) (1.7) (18.0)
Exchange adjustment ‘ 0.4 - - 0.4
Disposal of subsidiary (0.1} - {0.5) {0.6)
§As at 31 March 2020 66.8 0.3 2.8 69.9 ]
Current 15.1 0.1 1.4 16.6
Non-current 51.7 0.2 1.4 53.3

1 Leaseliobilities are remeasured when a change to future contractual cash flows is identified. Remeasurements were made in the year based upon changes in indexation and
rates on variable lease payments, and changes in the lease term.

The potential impact of lease covenants is considered to be immaterial.

A maturity analysis of lease liabilities is included within note 25c.
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d) Income statement impact
The following items have been recognised in the Consolidated income statement:

2020

£m

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 17.1

Interest on lease liabilities 2.5

Expense relating to short-term leases 5.4

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets -
| ‘ 25.0 |

Following the combination with SES in 2018, the Group entered into TSAs with Schneider Electric for central support'services and
office sharing. These were scheduled to end in February 2020, and were accounted for as short-term leases on transition to IFRS 16.
A total expense in the year ended 31 March 2020 of £1.9 million was recognised within short-term leases.

These leases were reassessed in early 2020, and it was determined several of these TSAs would require extending into the year ending
31 March 2021. It is expected that an additional £0.1 million will be incurred. The remaining short-term lease portfolio is expected to
remain consistent year-on-year.

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of £23.4 million.

25 Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and short-term deposits, and forward-foreign exchange contracts. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, trade payables and borrowings, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall
be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing such risks on a regular basis as summarised below:

a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk

- exposures within acceptable parameters. -

Interest rate risk
The Group holds net funds and hence its interest rate risk is associated with short-term cash deposits. The Group’s overall objective
with respect to holding these deposits is to maintain a balance between security of funds, accessibility and competitive rates of return.

For the presentation of market risks, IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analysis that show the effects of hypothetical changes of relevant
risk variables on profit or loss and shareholders’ equity. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates on its cash and cash
equivalents. Borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest. The impact is determined by applying sensitised interest rates to the cash and
cash equivalents balances.

A 1% decrease in the Sterling and US Dollar interest rates would not have had any impact on interest income (2019: no impact) or
profit after tax (2019: no impact).

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises from the Group undertaking a significant number of foreign currency transactions in the course of
operations. These exposures arise from sales in currencies other than the Group's presentational currency of Sterling.

The Group manages exchange risks, where possible, by using forward foreign exchange contracts. The Group enters into forward
foreign exchange contracts to match forecast cash flows arising from its recurring revenue base. In addition, it enters into specific
forward foreign exchange contracts for individually significant revenue contracts, when the timing of forecast cash flows is reasonably
certain. Other currency exposures are harder to hedge cost effectively. At 31 March 2020, the Group had outstanding currency
exchange contracts to sell of $21.9 million (2019: $8.2 million) and €5.6 million {2019: €3.1 million).
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25 Financial risk management continued
The Group has not applied hedge accounting during the current year and therefore all gains and losses on forward foreign exchange
contracts have been included in the Consolidated income statement.

The Group has investments in foreign operations whose net assets are exposed to currency translation risk. Gains and losses arising
from these structural currency exposures are recognised in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
For the presentation of market risks, IFRS 7 requires sensitivity analysis that shows the effect of hypothetical changes in the foreign

exchange rates in profit or loss or shareholders’ equity. The impact is determined by applying the sensitised foreign exchange rate to
the monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Currency risks as defined by IFRS 7 arise on account of financial instruments being denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency and being of a monetary nature; differences resulting from the translation of financial statements into the Group's
presentation currency are not taken into consideration.

A 10% change in the US Dollar and Euro against Sterling would have impacted equity and profit after tax by the amounts shown
below as at the reporting date shown. In management’s opinion, this is a reasonably possible change given current market conditions.
Our analysis indicates that a 10% change in other currencies would not have a significant impact. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates and other foreign currencies, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for

2018/19.
Increase/
(decrease) in  Profit/(loss) Equity
31 March 2020 average rate £m £m
US Dollar 10% (5.8) (5.8)
(10%) 5.4 5.4
Euro 10% (0.7) (0.7)
(10%) 0.6 0.6
Increase/
{decrease) in Profit/(loss) Equity
31 March 2019 : average rate £m £m
US Dollar 10% (2.2) (2.2)
(10%) 24 2.4
Euro 10% (2.4) (2.4)
(10%} 2.6 2.6

b) Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and contract assets.

Counterparties for cash and cash equivalents are governed by the treasury policy, which has been approved by the Board, and are
limited to financial institutions which have a high credit rating assigned by international credit rating agencies. As set out in the Group's
treasury policy, the amount of exposure to each counterparty is subject to a specific limit, up to a maximum of 50% of the Group's total
counterparty risk. Within this overall limit, some counterparties are subject to more restrictive caps on counterparty exposure.

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties and provides credit to customers in the normal course of business.
The amounts presented in the Consolidated balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. Expected credit loss
allowances are made against trade receivables based on credit risk characteristics. The Group has credit control functions to monitor
receivable balances on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are performed before credit is granted to new customers. Due to the credit
control procedures in place, we believe all the receivables are of good quality. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a large number of customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset. The exposure to credit risk is mitigated where necessary by either letters of credit or payments in advance.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
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The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity of financial assets and liabilities. As at 31 March 2020 the Group has access to undrawn borrowing

facilities of £100.0 million {2019: £100.0 million).

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities, which will be settled on a net basis, into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Between
three months  Between six
Less than and six monthsand Greater than
three months months one year one year
As at 31 March 2020 £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 20.2 11 0.4 25
Amounts owed to related parties 5.7 0.9 0.6 0.4
Lease liabilities 5.1 4.9 8.8 59.3
| 31.0 6.9 9.8 62.2
Between
R three months  Between six
Less than andsix  monthsand  Greater than
three months months one year one year
As at 31 March 2019 £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 19.0 0.4 1.2 26
Amounts owed to related parties 5.6 3.0 1.6 0.3
246 34 2.8 2.9

The table below analyses the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts, which will be settled on a gross basis, into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Between
three months  Between six

Less than and six monthsand Greater than

three months months one year one year

As ot 31 March 2020 ‘m ‘m ‘m ‘m
Forward foreign exchange contracts (GBP/EUR})

Outflow €25 €2.1 €1.0 -

Inflow - £2.2 £1.9 £0.9 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts (GBP/USD)

Outflow $10.9 $3.0 $8.0 -

Inflow £8.4 £2.3 £6.6 -

Between
three months  Between six

Less than andsix  monthsond  Greater than

three months months one year one year

As at 31 March 2019 ‘m ‘m ‘m ‘m
Forward foreign exchange contracts (GBP/EUR)

Outflow €16 €1.0 €0.5 -

Inflow £1.4 £0.9 £0.4 -
Forward foréign exchange contracts (GBP/USD)

Outflow $3.2 $4.0 $1.0 -

Inflow £2.4 £3.0 f£0.7 -

d) Fair values

The book values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities consist of bank and cash balances of £114.5 million (2019: £127.2 million)
and treasury deposits of £0.1 million (2019: £0.6 million). The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities in the Group's

financial statements approximates their fair values.
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25 Financial risk management continued
In addition, the Group's financial assets include forward foreign exchange contracts. Financial instruments that are recognised at fair
value subsequent to initial recognition are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable. The

" three levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

At 31 March 2020, the Group had forward foreign exchange contracts which were measured at Level 2 fair value subsequent to
initial recognition. The fair value of the liability in respect of foreign exchange contracts was £0.4 million at 31 March 2020 (2019:
£0.1 million).

The resulting loss of £0.4 million (2019: loss of £0.5 million} on the movement of the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
recognised in the Consolidated income statement within administrative expenses.

e) Capital management

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, market, creditor, customer and employee confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to the equity
holders of AVEVA Group plc comprising issued share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares.

The Board monitors the capital structure on a regular basis and determines the level of annual dividend. The Group is not exposed to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

26 Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and the movements thereon, during the current
and previous year:

Other

Retirement Intangible Share temporary
benefit assets options Losses differences?! Totol
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2018 0.6 (120.8) 0.7 0.6 (2.6) (121.5)
Credit to income statement (0.4) 15.9 1.3 (0.6) 6.0 22.2
Charge to other comprehensive income {0.4) - - - - (0.4)
Credited to equity - - 1.2 - - 1.2
Exchange adjustment - (2.0) - - 10 (1.0)
At 31 March 2019 (0.2) (106.9) 3.2 - 4.4 (99.5)
Acquired = (3.4} - - - (3.4)
Credit to income statement (0.4) 9.8 1.2 1.5 (6.5) 5.6
Charge to other comprehensive income (1.2) - - - - (1.2)
Credited to equity - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Exchange adjustment - (1.4) - (0.2) (0.9) (2.5)

tAt 31 March 2020 {1.8) (101.9) 4.6 1.3 (3.0) (100.8)l

1 Other temporary differences consist principally of deferred tax on fixed assets, expenses deductible in future and timing differences in respect of revenue recognition.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes:

2020 2019
£m £m

Deferred tax liabilities (119.9) (111.3)

Deferred tax assets 19.1 11.8

| (100.8)  (99.5)f

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses of £45.4 million (2019: £28.3 million) available for offset against future
profits. Losses of £1.9 million {2019: no losses) expire after ten years and losses of £9.4 million (2019: £9.5 million) expire after 20
years. All other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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Itis likely that the majority of the overseas earnings would qualify for the UK dividend exemption. However, £48.3 million (2019: £39.5
million) of the undistributed earnings of overseas subsidiaries may still result in a tax liability principally as a result of withholding
toxes levied by the overseas jurisdictions in which they operate. A deferred tax liability of £0.5 million {2019: £nil) has been provided
for withholding tax that is expected to be incurred on the payment of intra-Group dividends. No liability has been recognised for the
remaining overseas earnings because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

27 Retirement benefits
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, Germany, Italy and Sweden. The Group also provides certain post-
retirement benefits to employees in Australia, India, Japan, Saudi Arabia and UAE.

The movement on the retirement benefit surplus and obligations was as follows:

UK Germany ltaly  South Korea Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 March 2018 (5.6} 2.9 18 1.6 4.5 5.2
Current service cost - 0.1 0.3 0.2 1.1 1.7
Past service cost 0.8 - - 0.3 - 11
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities 2.0 - - - 0.2 2.2
Return on pension scheme assets - {1.9) - - - - (1.9)
Actuarial remeasurements {0.8) - 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.5
Employer contributions (1.6) (0.1} (0.2) (0.1) (0.9) (2.9)
Exchange adjustment . - - - - 0.1 0.1
At 31 March 2019 (7.1) 29 2.6 2.4 52 6.0
Additions - - 0.3 - - 0.3
Current service cost - 0.3 0.2 0.2 1.0 1.7
Net interest on pension scheme liabilities 1.9 - - - 0.2 21
Return on pension scheme assets (1.8) - - - (0.1) (1.9)
Actuarial remeasurements {6.3) (0.1) (0.2) - 0.4 (6.2)
Employer contributions (1.6) (0.1) (0.4) (0.1) (0.7) (2.9)
Disposal - - (0.8) (2.4) - (3.2)
Exchange adjustment - 0.1 0.1 (0.1) (0.1) -
At 31 March 2020 (14.9) 3.1 1.8 - 5.9 @.9)]

During the year to 31 March 2020, the defined benefit scheme operated in South Korea was converted to a defined contribution
scheme. A gain on disposal of £0.4 million is recognised in other income. A retirement benefit scheme held in Italy was disposed of on
sale of the Wonderware Italy subsidiary.

The 2018/19 past service cost recognised in the UK defined benefit scheme relates to the amendment of certain historical pension
schemes to equalise benefits for men and women. This adjustment was made as a result of the judgement issued by the High Court of
Justice of England and Wales on 26 October 2018 regarding the rights of female members of certain pension schemes to equality of
treatment in relation to pension benefits.

The following is the analysis of the retirement benefit balances:

2020 2019
£m £m

Retirement benefit surplus (14.9) {7.1)

Retirement benefit obligations 10.8 13.1

| (4.1) 6.0 |

The UK defined benefit scheme surplus has been recognised as a non-current asset as the Group has a right to any remaining surplus
after all liabilities are paid. The Trustees may not distribute any surplus without the agreement of the Group. If such agreement is
withheld, the Trustees are required to repay any remaining funds to the Group.

a) UK defined benefit scheme

The Group operates a UK defined benefit pension plan providing benefits based on final pensionable pay which is funded. This scheme
was closed to new employees on 30 September 2002 (with the option of reopening if required) and was converted to a Career Average
Revalued Earnings basis on 30 September 2004. The scheme closed to future benefit accrual with effect from 1 April 2015. Pensions
are also payable to dependants on death. Administration on behalf of the members is governed by a trust deed, and the funds are held
and managed by professional investment managers who are independent of the Group.

Contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with advice from an external, professionally qualified actuary, Broadstone
Corporate Benefits Limited. at rates which are calculated to be sufficient to meet the future liabilities of the scheme. Scheme assets are
stated at their market values. The most recent completed triennial actuarial assessment of the Scheme was performed on 31 March 2020.
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
The principal assumptions used in determining the pension valuation were as follows:

2020 2019
% %

Main assumptions:
Discount rate 2.2 25
Inflation assumption - RPI 2.9 3.6
Rate of salary increases 4.9 5.6
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 2.8 33
Rate of increase of pensions in deferment 2.2 2.6
Cash commutation 20% of pension 20% of pension

The duration of the scheme liabilities is estimated to be 16 years.

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the mortality assumptions adopted imply the following weighted average life
expectancies at age 65:

2020 2019
Years Years
Male currently aged 65 226 225
Female currently aged 65 23.7 235
Male currently aged 45 23.6 235
Female currently aged 45 24.9 247

Company contributions were £1.6 million (2019: £1.6 million), comprising deficit contributions totalling £1.4 million (2019: £1.4 million)
per annum plus an administration charge of £0.2 million (2019: £0.2 million). The total contributions in 2020/21 is expected to be
approximately £0.2 million.

The assumed discount rate, inflation rate and mortality all have a significant effect on the IAS 19 accounting valuation. The following

table shows the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in these assumptions: .
Impact on liabilities
increase/{decrease)

2020 2019
£m £m
0.25 percentage point increase to:
—discount rate (2.9) (3.2)
- inflation (including pension increases linked to inflation) ’ 2.0 2.3
Additional one-year increase to life expectancy . 3.0 3.2
The assets and liabilities of the scheme at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
Equities 18.5 31.0
Bonds 28.2 28.7
Other 43.3 25.1
Total fair value of assets 90.0 84.8
Present value of scheme liabilities (75.1) (77.7)

:Net pension asset 149 7.1

-
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The amounts recognised in the Consolidated income statement and Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year are

analysed as follows:

2020 2019
£m £m
Selling and administrative expenses
Past service cost - 0.8
Finance revenue
Interest income on pension scheme assets (1.9) (1.9)
Finance costs
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 1.9 2.0
Taken to Consolidated statement of comprehensive income )
Actual return on pension scheme assets 5.4 3.7
Less: interest income on pension scheme assets (1.9) (1.9}
35 1.8
Changes in assumptions and experience adjustments on liabilities 27 (1.0)
tRemeusurement gain on defined benefit plan 6.2 0.8 !
Analysis of movements in the present value of the defined benefit pension obligations during the year are analysed as follows:
2020 2019
£m £m
At 1 April 77.7 77.8
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 1.9 2.0
Benefits paid (1.8) (3.9)
Actuarial loss due to experience (1.7) 0.1
Actuarial loss due to changes in the economic assumptions (1.2) 2.2
Actuarial gain due to changes in the demographic assumptions 0.2 (1.3)
Past service cost - 0.8
At 31 March ‘ 75.1 777 |
The above defined benefit obligation arises from a plan that is wholly funded.
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
. . : -2020 2019
£m £m
At 1 April ’ 84.8 83.4
Interest income 1.9 19
Contributions by employer 1.6 1.6
Benefits paid {1.8) (3.9)
Actual return less interest in income . 35 1.8
At 31 March 90.0 84.8 |
b) German defined benefit schemes
The Group operates five schemes in Germany that are accounted for under IAS 19. All are unfunded, with benefits paid as they
become due.
Scheme type Schemes Payable on Status
Defined benefit 4 Throughout retirement Closed to new applicants
Anniversary payments 1 Achievement of service milestones Closed to new applicants
Details of the actuarial assumptions used to value these schemes in accordance with IAS 19 are set out below:
2020 2019
Rate of increase of pension in payment 1.8-2.5% 1.8-2.5%
Discount rate 0.2-1.8% 1.3%
Mortality 13-20 years 13-20 years
Retirement age 60-63 60-63

The Group is also responsible for the pension obligations of six former Bocad employees. This liability is covered by an external
insurance provider, with the Group being liable only if the external insurance provider defaults.
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27 Retirement benefit obligations continued
¢} Italy defined benefit scheme
Several employees have an accrued entitlement to a defined benefit termination indemnity payment (‘TFR’). The plan is unfunded.

Details of the actuarial assumptions used to value this scheme in accordance with IAS 19 are set out below:

2020 2019
Discount rate 1.6% 1.2%
Inflation rate 0.8% 1.3%
Rate of salary increases 1.3% 1.8%

Some employees have chosen to have some (or all) of their benefit externally funded through the Italian Social Security ('INPS’). Where
this is the case, these benefits are accounted for on a defined contribution basis.

d) Other retirement and employee benefit schemes
The Group operates additional retirement and employee benefit schemes in several of its overseas businesses, none of which are
considered to be individually material:

Location Scheme type Funding status Payable on

Australia Long service leave payments Unfunded Qualifying dates during employment
India Leave encashment plan? Unfunded Retirement

India Lump sum payment Funded Severance of employment

Japan Lump sum payment Unfunded Retirement or earlier exit

Saudi Arabia Lump sum payment Unfunded Retirement or termination

Sweden ITP scheme? Funded Throughout retirement

United Arab Emirates Lump sum payment Unfunded Retirement or termination

1 Unused annual leave can be used to purchase an additional retirement benefit.
2 Multi-employer, industry defined benefit scheme providing benefits above the state pension. Accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

e} Defined contribution schemes

The Group also operates defined contribution retirement schemes. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group. The total cost charged to the income statement of £18.2 million (2019: £15.6 million) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the plans.

28 Share-based payment plans
The Group has three active equity-settled share schemes: the AVEVA Group plc Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP'); the AVEVA Group
Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme; and the AVEVA Group plc Senior Employee Restricted Share Plan 2015.

The following table illustrates the number, and movements in, share options for the schemes during the year:

Restricted Deferred

LTIP share plan share scheme Total
Outstanding at 1 April 2018 950,144 302,532 19,171 1,271,847
Exercisable at 1 April 2018 4,069 1,248 - 5,317
Granted during year 358,111 122,156 44,620 524,887
Forfeited during the year {299,258) (32,390) - (331,648)
Exercised during the year (1,145) (79,237) (7,262) (87,644)
Outstanding at 31 March 2019 1,007,852 313,061 56,529 1,377,442
Exercisable at 31 March 2019 2,924 6,212 - 9,136
Granted during year 301,748 166,059 85,358 553,165
Forfeited during the year (29,100) (6,225) - (35,325)
Exercised during the year : (157,414) (67,108) (21,162) (245,684)
:Outstanding at 31 March 2020 1,123,086 405,787 120,725 1,649,598
:_Exercisuble at 31 March 2020, o s s . ...250,355 3,870, ...257 254,482
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The fair value of option awards subject to EPS performance targets was measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, and the fair value of option awards subject to TSR performance targets was determined by use of Monte Carlo
simulations, both taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The following table lists the

inputs to the model used for each of the awards:

Restricted Deferred
Year ended 31 March 2020 LTiP share plan share scheme
Weighted average exercise price 0.00-3.56p 0.00-3.56p -
Expected volatility 27% 27% 32%
Risk-free interest rate 0.4% 0.4% 0.6%
Expected life of option 3 to 5 years 3 years 2 to 4 years
Weighted average share price 37.94 39.94 32.20

Valuation type

Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo

Black-Scholes

Black-Scholes

Restricted Deferred
Year ended 31 March 2019 LTIP share plan share scheme
Weighted average exercise price 0.00-3.56p 0.00-3.56p -
Expected volatility 32% 32% 32%
Risk-free interest rate 0.8% to 0.9% 0.8% to 0.9% 0.8%
Expected life of option 3 to Syears 3years 3 years
Weighted average share price 27.58 26.51 2571

Valuation type

Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo

Black-Scholes

Black-Scholes

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the options outstanding at 31 March 2020 is 6.7 years (2019: 7.3 years).

The average fair value of options granted during the year was £37.61 (2019: £25.31). In calculating the fair value, the expected life of
the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

In the year ended 31 March 2020 the Group recognised an expense of £12.0 million related to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (2019: £11.2 million).

Details of the share option plans are as follows:

a) Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The performance conditions attached to the options awarded in 2019/20, 2018/19 and 2017/18 are based on EPS growth {50%), Total
Shareholder Return (TSR} (25%) against a comparator group combining the FTSE 350 Technology Sector and the S&P Mid Cap 400
Software companies, and strategic objectives {(25%), with the precise measures to be set and measured by the Remuneration Committee.

Further information about the performance conditions are provided in the Remuneration Committee report on page 102.

b) Deferred annual bonus share plan

The AVEVA Group Management Bonus Deferred Share Scheme 2008 (the Deferred Share Scheme) is participated in by Directors
and senior management. Subject to the achievement of performance conditions relating to a single financial year, these incentive
arrangements are intended to reward the recipient partly in cash and partly in ordinary shares in the Company to be delivered on a
deferred basis.

The award of deferred shares takes the form of nil-cost options exercisable by participants in three equal tranches, one in each of

the three years following the year in which the award is made. The option may be exercised in the 42-day period beginning on the
announcement of the financial results of the Group in each of the three calendar years after that in which the option was granted. The
last date of the exercise is the end of the 42-day period following the announcement of the financial results of the Group in the third
calendar year following that in which the option was granted or (if applicable) such later date as the Remuneration Committee may
specify. These awards are made solely in respect of performance in the financial year immediately prior to their grant, Delivery of the
deferred shares is not subject to further performance conditions but each participant is required to remain an employee or Director

of the Group during the three-year vesting period in order to receive their deferred shares in full (except in the case of death or the
occurrence of a takeover, reconstruction or amalgamation, or voluntary winding up of the Company).

c) AVEVA Group plc Senior Employee Restricted Share Plan 2015

The AVEVA Group plc Senior Employee Restricted Share Plan 2015 (the Restricted Share Plan} allows awards of options to be made to
senior management employees. The right to exercise an option is subject to completion of a required period of continued employment
within the Group, usually being three years. Options that are not exercised prior to the fifth anniversary (or, in the case of an award
with an overall award period of more than four years, the sixth anniversary) of the date of grant shall lapse.
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29 Share capital and reserves
a) Share capital

2020 2019
£m £m
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
161,512,219 (2019: 161,287,697) ordinary shares of 3.56 pence each 5.7 5.7
Details of the shares issued during the year and the prior year are as follows:
2020 2020 2019 2019
Number £m Number £m
At 1 April 161,287,697 5.7 161,207,315 5.7
Exercise of share options 224,522 - 80,382 -
QAt 31 March 161,512,219 5.7 161,287,697 5.7

During the year the Company issued 224,522 (2019: 80,382} ordinary shares of 3.56 pence each with a nominal value of £7,968 (2019:
£2,858) pursuant to the exercise of share options. The total proceeds were £7,968 (2019: £2,858), which included a premium of £nil
{2019: £nil).

b) Other reserves
Other reserves consist of the following:

Merger reserve

This represents the difference between the equity consideration and the nominal value of shares issued in connection with the
acquisition of SES in 2018, less amounts used to pay up the B shares. The return of value to shareholders was effected through the
issue and redemption of B shares which were paid up out of the merger reserve.

Cumulative translation adjustment reserve
The cumulative translation adjustment reserve is used to record exchange differences which arise from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Capital contribution reserve
Capital contributions represent the reimbursement by Schneider Electric Group of capital expenditure incurred in relation to the carve
out of SES following the Combination.

Capital redemption reserve
This represents the return of value to shareholders from AVEVA Group plc insofar as made out of distributable reserves.

Reverse acquisition reserve
On 1 March 2018, AVEVA Group plc acquired SES as part of a reverse acquisition. AVEVA Group plc was the legal acquirer, as it

- exercised controi over the enlarged Group. For accounting purposes SES was treated as the acquirer, as the former shareholders of
SES (Schneider Electric) obtained the majority of shares in the enlarged AVEVA Group. The reverse acquisition reserve represents the
difference between the consideration and the AVEVA capital equity interests on this acquisition.

Treasury shares

Treasury share reserve represents the cost of the shares in AVEVA Group plc purchased in the open market and held by the AVEVA
Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008 (‘EBT’) to satisfy deferred shares under the Group’s deferred annual bonus share plan, and options
granted after 1 April 2018 under the Group’s Long-Term Incentive Plan and Restricted Share Plan. During the year, 85,127

(2019: 342,774) shares were purchased by the EBT at a price of £36.13 (2019: £27.07) and 21,162 shares (2019: 7,262) with an
attributable cost of £468,499 (2019: £150,028) were issued to employees in satisfying share options that were exercised.

£m

At 1 April 2018 0.3
Own shares purchased 9.3
Shares issued to employees (0.2)

" At 31 March 2019 ' 9.4
Own shares purchased . ’ 3.1
Shares issued to employees (0.4)

At 31 March 2020 , A 12.1 |
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30 Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related portles have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with Schneider Electric Group companies:

2020 2019

£m £m

Sales of goods and services 69.1 80.1
Purchases of goods and services (11.2) (19.7)
Completion accounts adjustment - {19.4)
Other non-trading transactions 13.4 4.3

Other non-trading transactions related to amounts received from Schneider Electric in reimbursement for expenditure incurred as part
of the Company’s migration from activities covered by TSAs following the Combination. Of these transactions, £3.6 million
(2019: £4.3 million) related to operating expenses incurred, and £3.8 million {2019: £nil) to capital expenditure.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group paid £17.4 million to Schneider Electric SE, the parent company of the Schneider
Electric Group. All other transactions were with subsidiary companies within the Schneider Electric Group.

As at 31 March, Group companies held the following balances with Schneider Electric group companies:

2020 2019

£m £m

Trade and other receivables . 23.6 34.1
Trade and other payables (7.6) (10.5)
Non-trading receivables 4.8 14

All balances held were with subsidiary companies within the Schneider Electric Group.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at 31 March 2020 are unsecured, and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or
received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has not recorded any impairment
of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2019: £nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Remuneration of key management personnel : -
The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified

in |IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’. Key management personnel are considered to be the Board and the ELT of AVEVA Group plc. In
addition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits and contributes to defined contribution pension schemes on their
behalf. Key management personnel also participate in the Group's share option schemes and deferred annual bonus share plan.

Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Committee
report on pages 80 to 108.

2020 2019
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 7.9 7.2
Share-based payments 6.0 8.2 -
I 13.9 15.4
31 Commitments and contingencies
2020 2019
£m £m
Guarantees 8.0 5.0

The Group provides a number of guarantees for obligations to complete and deliver projects. These include bid, performance and
warranty bonds, and guarantees against advance payments, all of which arise in the ordinary course of business. The amounts
disclosed above represent the Group's contractual exposure at the balance sheet date.
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32 Changes in accounting policies

a) Background

The Group adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 April
2019. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and related interpretations.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, computer equipment and motor vehicles. Before the adoption of IFRS 16,
the Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. At the date of
transition, no finance leases were held, and all leases were classified as operating. Leased property was not capitalised and the lease
payments were recognised as rent expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid
rent and accrued rent were recognised under prepayments and accruals, respectively.

b) Transition

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases that it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to the
lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid, accrued lease payments and onerous lease provision previously recognised. Lease
liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities was 3.6%.

In accordance with the modified retrospective method of adoption, the Group has restated the opening balances as at 1 April 2019.
Comparative financial information has not been restated.

c) Practical expedients and exemptions

The Group has elected to use the following practical expedients and recognition exemptions available under IFRS 16:

— the recognition exemption for lease contracts that, at their commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not
contain a purchase option {short-term leases};

— accounting for leases ending within 12 months of the date of transition as short-term leases;

- the recognition exemption for lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value {low-value assets);

- reliance on the previous assessment of a lease, when applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 14, for all contracts that existed on the date of
initial application;

- touse hindsight in determining the lease term where contracts contained options to extend or terminate the lease;

~ exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset recognised on initial adoption of the standard;

— adjustment of the right-of-use asset on transition by the amount of any previously recognised onerous lease provision, as an
alternative to performing an impairment review;

— where appropriate, and by class of underlying asset, arrangements containing both lease and non-lease components being
accounted for as though they comprise a single lease component; and

— application of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics. This principally applies to
motor vehicles.

d) Financial impact
Impact on the Consolidated balance sheet (increase/(decrease)) as at 1 April 2019:

31 March 2019 IFRS 16 1 April 2019
£m £m £m
Other intangible assets 599.5 (14.3) 585.2
Right-of-use assets - 76.1 76.1
:Non-current assets 1,923.0 61.8 1,984.8 ‘
Lease liabilities - 15.0 15.0
Provisions 1.9 (0.5) 1.4
:Current liabilities 346.2 145 360.7 ‘
Lease liabilities - 49.9 49.9
Provisions 2.6 (2.6) -

Non-current liabilities 130.1 47.3 177.4 |
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The impact of the transition on the Consolidated income statement (increase/(decrease)) is:

2020 2020
Per |IAS 17 IFRS 16  As reported
£m £m £m
Selling and administrative expenses (368.7) 0.9 (367.8)
Total operating expenses (549.0) 0.9 (548.1)
Profit from operations 94.1 0.9 95.0
Finance expense (0.8) (2.5) (3.3)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 93.6 (1.6) 92.0
Income tax {expense)/credit (22.6) 0.4 (22.2)
:Proﬁt for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 71.0 1.2) 69.8 ]
Adjusted earnings
Profit from operations 94.1 0.9 95.0
Amortisation of intangibles {excluding other software} 91.0 (0.4) 90.6
Exceptional items 19.1 (0.3) 18.8
Adjusted EBIT 216.6 0.2 216.8
Earnings per share (pence)
Earnings per share for the year
- basic 44.09 (0.74) 43.35
- diluted 43.87 (0.74) 43.13
Adjusted earnings per share for the year
- basic 109.86 (1.16) 108.70
- diluted 109.31 (1.16) 108.15
Impact on Consolidated statement of cash flows (increase/(decrease)):
2020 2020
PerlAS 17 IFRS 16 Asreported
£m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the year 71.0 (1.2) 69.8
Income tax expense 226 (0.4) 22.2
Net finance expense 0.5 25 3.0
Amortisation of intangible assets 921 (0.4) 91.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 7.3 17.1 24.4
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other payables {6.2) 04 (5.8)
Cash generated from operating activities before tax 143.4 18.0 161.4
Net cash generated from operating activities 104.1 18.0 122.1
Cash flows from financing activities:
Interest paid {0.8) (2.5) (3.3)
Payment on principal element of lease liability - (15.5) (15.5)
Net cash used in financing activities (75.6) (18.0) (93.6)

iCIosing cash and cash equivalents 114.5 - 1145 [
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32 Changes in accounting policies continued
The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 31 March 2019 as follows:

£m
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 46.3
Less:
Impact of discounting® (5.9)
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 404
‘Commitments relating to short-term leases? (3.3)
Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets? (0.1)
Add:
Service charges? 5.7
Payments in optional extension periods not recognised as at 31 March 20194 22.2
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 ' 64.9 |

1 Previously disclosed lease commitments were undiscounted, whilst IFRS 16 obligations are discounted based on the incremental borrowing rate ot the transition date.

2 Under IAS 17 lease commitments included short-term leases and leases where the value of the underlying asset was low. The Group has taken the recognition exemptions
available relating to these leases under IFRS 16, and has consequently not recognised a lease liability.

3 Asthe Group has elected to use the practicol expedient to view certain orrongements containing both lease and non-lease components as a single lease component, service
charges are included within the assessment of lease liability under IFRS 16. Under IAS 17, only rental expense was included within operating lease commitments.

4 Under IAS 17 lease commitments included non-cancellable periods in the lease agreement only, Under IFRS 16 the lease term includes periods covered by an option to
extend the lease where the Group is reasonably certain that such options will be exercised.

e) IFRIC interpretation 23 'Uncertainty over income tax treatment’

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application
of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:
— whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;

— the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;

— how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and

— how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

The Group determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax
treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The adoption of this interpretation did not have a material impact on the Consolidated financial statements.
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Company Balance Sheet

31 March 2020

2020 2019
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments 5 1,334.1 1,325.0
Deferred tax assets 1.7 1.3
1,335.8 1,326.3
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6 130.1 121.0
Cash and cash equivalents - 0.2
130.1 121.2
Total assets 1,465.9 14475 |
Equity
Issued share capital 8 . b7 5.7
Share premium 574.5 574.5
Capital redemption reserve 101.7 101.7
Merger reserve 619.6 619.6
Retained earnings 157.4 127.9
Total equity 1,458.9 14294
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables . . 7 53 17.0
Current tax liabilities 1.7 1.1
7.0 18.1

iities

o raeseLaws |

Profit for the year

1088

No income statement is presented by the Company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The accompanying notes

are an integral part of this Company balance sheet.

The financial statements on pages 159 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 9 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

ale

Craig Hayman James Kidd Company number
Chief Executive Officer Deputy CEO and CFO 2937296
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Company Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

31 March 2020

Capital Total

Share Share redemption Merger Profitand shareholders’

copital premium reserve reserve  loss account funds

) £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2018 5.7 574.5 101.7 619.6 733 1,374.8

Profit for the year ’ - - - - 108.8 108.8

Share-based payments - - - - 6.6 6.6

Share options granted to employees of subsidiary companies - - - - 47 .47

Tax arising on share options - - - - 0.5 Q.5

Dividends paid - - - - (66.0) (66.0)

At 31 March 2019 ) 5.7 574.5 101.7 619.6 127.9 1,429.4

Profit for the year = - - - 89.0 89.0

Share-based payments - - - - 6.7 6.7

Share options granted to employees of subsidiary companies - - - - 5.3 5.3

Tax arising on share options - - - - 0.2 0.2

Dividends paid ) - - - - (71.7) {71.7)
At 31°March 20207 1 T oI e TS gy B85 1017 619.6  157.4°  1,458.9 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Company statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1 Authorisation of financial statements and corporate information

The financial statements of AVEVA Group plc (‘the Company’} for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 June 2020 and the balance sheet was signed on the Board's behalf by Craig Hayman, the CEO, and James
Kidd, the Deputy CEO & CFO. AVEVA Group plc is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales whose shares
are publicly traded on the London Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS
101) and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. The
accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020. The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling (£), rounded to the nearest £0.1 million except when otherwise indicated.

No income statement is presented by the Company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The results of AVEVA
Group plc are included in the Consolidated financial statements of AVEVA Group plc.

The Directors believe that the Company is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite macroeconomic and
geopolitical uncertainties. It has considerable financial resources and no borrowings. As a consequence of these factors and having
reviewed the forecasts for the coming year, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that there are adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
annual financial statements.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
Explained below are the significant accounting policies of the Company. The full Statement of Group accounting policies is included on
pages 164 to 168. '

a) Basis of accounting

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:
— the requirements of IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows;

- the requirements of IAS 8: IFRSs issued but not effective;

- the requirements of IFRS 2: Share-based Payments;

- the requirements of IFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

— the requirements of IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurements; and

— the requirements of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures.

The basis for all of the above exemptions is because equivalent disclosures are included in the Consolidated financial statements of the
Group in which the entity is consolidated.

b) Significant accounting estimates

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The carrying values of investments in subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstance indicate

the carrying value may be impaired. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the investments in subsidiaries are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of net
selling price and VIU. In assessing VIU, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement. Further details about the assumptions used and sensitivity analysis performed in the impairment
review are set outin note 5.

c) Taxation
Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more, or a right to pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in periods in which
timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

d) Share-based payments

The accounting policy in relation to share-based payment transactions is disclosed in full in the Consolidated financial statements.
The Company recognises the expense relating to the Executive Directors. The Company also records a corresponding increase in its
investments in subsidiaries with a credit to equity which is equivalent to the IFRS 2 cost in subsidiary undertakings.

e) Investments in subsidiaries
Fixed asset investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment.
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3 Result for the year
AVEVA Group plc reported a profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2020 of £89.0 million (2019: £108.8 million).

Audit fees of £7,000 (2019: £7.000) are borne by another Group company.
The Company had an average of two employees during the year (2019: two).

Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 80 to 108. The Company bears the remuneration
expense for Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

4 Dividends
2020 2019
£m £m
Declared and paid during the year
Interim 2019/20 dividend paid of 15.5 pence (2018/19: 14.0 pence) per ordinary share 25.0 22,5
Final 2018/19 dividend paid of 29.0 pence (2017/18: 27.0 pence) per ordinary share 46.7 43.5
717 66.0 |
Proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
:'_F;ir"‘)ul 2019/20 proposed dividéﬁﬁ’l&f_ .0 pence (2018/19: 29.0 pence) pe‘“’)@' f“‘ymmM"'W“ ... 468 ' 46 8"

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 21 July 2020 and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements. If approved at the Annual General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
11 August 2020 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 10 July 2020.

5 Investments

£m
Cost and net book value
At 1 April 2019 1.325.0
Additions 9.1
e 0200 0 v 0 SRR T . 71,3840

The Company has identified the economic impact of Covid-19 as an event indicating that the carrying value of investments in
subsidiaries may be impaired. Impairment testing was carried out on a VIU basis using the most recently approved management
budgets for the year ending 31 March 2021, together with the most recent three-year business plan extrapolated to a duration of
five years in total by applying medium-term growth rates to year three forecasts. Projected cash flows beyond five years have been
assumed at the long-term growth rate for the region in which the subsidiary is based, and these have been used to formulate a
terminal value for the discounted cash flow calculation in perpetuity. No impairment was identified in any investment.

This VIU model was sensitised, to create a ‘worst case’ view of the potential impact of Covid-19, resulting in significantly reduced
revenue and cash flows. The considerations in creating this sensitised model included:

- severe business disruptions as a result of stay-at-home orders being in place almost globally for 12-18 months;

- oil prices remaining depressed in the next financial year; and

- the global economy suffering a major recession.

Under the sensitised model, the recoverable amount was still sufficiently greater than the carrying value of the investments such that
no impairment was identified.

Details of the Company's subsidiary undertakings are set out in note 18 in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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2020 2019
£m £m
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 130.1 121.0
7 Trade and other payables
2020 2019
£m £m
Social security, employee taxes and sales taxes 0.4 3.0
Accruals 3.0 0.2
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 1.9 13.8
l 5.3 17.0
8 Share capital
2020 2019
£m £m
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
161,512,219 (2019: 161,287,697) ordinary shares of 3.56 pence each 5.7 5.7
Details of the shares issued during the year and the prior year are as follows:
2020 2020 2019 2019
Number £m Number £m
At 1 April 161,287,697 - 5.7 161,207,315 5.7
Exercise of share options 224,522 - 80,382 -
At 31 March e e i 161,612,219+ 5.~ 5.7, 161,287,697 - 57 |

During the year the Company issued 224,522 (2019: 80,382) ordinary shares of 3.56 pence each with a nominal value of £7,968 (2019:
£2,858) pursuant to the exercise of share options. The total proceeds were £7,968 (2019: £2,858), which included a premium of £nil

{2019: £nil).

Details of share options awarded to Executive Directors during the year are contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Note 28
of the Consolidated financial statements for the Group includes details of share option awards made during the year.

9 Related party transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company made a payment of £17.4 million to Schneider Electric, a related party, in relation

to the finalised completion accounts following the acquisition of SES.

There are no related party balances held at 31 March 2020 (2019: £nil}.
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Statement of compliance

The Consolidated financial statements of AVEVA Group plc and all its subsidiaries (‘the Group') have been prepared in accordance
with IFRS, as adopted by the European Union, as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020. The Group’'s financial statements are also consistent with IFRSs as issued by the IASB.

The parent Company financial statements of AVEVA Group plc have been prepared under the FRS 101 reduced disclosure framework
and are included on pages 159 to 163.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of AVEVA Group plc and its subsidiaries as at 31 March each
year. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared using existing GAAP for each country of operation. Adjustments are made
to translate any differences that may exist between the respective local GAAP and IFRSs.

inter-company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from intra-Group transactions, have been eliminated in
full. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is obtained by the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred out of the Group. On acquisition, assets and liabilities of subsidiaries are measured at their fair values at
the date of acquisition, with any excess of the cost of acquisition over this value being capitalised as goodwill.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair
value. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses. In the case of a reverse acquisition, the
costs incurred by the legal acquirer (AVEVA Group plc) are considered to be pre-acquisition and are not therefore included within the
income statement.

Adoption of new and revised standards

The Group has applied IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019. For further detail
regarding the adoption of these accounting standards, please refer to note 32. No other standards or interpretations came into force
during the year which had a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

New standards and interpretations not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the current reporting period,
and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Foreign currencies

The functional and presentational currency of AVEVA Group plc is Pounds Sterling (£). Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
Consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at
the date of the initial transaction.

The subsidiaries have a number of different functional currencies. As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Pounds Sterling (£) at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated on a monthly basis, using an average periodic rate for each month. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation are taken directly to the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the Group's CGUs that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the CGU retained.

If the potential benefit of tax losses or other deferred tax assets does not satisfy the criteria in IFRS 3 for separate recognition when
a business combination is initially accounted for but is subsequently realised, the Group recognises the deferred tax income in the
Consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets
intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and from a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value as at the date
of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to each class of intangible asset as set out below.

Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets, excluding development costs, is taken to the Consolidated income statement in
the year in which it is incurred. Internal software development expenditure is recognised as an intangible asset only after its technical
feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated.

Useful lives are also examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the asset, which are as follows:

Years
Developed technology 3-12
Customer relationships 5-20
Purchased brands!? n/a
Trademarks 5-15
Other software 3-7
Purchased software rights . 3-10
Favourable leases Length of lease
Capitalised Research & Development . 3-5

1 Brands held are considered to have indefinite lives, therefore no amortisation is charged.

Research expenditure
Research expenditure is written off in the year of expenditure.

Government grants

Grants in respect of specific Research & Development projects are recognised as receivable when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and the conditions to obtain them have been complied with, They are credited to the income statement in the
same period as the related Research & Development costs for which the grant is compensating. The grant income is presented as a
deduction from the related expense.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write down the assets to their estimated residual value over the useful economic
life of the asset as follows:

Years
Computer equipment 3-5
Fixtures, fittings and office equipment 6-8
Motor vehicles 4

Leasehold buildings and improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, or useful economic life,
if shorter,
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Impairment of assets

Goodwill arising on acquisition is allocated to CGUs expected to benefit from the combination’s synergies and represents the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and generates cash flows which are independent of other
CGUs. The recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or when events or
changes in circumstance indicate that it might be impaired. The carrying values of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
other than goodwill are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying value may be impaired.
If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or CGUs are written
down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of net selling price and VIU. In assessing VIU, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If the initial allocation of goodwill acquired in a business
combination cannot be completed before the end of the first annual period in which the business combination is effected, that initial
allocation shall be completed before the end of the first annual period beginning after the acquisition date. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement in the administrative expenses line item.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when revenue recognised in respect of a customer contract exceeds amounts received or receivable
from the customer. This situation arises when the software licence performance obligation, from a multi-year rental contract, has

been delivered to a customer and the revenue recognised at a point in time and invoicing is conditional on fL‘thher performance. Also,
from the recognition of revenue from service projects on a percentage of completion basis that is greater than amounts invoiced to the
customer and invoicing is conditional on further performance. The carrying amount is reduced by allowances for expected credit losses
under IFRS 9. When the invoices are raised the contract asset values are reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract liabilities comprise the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which'the Group has received
payment from the customer in advance of revenue recognition. This situation arises when the customer is invoiced in advance of the
transfer and recognition of maintenance and subscriptions. Also, when the revenue recognised from services projects on a percentage
of completion basis is lower than the amounts invoiced to the customer.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30 to 90 day terms, are typically held within a business model with the objective to hold in
order to collect contractual cash flows. As such, trade receivables are recorded initially at fair value, and at amortised cost thereafter.
This results in their recognition and subsequent measurement at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others:

- the debtor entering bankruptcy or administration; and

- the outcome of legal proceedings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these approximates their fair value. For the purpose of
the Consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Derivative financial instruments

The only derivative financial instruments the Group holds are forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
exchange risk. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. All forward foreign
exchange contracts have been marked-to-market and are held at fair value on the Consolidated balance sheet. The Group has not
applied hedge accounting during the year and therefore movements in fair value are being recorded in the Consolidated income
statement. Fair value is estimated using the settlement rates prevailing at the period end.

Leases ~IAS 17
Comparative balances are presented as historically disclosed under IAS 17.

Under IAS 17, leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions. The Group recognises provisions for tax based on estimates of taxes that
are likely to become due. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determinations are made.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

The UK Research & Development Credit (RDEC) is recognised in the income statement and netted off against Research & Development
expenses as the RDEC is of the nature of a government grant.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

- except where the deferred income tax liability arises from goodwill amortisation or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused

tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,

carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

- except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction thot is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that itis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

The income tax effects of items recorded in either other comprehensive income or equity are recognised in the Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income or the Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity respectively. Otherwise, income tax is
recognised in the Consolidated income statement.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales taxes except:

— where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the
sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

— receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales taxes included.

The net amount of sales taxes recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in
the Consolidated balance sheet.

Post-retirement benefits

For the defined benefit schemes, the defined benefit obligation is calculated annually for each plan by qualified external actuaries
using the projected unit credit method which attributes entitlement to benefits to the current period (to determine current service cost)
and to the current and prior periods (to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation). The retirement benefit liability in
the Consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate derived from a
published index of AA-rated corporate bonds) as reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled
directly. Fair value is based on market price information and in the case of quoted securities is the published bid price. The value of a
net pension benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any amount the Group expects to recover by way of refunds from the plan
or reductions in the future contributions. The current service cost is recognised in the Consolidated income statement as an employee
benefit expense. The net interest element of the defined benefit cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments or changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or charged in the
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

The Group also operates defined contribution pension schemes for a number of UK and non-UK employees. Contributions to defined
contribution plans are charged to the Consolidated income statement as they become payable.
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Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted, further details of which are given in note 28 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (vesting
date). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any increase in the value of the transaction as a result of the modification, as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settied award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share, subject to
an estimate of whether performance conditions will be met.

Employee benefit trust

The Group has established an employee benefit trust (AVEVA Group Employee Benefit Trust 2008), which is a separately administered
trust and is funded by loans from Group companies. The assets of the trust comprise shares in AVEVA Group plc and cash balances.
The Group recognises assets and liabilities of the trust in the Consolidated financial statements and shares held by the trust are
recorded at cost as a deduction from shareholders’ equity.

Consideration received for the sale of shares held by the trustis recoghised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from
the sale and the original cost being taken to retained earnings.
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Full List of Addresses and Subsidiaries

Schneider Electric Software RU
Moika Embankment 58

A full list of addresses of all subsidiaries and significant holdings
is provided below, alphabetically by country within each region.

Head office
AVEVA Group plc
High Cross
Madingley Road
Cambridge
CB30HB

UK

EMEA

AVEVA Denmark A/S
Sofiendalsvej 5A

9200 Aalborg SV
Denmark

AVEVA SA

Schneider Electric Software France SAS
5 Square Felix Nadar

Bat C, 94300 Vincennes

France

AVEVA GmbH
Otto-Volger-Street 7c
65843 Sulzbach (Taunus)
Germany

Schneider Electric Software Italia S.p.A
Viale Milano no. 177

Gallarate

Milan

Italy

Asset+ Holding BV
Asset+ RDS BV
Asset+ Solutions BV
Asset+ Solutions IP BV
Papendorpseweg 100
35288

Utrecht

Netherlands

AVEVA (The Netherlands) BV

Schneider Electric Software Holdings Netherlands BV
Schneider Electric Software Netherlands BV
Baarnsche dijk 10 B

3741LS

Baarn

Netherlands

AVEVA AS

Golf Tower
Kanalsletta 2
N-4033 Stavanger
Norway

AVEVA Limited Liability Company
3rd Floor, Office 9, Lit 4

Pavlovskaya Street 7

115093

Moscow

Russia

lit. A, of. 504 190 000
St. Petersburg
Russia

Schneider Electric Software Spain S.L.
Avda Manoteras, Num 44

Puerta 1

28050

Madrid

Spain

AVEVA AB

PO Box 50555, Drottninggatan 18
SE-202 15

Malmo

Sweden

AVEVA Yazilim VE Hizmetleri A.S.

Kurtkdy Aeropark, Yenisehir Mahallesi, Osmanl Bulvari
No:11 Kat 5 A/28

Pendik

istanbul

34912

Turkey

Schneider Electric Software Middle East FZE
Plot. No. S10809

P.O.Box 61495

Jebel Ali

Dubai

UAE

8over8 Limited (in liquidation)
Northern Ireland Science Park
Fort Georye, Bay Road

Derry

BT487TG

UK

AVEVA Consulting Limited

AVEVA Engineering IT Limited
AVEVA Finance Limited

AVEVA Financing Limited

AVEVA Limited

AVEVA Managed Services Limited
AVEVA Solutions Limited
CadCentre Engineering IT Limited
CadCentre Limited

CadCentre Pension Trustees Limited
CadCentre Property Limited

Fabtrol Systems, UK Limited (in liquidation)
LFM Software Limited

Tribon Solutions (UK) Limited

High Cross

Madingley Road

Cambridge

CB3 OHB

UK
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Full List of Addresses and Subsidiaries continued

Schneider Electric Software GB Limited
101 Science Park

Milton Road

Cambridge

CB4 OFY

UK

Americas

Schneider Electric Software Argentina S.A.
Suipacha 1111, Floor 11

Buenos Aires

C1008AAW

Argentina

AVEVA do Brasil Informatica Ltda.
Edificio Internacional Rio

Praia do Flamengo 154

Rio de Janeiro

Brazil

Schneider Electric Software Brasil Ltda.
Rua Alves Guimaraoes

No. 462, conj. 41/42

Pinheiros

Sao Paulo

05410-000

Brazil

Schneider Electric Software Canada inc.
49 Quarry Park Blvd. SE

Calgary Alberta AB T2C 5H9

Canada

AVEVA Chile S.p.A.

Schneider Electric Software Chile S.p.A.
Avda. Andres Bello

No 2711 Of. 1701

Las Condes

Santiago

Chile

AVEVA Colombia S.A.S

Schneider Electric Software Colombia S.A.S.
Cento Empresarial Colpatria

Torre 3, Piso 6

Calle 127A 53A-45

Bogota

Colombia

AVEVA Software and Services S.A de CV.
AVEVA de Mexico S.de R.L.de C.V.

AV. Insurgentes Sur No. 863, Piso 7

Col. Napoles, Deleg Benito Juarez

D.F.CP 06600

Mexico

Schneider Electric Software Mexico SA de C V.
111 Presidente Masarik

Polanco

Miguel Hidalgo

11560 Ciudad de México

Mexico

AVEVA Inc.

10350 Richmond Avenue, Suite 400
Houston

77042

USA

AVEVA Software, LLC
Wonderware de Mexico, Inc.
Wonderware of Venezuelq, Inc,
251 Little Falls Drive

Wilmington

DE 19808

USA

Asia Pacific

8over8 Pty Ltd

L25, 108 St Georges Terrace
Perth

WA 6000

Australia

AVEVA Pty Ltd

The Forrest Centre
Suite 5, Level 29

221 St Georges Terrace
Perth

WA 6000

Australia

AVEVA Software Australia Holdings Pty Ltd
Schneider Electric Software Australia Pty Ltd
78 Waterloo Road

Macquarie Park

New South Wales 2113

Australia

AVEVA (Shanghai) Consultancy Co. Limited
AVEVA Solutions (Shanghai) Co. Limited
37F, 88 Yincheng Rd

Pudong

Shanghai

China

Telvent Control Systems (China) Co. Limited
Middle Zone, 2/F, No.1 Building

No. 2, 2nd Liangshuihe River Street

Beijing Economic & Technological Development Area
100176 Beijing

China

AVEVA East Asia Limited

Room 1501

Grand Millennium Plaza (lower block)
181 Queens Road

Central Hong Kong

Hong Kong

AVEVA Information Technology India Private Limited

Unit No 202, Wing A, 2nd Floor

Supreme Business Park, Supreme City, Powai
Mumbai - 400 076

India
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AVEVA Software India Private Limited AVEVA Asia Pacific Sendirian Berhad
Plot Nos. 488 and 489 1st Floor Sai Ganesh Towers AVEVA Sendirian Berhad
Y.S.R. Hills,Sro Swamy Ayyappa Society Level 7, Menara Milenium
Madhapur Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar
Hyderabad " Damansara Heights
Telangana - 500081 50490, Kuala Lumpur
India Malaysia
AVEVA Solutions India LLP AVEVA Korea Limited
Tower 2.1, 2nd/4th Floor, WaveRock Schneider Electric Software Korea Limited
Sy.no 115 APIIC IT/ITE SEZ 25 F, West Tower
Nanakramguda Mirae Asset Center 1 Building
Gachibowli 26 Eulji-ro 5-gil, Jung-gu
Hyderabad - 50008 Seoul
India Republic of Korea
Schneider Electric Software India Private Limited AVEVA Pte. Ltd
Salarpuria Touchstone Schneider Electric Software Holdings Singapore Pte. Ltd
Survey No.15A 15 Changi Business Park
Portion of Survey No 14 Central 1
P7. Kadubeesanahalli #03-01/05
Varthur Hobli Singapore 486057
Bangalore Singapore
Karnataka
560037 Schneider Electric Software (Thailand) Co., Ltd
India No. 46 Rungrojthanakul Building
1st, 10th — 11th Floors
AVEVA KK Ratchadapisek Road
Nisseki Yokohama Bldg Huaykwang Subdistrict
19F 1-1-8, Sakuragi-cho Huaykwang District
Naka-ku, Yokohama Bangkok
231-0062 Thailand
Japan

Schneider Electric Software Japan Inc
OASE Shibaura M) Building

2-15-6 Shibaura

Minato-ku

Tokyo

Japan
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Company Information and Advisers

Directors

Philip Aiken

Craig Hayman
James Kidd
Christopher Humphrey
Jennifer Allerton
Ron Mobed

Paula Dowdy
Peter Herweck
Olivier Blum
Emmanuel Babeau

Company secretary
David Ward

Registered office
High Cross
Madingley Road
Cambridge, CB3 OHB

Registered number
2937296

Auditor
Ernst & Young LLP

Chairman

Chief Executive

Deputy CEO and CFO

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director (appointed 30 April 2020)
Non-Executive Director (resigned 30 April 2020)

One Cambridge Business Park

Cambridge, CB4 OWZ

Bankers

Barclays Bank plc
9-11 St Andrews Street
Cambridge, CB2 3AA

Solicitors
Ashurst LLP

London Fruit & Wool Exchange

1 Duval'Square
London, E1 6PW

Mills & Reeve LLP
Botanic House

100 Hills Road
Cambridge, CB2 1PH

Stockbrokers

Numis Securities Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building

10 Paternoster Square
London, ECAM 7LT

J.P. Morgan Cazenove
25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London, E14 5)P

Registrars

Link Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham, BR3 4TU

Financial PR

FTI Consulting

200 Aldersgate Street
London, EC1A 4HD
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Glossary

AGM
APM
AQR
ARR
AVEVA LIFE
CEO
CFO
CcGU
CHRO
DRR
EBIT
EBT
ED
ELT
EMEA
EPS
ERP
ESG
EY
FCA
FRC
GAAP
IFRSs

ISAs (UK)

KPI
LTIP

Annual General Meeting

Asset Performance Management
Audit Quality Review

Annualised Recurring Revenue
AVEVA's values

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Cash Generating Unit

Chief Human Resources Officer
Directors’ Remuneration Report
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
Employee Benefit Trust

Executive Director

Executive Leadership Team
Europe, Middle East and Africa
Earnings Per Share

Enterprise Resource Planning
Environmental, Social and Governance
Ernst & Young

Financial Conduct Authority
Financial Reporting Council
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

International Financial Reporting
Standards

International Standards on Auditing
(UK)

Key Performance Indicator

Long-Term Incentive Plan
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NED
NRR
PRA
R&D
RCF
RDEC

SaaS
SDGs
SES

STEM

TCV
TSA

TSR
ViU
WISE

Non-Executive Director

Net Retention Rate

Performance & Retention Awards
Research & Development
Revolving Credit Facility

Research & Development Expenditure
Credit

Software as a Service
Sustainable Development Goals

Schneider Electric industrial software
business

Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics

Total Contract Value

Transitional Services Agreement. An
arrangement where Schneider Electric
continues to provide infrastructure
support and back office resource for
legal entities transferred in the sale to
AVEVA for a monthly fee, for an agreed
time period

Total Shareholder Return
Value in Use

Women in Science and Engineering
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